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Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun

srform’ Audlts & Reviews of Hlstorlcal Fmanmal Inform :
ﬂReIated‘Serwces Engagements

1. MB & Associates is a partnership’firm of Chartered Accountants which was established seven years back. The
firm is getting new clients and has also, been offered new engagement services with existing clients. The firm is
concerned about obtaining such information as it considers necessary in the circumstances before accepting an
engagement with a new client and acceptance of a new engagement with an existing client. The firm is looking to
work with only select clients to adhere to the Quallty Control Standards. Guide MB & Associates about the matters
to be considered with regard to the integrity of a client, as per the requirements of SQC 1.

(Nov-19 New + RTP May 19)
With regard to the integrity of a client, matters that the firm considers include, for example:

e The identity and business reputation of the client’s principal owners, key management, related parties and
those charged with its governance.

e The nature of the client’s operations, including its business practices.

e Information concerning the attitude of the client’s principal owners, key management and those charged with
its governance towards such matters as aggressive interpretation of accounting standards and the internal
control environment.

e Whether the client is aggressively concerned with maintaining the firm’s fees as low as possible.

e Indications of an inappropriate limitation in the scope of work.

« |Indications that the client might be involved in money laundering or other criminal activities.

o The reasons for the proposed appointment of the firm and non-reappointment of the previous firm.

2. J.A.C.K. & Co., a Chartered Accountant firm was appointed as the statutory auditor of Falcon Ltd. after ensuring
the compliance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Jay was the engagement partner for the
aforesaid audit and prior to commencement of the audit, Mr. Jay had called for a meeting of the engagement team
in order to direct them and assign them their responsibilities. At the end of meeting, Mr. Jay assigned review
responsibilities to two of the engagement team members who were the most experienced amongst all, for
reviewing the work performed by the less experienced team members. While reviewing the work performed by the
less experienced members of the engagement team, what shall be the considerations of the reviewers?

(Mar-21 MTP)
As per SQC 1, “Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements”, review responsibilities are deterimined on the basis that more
experienced team members, including the engagement partner, review work performed by less experienced team
members.

In the given situation, Mr. Jay, engagement partner assigned review responsibilities to two of the engagement team
members who were the most experienced team members. While reviewing the work performed by less experienced
members of the engagement team, both the more experienced Reviewers should consider whether: :

(l) The work has been performed in accordance with professional standards and regulatory and legal requirements.
(ii) Significant matters have been raised for further consideration. :

(iii) Appropriate consultations have taken place and the resulting conclusions have been documented and
implemented.

(iv) There is a need to revise the nature, timing and extent of work performed.

{(v) The work performed suppofts the conclusions reached and is appropriately documented.
(vi) The evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support the report; and

(vii) The objectives of the engagement procedures have been achieved.

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI ‘ U



Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun
3. M/s NK & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of Fresh Juice Limited for the F.Y

2019-2020. The previous year's audit was conducted by M/s. LP & Associates. After the audit was completed and
report submitted, it was found that closing balances of last financial year i.e., 2018-19 were incorrectly brought
forward. It was found that M/s NK & Co. did not apply any audit procedures to ensure that correct opening balances
have been brought forward to the current period. Accordingly, a complaint was filed against NK & Co. in relation to
this matter. You are required to inform what policies are required to be implemented by NK & Co. for dealing with
such complaints and allegations as required by Standard on Quality Control (SQC). (Jan-21 New)

Complaints and Allegations in a Firm:
(i) The firm should establish policies and procedures designed to provide it with reasonable assurance that it deals
appropriately with:
(a) Complaints and allegations that the work performed by the firm fails to comply with professional standards
and regulatory and legal requirements; and
(b} Allegations of non-compliance with the firm’s system of quality control.

(ii} Complaints and allegations {(which do not include those that are clearly frivolous) may originate from within or
outside the firm. They may be made by firm personnel, clients or other third parties. They may be received by
engagement team members or other firm personnel.

(i) As part of this process, the firm establishes clearly defined channels for firm personnel to raise any concerns in a
manner that enables them to come forward without fear of reprisals.

(iv) The firm investigates such complaints and allegations in accordance with established policies and procedures.
The investigation is supervised by a partner with sufficient and appropriate experience and authority within the firm
but who is not otherwise involved in the engagement, and includes involving legal counsel as necessary. Small firms
and sole practitioners may use the services of a suitably qualified external person or another firm to carry out the
investigation. Complaints, allegations and the responses to them are documented.

(v) Where the results of the investigations indicate deficiencies in the design or operation of the firm’s quality
contro! policies and procedures, or non-compliance with the firm’s system of quality control by an individual or
individuals, the firm takes appropriate action.

4. HK & Co. Chartered Accountants have been auditors of SAT Ltd (a listed entity) for the last 8 financial years. CA.
H, partner of the firm, has been handling the audit assignment very well since the appointment. The audit work of
CA. H and her team is reviewed by a senior partner CA. K to assure that audit is performed in accordance with
professional standards and regulatory and legal requirements. CA. K was out of India for some personal reasons, so
this year CA. G has been asked to review the audit work. In your opinion, what areas CA. G should consider at the
time of review. List any four areas and also comment whether firm is complying with Standard on Quality Control
or not. (July-21)
CQmpllance with Standard on Quality Control on review of audit work - As per SQC 1, reVIewer should consider
following:

(i) The work has been performed in accordance with professional standards and regulatory and legal récjuirements;
(ii) Significant matters have been raised for further consideration;

(iii) Appropriate consultations have taken place and the resulting conclusions have been doc‘umented and
implemented; ’

{iv) There is a need to revise the nature, timing and extent of work performed;

(v) The work performed supports the conclusions reached and is appropriately documented;

{(vi) The evidence obtamed is sufflc1ent and approprlate to support the report; and
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Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun
(vii) The objectives of the engagement procedures have been achieved.

The firm should establish policies and procedures:

(i) Setting out criteria for determining the need for safeguards to reduce the familiarity threat to an acceptable level
when using the same senior personnel on an assurance engagement over a long period of time; and ‘

(ii) For all audits of financial statements of listed entities, requiring the rotation of the engagement partner after a
specified period in compliance with the Code. %

The familiarity threat is particularly relevant in the context of financial statement audits of listed entities. For these
audits, the engagement partner should be rotated after a predefined period, normally not more than seven years.
From the facts given in the question and from the above stated paras of SQC 1, it can be concluded that firm is not’
complying with SQC 1 as Engagement Partner H is continuing for more than 7 years.

5. PQR & Associates, Chartered Accountants, is a partnership firm having 3 partners CAP,CAQand CAR. POQR &
Associates are appointed as Statutory Auditors of ABC Limited, a listed entity for the financial year 2021-22 and CA
P is appointed as Engagement Partner for the audit of ABC Limited. Before issuing the Audit Report of ABC Limited,
CA P asked CA R to perform Engagement Quality Control Review and is of the view that his responsibility will be
reduced after review by CA R. Whether the contention of CA P is correct? What are the aspects that need to be
considered by CA R while peﬁorm}ng Engagement Quality Control Review for audit of financial statements of ABC
Limited?

As per SQC 1, “Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audit and Reviews of Historical Financial information, and
other Assurance and Related Services Engagements”, the review does not reduce the resp.onsibilities of the
engagement partner. Hence, contention of CA. P that after engagement quality control review by CA. R, his
responsibility will be reduced, is not correct.

~

However, CA. R needs to consider the following aspect while performing Engagement

Quality Control Review for audit of financial statements of a listed entity AéC Ltd.:

1. The engagement team’s evaluation of the firm’s independence in relation to the specific engagement.

2. Significant risks identified during the engagement and the responses to those risks.

3. Judgments made, particularly with respect to materiality and significant risks.

4. Whether appropriate consultation has taken place on matters involving differences of opinion or other difficult or
contentious matters, and the conclusions arising from those consultations.

5. The significance and disposition of corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified during the engagement.
6. The matters to be communicated to management and those charged with governance and, where applicable,
other parties such as regulatory bodies.

7. Whether working papers selected for review reflect the work performed in relation to the significant judgments ’
and support the conclusions reached.

8. The appropriateness of the report to be issued.

Engagement quality control reviews for engagements other than audits of financial statements of listed entities may,
depending on the circumstances, include some or all of these considerations )

6. AP & Associates, Chartered Accountants, are Statutory Auditors of XP Limited for the last four years. XP Limited
is engaged in the manufacture and marketing of FMCG Goods in India. During 2021-22, the Company has diversified
and commenced providing software solutions in the area of "e-commerce" in India as well as in certain European
countries. AP & Associates, while carrying out the audit for the current financial year, came to know that the
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Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun
company has expanded its operations into a new segment as well as new geography. AP & Associates does not

possess necessary expertise and infrastructure to carry out the audit of this diversified business activities and
accordingly wishes to withdraw from the engagement and client relationship. Discuss the issues that need to be
addressed before deciding to withdraw. [Nov-22]

Acceptance and Continuance of Ciient Relationships and Specific Engagements: As per SQC 1, “Quality Control for
Firms that Perform Audit and Reviews of Historical Financial Infgrmation, and other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements”, the firm should establish policies and procedures for the acceptance and continuance of client
relationships and specific engagements, designed to provide it with reasonable assurance that it will undertake or
continue relationships and engagements only where it is competent to perform the engagement and has the
capabilities, time and resources to do so.

In the given case, AP & Associates, Chartered Accountants, statutory auditors of XP Limited for the last four years,
came to know that the company has expanded its operations into a new segment as well as new geography. AP &
Associates does not possess necessary expertise for the same, therefore, AP & Associates wish to withdraw from the
engagement and client relationship.

Policies and procedures on withdrawal from an engagement or from both the engagement and the client relationship
address issues that include the following:
* Discussing with the appropriate level of the client’'s management and those charged with its governance
regarding the appropriate action that the firm might take based on the relevant facts and circumstances.
* If the firm determines that it is appropriate to withdraw, discussing with the appropriate level of the client’s

management and those charged with its governance withdrawal from the engagement or from both the
engagement and the client relationship, and the reasons for the withdrawal.

e Considering whether there is a professional, regulatory or legal requirement for the firm to remain in place, or
for the firm to report the withdrawal from the engagement, or from both the engagement and the client
relationship, together with the reasons for the withdrawal, to regulatory authorities.

* Documenting significant issues, consultations, conclusions and the basis for the conclusions.

AP & Associates should address the above issues before deciding to withdraw.

1. M/s SG & Co. Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of XYZ Limited for the F.Y 2020-2021.
The Company implemented internal controls for prevention and early detection of any fraudulent activity. Auditors
carried out test of controls and found out no major observations. After the completion of audlt audit report was
submitted by the auditors and audited results were issued. Fraud pertaining to the area of mventory came to light
subsequently for the period covered by audit and auditors were asked to make submission as to why audit failed
to identify such fraud. Auditors submitted that because of inherent limitations of audit, it is not poss:ble to get
persuasive evidence of certain matters like fraud. Do you think auditor made correct statement?

Also discuss certain subject matters or assertions where it is difficult to detect material misstatements due to
- potential effects of inherent limitations. (July-21 New)

Certain assertions or subject matters where it is difficult to detect material misstatements due to potential effects of
inherent limitations -

As per SA 200 - “Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with
Standards on Auditing” and as per SQC 1 because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk
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Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun
that some material misstatements of the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly

planned and performed in accordance with SAs. w

Accordingly, the subsequent discovery of a material misstatement of the financial statements resulting from ftaud or
error does not by itself indicate a failure to conduct an audit in accordance with SAs. However, the inherent limitations
of an audit are not a justification for the auditor to be satisfied with less-than-persuasive audit evidence.

Whether the auditor has performed an audit’in accordance with SAs is determined by the audit procedures performed
in the circumstances, the sufficiency and appropriateness of the audit evidence obtained as a result thereof and the
suitability of the auditor’s report based on an evaluation of that evidence in the light of the overall objectives of the
auditor. : g

In view of above, it can be concluded that auditors did not give correct statement.
In the case of certain assertions or subject matters, the potential effects of the inherent limitations on the auditor’s

ability to detect material misstatements are particularly significant.
Such assertions or subject matters include:

(i) Fraud, particularly fraud involving senior management or collusion.

(i) The existence and completeness_of related party relationships and transactions.

(iii) The occurrence of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

(iv) Future events or conditions that may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

2. Yupee (P) Ltd. got incorporated on 15th May 2021 and Mr. Harsh, the director of Yupee (P) Ltd. proposed to
Kamal & Co. on 24th May 2021, for being appointed as its statutory auditor. Mr. Kamal, the sole proprietor of Kamal
& Co., after checking the compliance with all the statutory requirements, accepted the said offer and issued an
audit engagement letter vide email to Yupee (P) Ltd. .

Mr. Harsh found all terms of audit engagement to be proper but in the paragraph relating to auditor’s responsibly
in the engagement letter, as produced below:-

“We will conduct our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.”

Certain queries raised in his mind that what does reasonable assurance meant? Which Standard on Auditing
requires the auditor to obtain such reasonable assurance? Is it possible to give absolute assurance on such financial
statements?

Assuming that you are Mr. Kamal, the newly appointed statutory auditor of Yupee (P) Ltd. Please address to the
queries of Mr. Harsh as stated above. [MTP Apr-22]

As per SA 200, “Overail Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with
Standards on Auditing”, the auditor is required:- “To obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, thereby enabling the
auditor to express an opinion on whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with an applicable financial reporting framework.” '

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance and is less than absolute assurance. It is obtained when the auditor
has obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to reduce audit risk (i.e., the risk that the auditor expresses an
inappropriate opinion when the financial statements are materially misstated) to an acceptably low level.
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Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun
The auditor is not expected to, and cannot, reduce audit risk to zero and cannot therefore obtain absolute assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. This is because there are
inherent limitations of an audit, which result in most of the audit evidence on which the auditor draws conclusions
and bases the auditor’s opinion being persuasive rather than conclusive. The inherent limitations of an audit arise
from: .

* The nature of financial reporting;

» The nature of audit procedures; and

]

* The need for the audit to be conducted within a reasonable period of time and at a reasonable cost.

A 210: Agreaing the Terms of Audit Engag

1. T & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants has not revised the terms of engagements and obtained confirmation
from the clients for last 5 years despite changes in business and professional environment. Please elucidate the
circumstances that may warrant the revision in terms of engagement. (Nov-19 Old)

Circumstances that may Warrant the Revision in Terms of Engagement : As per SA 210 on “Agreeing the Terms of
Audit Engagements”, auditor may decide not to send a new audit engagement letter or other written agreement each
period. However, the following factors may make it appropriate to revise the terms of the audit engagement or to
remind the entity of existing terms: :
(i) Any indication that the entity misunderstands the objective and scope of the audit.

(ii) Any revised or special terms of the audit engagement.

(iii) A recent change of senior management.

(iv) A significant change in ownership.

(v) A significant change in nature or size of the entity’s business.

(vi) A change in legal or regulatory requirements.

(vii) A change in the financial reporting framework adopted in the preparation of the financial statements.

(viit) A change in other reporting requirements. /

2. Mr. Ram Kapoor, Chartered Accountant, has been appointed as the statutory auditor by XYZ Private Limited for
the audit of their financial statements for the year 2018-19. The company has mentioned in the audit terms that
they will not be able to provide internal audit reports to Mr. Ram during the course of audit. Further, company also
imposed some limitation on scope of Mr. Ram. What are the preconditions Mr. Ram should ensure before
accepting/ refusing the proposal? Also advise, whether Mr. Ram should accept the proposed audit engagement?
{(RTP Nov-19)

As per SA 210 “Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements”, in order to establish whether the preconditions for an
audit are present, the auditor shall:
(a) Determine whether the FRF to be applied in the preparation of the financial statements is acceptable; and
(b) Obtain the agreement of management that it acknowledges and understands its responsibility ‘
(i) For the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework, including where relevant their fair presentation;
{ii) For such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and
(iii) To provnde the auditor with:
a) Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial

statements such as records, documentation and other matters;
b) Additional information that the auditor may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and
c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entlty from whom the auditor determmes it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.
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Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun
Further, if management or TCWG impose a limitation on scope of the auditor’s work in the terms of a proposed audit

engagement such that the auditor believes the limitation will result in the auditor disclaiming an opinion on the
financial statements, the auditor shall not accept such a limited engagement as an audit engagement, unless required
by law or regulation to do so. “

In addition if the preconditions for an,audit are not present, the auditor shall discuss the matter with management.
Unless required by law or regulation to do so, the auditor shall not accept the proposed audit engagement.\

In the instant case, Mr. Ram should not accept the appointment as statutory auditor of XYZ Private Limited due to

limitation imposed on his scope of work.
14

-

3. AKJ Ltd is a small-sized 30 years old company having business of manufacturing of pipes. Company has a plant
based out of Dehradun and have their corporate office in Delhi. Recently the company appointed new firm of
Chartered Accountants as their statutory auditors.
The statutory auditors want to enter into an engagement letter with the company in respect of their services but
the management has contended that since the statutory audit is mandated by law, engagement letter may not be
required. Auditors did not agree to this and have shared a format of engagement letter with the management for
their reference before getting that signed. In this respect management would like to understand that as per SA 210
(auditing standard referred to by the auditors), if the agreed terms of the engagement shall be recorded in an
engagement letter or other suitable form of written agreement, what should be included in terms of agreed audit
engagement letter? ) )

. . [SM +RTP Miay-23]
As per SA 210 ‘Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements’, the auditor shall agree the terms of the audit engagement
with management or those charged with governance, as appropriate.

The agreed terms of the audit engagement shall be recorded in an audit engagement letter or other suitable form of
written agreement and shall include:

-~

(i} The objective and scope of the audit of the financial statements;
(ii) The responsibilities of the auditor;
(iii) The responsibilities of management;

‘ (iv) Identification of the applicable financial reporting framework for the preparation of the financial statements; and

(v) Reference to the expected form and content of any reports to be issued by the auditor and a statement that there
may be circumstances in which a report may differ from its expected form and content. '

* SA 220: Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements |

1. Ace Limited (manufacturer of textile goods) got an order of manufacturing of PPE kits in December 2020. But
there was shortage of machinery and manpower to accomplish the ordered requirement of PPE kits. Ace Ltd.
approached another manufacturing unit Jack Limited for purchase of the unit. Jack Limited was interested in the
sale of unit, so the deal went through and Ace Limited acquired ninety five percent shares of Jack Limited. The new
management of Jack Limited proposed and appointed NKB Associafes, Chartered Accountants, (already auditors of
Ace Limited) as new auditors of Jack Limited. NKB Associates accepted the assignment without considering
information whether the conclusions reached regarding the acceptance and continuance of client relationships and
audit engagements are appropriate. Comment with respect to appropriate Standard on Auditing what type of
information assists the engagemehts partner in determining whether the conclusions reached regarding the
acceptance and continuance of cllent relationships and audit engagements are appropriate or not?

_ [Nov-21 Old + MTP Sep—ZZ]
Acceptance and Continuance of Client Relationships and Audit Engagements : As per SA 220, “Quality Control for
an Audit of Financial Statements” , SQC 1, “Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements”, requires the firm to obtain
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Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun
information considered necessary in the circumstances before accepting an engagement with a new client, when

deciding whether to continue an existing engagement, and when considering acceptance of a new engagement with
an existing client. '

Information such as the followipg assists the engagement partner in determining whether the conclusions reached

regarding the acceptance and continuance of client relationships and audit engagements are appropriate:

* The integrity of the principal owners, key management and those charged with governance of the entity;

* Whether the engagement team is competent to perform the audit engagement and has the necessary capabilities,
including time and resources;

* Whether the firm and the engagement team can comply with relevant ethical requirements; and

* Significant matters that have arisen during the current or previous audit engagement, and their implications for
continuing the relationship.

2. During the audit of FMP Ltd, a listed company, Engagement Partner (EP) completed his reviews and also ensured
compliance with independence requirements that apply to the audit engagement. The engagement files were also
reviewed by the Engagement Quality Control Reviewer (EQCR) except the independence assessment
documentation. Engagement Partner was of the view that matters related to independence assessment are the
responsibility of thé"Engagement Partner and not Engagement Quélity Control Reviewer. Engagement Quality
Control Reviewer objected to this and refused to sign off the documentation. Please advise as per SA 220.
(RTP May-19 + MTP Oct-19 + SM)
As per SA 220, Engagement Partner shall form a conclusion on compliance with independence requirements that
apply to the audit engagement. In doing so, Engagement Partner shall:
e Obtain relevant information from the firm and, where applicable, network firms, to identify and evaluate
circumstances and relationships that create threats to independence;
e Evaluate information on identified breaches, if any, of the firm’s independence policies and procedures to
determine whether they create a threat to independence for the audit engagement; and
* Take appropriate action to eliminate such threats or reduce them to an acceptable level by applying safeguards,
or, if considered appropriate, to withdraw from the audit engagement, where withdrawal is permitted by law or
regulation. The engagement partner shall promptly report to the firm any inability to resolve the matter for
appropriate action.

Engagement Partner shall take responsibility for reviews being performed in accordance with the firm’s review
policies and procedures.

As per SA 220, “Quality Control for Audit of Financial Statements”, for audits of financial statements of listed entities,
Engagement Quality Control Reviewer (EQCR), on performing an engagement quality control review, shall also
consider the engagement team’s evaluation of the firm’s independence in relation to the audit engagement.

In the given case, Engagement Partner is not right. The independence assessment documentation should also be
given to Engagement Quality Control Reviewer for his review.

3. Rishikumar & Co. has been appointed as an auditor of PK Ltd. for the financial year 2016 -17. CA. Kumar, one of
the partners of M/s Rishikumar & Co., completed entire routine audit work by 29th May, 2017. Unfortunately, on
the very next morning, while roving towards office of PK Ltd. to sign final audit report, he met witt} a road accident
and died. CA. Rishi, another partner of M/s Rishikumar & Co., therefore, signed tﬁe accounts of PK Ltd., without
reviewing the work performed by CA. Kumar. Advise, whether CA. Rishi is right in expressing an opinion on financial
statements the audit of which is performéd by another auditor. (MTP April-18)
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Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun
Relying on Work Performed by Another Auditor: As per SA 220 “Quality Control for an Audit of Financial

Statements”, an engagement partner taking over an aydit during the engagement may apply the review procedures
such as

« the work has been performed in accordance with professional standards and regulatory and legal requirements;
¢ significant matters have been rai;c,ed for further consideration; ‘
e appropriate consultations have taken place and

e the resulting conclusions have been documented and implemented;

e there is a need to revise the nature, timing and extent of work performed,;

e the work performed supports the conclusions reached and is appropriately documented;
» the evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support the auditor’s report; and
« the objectives of the engagement procedures have been achieved. i /

Further, one of the basic principles, which govern the auditor’s professional responsibilities and which shouid be
complied with wherever an audit is carried, is that when the auditor delegates work to assistants or uses work
performed by other auditor and experts, he will continue to be responsible for forming and expressing his opinion
on the financial information. :

However, he will be entitled to rely on work performed by others, provided he exercises adequate skill and care and
is not aware of any reason to believe that he should not have so relied. This is the fundamental principle which is
ethically required as per Code of Ethrcs. However, the auditor should carefully direct, superwse and review work

»

delegated.

-

He should obtain reasonable assurance that work performed by other auditors/experts and assistants is adequate for

his purpose.

In the given case, all the auditing procedures before the moment of signing of final report have been performed by
CA. Kumar. However, the report could not be signed by him due to his unfortunate death. Later on, CA. Rishi signed
the report relying on the work performed by CA. Kumar. Here, CA. Rishi is allowed to sign the audit report, though,
will be responsible for expressing the opinion.

He may rely on the work performed by CA. Kumar provided he further exercises adequate skill and due care and
review the work performed by him as required in compliance with SA 220.

4. OP & Associates are the statutory auditors of BB Ltd. BB Ltd is a listed company and started its operations 5 years
back. The field work during the audit of the financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2018
got completed on May 1, 2018. The auditor’s report was dated May 12, 2018. During the documentation review of
the engagement, it was observed that the engagement quality control review was completed on May 15, 2018.
Engagement partner had completed his reviews in entirety by May 10, 2018. Comment. (MTP Mar-19)

As per SA 220, the engagement partner shall take responsibility for reviews being performed in accordance with the
firm’s review policies and procedures. For audits of financial statements of listed entities, the engagement partner
shall: '
* Determine that an engagement quality control reviewer has been appointed;
e Discuss significant matters arising during the audit engagement, including those identified durmg the
engagement quality control review, with the engagement quality control reviewer; and
 Not date the auditor's report until the completion of the engagement guality control review.

SA 700 also requires the auditor's report to be dated no earlier than the date on which the auditor has obtained
sufficient appropriate evidence on which to base the auditor's opinion on the financial statements. In cases of an
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audit of financial statements of listed entities where the engagement meets the criteria for an engagement quality

control review, such a review assists the auditor in determining whether sufficient appropriate evidence has been
obtained. '

Conducting the engagement quality control review in a timely manner at appropriate stages during the engagement
-

allows significant matters to be promptly resolved to the engagement quality control reviewer's satisfaction on or

before the date of the auditor's report.

In the given case, the signing of auditors’ report before completion of review of engagement quality control review
is not right.

* SA 230: Audit Documentation

1. Mr. PM, a practising Chartered Accountant, has been appointed as an auditor of Truth Pvt. Ltd. What factors
would influence the amount of working papers required to be maintained for the purpose of his audit?
(RTP May-20)

Factors Influencing the amount of Working Papers: As per SA 230 “Audit Documentation”, which refers ',co the record
of audit procedures'performed, relevant audit evidence obtained and conclusions the auditor reached, the amount
of audit working papers depend on factors such as-

(i) The size and complexity of the entity.

(ii) The nature of the audit procedures to be performed.

(iii) The identified risks of material misstatement.

{iv) The significance of the audit evidence obtained.

(v) The nature and extent of exceptions identified. _

{vi) The need to document a conclusion or the basis for a conclusion not readily determinable from the

documentation of the work performed or audit evidence obtained.

(vii) The audit methodology and tools used.

(viii) Timely preparation of Audit Documentation.

‘2. You are the team leader of 10 members for an audit of a Multinational company. All the team members .are
concerned about Audit documentation in order to provide evidence that the audit complies with SAs. Hence, the
team members wish to document every matter concerned, In your opinion it is neither necessary nor practicable
for the auditor to document every matter considered or professional judgement made in an audit. Further you feel
that it is unnecessary for the auditor to document separately compliance with matters for which compliance is
demonstrated by documents included within the audit file. Illustrate by giving examples with reference to relevant
Standard on Auditing. [May-22]

As per SA 230, “Audit Documentation” it is unnecessary for the auditor to document separately (as in a checklist, for

example) compliance with matters for which compliance is demonstrated by documents included within the audit file.

For example: ' :

v~ The existence of an adequately documented audit plan demonstrates that the auditor has planned the audit.

v/ The existence of a signed engagement letter in the audit file demonstrates that the auditor has agreed the terms
of the audit engagement with management, or where appropriate, those charged with governance.

v An auditor’s report containing an appropriately qualified opinion demonstrates that the auditor has complied
with the requirement to express a qualified opinion under the circumstances specified in the SASs.

v'In relation to requirements that apply generally throughout the audit, there may be a number of ways in which
compliance with them may be demonstrated within the audit file:
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« For example, there may be no single way in which the auditor’s professional skepticism is documented. But the

audit documentation may nevertheless provide evigence of the auditor’s exercise of professional skepticism in
accordance with SAs. Such evidence may include specific procedures 'performed to corroborate management’s
responses to the auditor’s inquiries. .

« Similarly, that the engagement partner has taken responsibility for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit in compliance with the SAs may be evidenced in a number of ways within the audit documentation.

This may include documentation of the engagement partner’s timely involvement in aspects of the audlit, such as
participation in the team discussion required by SA 315.

' he”Audnto‘r’s ResponS|b|I|t|es relatlngto Fraud
: kn;an Audlt of Financial Statements st

1. Arihant Limited was engaged in the business of owning and managing hotels and resorts, selling tourism packages
and performing airline bookings for corporate and individuals. It appointed Upadhyay & Co. as its statutory auditor
for the financial year 2021-22. ’
While planning the audit, the audit team decided that the risk of improper revenue recognition from hotel busmess
should not be treated as a fraud risk. This conclusion was based on the assessment of earlier years, wherein no
fraud was identified in revenue recorded from such business. While testing the internal financial controls over the
process of revenue recognition, it was identified that the controls are not properly designed to mitigate the risk of
fraud and risk of improper revenue recognition. As a result, the audit team decided to perform additional '
substantive testing. However, the audit team still were to the conclusion that there is no risk of fraud in revenue
recognition. -

During the course of substantive testing, it was identified that the management did not account for revenue
received from corporate hotel bookings amounting to X35 crore. These amounts were partially received in the
company’s bank accounts and partially received in the CFO’s personal account. The amounts received in the bank
account of the company were disclosed as advances received against the future bookings.

.

b

in the light of above scenario, kindly guide the statutory auditors with respect to their responsibility relating to
fraud in an audit of a financial statement. [RTP Nov-22] '

As per SA 240, ”The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements” and SA 315,
“Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement Through Understanding the Entity and Its
Environment”, the auditor shall identify and assess the risks of material misstatement due to fraud at the financial
statement level, and at the assertion level for classes of transactions, account balances and disclosures. When
identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement due to fraud, the auditor shali, based on a presumption
that there are risks of fraud in revenue recognition, evaluate which types of revenue, revenue transactions or
assertions give rise to such risks.

In accordance with SA 240, “The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements” and
SA 330,” The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks” the auditor shall determine overall responses to address the
assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud at the financial statement level and assertion level.

The presumption that there are risks of fraud in revenue recognition may be rebutted. For example, the auditor may '
conclude that there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition in the case where
there is a single type of simple revenue transaction, for example, leasehold revenue from a single unit rental property
However, when there is a complex revenue structure or when there is lack of controls on revenue recognition, then
there is a high probability of fraud risk in revenue recognition.
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Obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including the entity’s internal control (referred to

hereafter as an “understanding of the entity”), is a continuous, dynamic process of gathering, updating and analysing
information throughout the audit. :

In the current scenario, the company was earning revenue from multiple streams. Also, it was identified that the
controls are not properly desip:ned to mitigate the risk of fraud and risk of improper revenue recognition. During the
year it was identified that the management did not account for revenue from corporate hotel bookings amounting to
X 35 crore. These amounts were partially received in the con';pany’s bank accounts and partially received in the CFO’s
personal account. The amounts received in the bank account of the company were disclosed as advances received
against future bookings.

Therefore, the auditor while performing the risk assessment procedures should consider the complexity and nature
of the revenue for determining the fraud risks in revenue recognition. Also, there were no adequate controls
addressing the risk of improper revenue recognition or fraud risk, the audit team rebutted the fraud risk. Moreover,
the audit team should have recognised fraud risk by identifying the deficiencies of internal control over the revenue
recognition process and should have treated the risk of improper revenue recognition as a significant risk.

Also, as per Section 143(12), the auditor is required to report all the frauds identified during the course of the audit
involving amounts above % 1 crore within the prescribed time frame to the Central Government

2. In the course of audit of Quick Ltd, you suspect that the management has made misstatements in the financial
statements intentionally to deceive the users and to succumb to pressures to meet market expectations. Elucidate
how the fraudulent financial reporting may be accomplished and also discuss the techniques of committing fraud
by management overriding controls. (Nov-20 New)

As per SA 240 on “The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements”

Fraudulent financial reporting may be accomplished by the following:

i. Manipulation, falsification (including forgery), or alteration of accounting records or supporting documentation
from which the financial statements are prepared. '

ii. Misrepresentation in or intentional omission from, the financial statements of events, transactions or other
significant information.

iii. Intentional misapplication of accounting principles relating to amounts, classification, manner of presentation, or
disclosure.

' Fraudulent financial reporting often involves management override of controls that otherwise may appear to be
operating effectively. Fraud can be committed by management overriding controls using such techniques as:
i. Recording fictitious journal entries, particularly close to the end of an accounting period, to manipulate operating
results or achieve other objectives.
ii. Inappropriately adjusting assumptions and changing judgments used to estimate account balances.

i. Omitting, advancing or delaying recognition in the financial statements of events and transactions that have

occurred during the reporting period.
iv. Concealing, or not disclosing, facts that could affect the amounts recorded in the financial statements.
v. Engaging in complex transactions that are structured to misrepresent the financial position or fmanc:al performance
of the entity.
vi. Altering records and terms related to significant and unusual transactions.

3. M/s Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as statutory auditors of PC limited for the financial
year 2020 21 Durmg the course of audlt one of the partners CA Kumar observed that there is mlsappropnat|on of
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assets in the form of theft of entity’s inventory and is perpetrated by employees in relatively small and immaterial
amounts. CA. Kumar is concerned with the existence of certain circumstances for increasing the susceptibility of
assets to misappropriation.

Guide CA. Kumar with respect to Risk factors related to misstatements arising from misappropriation of assets with
reference to relevant Standard on Auditing. (Nov-15, Nov-21 5 Marks) N

Risk Factors Relating to Misstatements Arising from Misappropriation of Assets:

As per SA 240, “The Auditor’s Responsibilities' Rélating to Fraud in audit of Financial Statements”, misappropriation
of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets and is often perpetrated by employees in relatively small and
immaterial amounts. However, it can also involve management who are usually more able to disguise or conceal
misappropriations in ways that are difficult to detect.

Risk factors that relate to misstatements arising from misappropriation of assets are classified according to the three
conditions generally present when fraud exists: incentives/pressures, opportunities, and attitudes/rationalization. The
following are examples of risk factors related to misstatements arising from misappropriation of assets:

Incentives/Pressures: Personal financial obligations may create pressure on management or employees with access
to cash or other assets susceptible to theft to misappropriate those assets. R
Adverse relationships between the entity and employees with access to cash or other assets susceptible to theft may
motivate those employees to misappropriate these assets. For example, adverse relationships may be created by the
following:
1. Known or anticipated future employee layoffs.
2. Recent or anticipated changes to employee compensation or benefit plans.
3. Promotions, compensation or other rewards inconsistent with expectations. '
Opportunities: Certain characteristics or circumstances may increase the susceptibility of assets to misappropriation.
For example, opportunities to misappropriate assets increase when there are the following:
> Inventory items that are small in size, of high value, or in high demand.
> Fixed assets which are small in size, marketable, or-lacking observable identification of ownership.
> Inadequate internal control over assets may increase the susceptibility of misappropriation of those assets.
> Inadequate segregation of duties or independent checks. '

Attitudes/Rationalizations
> Disregard for the need for monitoring or reducing risks related to misappropriations of assets. .
> Disregard for internal control over misappropriation of assets by overriding existing controls or by failing to
take appropriate remedial action on known deficiencies in internal control.
> Behaviour indicating displeasure or dissatisfaction with the entity or its treatment of the employee.
> Changes in behaviour or lifestyle that may indicate assets have been misappropriated.

4. Explain briefly duties and responsibilities of an auditor in case of material misstatement resulting from
Management Fraud. (May-17 6 Marks)

Misstatement in the financial statements can arise from fraud or error. The term fraud refers to an ‘Intentional Act’
by one or more individuals among management, those charged with governance, employees, or third partles
involving the use of deception to obtain an unjust or illegal advantage.
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As per SA 240 “The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements”, the primary

responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity
and management. The auditor, conducting an audit, is responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the
financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Owing
to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements of the financial
statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the
SAs. .

As described in SA 200, the potential effects of inherent limitations are particularly significant in the case of
misstatement resulting from fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error. This is because fraud may involve sophisticated and carefully
organized schemes designed to conceal it, such as forgery, deliberate failure to record transactions, or intentional
misrepresentations being made to the auditor. Such attempts at concealment may be even more difficult to detect
when accompanied by collusion. Collusion may cause the auditor to believe that audit evidence is persuasive when it
is, in fact, false. While the auditor may be able to identify potential opportunities for fraud to be perpetrated, it is
difficult for the auditor to determine whether misstatements in judgment areas such as accounting estimates are
caused by fraud or error.

Furthermore, the risk of the auditor not detecting a material misstatement resulting from management fraud is
greater than for employee fraud, because management is frequently in a position to directly or indirectly manipulate
accounting records, present fraudulent financial information or override control procedures designed to prevent
similar frauds by other employees.

When obtaining reasonable assurance, the auditor is responsible for maintaining professional skepticism throughout
the audit, considering the potential for management override of controls and recognizing the fact that audit
procedures that are effective for detecting error may not be effective in detecting fraud.

Further, as per section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, if an auditor of a company, in the course of the
performance of his duties as auditor, has reason to believe that an offence involving fraud is being or has been
committed against the company by officers or employees of the company, he shall immediately report the matter to
the Central Government (in case amount of fraud is 1 crore or above)or Audit Committee or Board in other cases
(in case the amount of fraud involved is less than % 1 crore) within such time and in such manner as may be prescribed.

The auditor is also required to report as per Clause (xi) of Paragraph 3 of CARO, 2020, Whether any fraud by the
company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year; If yes, the nature and the amount
involved is to be indicated.

5. You notice a misstatement resulting from fraud or suspected fraud during the audit and conclude that it is not
possible to continue the performance of audit. As a Statutory Auditor, how would you deal? (PM)

Impossibility to continue the performance of audit: According to SA 240 “The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to
Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements”, if, as a result of a misstatement resulting from fraud or suspected fraud,
the auditor encounters exceptional circumstances that brmg into question the auditor’s ability to continue performing
the audit, the auditor shall: :

a. Determine the professional and legal responsibilities applicable in the circumstances, including whether there
is a requirement for the auditor to report to the person or persons who made the audit appointment or, in some
cases, to regulatory authorities;
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b. Considerwhether it is appropriate to withdraw from the engagement, where withdrawal from the engagement

is legally permitted; and v
c. Ifthe auditor withdraws:
i. Discuss with the appropriate level of management and those charged with governance, the auditor’s
withdrawal from the engagement and the reasons for the withdrawal; and
ii. Determine whether there is a professional or legal requirement to report to the person or persons who
made the audit appointment or, in some cases, to regulatory authorities, the auditor’s withdrawal from
the engagement and the reasons for the withdrawal. o

Further, as per section 143(12) of the Compahies Act, 2013, if an auditor.of a company, in the course of the
performance of his duties as auditor, has reason to believe that an offence involving fraud is being or has been
committed against the company by officers or employees of the company, he shall immediately report the matter to
the Central Government (in case amount of fraud is X 1 crore or above)or Audit Committee or Board in other cases (in
case the amount of fraud involved is less than % 1 crore) within such time and in such manner as may be prescribed.

6. The Managing Director of the Company has committed a “Teeming and Lading” Fraud. The amount invol\;ed has
been however subsequently after the year end deposited in the company. As a §tatutory Auditor, how would you
deal? (PM + Mar’18 MTP + CA Inter SM)

The Managing Director of the corﬁpany has committed a “Teeming and Lading” fraud. The fact that the amount
involved has been subsequently deposited after the year end is not important because the auditor is required to
perform his responsibilities as laid down in SA 240.

First of all, as per SA 240, the auditor needs to perform procedures whether the financial statements are materially
misstated. Because an instance of fraud cannot be considered as an isolated occurrence and it becomes important for
the auditor to perform audit procedures and revise the audit risk assessment.

Secondly, the auditor needs to consider the impact of fraud on financiakstatements and its disclosure in the audit
report. . :

Thirdly, the auditor should communicate the matter to the Chairman and Board of Directors.

Finally, in view of the fact that the fraud has been committed at the highest level of management, it affects the
reliability of audit evidence previously obtained since there is a genuine doubt about representations of management.
+Sec 143(12) + CARO 2020 - '

7. On 15 March, 2020, the directors of Phony Ltd. instructed their accountant to enter purchases amounting Rs.
1.02 crores from a company incorporated dated 11th March, 2020. However, no amount was actually paid and Rs.
1.02 crore was provided in the books of account as purchases for the year ending on 31stMarch, 2020.

On inspection, no documentary or other evidence of such purchases was found. As the auditor of Phony Ltd., what
would be your approach regarding reporting of such bogus purchases? (.luly 20 MTP, RTP Nov-18, Nov-13)

Reportlng of Fraud Committed by Management/Directors of the Company: As per SA 240 on “The Auditor’s
Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements”, fraud can be committed by management
overriding controls using such techniques as recording fictitious journal entries, particularly close to the end of an
accounting period, to manipulate operating results or achieve other objectives. In the given case, Phony Ltd. has made '
purchases amounting Rs. 1.02 crores, at year-end. It also debited the sum in the books of account, however, no
documentary or other evidence of such purchases was found, on investigation. It is clear that company has passed
fictitious journal entries, near year-end, to manipulate the operating results.

Accordingly, the auditor would adopt the approach which will be based on the result of misstatement on the basis of
such fictitious journal entry, i.e. if, as a result of a misstatement resulting from fraud or suspected fraud, the auditor
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encounters exceptional circumstances that bring into question the auditor’s ability to continue performing the

audit, the auditor shall determine the professional and legal responsibilities applicable in the circumstances, including
whether there is a requirement for the auditor to report to the person or persons who made the audit appointment
or, in some cases, to regulatory authorities; or the auditor may consider for appropriatenéss of withdrawal from such
engagement, where withdrawq.l from the engagement is legally permitted.

In addition, the auditor is required to report according to section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. As per section
143(12), if an auditor of a company in the course of the performance of his duties as auditor, has reason to believe
that an offence of fraud, which involves or is expected to involve individually an amount of Rs. 1 crore or above is
being or has been committed in the company by its officers or employees, he shall report the matter to the Central

~

Government in prescribed manner.

The auditor is also required to report under clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020,
whether any fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year. If yes, the nature and the amount involved is to be indicated.

8. Is it appropriate for the auditor to make inquiries of management regarding management’s own assessment of
the risk of fraud and the controls in place to prevent and detect it? Discuss. (Nov-16 5 Marks)

Appropriateness of making inquiries of management regarding assessment of fraud: SA 240 “Auditor’s
Responsibilities relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements” requires the auditor to make inquiries of
management regarding:

(a) Management’s assessment of risk of material misstatement due to fraud;

(b) Management’s process for identifying & responding to the risks of fraud in the entity, including any specific risks
of fraud;

(c) Management’s communication, if any, to TCWG; and

(d) Management’s communication, if any, to employees regarding its views on business practices and ethical
behaviour.

Management is responsible for the entity’s internal control and for the preparation of the financial statements.
Accordingly, it is appropriate for the auditor to make inquiries of management regarding management’s own
assessment of the risk of fraud and the controls in place to prevent and detect it.

The nature, extent and frequency of management’s assessment of such risk and controls may vary from entity to
entity. In some entities, management may make detailed assessments on an annual basis or as part of continuous
monitoring. In other entities, management’s assessment may be less structured and less frequent.

The nature, extent and frequency of management’s assessment are relevant to the auditor’s understanding of the
entity’s control environment. For example, the fact that management has not made an assessment of the risk of fraud
may in some circumstances be indicative of the lack of importance that management places on internal control.

_ AuditofFinancial state

1. PQ Limited, a listed entity, is in the business of manufacturing of specialty chemicals. The company has appointed
CA Jazz as CFO of the company. CA Jazz is concerned about compliance with the provisions of laws and regulations
that determine the reported amounts and disclosure in financial statements of PQ Limited. Accordingly, CA Jazz
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wants to implement such policies and procedures that can assist him in the prevention and detection of non-

compliance with laws and regulations. Help CA Jazz byuciting examples of such policies and procedures. {Nov-20)

As per SA 250, “Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements”,
The following are examples of the types of policies and procedures PQ Ltd. may implement to assist in the preventlon
and detection of non-compliance w&th laws and regulations:
() Monitoring legal requirements and ensuring that operating procedures are designed to rieet these
7 - requirements.
“(ii) JInstituting and operating appropriate systems of internal control.
(iii) Developing, pubhcnzmg and following a code of conduct.
(iv) Ensuring employees are properly trained and understand the code of conduct. )
(v) Monitoring compliance with the code of conduct and acting appropriately to discipline employees who fail to
comply with it.
(vi) Engaging legal advisors to assist in monitoring legal requirements. v
(vii) Maintaining a register of significant laws and regulations with which the entity has to comply within its particular
industry and a record of complaints.

2. While verifying the employee records in a company, it was found that a major portion of the labour employed
was child labour. On questioning the management, the auditor was told that it was outside his scope of the financial
audit to look into the compliance with other laws. Comment in accordance with relevant Standards on Auditing.

(MTP Ma¥ 20)
As per SA 250, “Consideration of Laws and Regqlations in an Audit of Financial Statements”, the auditor shail obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with the provisions of those laws and regulations
generally recognised to have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements including tax and labour laws.

Further, non-compliance with other laws and regulations may result in fmes litigation or other consequences for
the entity, the costs of which may need to be provided for in the financial statements, but are ‘not considered to
have a direct effect on the financial statements. ’

In the instant case, major portion of the labour employed in the compény was child labour. While questioning by
auditor, reply of the management that it was outside his scope of financial audit to look into the compliance with
other laws is not acceptable as it may have a material effect on financial statements.

Thus, auditor should ensure the disciosure of above fact and provision for the cost of fines, litigation or other
consequences for the entity. In case if the auditor concludes that noncompliance has a material effect on the financial
statements and has not been adequately reflected in the financial statements, the auditor shall express a qualified or
adverse opinion on the financial statement as per SA 705 “Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s -
Report”.

3. As an Auditor of TRP Ltd., you are suspicious that there might be non-compliance W|th laws and regulatlons to
which the Company is subject to. Indicate the possible areas or aspects where you may have to look out for forming
an opinion as to whether your suspicion has some basis to further inquire. (May-18 New, May 16, Nov-21 Oid)

@ .

You are appointed as an auditor of Moksh Ltd., a company engaged in export of agricultural equipment. During the
course of audit, your audit team informed you regarding non-deduction of TDS on huge payments made to legal
counsel of Moksh Ltd. You want to alert your team on the possibility of non-compliance with Laws and Regulations
by Moksh Ltd. Help your audit team in identifying any other indications of non-compliance with Laws-and
Regulations particularly related to payments made by the company. [MTP May-23]
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indications of Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations: When the auditor becomes aware of the existence of, or
information about the following matters, it may be an indication of non-compliance with laws and regulations,
possible areas or aspects to look out for forming an opinion are:
* Investigations by regulatory organisations and government departments or payment of fines or penalties.
e Payments for unspecified services or loans to consultants, related parties, employees or government
employees.
¢ Sales commissions or agent’s fees that appear excessive in relation to those ordinarily paid by the entity or
in its industry or to the services actually received.
® Purchasing at prices significantly above or below market price.
e Unusual payments in cash, purchases in the form of cashiers’ cheques payable to bearer or transfers to
numbered bank accounts.
® Unusual payments towards legal and retainership fees.
® Unusual transactions with companies registered in tax havens.
e Payments for goods or services made other than to the country from which the goods or services originated.
e Payments without proper exchange control documentation.
® Existence of an information system which fails, whether by design or by accident, to provide an adequate
audit trail or sufficient evidence. '
® Unauthorised transactions or improperly recorded transactions.
* Adverse media comment.

4. XYZ Pvt. Ltd. has submitted the financial statements for the year ended 31-3-18 for audit. The audit assistant
observes and brings to your notice that the company's records show following dues:

Income Tax relating to Assessment Year 2014-15 Rs. 125 lacs - Appeal is pending before Hon'ble ITAT since 30-9-16.
Customs duty Rs. 85 lakhs - Demand notice received on 15-9-17 but no action has been taken to pay or appeal.
Comment. (MTP Oct-18)

As per SA 250 “Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statement”, it is the responsibility of
management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the entity’s operations are
conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations, including compliance with the provisions of Ia'ws
and regulations that determine the reported amounts and disclosures in an entity’s financial statements.

The auditor is responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements, taken as a whole, are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. In conducting an audit of financial statements, the
auditor takes into account the applicable legal and regulatory framework. Owing to the inherent limitations of an
audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements in the financial stateménts may not be detected,
even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the SAs.

If the auditor concludes that the non-compliance has a material effect on the financial statements, and has not been
adequately reflected in the financial statements, the auditor shall express a qualified or adverse opinion on the
financial statements.

Further, the auditor is required to report on certain matters specified in Para 3 of CARO, 2020 under section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

One of such. matter is non-payment of dues to Government, on account of any dispute. As per clause (vii)(a) of Para
3 of CARO, &QZO, in case dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value
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added tax have not been deposited on account of any dispute, then the amounts invoived and the forum where

dispute is pending shall be mentioned.

o
In the present case, there is Income Tax demand of Rs. 125 Lacs and the company has gone for an appeal, it needs
considerations as to whether the entire demand is disputed, because it is difficult to presume that the der;‘\and by
Income Tax authority is without any basis.

&

Therefore, as per AS 29 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, partly to the extent the company
considers that the demand is based on some logical basis, that amount may be provided for and the remaining may
be disclosed as the contingent Iiabilify. Further, it should be brought to notice of the members by reporting.
Additionally, the demand notice has been received for Customs duty of Rs. 85 lakhs and is outstanding on the closure
of financial year, for which no action has been taken by the management. Therefore, it should also be brought to
notice of the members by reporting. '

5. During the course of audit of CT Ltd. for the financial year 2017-18, it is noticed that Rs. 3.00 lakhs of employee
contribution and Rs. 7.50 lakhs of employer contribution towards employee state insurance contribution have been
accounted in the books of accounts in respective heads. Whereas, it was found that Rs. 5.00 lakhs only has been
deposited with ESIC department during the year ended 31st March, 2018. The Finance Manager informed the
auditor that due to financial crunch they have not deposited the amount due, but will deposit the amount overdue
along with interest as and when financial position improves. Comment as a statutory auditor. (MTP Aug-18) -

Non-Compliance of Laws and Regulations & Reporting Requirements: As per SA 250 “Consideration of Laws and
Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statement”, it is the responsibility of management, with the oversight of those
charged with governance, to ensure that the entity’s operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of
laws and regulations, including compliance with the provisions of laws and regulations that determine the reported
amounts and disclosures in an entity’s financial statements. The auditor is responsible for' obtaining reasonable
assurance that the financial statements, taken as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. In conducting an audit of financial statements, the auditor takes into account the applicable legal and
regulatory framework. If the auditor concludes that the non-compliance has a material effect on the financial
statements, and has not been adequately reflected in the financial statements, the auditor shall express a qualified or
adverse opinion on the financial statements. ' ‘

Further, the auditor is required to report under clause (vii)(a) of Para 3 of CARO, 2020 whether the company is regular

in depositing undisputed statutory dues including employees’ state insurance with the appropriate authorities and if
not, the extent of the arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable, shall be indicated by the auditor.

In the instant case, even though accrual principles have been followed, disclosure of non-payment is necessary. The
auditor should disclose the fact of non-payment of rupees 5.50 lakhs in his report. ’

6. CA Abhinanadan is an auditor of KM Private Limited. During the course of audit, CA Abhinanadan becomes aware
of information concerning an instance of noncompliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.
Being a senior partner of CA. Abhinanadan, guide him regarding audit procedures to be followed when non-
compliance is identified or suspected. [RTP May-22]

As per SA 250, “Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements”, if the auditor becomes
aware of information concerning an instance of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations, the auditor shall obtain: ' ' '
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(i) An understanding of the nature of the act and the circumstances in which it has occurred; and

(ii) Further information to evaluate the possible effect on the financial statements.

If the auditor suspects there.may be non-compliance, the auditor shall discuss the matter with management and,
where appropriate, those charged with governance. If management or, as appropriate, those charged with
governance do not provide sufficient information that supports that the entity is in compliance with laws and
regulations and, in the auditor’s judgment, the effect of the suspected non-compliance may be material to the
financial statements, the auditor shall consider the need to obtain legal advice.

If sufficient information about suspected non-compliance cannot be obtained, the auditor shall evaluate the effect
of the lack of sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the auditor’s opinion.

Auditor shall evaluate the implications of non-compliance in relation to other aspects of the audit, including the
auditor’s risk assessment and the reliability of written representations, and take appropriate action.

A 260 “Communication with those Charged with Governance”

1. “The auditors should communicate audit matters of governance interest arising from the audit of financial
statements with those charged with the governance of an entity”. Briefly state the matters to be included in such
Communication. (PM) :

As per SA 260 “Communication with those Charged with Governance”, the auditor shall communicate with those
charged with governance, the responsibilities of the auditor in relation to the financial statement audit, including that:
(a) The auditor is responsibie for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been
prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance; and

(b) The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their
responsibilities.

The auditor shall communicate with those charged with governance the following:
{(a) The auditor’s views about significant qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices, including accounting
policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. When applicable, the auditor shall explain to those
charged with governance why the auditor considers a significant accounting practice, that is acceptable under the
applicable financial reporting framework, not to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the entity;
(b) significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
(c) Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity:

i. Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or subject to correspondence with

" management; and

ii. Written representations the auditor is réquesting; and .
d) Other matters, if any, arising from the audit that, in the auditor’s professional judgment, are significant to the
oversight of the financial reporting process. -

2. M/s Manidhari & Associates have been appointed as an auditor of JIN Limited, a multinational company dealing
in spare parts. During the course of audit, CA Manidhari is facing many problems including the problem of not
getting the desired information from the management. Accordingly, he decided to communicate with those charged
with the governance about significant difficulties encountered during the audit. CA Manidhari seeks your guidance
on matters which can be considered as significant difficulties as per SA 260. [RTP May-22] '

As per SA 260, “Communication with Those Charged with Governance”, significant difficulties encountered during
the audit may include such matters as:
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(i) Significant delays by management, the unavailability of entity personnel, or an unwillingness by management to

provide information necessary for the auditor to perform;che auditor’s procedures.

(ii) An unreasonably brief time within which to complete the audit.

(i) Extensive unexpected effort required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

(iv) The unavailability of expected information.

{v) Restrictions imposed on the auditor by management.

(vi) Management’s unwillingness to make or extend its assessment of the entity’s ability to continue a¥% a going
concern when requested.

In some circumstances, such dlfﬂcultles may constitute a scope limitation that leads to a modification of the audltor’s
opinion as per SA 705 (Revised), Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

SA 265 Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control to
Those Charged with Governance and Management

1. Auditors are required to obtain an understanding of internal controli relevant to the audit when identifying and
assessing its effectiveness and risk of material misstatement. During the course of-audit of ABC Ltd., you observed
that significant deficiency exists in the internal control system and you want to ascertain the same. Elucidate the
various indicators of significant deficiencies which will help you in assessing the efficiency of internal control system
of the organization. (Jan-21 + RTP May-23)

As per SA 265, “Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control to Those Charged with Governance and
Management”, Indicators of significant deficiencies in internal control include, for example:

(i) Evidence of ineffective aspects of the control environment, such as:
a. Indications that significant transactions in which management is financially interested are not being
appropriately scrutinised by those charged with governance. o
b. Identification of management fraud, whether or not material, that was not prevented by the entity’s internal
control.
c. Management’s failure to implement appropriate remedial action on significant deficiencies previously
communicated. _ -
(ii) Absence of a risk assessment process within the entity where such a process would ordinarity be expected to have
been established.
(iii) Evidence of an ineffective entity risk assessment process, such as management’s failure to identify a risk of
material misstatement that the auditor would expect the entity’s risk assessment process to have identified.
(iv) Evidence of an ineffective response to identified significant risks (e.g., absence of controls over such a risk).
(v) Misstatements detected by the auditor’s procedures that were not prevented, or detected and corrected, by the
entity’s internal control.
(vi) Disclosure of a material misstatement due to error or fraud as prior period items in the current year’s Statement

of Profit and Loss.
(vii) Evidence of management’s inability to oversee the preparation of the financial statements.

2. CA. N has been appointed as an auditor of TRP Ltd. While conducting the audit he has identified some deficiencies
in the Internal control. He needs to determine whether a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control constitutes a "significant deficiency” and has to communicate them in writing to those charged with
Governance and management on a timely basis. Guide CA. N with some examples of matters to be considered while
determining 'significant deficiency’ in internal control with reference to relevant SA. (Nov-20)
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As per SA 265 “Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control to Those Charged with Governance and

Management”, significant deficiency in internal control means a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, is of sufficient importance to merit the attention of those
charged with governance.

Examples of matters that CA N, auditor of TRP Ltd may consider in determining whether a deficiency or combination
of deficiencies in internal control constitutes a significant deficiency include:
(1) The likelihood of the deficiencies leading to material misstatements in the financial statements in the future.
(2) The susceptibility to loss or fraud of the related asset or liability.
(3) The subjectivity and complexity of determining estimated amounts, such as fair value accounting estimates.
(4) The financial statement amounts exposed to the deficiencies.
(5) The volume of activity that has occurred or could occur in the account balance or class of transactions exposed to
the deficiency or deficiencies.
(6) The importance of the controls to the financial reporting process; for example:
* General monitoring controls (such as oversight of management).
* Controls over the prevention and detection of fraud.
* Controls over the selection and application of significant accounting policies.
e Controls over significant transactions with related parties. .
e Controls over'significant transactions outside the entity’s normal course of business.
® Controls over period-end financial reporting process (such as controls over non-recurring journal entries).
(7) The cause and frequency of the exceptions detected as a result of the deficiencies in the controls.
(8) The interaction of the deficiency with other deficiencies in internal control.

SA 299: loint Audit of Financial Statements

1. Dice Ltd. appointed two CA firms MN & Associates and PQ & Co. as joint auditors for conducting audit for the
year ended 31st March, 2019. In the course of audit, it has been observed that there is a major understatement in
the value of inventory. The inventory valuation work was looked after by MN & Associates but there was no
documentation for the division of the work between the joint auditors. Comment on the above situation with
regard to responsibilities among joint auditors. (May-19)

As per SA 299, “Joint Audit of Financial Statements”, where joint auditors are appointed, they should, by mutual
discussion, divide the audit work among themselves. The division of the work would usually be in terms of audit
identifiable units or specified area. In some cases due to the nature of the business entity under audit, such a division
of the work may not be possible. in such situations, the division of the work may be with reference to items of assets
or liabilities or income or expenditure or with reference to period of time. The division of the work among joint
auditors as well as the areas of work to be covered by all of them should be adequately documented and preferably
communicated to the entity.

In respect of the audit work divided among the joint auditors, each joint auditor is responsible only for the work
allocated to him, whether or not he has prepared a separate audit of the work performed by him.

On the other hand all the joint auditors are jointly and severally responsible -

(i) The audit work which is not divided among the joint auditors and is carried out by all joint auditors;
(i) Decisions taken by all the joint auditors under audit planning phase concerning the nature, timing and extant of
the audit proéedure to be performed by each of the auditor; . '

(iii) Matters which are bought to the notice of the joint auditors by any one of them and on which there is an
agreement among the joint auditors;

(iv) Examining that the financial statements of the entity comply with the requirements of the relevant statute;
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(v) Presentation and disclosure of financial statements as required by the applicable financial reporting framework;

(vi) Ensuring that the audit report complies with the requirements of the relevant statutes, the applicable Standards
on Auditing and the other relevant pronouncements issued by ICAl;

The joint auditors shall also discuss and document the nature, timing, and the extent of the audit procedures for
common and specific allotted areas o;‘ audit to be performed by each of the joint auditors and the same shail be
communicated to those charged with governance. After identification and allocation of work among the jointauditors,
the work allocation document shall be signed by all the joint auditors and the same shall be communicated to those
charged with governance of the entity.
¢

In the instant case. Dice Ltd. appointed two CA Firms MN & Associates and PQ & Co. as joint auditor for conducting
audit. As observed during the course of audit that there is a major understatement in the value of inventory and the
inventory valuation work was looked after by MN & Associates.

In view of SA 299 MN & Associate will be held responsible for the same as inventory valuation work was looked
after by MN & Associates only. Further, there is violation of SA 299 as the division of work has not been documerited.

2. KRP Ltd., at its annual general meeting, appointed Mr. X, Mr. Y and Mr. Z as joint auditors to conduct auditing
for the financial year 2019-20. For the valuation of gratuity scheme of the company, Mr. X, Mr. Y and Mr. Z wanted
to refer their own known Actuaries. Due to difference of opinion, all the joint auditors consulted their respectivé
Actuaries. Subsequently, major difference was found in the actuary reports. However, Mr. X agreed to Mr. ¥'s
actuary report, though, Mr. Z did not. Mr. X contends that Mr. Y’s actuary report shall be considered in audit report
due to majority of votes. Now, Mr. Z is in dilemma.
{(a) You are required to briefly explain the responsibilities of auditors when they are jointly and severally responsible
in respect of audit conducted by them and also guide Mr. Z in such situation.
(b) Explain the responsibility of auditors, in case, report made by Mr. Y’s actuary, later on, found faulty.

’ [Nov. 18-RTP + SM]
(a) SA 299 on, “Joint Audit of Financial Statements” deals with the brofessional responsibilities, which the auditors
undertake in accepting such appointments as joint auditors. in respect of the work divided amongst the joint auditors,
each joint auditor is responsible only for the work allocated to him, whether or not he has made a separate report
on the work performed by him. '

On the other hand the joint auditors are jointly and severally responsible in respect of the audit conducted by them
as under:

(i) in respect of the audit work which is not divided among the joint auditors and is carried out by ail of them;

(i) in respect of decisions taken by all the joint auditors under audit planning in respect of common audit areas
concerning the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures to be performed by each of the joint auditors;

(iii) in respect of matters which are brought to the notice of the joint auditors by any one of them and on which there
is an agreement among the joint auditors; )
(iv) for examining that the financial statements of the entity comply with the requirements of the relevant statute;
(v) for ensuring presentation and disclosure of the financial statements as required by the applicable FRF;

(vi) for ensuring that the audit report complies with the requirements of the relevant statutes, SA and the other
relevant pronouncements issued by ICAI.

(vi) It is the separate and specific responsibility of each joint auditor to study and evaluate the prevailing system of
internal control relating to the work allocated to him, the extent of enquiries to be made in the course of his audit;
(vii) the responsibility of obtaining and evaluating information and explanation from the management is generally
a joint responsibility of all the auditors; ' ‘
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(viii) each joint auditor is entitled to assume that the other joint auditors have carried out their part of work in
accordance with the generally accepted audit procedures and therefore it would not be necessary for joint auditor
to review the work performed By other joint auditors.

Where, in the course of the audit, a joint auditor comes across matters which are relevant to the areas of responsibility
of other joint auditors and which deserve their attention, or which require disclosure or require discussion with, or
application of judgment by other joint auditors, the said joint auditor shall communicate the same to all the other
joint auditors in writing prior to the completion of the audit:

Normally, the joint auditors are required to issue common audit report, however, where the joint auditors are in
disagreement with regard to the opinion or any matters to be covered by the audit report, they shall express their
opinion in a separate audit report.

A joint auditor is not bound by the views of the majority of the joint auditors regarding the opinion or matters to be
covered in the audit report and shall express opinion formed by the said joint auditor in separate audit report in case
of disagreement.

In such circumstances, the audit report(s) issued by the joint auditor(s) shall make a reference to the separate audit
report(s) issued by the other joint auditor(s). Further, separate audit report shail also make reference to the audit
report issued by other joint auditors. Such reference shall be made under the heading “Other Matter Paragraph” as
per Revised SA 706, “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s
Report”.

In the instant case, there are three auditors, namely, Mr. X, Mr. Y and Mr. Z, jointly appointed as an auditor of KRP
Ltd. For the valuation of gratuity scheme of the Company they referred their own known Actuaries. Mr. Z (one of the
joint auditor) is not satisfied with the report submitted by Mr. Y’s referred actuary. He is not agreed with the matters
to be covered by the report whereas Mr. X agreed with the same.

Hence, as per SA 299, Mr. Z is suggested to express his own opinion through a separate report whereas Mr. X and
Mr. Y may provide their joint report for the same. ‘

(b) Using the work of an Auditor’s Expert: As per SA 620 “Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert”, the expertise of
an expert may be required in the actuarial calculation of liabilities associated with insurance contracts or employee
benefit plans etc., however, the auditor has sole responsibility for the audit opinion expressed, and that responsibility
is not reduced by the auditor’s use of the work of an auditor’s expert.

The auditor shall evaluate the adequacy of the auditor’s expert’s work for the auditor’s purposes, including the
relevance and reasonableness of that expert’s findings or conclusions, and their consistency with other audit
evidence as per SA 500. Further, in view of SA 620, if the expert’s work involves use of significant assumptions and
methods, then the relevance and reasonableness of those assumptions and methods must be ensured b/y the auditor
and if the expert’s work involves the use of source data that is significant to that expert’s work, the relevance,
completeness, and accuracy of that source data in the circumstances must be verified by the auditor.

In the instant case, Mr. X, Mr. Y and Mr. Z, jointly appointed as an auditor of KRP Ltd., referred their own known
Actuaries for valuation of gratuity scheme: Actuaries are an auditor’s expert as per SA 620. Mr. Y’s referred actuary
has provided the gratuity valuation report, which later on found faulty. Further, Mr. Z is not agreed with this report
therefore he submitted a separate audit report specifically for such gratuity valuation. In such situation, it was duty
of Mr. X, Mr. Y and Mr. Z, before using the gratuity valuation report of Actuary, to ensure the relevance and
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reasonableness of assumptions and methods used. They were also required to examine the relevance, completeness
and accuracy of source data used for such report before expressing their opinion.

Mr. X and Mr. Y will be held responsible for grossly negligence and using such faulty report without examinirig the
adequacy of expert actuary’s work whereas Mr. Z will not be held liable for the same due to separate opinion
expressed by him. N
3. Excellent Bank Ltd. is a Public Limited Company. The said Bank has various branches all over India. The Bank
appoints 3 Joint Auditors for the financial year ending 31/03/2019. All the 3 Joint Auditors divide the work with
mutual consent. Verification of Consolidation, however, remained undivided. All branches and zones were divided
amongst the 3 Joint Auditors. During audit of zones, CA. Z, one of the Joint auditors expressed a concern about
internal control in one of the large corporate branches situated. in his zone. The irregularity was not reported in
the final accounts as the other 2 loint Auditors were not in favour of reporting and decision of not reporting the
same was taken on the basis of majority. Subsequently, fraud was detected in the said branch which was audited
by CA. Z. The Bank seeks your advice about the responsibility of the 3 Joint Auditors in the above situation. '
A (Nov-19 Old)
As per SA 299, “Joint Audit of F.S.” where joint auditors are appointed, they should,.by mutual discussion, divide the
audit work among themselves. The division of the work would usually be in terms of audit identifiable units or
specified area. .
In respect of the audit work divided among the joint auditors, each joint auditor is responsible only for the work
allocated to him, whether or not he has prepared a separate audit of the work performed by him. On the other hand
all the joint auditors are jointly and severally responsible for the audit work which is not divided among the joint
auditors and. is carried out jointly and matters which are brought to the notice of the joint auditors by any one of
them and on which there is an agreement among the joint auditors.
In the instant case, Excellent Bank Ltd. appoints 3 joint auditor for the financial year ending 31.03.2019. All the joint
auditors divided the work with mutual consent. The only work which remained undivided was verification of
Consolidation. In accordance with SA 299, all the joint auditors are responsible for the same.

Further, during audit of zone, CA Z, one of the joint auditors expressed a concern about internal control in one of the
large corporate branches situated in his zone, however, this irregularity was not reported as 2 of the joint auditors
(i.e. majority of the joint auditors ) were not in favour of the same. Later on, fraud has been detected in the same
branch which was audited by CA. Z.

As per SA 299, before finalizing their audit report, the joint auditors shall discuss and communicate with each other
their respective conclusions that would form the content of the audit report. Further, a joint auditor is not bound
by the views of the majority of the joint auditors regarding the opinion or matters to be covered in the audit report
and shall express opinion formed by the said joint auditor in separate audit report in case of disagreement.

But in the present scenario, CA. Z brought this matter in the notice of the other 2 joint auditors and the decision for
not reporting was taken on majority basis and no separate opinion was expressed through separate audit report
pointing out irregularity. Thus, all the 3 joint auditors will be held responsible for the fraud detected in the branch
audited by CA. Z as per SA 299.

4. NMN & Co., LLP and ABC & Associates, LLP are the joint statutory auditors of BHS Ltd. BHS Ltd. is a listed compahy
and has been in existence for the last 50 years. Since beginning‘ this company was audited by MQS & Associates but
due to audit rotation, the company had to bring in new auditors. Considering the size of the company, two auditors
were appointed as joint auditors. Since the company is new to these auditors and the concept of joint auditors to
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whom audit work has been divided, management had a discussion and understood that each joint auditor is

responsible only for the work allocated to him, whether or not he has prepared a separate report on the work
performed by him. Advise. (MTP Apr-19)

SA 299 “Joint Audit of Financial Statements” deals with the professional responsibilities which the auditors undertake
in accepting appointments as joint auditors. The joint auditors are required to issue common audit report, however,
where the joint auditors are in disagreement with regard to the opinion or any matters to be covered by the audit
repért, they shall express their opinion in a separate audit report.

A joint auditor is not bound by the views of the majority of the joint auditors regarding the opinion or matters to be
covered in the audit report and shall express opinion formed by the said joint auditor in separate audit report in case
of disagreement. In such circumstances, the audit report(s) issued by the joint auditor(s) shall make a reference to
the separate audit report(s) issued by the other joint auditor(s). Further, separate audit report shall also make
reference to the audit report issued by other joint auditors. Such reference shall be made under the heading “Other
Matter Paragraph” as per SA 706, “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent
Auditor’s Report”.

Each joint auditor is entitled to assume that:

The other joint auditors have carried out their part of the audit work and the work has actually been performed.in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. It iS hot
necessary for a joint auditor to review the work performed by other joint auditors or perform any tests in order to
ascertain whether the work has actually been performed in such a manner.

The other joint auditors have brought to said joint auditor's notice any departure from applicable financial reporting
framework or significant observations that are relevant to their responsibilities noticed in the course of the audit.
Where financial statements of a division/branch are audited by one of the joint auditors, the other joint auditors are
entitled to proceed on the basis that such financial statements comply with all the legal and regulatory requirements
and present a true and fair view of the state of affairs and of the results of operations of the division/branch
concerned.

Before finalizing their audit report, the joint auditors shall discuss and communicate with each other their
respective conclusions that would form the content of the audit report.

SA 315: ldentlfymg and Assessmg ROMM throug”
Understandmg the Ent|ty and lts Enwro’nment

1. You are engaged by M/s. Real Ltd. as an internal auditor for the financial year 2020-2021. While applying risk
assessment procedures of inquiring from management and various analytical procedures, you have identified some
risks which in your opinion may lead to material misstatement at the financial level and assertiori level. Which
factors as an auditor will you consider while exercising judgement as to whether such risks are significant risks or
not? (Jan’21 New + Nov’18 New)

As per SA 315, “Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatements through Understanding the Entity
and its Environment”, in exercising judgment as to which risks are significant rlsks the auditor shall consider at least
the following: _ :
1. Whether the risk is a risk of fraud;
2. Whether the risk is related to recent significant economic, accounting, or other developments like changes in
regulatory environment, etc., and, therefore, requires specific attention;
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The complexity of transactions;

Whether the risk involves significant transactions with related parties;

The degree of subjectivity in the measurement of financial information related to the risk, especially those
measurements involving a wide range of measurement uncertainty; and .

Whether the risk involves significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business for the entity,

or that otherwise appear to be unusual.
L%

2.While commencing the statutory audit of B Company Limited, the auditor undertook the risk assessment and
found that the detection risk relating to certain class of transactions cannot be reduced to acceptance level.

! - (PM + May-17)
SA 315 and SA 330 “Identifying and Assessing the Risk of Material Misstatement Through Understanding the
Entity and its Environment” and “The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks” establishes standards on the
procedures to be followed to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems and on
audit risk and its components: inherent risk, control risk and detection risk.
SA 315 and SA 330 require that the auditor should use professional judgement to assess audit risk and to design -
audit procedures to ensure that it is reduced to an acceptably low level. ‘ ‘
“Detection risk” is the risk that an auditor’s substantive procedures will not detect a misstatement that exists in
an account balance or class of transactions that could be material.
The higher the assessment of inherent and control risks, the more audit evidence the auditor should obtain from
the performance of substantive procedures. )
When both inherent and control risks are assessed as high, the auditor needs to consider whether substantive
procedures can provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence to reduce detection risk, and therefore audit risk,
to an acceptably low level.
The auditor should use his professional judgement to assess audit risk and to design audit procedures to ensure
that it is reduced to an acceptably low level.
If it cannot be reduced to an acceptable level, the auditor should express a qualified opinion or a disclaimer of
opinion as may be appropriate. ’ ’

3.IT systems also pose specific risks to an entity’s internal control? What are those risks? (Nov-17 + PM)

Specific Risk to an Entity’s Internal Control: As per SA 315 “Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material
Misstatement through Understanding the Entity and its Environment”, IT system also poses specific risks to an
entity’s Internal Control. : '
They are—

Reliance on systems or programs that are inaccurately processing data, processing inaccurate data or both.
Unauthorised access to data that may result in destruction of data or improper changes to data, including the
recording of unauthorized or non-existent transactions, or inaccurate recording of transactions. Particular risk
may arise when multiple users access'a common database.

iii) The possibility of IT personnel gaining access beyond those necessary to perform their assigned duties thereby

breaking down segregation of duties.

iv) Unauthorised changes to data in Master files.

v)

Unauthorised changes to systems or programs.

vi) Failure to make necessary changes to systems or programs.

vii) Inappropriate manual intervention.
viii) Potential loss of data or inability to access data as required.

4. While commencing the statutory audit of ABC Company Limited, what should be the considerations of the auditor
to assess Risk of Material Misstatement and his response to such risks? (Nov 14)
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In the course of audit of PB Ltd., you observe that there is a likelihood of misstatement in the account balances and
disclosures in the financial statements. What should be your considerations as an auditor for “Assessing the Risk of
Material Misstatements”? (Nov-18 Old)

As per SA 315 “Identifying and Assessing the Risk of Material Misstatement through understanding the Entity and
its Environment”, the auditor shall identify and assess the risks of material misstatement at the financial statement
level; and the assertion level for classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures to provide a basis for
designing and performing further audit procedures.

For this purpose, the auditor shall-

(i) Identify risks throughout the process of obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including
relevant controls that relate to the risks, and by con5|derlng the classes of transactions, account balances, and
disclosures in the financial statements;

(ii) Assess the identified risks, and evaluate whether they relate more pervasively to the financial statements as a
whole and potentially affect many assertions;

(iii) Relate the identified risks to what can go wrong at the assertlon level, taking account of relevant controls that
the auditor intends to test; and

(iv) Consider the likelihood of misstatement, including the possibility of multiple misstatements, and whether the
potential misstatement is of a magnitude that could result in a material misstatement.

Auditor’s Responses to the Assessed Risk of Material Misstatement: According to SA 330 “The Auditor’s Responses
to Assessed Risks”, the auditor shall design and implement overall responses to address the assessed risks of material
misstatement.

In designing the audit procedures to be performed, the auditor shall-
(i) Consider the reasons for the assessment given to the risk of material misstatement at the assertion level for each
class of transactions, account balance, and disclosure, including:
(1) The likelihood of material misstatement due to the particular characteristics of the relevant class of
transactions, account balance, or disclosure; and _
(2) Whether the risk assessment takes into account the relevant controls, thereby requiring the auditor to obtain
audit evidence to determine whether the controls are operating effectively; and
(ii) Obtain more persuasive audit evidence the higher the auditor’s assessment of risk.

5. What are the points to be considered while evaluating the “Knowledge of the Business” in the conduct of an
audit? (May 10)

The broad matters to be considered while obtaining knowledge of business for a new audit assignment are set out in
SA 315 ldentifying and Assessmg the Risks of Material Misstatement through Understanding the Entity and its
Environment.
These are: ,
i. Relevant industry, regulatory, economic and other external factors including the applicable financial
reporting framework.
ii. The nature of the entity, including:
a) its operations;
b) its ownership and governance structures;
c) the types of investments that the entity is making and plans to make, including investments in special-
purpose entities; and

14
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d) the way that the entity is structured and how it is financed; to enable the auditor to understand the

classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures to be expected in the financial statements
iii. The entity’s selection and application of accounting policies.
iv. The entity’s objectives and strategies, and those related business risks that may result in risks of'material
misstatement. P
A The 'measurement and review of the entity’s financial performance.

Sfibi:Mafériality ih'~PIahﬁin‘g*&;‘Pérforming an Audit

1. Y& Co., Chartered Accountants have come aéross in the course of audit of a company that certain machinery had
been imported for production of new product. Although the Auditors have applied the doncept of materiality for
the Financial Statements as a whole, they now want to re-evaluate the materiality concept for this transaction
involving foreign exchange. Give your views in this regard? ‘ v
(May-18 New)
In the instant case, Y & Co., as an auditor has applied the concept of materiality for the financial statements as a
whole. But they want to re-evaluate the materiality concept on the basis of additional information of import of
machinery for production of new product which draws attention to a particular aspect of the company’s business.

As per SA 320 “Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit”, while establishing the overall audit strategy, the
auditor shall determine materiality for the financial statement as a whole. He should set the benchmark on the-basis

of which he performs his audit procedure. If, in the specific circumstances of the entity, there is one or more particular

classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of lesser amounts than the

materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of the financial statements, the auditor shall also determine the materiality level or levels

to be applied to those particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures.

The auditor shall revise materiality for the financial statements inthe event of becoming aware of information during

the audit that would have caused the auditor to have determined a different.amount (or amounts) initially.

If the auditor concludes a lower materiality for the same, then he should consider the fact that whether it is necessary
to revise performance materiality and whether the nature, timing and extent of the further audit procedures remain
appropriate.

Thus, Y & Co. can re-evaluate the materiality concepts after considering the necessity of such revision.

2. CA. B was appointed as auditor of SRT Limited for financial year 2021-22. During course of planning for audit, CA.
B intends to apply the concept of materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Please guide him with respect
to factors that may affect the identification of an appropriate benchmark for this purpose.

What benchmark should be adopted by CA. B, if SRT Limited is engaged in :

(i) the manufacture and sale of air conditioners, and is having regular profits.

(ii) the construction of large infrastructure projects and incurred losses in the previous two financial years, due to
pandemic. [Nov-22 + Nov-20 Old]

SA 320 “Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit” prescribes the use of Benchmarks in Determining
Materiality for the Financial Statements as a Whole. Determining materiality involves the exercise of professional
judgment. A percentage is often applied to a chosen benchmark as a starting point in determining materiality for the
financial statements as a whole. ’
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As auditor of X Ltd., for determining the materiality level, factors that may affect the identification of an appropriate
benchmark include the following:

i. The elements of the financial statements (for example, assets, habllltles equity, revenue, expenses);

ii. Whether there are items on which the attention of the users of the particular entity's financial statements tends
to be focused (for example, for the purpose of evaluating financial performance, users may tend to focus on profit,
revenue or net assets);

iii. The nature of the entity, where the entity is at in its life cycle, and the industry and economic environment in which
the entity operates;

iv. The entity's ownership structure and the way it is financed (for example, if an entity is financed solely by debt
rather than equity, users may put more emphasis on assets, and claims on them, than on the entity's earnings); and
v. The relative volatility of the benchmark.

Determining a percentage to be applied to a chosen benchmark involves the exercise of professional judgment. There
is a relationship between the percentage and the chosen benchmark, such that a percentage applied to profit before
tax from continuing operations will normally be higher than a percentage applied to total revenue.

In case if SRT Limited is engaged in manufacture and sale of air conditioner, and is having regular profits: CA. B, the
auditor may consider profit before tax /Earnings. In case if SRT Limited is engaged in the construction of large
infrastructure projects and incurred losses in the previous two financial years, due to pandemic: CA. B, the audltor
may consider Revenue or Gross Profit as benchmarking.

Alternatively, CA B, the auditor may consider criteria relevant for audit of entities doing public utility programs/
projects, Total cost or net cost (expenses less revenues or expenditure less receipts) may be appropriate benchmarks

for that particular program/project activity.

Where an entity has custody of the assets, assets may be an appropriate benchmark.

SA 330: Auditor's Responses to Assessed Risks

'

1.In the course of audit of Z Ltd, its auditor wants to rely on audit evidence obtained in previous audit in respect of
effectiveness of internal controls instead of retesting the same during the current audit. As an advisor to the auditor
kindly caution him about the factors that may warrant a re-test of controls.

(MTP Oct-19 + RTP Nov 18/May-22)
As per SA 330 on “The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks”, changes may affect the relevance of the audit
evidence obtained in previous audits such that there may no longer be a basis for continued reliance.

Auditor’s decision on whether to rely on audit evidence obtained in previous audits for control is a matter of
professional judgment. In addition, length of time between retesting such controls is also a matter of professional
judgment.

Factors that may warrant a re-test of controls are-

(i) A deficient control environment.

(ii) Deficient monitoring of controls.

(iii) A significant manual element to the relevant controls.

(iv) Personnel changes that significantly affect the application of the control.
(v) Changing circumstances that indicate the need for changes in the control.
(vi) Deficient general IT-controls.

b e e e ]
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2. Mr. Agarwal, in the course of audit of PQ Limited, wants to perform external confirmation procedures to obtain
audit evidence. Guide Mr. Agarwal, listing out the factors that may assist him in determining whether external
confirmation procedures are to be performed as substantive audit procedures. [Dec-21 New]
Factors that may assist Mr. Agarwal, the auditor in determining whether external confirmation procedures are to
be performed as substantive audit procedures include:
(i) The confirming party’s knowledge of the subject matter — responses may be more reliable if provided by a person
at the confirming party who has the requisite knowledge about the information being confirmed. >
(ii) The ability or willingness of the intended confirming party to respond — for example, the confirming party:

e May not accept responsibility for responding to a confirmation request;

e May consider responding too costly or time consuming; .

e May have concerns about the potential legal liability resulting from responding; .

e May account for transactions in different currencies; or

e May operate in an environment where responding to confirmation requests is not a significant aspect of day-

to-day operations. ‘ '

In such situations, confirming parties may not respond, may respond in a casual manner or may attempt to restrict
the reliance placed on the response. '
(iii) The objectivity of the intended confirming party — if the confirming partyisa related party of the entity, responses
to confirmation requests may be less reliable.

3. While formulating the audit plan and responding to the risks of material misstatement identified and assessed
in related party transaction and relationships, Ms. K the engagement manager of the audit team of ABC Limi’ted,
decided to rely upon the internal controls placed for identification and disclosure of related party relationships and
transactions in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

You are requested to guide Ms. K regarding the necessity to test the controls to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence. Also guide, whether Ms. K can use the audit evidence ohtained, regarding operative effectiveness
of control on identification and disclosure of related party relationships and transactions, in the interim period.

' (RTP Nov'21)

As per SA 550, “Related Parties”, according to para on “Responses to the risks of material misstatement associated
with related party relationships and transactions”, the auditor should design and performs further audit procedures
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the assessed risks of material misstatement associated with
related party relationships and transactions.

Further, as per SA 330, “The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks”, auditor shall design and perform tests of
controls to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to the operating effectiveness of relevant controls when:

(a) the auditor’s assessment of risks of material misstatement at the assertion level includes an expectation that ‘
the controls are operating effectively (i.e., the auditor intends to rely on the operating effectiveness of controls in
determining the nature, timing and extent of substantive procedures); or

(b) Substantive procedures alone cannot provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence at the assertion level.

In designing and performing tests of controls, the auditor shall obtain more persuasive audit evidence the greater
the reliance the auditor places on the effectiveness of a control.

Moreover, the auditor shall test controls for the particular time, or throughout the period, for which the -auditor
intends to rely on those controls, subject to when the auditor obtains audit evidence about the operating effectiveness
of controls during an interim period, and the timing of test of controls over significant risks, in order to provide an

appropriate basis for the auditor’s intended reliance.
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When the auditor obtains audit evidence about the operating effectiveness of controls during an interim period, the

auditor shall:
a. Obtain audit evidence about significant changes to those controls subsequent to the interim period; &
b. Determine the additional audit evidence to be obtained for the remaining period.

-
In the current case, Ms. K shall design and perform tests of controls to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as
to the operating effectiveness of relevant controls as she intends to rely on the operating effectiveness of controls in
determining the nature, timing and extent of substantive procedures.

Further, she is also required to obtain the audit evidence about significant changes to those controls subsequent to
the interim period along with the additional audit evidence to be obtained for the remaining period in accordance ,
with the requirements of Standards on Auditing as discussed above.

SA 402: Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisati

1. ENN Limited is availing the services of APP Private Limited for its payroll operations. Payroll cost accounts for
65% of total cost for ENN Limited. APP Limited has provided the type 2 report as specified under SA 402 for its
description, design and operating effectiveness of control.

APP Private Limited has also outsourced a material part of payroll operation M/s SMP & Associates in such a way
that M/s SMP & Associates is sub-service organization to ENN Limited. The Type 2 report which was provnded by
APP Private Limited was based on carve-out method as specified under SA 402.

CA Raman while reviewing the unmodified audit report drafted by his assistant found that, a reference has been
made to the work done by the service auditor. CA Raman hence asked his assistant to remove such reference and
modify report accordingly. Comment whether CA Raman is correct in removing the reference of the work done by
service auditor? (RTP Nov'20 + MTP Apr'21/Sep-22)

As per SA 402, “Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation”, the user auditor shall
modify the opinion in the user auditor’s report in accordance with SA 705, “Modifications to the Opinion in the
Independent Auditor’s Report”, if the user auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the services provided by the service organisation relevant to the audit of the user entity’s financial statements.

The user auditor shall not refer to the work of a service auditor in the user auditor’s report containing an unmodified
opinion unless required by law or regulation to do so.

If such reference is required by law or regulation, the user auditor’s report shall indicate that the reference does not
diminish the user auditor’s responsibility for the audit opinion.

Thus, in view of above, contention of CA. Raman in removing reference of the work done by service auditor is in
order as in case of unmodified audit report, user auditor cannot refer to the work done by service auditor.

2. G Ltd. is a mobile phone operating company. Barring the marketing function it had outsourced the entire
operations like maintenance of mobile infrastructure, customer billing, payroll, accounting functions, etc. Assist the :
auditor of G Ltd. as to how he can obtain an understanding of how G Ltd. uses the services of the outsourced agency
in its operations. (MTP Oct-19)

A

As per SA 402 on “Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation”, when obtaining an
understanding of the user entity in accordance with SA 315 “Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material
Misstatement through Understanding the Entity and its Environment”, the user auditor shall obtain an understanding
of how a user entity uses the services of a service organisation in the user entity’s operations, including:
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i, The nature of the services provided by the service organisation and the significance of those services to the user

entity, including the effect thereof on the user entity’s.internal control;

ii. The nature and materiality of the transactions processed or accounts or financial reporting processes affected by
the service organisation; -

iii. The degree of interaction between the activities of the service organisation and those of the user entity; and

iv. The nature of the relationship between the user entity and the service organisation, including the relevant
contractual terms for the activities undertaken by the service organisation. ~

3. When a sub-service organization performs services for a service organization, there are two alternative methods
of presenting the description of controls. The service organization determines which method will be used. As a user
auditor what information would you obtain about controls at a sub-service organization? {(May’15)

In accordance with SA 402 “Audit Considerations relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation”, a user entity "
may use a service organisation that in turn uses a sub-service organisation to provide some of the services provided -
to a user entity that are part of the user entity’s information system relevant to financial reporting. The sub-service"
organisation may be a separate entity from the service organisation or may be re.ated to the service organisation.

A user auditor may need to consider controls at the sub-service organisation. In situations where one or more sub-
service organisations are used, the interaction between the activities of the user entity and those of the service
organisation is expanded to include the interaction between the user entity, the service organisation and the sub—
service organisations. The degree of this interaction, as well as the nature and materiality of the transactlons
processed by the service organisation and the sub-service organisations are the most important factors for the user
auditor to consider in determining the significance of the service organisation’s and sub-service organisation’s controls
to the user entity’s controls.

Further, the user auditor shall determme whether a sufficient understanding of the nature and significance of the
services provided by the service organlsatlon and their effect on the user entity's internal control relevant to the audit
has been obtained to provide a basis for the identification and assessment of risks of material misstatement.

If the user auditor is unable to obtain a sufficient understanding from the user entity, the user auditor shall obtain
that understanding by application of the following two methods of presenting description of internal controls i.e. (i)
Type 1 report; or (ii) Type 2 report.

If a service organisation uses a subservice organisation, the service auditor's report may either include or exclude the
subservice organisation's relevant control objectives and related controls in the service organisation's description of
its system and in the scope of the service auditor's engagement. These two methods of reporting are known as the
inclusive method and the carve-out method respectively.

In either method, the service organisation includes in its description of controls a description of the functions and
nature of the processing performed by the sub-service organisation.

If the Type 1 or Type 2 report excludes the control at a subservice organization and the services provided by the
subservice organization are relevant to the audit of the user entity’s financial statements, the user auditor is required
to apply the requirements of the SA 402 in respect of the subservice organization.

The nature and extent of work to be performed by the user auditor regarding the services provided by a subservice
organization depend on the nature and significance of those services to the user entity and relevance of those

services to the audit.
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4. Durafone Mobile Co. Ltd. have pan India presence and market leader in mobile operation. It has outsourced all

its revenue operation including accounting functions to Set Solutions (P) Ltd. As an Auditor of the mobile company,
enumerate the factors to be taken into consideration related to its financial reporting. (May 18-0Old)

As per SA 402 “Audit Consider\ations relating to an Entity using a Service Organization”, services provided by a service
organisation are relevant to the audit of a user entity’s financial statements when those services, and the controls
over them, are part of the user entity’s information system, including related business processes, relevant to financial
reporting.

Although most controls at the service organisation are likely to relate to financial reporting, there may be other
controls that may also be relevant to the audit, such as controls over the safeguarding of assets.

A service organisation’s services are part of a user entity’s information system, including related business processes,
relevant to financial reporting if these services affect any of the following:

i. The classes of transactions in the user entity’s operations that are significant to the user entity’s financial
statements; :

ii. The procedures, within both information technology (IT) and manual systems, by which the user entity’s
transactions are initiated, recorded, processed, corrected as necessary, transferred to the general ledger and
reported in the financial statements; | ,

iii. The related accounting records, either in electronic or manual form, supporting information and -specific
accounts in the user entity’s financial statements that are used to initiate, record, process and report the user
entity’s transactions; this includes the correction of incorrect information and how information is transferred to
the general ledger;

iv. How the user entity’s information system captures events and conditions, other than transactions, that are
significant to the financial statements;

v. The financial reporting process used to prepare the user entity’s financial statements,including significant
accounting estimates and disclosures; and

vi. Controls surrounding journal entries, including non-standard journal entries used to record non-recurring,
unusual transactions or adjustments.

5. A Company gets its accounting data processed by a third party to achieve cost reduction. As a Statutory Auditor
of such a company, what are the additional precautions/checks that you would consider for conduct of the audit?

(PM)
Processing of accounting data may be given to a third party on account of various considerations such as economy,
own computer working to full capacity, an interim measures restricting accessibility to sensitive informatioh, etc. A
client may use a service organisation such as one that executes transactions and maintains related accountability or
records transactions and processes related data (e.g., a computer systems service organisation). If a client uses a
service organisation, certain policies, procedures and records maintained by the service organisation might be
relevant to the audit of the financial statements of the client.

Consequently, the auditor would consider the nature and extent of activities undertaken by service organisations so
as to determine whether those activities are relevant to the audit and, if so; to assess their effect on audit risk.

As per SA 402 “Audit Considerations \relating to an Entity using a Service Organization”, when obtaining an
understanding of the user entity in accordance with SA 315, the user auditor shall obtain an understanding of how a
user entity uses the services of a service organisation in the user entity’s operations, including: ‘ .

(a) The nature of the services provided by the service organisation and the significance of those services to the user
entity, including the effect thereof on the user entity’s internal control;

i B T
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{b) The nature and materiality of the transactions processed or accounts or financial reporting processes affected by
the service organisatioh;

(c) The degree of interaction between the activities of the service organisation and those of the user entity; and

(d) The nature of the relationship between the user entity and the service organisation, including the relevant
contractual terms for the activities undertaken by the service organisation. K ‘

’

information on the nature of the services provided by a service organisation may be available from a wide variety
of sources, such as user manuals; system overviews; technical manuals; the contract or service level agreement
between the user entity and the service organisation; reports by service organisations, internal auditors or regulatory
authorities on controls at the service brganisatiop ; reports by the service auditor, including management letters, if
available. -

[Author’s Tip: There can be a separate Question on this para] ‘
Knowledge obtained through the user auditor’s experience with the service organisation, for example through
experience with other audit engagements, may also be helpful in obtaining an understanding of the nature of the
services provided by the service organisation. This may be particularly helpful if the services and controls at the servicé

organisation over those services are highly standardized.

6. How does an auditor report on the description, design and operating effectiveness of controls at a service
organization? (May-17) .
Report on the Description, Design and Operating Effectiveness of Controls at a Service Organization: As per SA 402
«“paudit Considerations Relating to an Entity using a Service Organisation", a report on the description, design and
operating effectiveness of controls ata service organization shall comprise-
(i) A description, prepared by management of service organisation, of service organisation’s system, control
objectives and related controls, their design and implementation as at a specified date or throughout a specified
period and, in some cases, their operating effectiveness throughout a spe?:i'fiéd period; and
(ii) A report by the service auditor with the objective of conveying'reasonable assurance that includes:
a. The service auditor’s opinion on the description of the service organisation’s system, control objectives and
related controls, the suitability of the design of the controls to achieve the specified control objectives, and the
operating effectiveness of the controls; and ’
b. A description of the service auditor’s tests of the controls and the results thereof.

'SA 450: Evaluation of Misstatements Identified during the Audits

1. In audit plan for T Ltd, as the audit partner you want to highlight the sources of misstatements, arising from other
than fraud, to your audit team and caution them. Identify the sources of misstatements. (RTP Nov-18/May-22)

According to SA 450 “Evaluation of Misstatements identified during the Audit”, the following are the sources of
misstatements arising from other than fraud — A
(i) An inaccuracy in gathering or processing data from which the financial statements are prepared;
(ii) An omission of an amount or disclosure; v

(iii) An incorrect accounting estimate arising from overlooking, or clear misinterpretation of facts; and _

(iv) Judgments of management concerning accounting estimates that the auditor considers unreasonable or the
selection and application of accounting policies that the auditor considers inappropriate.

2. Discuss the impact of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit and the auditor’s response to the
same. (Nov-17) ) N
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Prior to evaluating the effect of uncorrected misstatements, the auditor shall reassess materiality determined in
accordance with SA 320, to confirm whether it remains appropriate in the context of the entity’s actual financial
results. ‘

In accordance with SA 450 “Evaluation of Misstatements identified during the Audit”, the auditor shall determine
whether uncorrected misstatements are material, individually or in aggregate.

In making this determination, the auditor shall consider- )

(i) The size and nature of the misstatements, both in relation to particular classes of transactions, account balances
or disclosures and the financial statements as a whole, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence; and

(i) The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.

The auditor shall communicate this with those charged with governance uncorrected misstatements and the effect
that they, individuaily or in aggregate, may have on the opinion in the auditor’s report, unless prohibited by law or
regulation.

The auditor’s communication shall identify material uncorrected misstatements individually.
The auditor shall request that uncorrected misstatements be corrected. ’

As per management, if effect of such uncorrected misstatement is immaterial then the auditor shall request for a
written representation from management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance that whether they
believe the effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, individually and in aggregate, to the financial
statements as a whole. A summary of such items shall be included in or attached to the written representation.

If the management refuses to adjust the financial information and the results of extended audit procedures do not
enable the auditor to conclude that the aggregate of uncorrected misstatements is not material, the auditor should
report accordingly.

- SA 500: Audit Evidenc pE

1. 1. CA. Needle had been appointed as an Auditor of M/s Fabric Ltd. In the course of audit, it had been observed
that inventory including work-in-process had been valued by Management by using experts hired by them. Analyse
relevant factors to decide as to whether or not to accept the findings from the work of Management expert in
valuation of inventories. (May 18 New + Jan’21 Old)

M/s LNK’s group gratuity scheme’s valuation by actuary shows wide variation comparéd to the previous year’s
figures. As a Statutory Auditor, how would you deal in this situation? (PM) -

Using the Work of Management’s Expert: As per SA 500 “Audit Evidence”, when information to be used as audit
evidence has been prepared using the work of a management’s expert, the auditor shall, to the extent necessary,
having regard to the significance of that expert’s work for the auditor’s purposes,-

(a) Evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of that expert;

(b) Obtain an understanding of the work of that expert; and

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of that expert’s work as audit evidence for the relevant assertion.

t
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The auditor may obtain information regarding the competence, capabilities and objectivity of a management’s expert

from a variety of sources, such as personal experience with previous work of that expert; discussions with that expert;
discussions with others who are familiar with that expert’s work; knowledge of that expert’s qualifications; published
papers or books written by that expert. .
Aspects of the management’s expert’s field relevant to the auditor’s understanding may include what assumptions
and methods are used by the management’s expert, and whether they are generally accepted within that'expert’s
field and appropriate for financial reporting purposes.

The auditor may also consider the following while evaluating the appropriateness of the management’s expert’s work
as audit evidence for-the relevant assertion: ,

(i) The relevance and reasonableness of that expert’s findings or conclusions, their consistency with other ‘audit
evidence, and whether they have been appropriately reflected in the financial statements;

(ii) If that expert’s work involves use of significant assumptions and methods, the relevance and reasonableness of
those assumptions and methods; and

(iii) If that expert’s work involves significant use of source data, the relevance, completeness, and accuracy of that
source data.

The auditor has to evaluate the work of an expert, say, actuary, before adopting the same.

This becomes more crucial since M/s LNK’s group gratuity scheme’s valuation by actuary shows wide variation
compared to previous year figures. There is no doubt that relevance and reasonableness of assumptions and methods
used are the responsibility of the expert, but the auditor has to determine whether they are appropriate based on the
auditor’s knowledge of the client’s business and result of hi~ audit procedures.

In the present case, the auditor must verify the reasonableness of assumptions made and methods adopted by the
actuary in the evaluation particularly with reference to factors such as rate of return on investments, retirement age,
number and salary of employees, etc. ’

Accordingly, the auditor has to satisfy himself whether valuation done by the actuary can be adopted, otherwise he
may report on his findings for wide variation. :

2. The auditor of CROX Ltd. accepted the gratuity liability valuation based on the certificate issued by a qualified
actuary. However, the auditor noticed that the retirement age adopted is 65 years as against the existing retirement
age of 60 years. The company is considering a proposal to increase the retirement age to 65 years. Comment. (MTP
Apr 18)

Same ans as Q1 +

In the instant case, CROX Ltd. accepted the gratuity liability valuation based on the certificate issued by an expert i.e.,
a qualified actuary who is management’s expert. Here basis for computation and valuation is taken as age 65 years by
the actuary, which is not correct as company is considering proposal to increase the retirement age from existing age
to 65 years. Therefore, assumptions and methods used by the management’s expert are not appropriate for financial
reporting purposes. Hence, auditor may qualify the report accordingly.

3. Gap Ltd. possesses some investment for which there is no ready market and to assess its fair market value it hires
an expert, the result of which it can use in preparing its financial statement. Being an Auditor of the Company, state
the matters which may affect the nature, timing and extent of audit procedure to be adopted by you in the instant
case. (May-18 Old) '
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As per SA 500 “Audit Evidence”, the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures to be adopted by an auditor in
case of management’s expert, may be affected by such matters as:

(i) The nature and complexity of the matter to which the management’s expert relates.

(ii) The risks of material misstatement in the matter.

(iii) The availability of alternative sources of audit evidence.

(iv) The nature, scope and obfectives of the management’s expert’s work.

(v) Whether the management’s expert is employed by the entity, or is a party engaged by it to provide relevant
services. ’

(vi) The extent to which management can exercise control or influence over the work of the management’s expert.
(viii) Whether management’s expert is subject to technical performance standards or other professional or industry
requirements.

(x) The nature and extent of any controls within the entity over the management’s expert’s work.

(xi) The auditor’s knowledge and experience of the management’s expert’s field of expertise.

(xii) The auditor’s previous experience of the work of that expert.

4. During the course of audit of a Limited company, the statutory auditors collected written representations from
the Management. The audit was finalized in addition to other audit procedures but, without making any inquiries,
as the statutory auditors were short of time. In the light of this mformatlon, state the importance of inquiry as one
of the methods of collecting Audit Evidence. (July-21 Old)

Inquiry: As per SA 500 Audit Evidence:-

1. Inquiry consists of seeking information of knowledgeable persons, financial and nonfinancial, within the entity
or outside the entity. Inquiry is used extensively throughout the audit in addition to other audit procedures.
Inquiries may range from formal written inquiries to informal oral inquiries. Evaluating responses to inquiries is
an integral part of the inquiry process.

2. Responses to inquiries may provide the auditor with information not previously possessed or with corroborative
audit evidence. Alternatively, responses might provide information that differs significantly from other
information that the auditor has obtained, for example, information regarding the possibility of management
override of controls. In some cases, responses to inquiries provide a basis for the auditor to modify or perform
additional audit procedures.

3. Although corroboration of evidence obtained through inquiry is often of partlcular importance, in the case of
inquiries about management intent, the information available to support management’s intent may be limited.
In these cases, understanding management’s past history of carrying out its stated intentions, management’s
stated reasons for choosing a particular course of action, and management’s ability to pursue a specific course
of action may provide relevant information to corroborate the evidence obtained through inquiry. 7

4. In respect of some matters, the auditor may consider it necessary to obtain written representations from
management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance to confirm responses to oral inquiries.

~ SA501: Audit Evidence—Specific Consideratio

1. GHK Associates, Chartered Accountants, conducting the audit of PBS Ltd., a listed company for the year ended
31.03.2020 is concerned with the presentation and disclosure of segment information included in Company's
Annual Report. GHK Associates want to ensure that methods adopted by management for determining segment
information have resulted in disclosure in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Guide GHK
Associates with 'Examples of Matters' that may be relevant when obtaining an understanding of the methods used
by the management with reference to the relevant Standards on Auditing. (Jan 21 New)
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The auditors, GHK Associates wanted to ensure and obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the

presentation and disclosure of segment information in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework
by obtaining an understanding of the methods used by management in determining segment information. SA 501
guides in this regard. .

As per SA 501- “Audit Ewdence—Spec:flc Considerations for Selected Items”, example of matters that may be
relevant when obtaining an understanding of the methods used by management in determining segment infdrmation
and whether such methods are likely to result in disclosure in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework include:

(i) Sales, transfers and charges between segments; and elimination of inter- segment amounts.

(ii) Comparisons with budgets and other expected results, for eg., operating proflts as a percentage of sales.

(iii) The allocation of assets and costs among segments.

(iv) Consistency with prior periods, and the adequacy of the disclosures with respect to inconsistencies.

2. Moon Ltd. is a dealer in electronic appliances. The Company has a centralised warehouse at the outskirts of .
Mumbai. The Auditors of the company M/s JK Associates normally attend the physical verification of stocks carried
out by the Management at the end of the financial year. However, on account of certain disturbances in the region,
the physical inventory counting could not be carried out at the year end. The stock taking is decided to be done by
management at some other date sul'gSequentIy, after a month.

in the light of the above facts:
Enumerate the audit procedures to be considered by M/s JK Associates, if physical inventory counting is conducted
at a date other than the date of the financial statements with reference to the relevant Standard on Auditing. (PM)

As per SA 501 “Audit Evidence- Specific Considerations for Selected ltems”, when inventory is material to the
financial statements, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence and
condition of inventory. !

For practical reasons, the physical inventory counting may be conducted at a date, or dates, other than the date of
the financial statements. This may be done irrespective of whether management determines inventory quantities by
an annual physical inventory counting or maintains a perpetual inventory system. in either case, the effectiveness of
the design, implementation and maintenance of controls over changes in inventory determines whether the
conduct of physical inventory counting at a date, or dates, other than the date of the financial statements is
appropriate for audit purposes.

If physical inventory counting is conducted at a date other than the date of the financial statements, the auditor, JK
Associates, shall perform the following procedures:

(A) Attendance at physical inventory counting, unless impracticable, to: .
" i.Evaluate management’s |nstruct|ons and procedures for recording and controlling the results of the entity’s
physical inventory counting;
ii.Observe the performance of management’s count procedures;
iii.Inspect the inventory; and
iv.Perform test counts; and

(B) Performing audit procedures over the entity’s final inventory records to determine whether they accurately reflect
actual inventory count results. ) _ =
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In addition to above, auditor shall also perform audit procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether changes in

inventory between the count date and the date of the financial statements are properly recorded.

Relevant matters for consideration when designing audit procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether changes
in inventory amounts between the count date, or dates, and the final inventory records are properly recorded include:
1. Whether the perpetual inventory records are properly adjusted.
2. Reliability of the entity’s perpetual inventory records.
3. Reasons for significant differences between the information obtained during the physical count and the
perpetual inventory records.

3. RIM Private Ltd is engaged in the business of manufacturing of water bottles and is experiencing significant
increase in turnover year on year. During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the company carried out a
detailed physical verification of its inventory and property, plant and equipment. You are the auditor of RIM Private
Ltd. The inventory as at the end of the year was X 2.25 crores. Due to unavoidable circumstances, you could not be
present at the time of annual physical verification. Under the above circumstances how would you ensure that the
physical verification conducted by the management was in order? (RTP May 20)

As per SA 501 “Audit Evidence — Additional Considerations for Specific Items”, the auditor should perform audit
procedures, designed to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence during his attendance at physical inventory
counting. SA 501 is additional guidance to that contained in SA 500, “Audit Evidence”, with respect to certain specific
financial statement amounts and other disclosures.

If the auditor is unable to be present at the physical inventory count on the date planned due to unforeseen
circumstances,
> the auditor should take or observe some physical counts on an alternative date and where necessary,
> perform alternative audit procedures to assess whether the changes in inventory between the date of physical
count and the period end date are correctly recorded.
> The auditor would also verify the procedure adopted, treatment given for the discrepancies noticed during the
physical count. ' ;
> The auditor would also ensure that appropriate cut off procedures were followed by the management.
> He should also get management’s written representation on:
(a) the completeness of information provided regarding the inventory, and
(b) assurance with regard to adherence to laid down procedures for physical inventory count.

By following the above procedure, it will be ensured that the physical verification conducted by the managerﬁent was
in order.

4. Coccyx Ltd. supplies navy uniforms across the country. The Company has 3 warehouses at different locations
throughout the India and 5 warehouses at the borders. The major stocks are generally supplied from the borders.
Coccyx Ltd. appointed M/s OPAQE & Co. to conduct its audit for the financial year 2020-21. Mr. P, partner of M/s
OPAQE & Co., attended all the physical inventory counting conducted throughout the india but could not attend
the same at borders due to some unavoidable reason.
You are required to advise M/s OPAQE & Co., ,
(I) How sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence and condition of inventory may be obtained?
(1) How is an auditor supposed to deal when attendance at physical inventory counting is impracticable?

[RTP May 21]
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(1) Special Consideration with Regard to Inventory: As per SA 501 “Audit Evidence- Specific Considerations for
selected Items”, when inventory is material to the finangial statements, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the existence and condition of inventory by:

(1) Attendance at physical inventory gounting, unless impracticable, to:
i Evaluate management’s instructions and procedures for recording and controlling the results of the entity’s
physical inventory counting; ~
iii. Observe the performance of management’s count procedures;
iii. Inspect the inventory; and
iv. Perform test counts; and 4
(2) Performing audit procedures over the entity’s final inventory records to determine whether they accurately reflect
actual inventory count results.

(11) Attendance at Physical Inventory Counting Not Practicable: In some cases, attendance at physical inventory
counting may be impracticable. This may be due to factors such as the nature and location of the inventory, for
example, where inventory is held in a location that may pose threats to the safety of the auditor. The matter of
general inconvenience to the auditor, however, is not sufficient to support a decision by the auditor that attendance
is impracticable. R
,
Further, as explained in SA 200 “Overall Objectives of the independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in
Accordance with Standards on Auditing”, the matter of difficulty, time, or cost involved is not in itself a valid basis
for the auditor to omit an audit procedure for which there is no alternative or to be satisfied with audit evidence that
is less than persuasive.

Further, where attendance is |mpract|cable alternative audit procedures;for example, inspection of documentation
of the subsequent sale of spemflc inventory items acquired or purchased prior to the physical inventory counting,
may provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the existence and condition of inventory.

In some cases, though, it may not be possible to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence
and condition of inventory by performing alternative audit procedures. In such cases, SA 705 on Maodifications to the
Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report, requires the auditor to modify the opinion in the auditor’s reportas a
result of the scope limitation. '

5. Your firm has been appointed as the statutory auditors of GBM Private Limited for the financial year 2018-19.
While verification of company’s inventories as on 31st March 2019, you found that the significant amount of
inventories belonging to the company are held by other parties. However, the company has kept all the records of
the inventories maintained by other parties. What is your duty as an auditor in order to ensure that third parties
are not such with whom the stock should not be held and the stock as disclosed in company’s records actually
belongs to them? [RTP Nov-19]

As per SA 501, “Audit Evidence—S'pecific Considerations for Selected Items” when inventory under the custody and
control of a third party is material to the financial statements, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the existence and condition of that inventory by performing one or both of the following:
i, Request confirmation from the third party as to the quantities and condition of inventory held on behalf of
the entity. V '
ii. Perform inspection or other audit procedures appropnate in the circumstances, for example where
information is obtained that raises doubt about the integrity and objectivity of the third party, the auditor
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may consider it appropriate to perform other audit procedures instead of, or in addition to, confirmation with

the third party.

Examples of other audit procedures include:

* Attending, or arranging for another auditor to attend, the third party’s physical counting of inventory, if
practicable.

e Obtaining another auditor’s report, or a service auditor’s report, on the adequacy of the third party’s
internal control for ensuring that inventory is properly counted and adequately safeguarded.

* Inspecting documentation regarding inventory held by third parties, for example, warehouse receipts.

¢ Requesting confirmation from other parties when inventory has been pledged as collateral.

6. The Engagement Partner of the audit team of High Inventory Limited assessed that the inventory is material with
respect to the audit of the financial statement for the current period. Upon inquiring with the management, the
Engagement Partner identified that the management will be performing an annual physical inventory count at all
the warehouses where the entity stores and maintains its inventory. Moreover, manégement confirmed in its
written representation that they will be performing a 100% physical count of inventory for the current period.

As a result, the engagement Partner decided not to perform any physical count of inventory as it will be a
duplication of the work. Moreover, he decided that the written representation from management stating “the
inventory exists and is in appropriate physical condition” will be sufficient and appropriate with respect to audit
evidence to conclude that the inventory balance in the financial statement is free from any material misstatement.

In the light of SA 501, evaluate whether the decision taken by the Engagement Partner is appropriate or not.

[MTP Sep-22]
As per SA 501,” Audit Evidence - Specific Considerations for Selected Items”, when inventory is material to F.S.,
auditor shall obtain SAAE regarding existence and condition of inventory by:

i. Attendance at physical inventory counting, unless impracticable, to
1. Evaluate management’s instructions and procedures for recording and controlling the results of the entity’s
physical inventory counting.
2. Observe the performance of management’s count procedures.
3. Inspect the inventory; and.
4. Perform test counts; and

ii. Performing audit procedures over the entity’s final inventory records to determine whether they accurately reflect
actual inventory count results.

Attendance at physical inventory counting involves:

i. Inspecting inventory to ascertain its existence and evaluate its condition and perform test counts.

ii. Observing compliance with management’s instructions and the performance of procedures for-recording and
controlling the results of the physical inventory count; and

iii. Obtaining audit evidence as to the reliability of management’s count procedures.

In given case, approach of Engagement Partner is not appropriate as when inventory is material to the financial
statements, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the existence and condition of
inventory.

This should be done by performing various audit procedures which also includes attending physical count, observing
the count, inspecting the inventory and reperforming physical counts.
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- sA 505 External Confirmations :

s

1. Neverpermit Limited refuses to allow you to get direct confirmation of the outstanding balances of trade
receivables. You want to ensure on grounds of materiality that at least outstanding above a threshold limit needs
to be confirmed and reconciliation is tp be carried out before finalising the audit. If the Company does not relent,
how will you respond? (May 18 New + RTP May 20)

(9

SA 505 “External Confirmations”, establishes standards on the auditor’s use of external confirmation as a means of
obtaining audit evidence. If the managemen'E refuses to allow the auditor to a send a confirmation request, the auditor
shall: . : '

(i) lnqmre as to Management’s reasons for the refusal, and seek audit evidence as to their validity and reasonableness

(ii) Evaluate the implications of management’s refusal on the auditor’s assessment of the relevant risks of material
misstatement, including the risk of fraud, and on the nature, timing and extent of other audit procedures, and

(iii) Perform alternative audit procedures designed to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence.

if the auditor conciudes that management’s refusal to allow the auditor to send a confirmation request is
unreasonable or the auditor is unable to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from alternative audit procedures,
the auditor shall communicate with those in charge of governance in accordance with SA 260 “Communication with
Those Charged with Governance” and also determine its implication for the audit and his opinion in accordance with
SA 705 “Modifications to the Opinioﬁ in the Independent Auditor’s Report”. ,
A refusal by management to allow the auditor to send a confirmation request is a limitation on the audit evidence
the auditor may wish to obtain. The auditor is therefore required to inquire as to the reasons for the limitation. A
common reason advanced is the existence of a legal dispute or ongoing negotiation with the intended confirming
party, the resolution of which may be affected by an untimely confirmation request. The auditor is required to seek
audit evidence as to the validity and reasonableness of the reasons because of the risk that management may be
attempting to deny the auditor access to audit evidence that may reveal fraud or error.

2. M/s ABC & Co, LLP are appointed auditors of Sharp Company Ltd. for the yéar ended 31st March, 2019. As part

‘of the audit process, they want to use confirmation procedures as audit evidence during the course of audit. in view
of the fact that positive confirmations are not responded favourably, the firm also intends to use negative
confirmation requests. What are the factors to be considered for the same? (May 19 Oid)

As per SA 505, “External Confirmation”, factors to be considered when designing confirmation requests include:
(i) The assertions being addressed.

(ii) Specific identified risks of material misstatement, including fraud risks.

(iii) The layout and presentation of the confirmation request.

(iv) Prior experience on the audit or similar engagements.

(v) The method of communication (for example, in paper form, or by electronic or other medium). .
(vi) Management’s authorisation or encouragement to the confirming parties to respond to the auditor. Confirming
partles may only be willing to respond to a confirmation request containing management’s authorisation.

(vii) The ability of the intended confirming party to confirm or provide the requested information (for example,
individual invoice amount versus total balance).

Factors to be considered for Negative Confirmation requests: A request that the confirming party respond directly
to the auditor only if the confirming party disagrees with the information provided in the request. Negatlve
confirmations provide less persuasive audit evidence than positive confirmations.
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Accordingly, the auditor shall not use negative confirmation requests as the sole substantive audit procedure to

address an assessed risk of material misstatement at the assertion level unless all of the following are present:

(1) The auditor has assessed the risk of material misstatement as low and has obtained sufficient appropriate
evidence regarding the operating effectiveness of controls relevant to the assertion;

(2) The population of items, subject to negative confirmation procedures comprises a large number of small,
homogenous, account balances, transactions or conditions;

(3) A very low exception rate is expected; and .

(4) The auditor is not aware of circumstances or conditions that would cause recipients of negative confirmation
requests to disregard such requests.

The failure to receive a response to a negative confirmation request does not explicitly indicate receipt by the intended
confirming party of the confirmation request or verification of the accuracy of the information contained in the
request. Accordingly, a failure of a confirming party to respond to a negative confirmation request provides
significantly less persuasive audit evidence than does a response to a positive confirmation request.

Confirming parties also may be more likely to respond indicating their disagreement with a confirmation request when
the information in the request is not in their favour, and less likely to respond otherwise.

3. During the course of audit of Star Limited the auditor received some of the confirmation of the balances of trade
payables outstanding in the balance sheet through external confirmation by negative confirmation request. In the
list of trade payables, there are number of trade payables of small balances except one, old outstanding of X 15
Lacs, of whom, no confirmation on the credit balance received. Comment with respect to Standard of Auditing.

(RTP May 18 + Nov-22)
As per SA 505, “External Confirmation”, Negative Confirmation is a request that the confirming party respond directly
to the auditor only if the confirming party disagrees with the information provided in the request. Negative
confirmations provide less persuasive audit evidence than positive confirmations.

The failure to receive a response to a negative confirmation request does not explicitly indicate receipt by the intended
confirming party of the confirmation request or verification of the accuracy of the information contained in the
request. Accordingly, a failure of a confirming party to respond to a negative confirmation request pro\/ides
significantly less persuasive audit evidence than does a response to a positive confirmation request. Confirming
parties also may be more likely to respond indicating their disagreement with a confirmation request when the
information in the request is not in their favor, and less likely to respond otherwise.

In the instant case, the auditor sent the negative confirmation requesting the trade payables having outstanding
balances in the balance sheet while doing audit of Star Limited. One of the old outstanding of < 15 lacs has not sent
the confirmation on the credit balance. In case of non-response, the auditor may examine subsequent cash
disbursements or correspondence from third parties, and other records, such as goods received notes. Further non
response for negative confirmation request does not means that there is some misstatement as negative
confirmation request itself is to respond to the auditor only if the confirming party disagrees with the information
provided in the request.

But, if the auditor identifies factors that give rise to doubts:about the reliability of the response to the confirmation
request, he shail obtain further audit evidence to resolve those doubts.

4. Moon Limited replaced its statutory auditor for the Financial year 2015-16. During the course of audit, the new
auditor found a credit item of X 5 lakhs. On enquiry, the company explained him that it is, a very old credit balance.
The trade payable had neither approached for the payment nor he is traceable. Under the circumstances no
confirmation of the credit balance is available. [PM]
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This is a case of external confirmation, covered by SA 505 “External Confirmations”. The identities of trade payables

are not traceable to confirm the credit balance as appearing in the financial statement of the company. It is also not
a case of pending litigation. ’
it might be a case that an income of ? 5 lakhs had been hidden in previous year/s. The statutory auditor should
examine the validity of the credit balance as appeared in the company’s financial statements. He should obtain
sufficient evidence in support of the balance. He should apply alternative audit procedures to get documentary proof
for the transaction/s and should not rely entirely on the management representation. Finally, he should include the
matter by way of a qualification in his audit report to the members.

14
5. Mr. Z who is appointed as auditor of Elite Co. Ltd. wants to use confirmation request as audit evidence during
the course of audit. What are the factors to be considered by Mr. Z when designing a confirmation request" Also
state the effects of using positive external confirmation request by Mr. Z. (May 16)

As per SA 505, “External Confirmation”, factors to be considered when designing confirmation requests include:
“Common factors as discussed in Q2 also”

Positive Confirmation Request

A positive external confirmation request asks the confirming party to reply to the auditor in all cases, either by

indicating the confirming party’s agréement with the given information, or by asking the confirming party to provide

information. g

> Aresponse to a positive confirmation request ordinarily is expected to provide reliable audit evidence.

> There is a risk, however, that a confirming party may reply to the confirmation request without verifying that
the information is correct.

» The auditor may reduce this risk by using positive confirmation requests that do not state the amount (or other
information) on the confirmation request, and ask the confirming party to fill in the amount or furnish other
information. ' A

» On the other hand, use of this type of “blank” confirmation reduest may result in lower response rates because

additional effort is required of the confirming parties.

SA 510: Initial Audit Engagements—Opening Balances

1. Mr. X has been appointed as an auditor of M/s ABC Ltd., Mr. X wants to be satisfied about the sufficiency and
appropriateness of 'Opening Balances' to ensure that they are free from misstatements. Lay down the audit
procedure, Mr. X should follow, in the initial audit engagement of M/s ABC Ltd. Also suggest the approach to be
followed regarding mention in the audit report if Mr. X is not satisfied about the correctness of 'Opening Balances'?
{Nov 19)

As per SA 510, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about whether the opening balances
contain misstatements that materially affect the current period’s financial statements by: '

(i) Determining whether the prior period’s closing balances have been correctly brought forward to the current
period or, when appropriate, any adjustments have been disclosed as prior period items in the current year’s
Statement of Profit and Loss;
(ii) Determining whether the opening balances reflect the application of appropriate accounting policies; &
(iii) Performing one or more of the following: .
1. Where the prior year financial statements were audited, perusing the copies of the audited financial
statements including the other relevant documents relating to the prior period financial statements;
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2. Evaluating whether audit procedures performed in the current period provide evidence relevant to the

opening balances; or
(iv) Performing specific audit procedures to obtain evidence regarding the opening balances.

Approach to be followed regarding mention in the Audit Report:
> If the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the opening balances, the
auditor shall express a qualified opinion or a disclaimer of opinion, as appropriate.
> Further, If the auditor concludes that the opening balances contain a misstatement that materially affects the
current period’s financial statements, and the effect of the misstatement is not properly accounted for or not
adequately presented or disclosed, the auditor shall express a qualified opinion or an adverse opinion.

2. CA. Jill, a recently qualified practicing Chartered Accountant got his first audit assignment of Natural (P) Ltd. for
the financial year 2019-20. He obtained all the relevant appropriate audit evidence for the items related to
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, while auditing the Balance Sheet items, CA. Jill left out obtaining
appropriate audit evidence, say, confirmations, from the outstanding Accounts Receivable amounting Rs. 190 lakhs,
continued as it is from the last year, on the affirmation of the management that there is no receipts and further
credits during the year. CA. Jill, therefore, excluded from the audit programme, the audit of accounts receivable on
the understanding that it pertains to the preceding year which was already audited by predecessor auditor.
Comment. (MTP May 20) ’

As per SA 510 “Initial Audit Engagements — Opening Balances”, while conducting an initial audit engagement, the
objective of the auditor with respect to opening balances is to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about
whether-

(i) Opening balances contain misstatements that materially affect current period’s financial statements; &

(i) Appropriate accounting policies reflected in the opening balances have been consistently applied in the current
period’s financial statements, or changes thereto are properly accounted for and adequately presented and disclosed
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

When the financial statements for the preceding period were audited by another auditor, the current auditor may be
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding opening balances by perusing the copies of the audited
financial statements.

Ordinarily, the current auditor can place reliance on the closing balances contained in the financial statements for
the preceding period, except when during the performance of audit procedures for the current period the possibility
of misstatements in opening balances is indicated.

For current assets and liabilities, some audit evidence about opening balances may be obtained as part of the current
period’s audit procedures, say, the collection of opening accounts receivable during the current period will provide
some audit evidence of their existence, rights and obligations, completeness and valuation at the beginning of the
period.

In addition, according to SA 580 “Written Representations”, the auditor may consider it necessary to request
management to provide written representations about specific assertions in the financial statements; in particular, to
support an understanding that the auditor has obtained from other audit evidence of management’s judgment or
intent in relation to, or the completeness of, a specific assertion. Although such written representations provide
necessary audit evidence, they do not provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence on_their own for that assertion.

In the given case, the management of Natural (P) Ltd. has restrained CA. Jill, its auditqr, from obtaining appropriate
audit evidence for balances of Accounts Receivable outstanding as it is from the preceding year. CA. Jill, on believing
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that the preceding year balances have already been audited and on the statement of the management that there are

no receipts and credits during the current year, therefore gxcluded the verification of Accounts Receivable from his
audit programme. )

Thus, CA. Jill should have requested the management to provide written representation for their views and
expressions; and he should also not exclude the audit procedure of closing balances of Accounts Receivable from his
audit programme. Consequently, CA. Jill shall also be heid guilty for professional misconduct for not exercising due
diligence, or grossly negligence in the conduct of his professional duties as per the Code of Ethics.

-“SA 520: Analytical Procedures -

-

1. In audit of DEF Limited, the Auditor had made use of certain analytical procedures with rega/rd to certain key data
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The results obtained showed inconsistencies with other relevant information.
state the course of action that the Auditor should take to ensure that the risk of material misstatement would be
contained to a low level fixed as per materiality level. (Nov 18 New)

As per SA 520, “Analytical Procedures”, if analytical procedures performed in aceordance with this SA identify
fluctuations or relationships that are inconsistent with other relevant information or that differ from expected values
by a significant amount, the auditor shall investigate such differences by:

(i) Inquiring of management and obtaining appropriate audit evidence relevant to management’s responses; and *
(ii) Performing other audit procedures as necessary in the circumstances. Audit evidence relevant to management’s
responses may be obtained by evaluating those responses taking into account the auditor’s understanding of the
entity and its environment, and with other audit evidence obtained during the course of the audit.

The need to perform other audit procedures may arise when, for example, management is unable to provide an
explanation, or the explanation, together with the audit evidence obtained relevant to management’s response, is

7

not considered adequate.

2. You have been appointed as an auditor of M/s Excellent Hotels Ltd. As a senior partner, you want to use analytical
procedures in respect of room rentals as well as payroll expenses. Discuss. (May-19 Old) '

Analytical Procedures: As per SA 520 on “Analytical Procedures”, in some cases, even an u_nsophisticated predictive.
model may be effective as an analytical procedure.

Analytical Procedures in case of Payroll cost- Where an entity has a known number of employees at fixed rates of
pay throughout the period, it may be possible for the auditor to use this data to estimate the total payroll costs for
the period with a high degree of accuracy, thereby providing audit evidence for a significant item in the financial
statements and reducing the need to perform tests of details on the payroll. ’

Analytical Procedures in case of Room Rental Income of Hotel- Different types of analytical procedures provide
different levels of assurance. AnalytiCaI procedures involving the prediction of total rental income in case of Hotel
taking the room tariff rates, the number of rooms and vacancy rates into consideration, can provide persuasive
evidence and may eliminate the need for further verification by means of tests of details, provided the elements are
appropriately verified.
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SA 530: Audit Sampling

1. Write a short note on Sampling Risk.

Sampling Risk: As per SA 530 “Audit Sampling”, the risk that the auditor’s conclusion based on a sample may be
different from the conclusion if the entire population were subjected to the same audit procedure. Sampling risk can
lead to two types of erroneous conclusions:

(i) In case of a test of controls, that controls are more effective than they actually are, or in the case of a test of
details, that a material misstatement does not exist when in fact it does. The auditor is primarily concerned with this
type of erroneous conclusion because it affects audit effectiveness and is more likely to lead to an inappropriate,
audit opinion.

(ii) In the case of a test of controls, that controls are less effective than they actually are, or in the case of a test of
details, that a material misstatement exists when in fact it does not. This type of erroneous conclusion affects audit
efficiency as it would usually lead to additional work to establish that initial conclusions were incorrect.

2. Write a short note on Tolerable Misstatement.

Tolerable Misstatement: As per SA 530, “Audit Sampling”, a monetary amount set by the auditor in respect of which
the auditor seeks to obtain an appropriate level of assurance that the monetary amount set by the auditor is not
exceeded by the actual misstatement in the population.

Further, while designing a sample, the auditor determines tolerable misstatement in order to address the risk that the
aggregate of individually immaterial misstatements may cause the financial statements to be materially misstated and
provide a margin for possible undetected misstatements. Tolerable misstatement is the application of performance -
materiality, to a particular sampling procedure. Tolerable misstatement may be the same amount or an amount lower
than performance materiality.

3. In the course of your audit assignment of Indraprastha Ltd., you want to guide your audit assistants in selecting
sample items in such a way that sample can be expected to be representative of the population and all items have
an opportunity of being selected. Guide your assistants with principal methods of collecting samples. (May-18 Old)

Principal Methods of Collecting Samples: As per SA 530 “Audit Sampling”, the principal methods of selecting samples -
are the use of random selection, systematic selection and haphazard selection.

There are many methods of selecting samples. The principal methods are as follows:
(i) Random selection (applied through random number generators, for example, random number tables).

(ii) Systematic selection, in which the number of sampling units in the population is divided by the sample size to give
a sampling interval, for example 50, and having determined a starting point within the first 50, each 50th sampling :
unit thereafter is selected. Although the starting point may be determined haphazardly, the sample is more likely to
be truly random if it is determined by use of a combuterised random number generator or random number tables.
When using systematic selection, the auditor would need to determine that sampling units within the population are
not structured in such a way that the sampling interval corresponds with a particular pattern in the population.

(iii) Monetary Unit Sampling is a type of value-weighted selection in which sample size, selection and evaluation
results in a conclusion in monetary amounts.
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(iv) Haphazard selection, in which the auditor selects the sample without following a structured technique. Although

no structured technique is used, the auditor would nonethaless avoid any conscious bias or predictability (for example,
avoiding difficult to locate items, or always choosing or avoiding the first or last entries on a page) and thus attempt
to ensure that all items in the population have a chance of selection. Haphazard selection is not appropriate when
using statistical sampling. ,

(v) Block selection involves selection of a block(s) of contiguous items from within the population. Block s'”election
cannot ordinarily be used in audit sampling because most populations are structured such that items in a-sequence
can be expected to have similar characteristics to each other, but different characteristics from items elsewhere in
the population. Although in some circumstances it may be an appropriate audit procedure to examine a block of items,
it would rarely be an appropriate sample selection technique when the auditor intends to draw valid inferences about
the entire population based on the sample. '

4. Chintamani Ltd appoints Chintan & Mani as statutory auditors for the financial year 2021 - 2022. Chintan & Mani

seem to have different opinions on Audit approach to be adopted for audit of Chintamani Ltd. Mani is of the opinion -

that 100% checking is not required and they can rely on Audit Sampling techniques in order to provide them a
reasonable basis on which they can draw conclusions about the entire population. :

Chintan is concerned that whether the use of audit sampling has provided a reasonable basis for conclusions about
the population that has been tested.

)
You are required to guide Chintan about his role if audit sampling has not provided a reasonable basis for
conclusions about the population that has been tested in accordance with SA 530. [RTP Nov-22]

As per SA 530, “Audit Sampling”, the auditor shall evaluate:

(a) The results of the sample; and -

(b) Whether the use of audit sampling has provided a reasonable bas;is for conclusions about the population that has
been tested.

If the auditor concludes that audit sampling has not provided a reasonable basis for conclusions about the population
that has been tested, the auditor may: . :
() Request management to investigate misstatements that have been identified and the potential for further
misstatements and to make any necessary adjustments; or .

(11) Tailor the nature, timing and extent of those further audit procedures to best achieve the required assurance.
For example, in the case of tests of controls, the auditor might extend the sample size, test an alternative control or
modify related substantive procedures.

SA 540: Auditing Accounting Estimates,
including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related Disclosures

1. While auditing REAL Ltd., you observe certain material financial statement assertions have been based on
estimates made by the management. As the auditor how do you minimize the risk of material misstatements?

(MTP Apr 21 + Mar’18)

CA Harry is appointed as a Statutory Auditor of Delist Limited for the financial year 2021-22. M/s Delist Limitedis a
listed entity at National Stock Exchange and the financial statements are to be drawn up in compliance with ind AS.
M/s Delist Limited made certain fair value accounting estimates on complex financial instruments which are not
traded in an active and open market. CA Harry is concerned with identification and assessment of the risks of
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material misstatement for accounting estimates. Guide him with regard to the estimation making process adopted

by management with referenice to the relevant Standard on Auditing. [May-22]

As per SA 540 “Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related Disclosures”,
the auditor shall obtain an_understanding of the following in order to provide a basis for the identification and
assessment of the risks of material misstatements for accounting estimates:

(i) The requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework relevant to the accounting estimates, including
related disclosures.

(i) How Management identifies those transactions, events and conditions that may give rise to the need for
accounting estimates to be recognised or disclosed, in the financial statements. In obtaining this understanding, the
auditor shall make inquiries of management about changes in circumstances that may give rise to new, or the need
to revise existing, accounting estimates.

(iii) The estimation making process adopted by the management including-
1. The method, including where applicable the model, used in makmg the accounting estimates.
Relevant controls.
Whether management has used an expert?
The assumption underlying the accounting estimates.

AW

Whether there has been or ought to have been a change from the prior period in the methods for making
the accounting estimates, and if so, why; and
6. Whether and, if so, how the management has assessed the effect of estimation uncertainty.

2. Mr. L while conducting the audit of ABC Ltd., observed that a substantial amount is recognized in respect of -
obsolescence of inventory and warranty obligation in the financial statements. Mr. L wants to obtain written
representation from the management to determine whether the assumptions and estimates used are reasonable.
Guide Mr. L with reference to the relevant Standard on Auditing. {Nov 19 New)

Written Representations: As per SA 540, “Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates,
and Related Disclosures”, the auditor shall obtain written representations from management and, where appropriate,
those charged with governance whether they believe significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates
are reasonable.

SA 580, “Written Representations” discusses the use of written representations. Depending on the nature, materiality
and extent of estimation uncertainty, written representations about accounting estimates recognised or disclosed in
the financial statements may include representations:

(i) About the appropriateness of the measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, used by
management in determining accounting estimates in the context of the applicable financial reporting framework, and
the consistency in application of the processes.

+ (i) That the assumptions appropriately reflect management’s intent and ability to carry out specmc courses of action :
on behalf of the entity, where relevant to the accounting estimates and disclosures.

(iii) That disclosure related to accounting estimates are complete and appropriate under the applicable financial

reporting framework.
(iv) That no subsequent event requlres adjustment to the accounting estimates and disclosures included in the
financial statements.
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3. During the Audit of Data Solutions Ltd., a listed company, your audit manager observed that several estimates

are made by the Company. He seeks your guidance tq know areas of accounting estimates that may give rise to
lower level of risk of material misstatement. Guide him with examples. (Nov-19 Old)

As per SA 540 “Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related Disclosures”,
some accounting estimates involve relatively low estimation uncertainty and may give rise to lower risks of material
misstatements, for example: &

e Accounting estimates arising in entities that engage in business activities that are not complex.

e Accounting estimates that are frequently made and updated because they relate to routine transactions.

e Accounting estimates derived from data that is readily available, such as published interest rate data or
exchange-traded prices of securities. Such data may be referred to as “observable” in the context of a fair value
accounting estimate.

e Fair value accounting estimates where the method of measurement prescribed by the applicable financial
reporting framework is simple and applied easily to the asset or liability requiring measurement at fair value.

e Fair value accounting estimates where the model used to measure the accounting estimate is well-known or
generally accepted, provided that the assumptions or inputs to the model are observable.

4. A Pvt Ltd is engaged in the business of real estate. The auditor of the company requested the information from
the management to review the outcome of accounting estimates (like estimated costs considered for percentage
completion etc) included in the prior period financial statements and their subsequent re-estimation for the
purpose of the current period. The management has refused the information to the auditor saying that the reView
of prior beriod information should not be done by the auditor. Please advise. (RTP May-19 + May-23)

As per SA 540, “Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related Disclosures”,
the auditor shall review the outcome of accounting estimates included in the prior period financial statements, or,
where applicable, their subsequent re-estimation for the purpose of the current period.

The nature and extent of the auditor’s review takes account of the nature of the accounting estimates, and whether
the information obtained from the review would be relevant to identifying and assessing risks of material
misstatement of accounting estimates made in the current period financial statements.

The outcome of an accounting estimate will often differ from the accounting estimate recognised in the prior period
financial statements.

By performing risk assessment procedures to identify and understand the reasons for such differences, the auditor
may obtain:
e Information regarding the effectiveness of management’s prior period estimation process, from which the
auditor can judge the likely effectiveness of management’s current process.
e Audit evidence that is pertinent to the re-estimation, in the current period, of prior period accounting
estimates. . ‘
e Audit evidence of matters, such as estimation uncertainty, that may be required to be disclosed in the
financial statements. '

The review of prior period accounting estimates may also assist the auditor, in the current period, in identifying
circumstances or conditions that increase the susceptibility of accounting estimates to, or indicate the presence of,
possible management bias. The auditor’s professional skepticism assists in identifying such circumstances or
conditions and in determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.
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However, the review is not intended to call into question the judgments made in the prior periods that were based

on mformatlon available at that time. in the given case, the management is not correct in refusing the relevant
information to the auditor.

5. With reference to the Standards on Auditing state the examples of accounting estimates that may have a high
estimation uncertainty. [PM]

Examples of Accounting Estimates that may have a High Estimation Uncertainty: As per SA 540, “Auditing
Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures”, the auditor shall
determine whether, in the auditor’s judgment, any of those accounting estimates that have been identified as having
high estimation uncertainty give rise to significant risks.

Examples of accounting estimates that may have high estimation uncertainty include the following:

® Accounting estimates that are highly dependent upon judgment, for example, judgments about the outcome
of pending litigation or the amount and timing of future cash flows dependent on uncertain events many
years in the future.

° Accountmg estimates that are not calculated using recognlsed measurement techniques.

D Accountlng estimates where the results of the auditor’s review of similar accounting estimates made in the
prior period financial statemen ts indicate a substantial difference between the original accounting estimate
and the actual outcome.

e Fair value accounting estimates for which a highly specialised entity-developed model is used or for which
there are no observable inputs.

6. What are the factors that may influence estimation uncertainty associated with an accounting estimate?
The degree of estimation uncertainty associated with an accounting estimate may be influenced by factors such as:
* The extent to which the accounting estimate depends on judgment.
* The sensitivity of the accounting estimate to changes in assumptions.
* The existence of recognised measurement techniques that may mitigate the estimation uncertainty (though the
subjectivity of the assumptions used as inputs may nevertheless give rise to estimation uncertainty). _
* The length of the forecast period, and the relevance of data drawn from past events to forecast future events.
* The availability of reliable data from external sources.
* The extent to which the accounting estimate is based on observable or unobservable inputs.

7. M/s. HK & Co. was appointed as an auditor of GSB Limited, a company operating its business in telecom sector.
As per spectrum allocation agreement with Government, GSB Limited is required to pay certain percentage of its
annual revenue as license fee. GSB Limited paid the license fee on its core business for last two years. At the end of
third year, the communication was received from Government that it needs to pay agreed percentage on its total
revenues and not only on core business revenues. Matter was disputed and went to court of law. On prudence
basis, GSB Limited made a provision on estimated business in its books of accounts of agreed percentage on non-
core business receipts also. The amount of provision was of such huge amount that the GSB Limited's profit and
loss account for that quarter reflected loss due to that provision. How you as an auditor can evaluate this accounting
estimate which involves significant risk and what if Management has not addressed the effects of estimation
uncertainty on provision made? (Jan-21 New + MTP May-23)

In given case, HK & Co. was appointed as an auditor of GSB Ltd., operating in Telecom sector. GSB Ltd paid the license
fee on its core business revenue whereas Govt required it to pay on non-core business receipts as well. Consequently,
the amount of provision was of such a huge amount that GSB Ltd.’s profit and loss account reflected a {oss due to that
provision.
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As an auditor evaluation would be done as under:

For accounting estimates that give rise to significant riskspin addition to other substantive procedures performed to
meet the requirements of SA 330, the auditor shall evaluate the following:

(i) How management has considered alternative assumptions or outcomes, and why it has rejected them, of how
management has otherwise addressed estimation uncertainty in making the accounting estimate.

(i) Whether the significant assumptions used by management are reasonable. N

(i) Where relevant to the reasonableness of the significant assumptions used by management or the appropriate
application of the applicable financial reporting framework, management’s intent to carry out specific courses of
action and its ability to do so.

(iv) if, in the auditor’s judgment, management has’not adequately addressed the effects of estimation uncertainty
on the accounting estimates that give rise to significant risks, the auditor shall, if considered necessary, develop a
range with which to evaluate the reasonableness of the accounting estimate. '

8. M/s ABC Limited is engaged in the business of construction of 4 infrastructure and housing projects. While
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2023 management has made various accounting '
estimates and confirmed to the auditor that all necessary accounting estimates have been recognized, measured
and disclosed in the financial statements are in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The
auditor during the course of audit observed some changed circumstances giving rise to the need for an accounting
estimate. Inquiries of same were sought from the management. Can you list down some circumstances, change of
which will result in inquiries from the management ? [May-23] .

Inquiries from management: As per SA 540, auditor’s understanding of the entity and its environment obtained during
the performance of risk assessment procedures, together with other audit evidence obtained during the course of the
audit, assist the auditor in identifying circumstances, or changes in circumstances, that may give rise to the need for
anh accounting estimate.

o~

Inquiries of management about changes in circumstances may includg, for example, inquiries about whether:

e The entity has engaged in new types of transactions that may give rise to accounting estimates.
s Terms of transactions that gave rise to accounting estimates that have changed.
e Accounting policies relating to accounting estimates have changed, as a result of changes to the requirements of
the applicable financial reporting framework or otherwise. '
e Regulatory or other changes outside the control of management have occurred that may require management
to revise, or make new, accounting estimates. '
s Nev- conditions or events have occurred that may give rise to the need for new or revised accounting estimates.
During the audit, the auditor may identify transactions, events and conditions that give rise to the need for accounting
estimates that management failed to identify. SA 315 deals with circumstances where the auditor identifies risks of
material misstatement that management failed to identify, including determining whether there is a significant
deficiency in internal control with regard to the entity’s risk assessment processes.

SA 550 : Related Parties

1. JKL Limited is engaged in the business of Construction and real estate having various projects across states. M/s
YT & Co, Chartered Accountants have been appointed as Statutory Auditors. Audit Team from M/s YT & Co for audit
of JKL Limited comprises of CA Z — Engagement Partner, CA Q, a paid assistant and 3 Articled Assistants. During
preliminary verification, CA Z observed that huge amount of sub-contract payments were made to M/s B
Associates, a partnership firm in which Director of JKL Limited is a managing partner. The engagement team
discussed that $A 315 and SA 240 shall include specific consideration of the susceptibility of the financial statements
to material misstatement due to fraud or error that could result from the JKL Limited’s related party relationships
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and transaction. Highlight the matters that are to be addressed in the discussion by CA Z with engagement team

members with reference to the relevant standard on Auditing. [May-22]
As per SA 550, Related Parties, matters that maybe addressed in the discussion by engagement team may include:

v"  Nature & extent of enti?cy's relationship & transactions with Related Parties

v" An emphasis on maintaining professional skepticjsm throughout audit regarding potential of material
misstatements from RP relationships & transactions

v" Circumstances or conditions that may indicate RP relationships or transactions not disclosed by management to
the Auditor

¥v"  Records or documents that may indicate existence of Related party relationships or transactions

v Importance management & TCWG attach to maintaining internal controls regarding identification, accounting’
and disclosure of RP relationships & transactions.

2. Mir. X, while conducting audit of PQR Ltd, comes across certain transactions which according to him are significant
transactions with related parties and identified to be outside the entity's normal course of business. Guide Mr. X
with examples of such transactions and to understand the nature of significant transactions outside the entity's
normal course of business. (Nov-20) :

In the given case of PQR Ltd, Mr. X, while conducting audit has come across certain significant related party transaction
which are identified to be outside the entity’s normal course of business. ‘
Mr. X wants guidance through examples of such significant transactions which are given in SA 550.

As per SA 550 “Related Parties”, examples of transactions outside the entity’s normal course of business may include:
1. Complex equity transactions, such as corporate restructurings or acquisitions.

2. Transactions with cffshore entities in jurisdictions with weak corporate laws.

3. The leasing of premises or the rendering of management services by the entity to another party if no consideration
is exchanged. ’

4. Sales transactions with unusually large discounts or returns.

5. Transactions with circular arrangements, for example, sales with a commitment to repurchase. 6. Transactions
under contracts whose terms are changed before expiry.

3. Whilst the Audit team has identified few matters, they need your advice to conclude on the same. Engagement
partner has asked them to review the board minutes & other records based on which following additional matters
were brought to the attention of Engagement partner:-

(i) Long term borrowings from parent company has no written terms and neither the interest nor principal has been
repaid so far.

(i) Certain computers were received from Parent Co. free of Cost, the value if which is Rs 0.23 lacs & no accounting
or disclosure of the same has been made in accounts.

(iii) An amount of X 3.25 Lakhs per month is paid to M/s. WE CARE Associates, a partnership firimi, which is a 'related
party' in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the marketing services rendered by them.
Based on an independent assessment; the consideration paid is higher than the arm's length pricing by X0.25 Lakhs
per month. Whilst the transaction was accounted in the financial statements based on the amounts' paid, no
separate disclosure of this related party transaction has been made in the notes to accounts forming part of the
financial statements highlighting the same as a ‘related party' transaction.
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Audit Manager has reported that she had asked certain information relating to another 'related party’ transaction

(amounting to approx. X 47 lac) but the CFO refusesd to provide the same since the same is perceived to be
confidential and cannot be shared with the Auditors.

a

You are required to advise about items to be reported to TCWG, where applicable, based on your audit findings in

the given situation. (MTP Nov’20)
%

As per SA 550, Related Parties, communicating significant matters arising during audit in connectijon. with entity’s RP
helps the auditor to establish a common understanding with TCWG.

’ .
It may be noted that unless all of TCWG are involved in managing the entity,-the auditor shall communicate with
TCWG significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s RP.

The auditor is also required to ensure compliance of Ind AS 24 / AS 18 Related Party Disclosures.

In view of above in the given scenario, the auditor is required to prepare a brief summary of following items to be
reported to TCWG in accordance with SA 260 Communication with TCWG:

(i) One of related party transaction amounting 3.25 lac per month i.e. in lieu of marketing services has been noticed
of which amount % 0.25 lac per month is exceeds the arm’s length price has not been disclosed highlighting the same
as related party transactions as per Ind- AS 24 / AS 18 Related Party Disclosures. .

(ii) Refusal by CFO of the company to provide tfie details of related party transaction amounting to rupees 47 lac on
the ground that same is perceived to be confidential and cannot be shared with auditors, is not in order, as denying
for the related part details of X 47 lac is imposing limitation of scope of auditor in view of SA 705.

(iii) Receipt of free of cost Computers and long-term borrowing (on no agreed terms and repayment of interest and
principal) from the Parent Company need separate disclosure in financial statements as per Ind AS 24 / AS 18 Related
Party Disclosures.

Further, in case of all above cases, auditor would also need to assess his reporting requirements under the clauses
(xiii) of Paragraph 3 of CARO 2020 with respect to related party transactions that whether all transactions with the
RP are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.

4. In the course of audit of QRT Ltd, its statutory auditor wants to be sure of the adequacy of related party
disclosures? Kindly guide the auditor in identifying the possible source of related party information. {MTP Oct-18)

Identification of possible sources for Related Parties’ information: As per SA 550 on, “Related Parties”, the auditor
should review information provided by the management of the entity identifying the names of all known related
parties. However, it is management, which is primarily responsible for identification of related parties. The duties
of an auditor with regard to reporting of related party transaction as required by Accounting Standard 18 “Related
Party Disclosures” is given in SA 550.

SA 550 requires that to identify names of all known related parties, the auditor may inspect records or documents
that may provide information about related party relationships and transactions, for example
entity income tax returns,

information supplied by the entlty to regulatory authorities,

shareholder registers to identify the entity’s principai shareholders,

\7\7\7\7

statements of conflicts of interest from management and those charged with governance,
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> records of the entity’s investments and those of its pension plans,

contracts and agreements with key management or those charged with governance,

significant contracts and agreements not in the entity’s ordinary course of business,

specific invoices and correspondence from the entity’s professional advisors,

life insurance policies acquired by the entity, significant contracts re-negotiated by the entity during the period,
internal auditors’ reports,

documents associated with the entity’s filings with a securities regulator (e.g., prospectuses).

VVVVYVYY

Auditor should also obtain a written representation from the management concerning the completeness of
information provided regarding the identification of related parties.

5. You are the Auditor of Power Supply Corporation Limited, a Government Company for the year ended on 31st
March 2018. The turnover of the Company for the period was X 12,000 crores from sale of power. During your audit,
you found that the Company had procured Spares for Transmitters for X 850 crores from abroad through a
Corporation by name Procurement and Supply India Limited which is also owned and controlled by Government of
India. The Financial Statements of the Power Supply Corporation Limited, prepared in compliance with Ind AS for
the year ended on 31/03/2018 did not contain any additional disclosure regarding the procurement of spares as
referred to above. To your query as to whether any disclosure regarding Related Party Transaction would be
required, the Management of the Corporation replied that no such disclosure would be necessary for trénsactions
between State Controlled Enterprises. Analyse this issue in finalizing the Audit'Report. (Nov-18 New)

As per Ind AS 24, “Related Party Disclosures”, a reporting entity is exempt from the disclosure requirements in
relation to related party transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with

(i) a government that has control or joint control of, or significant influence over, the reporting entity; and (ii) another
entity that is a related party because the same government has control or joint control of, or significant influence
over, both the reporting entity and the other entity.

If a reporting entity applies the above exemption, it shall disclose the following about the transactions and related
outstanding balances referred to:
(1) the name of the government and the nature of its relationship with the reporting entity (i.e. control, joint control
or significant influence);
(2) the following information in sufficient detail to enable users of the entity’s financial statements to understand the
effect of related party transactions on its financial statements:
(i) the nature and amount of each individually significant transaction; and
(ii) for other transactions that are collectively, but not individually, significant, a qualitative or quantitative
indication of their extent.

Further, as per SA 550 Related Parties, in forming an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with SA 700,
the auditor shall evaluate whether the identified related party relationships and transactions have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

In the instant case, Power Supply Corporation Limited, a Government Company has procured spares for transmitters
for rupees 850 crore from abroad through a corporation namely Procurement and Supply india Limited which is also
owned and’ controlled by Government of india. Even after applying the exemption of Ind AS 24, Power Supply
Corporation Limited has to disclose the matters specified above (i.e.name of Government,natures of its relationship
with reporting entity, the nature and amount of transaction etc.).

Contention of Management of Corporation regarding no requirement of disclosure for transactions between State
Controlled Enterprise in not tenable.
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7. In the course of your audit you have come across g related party transaction which prima facie appears to be
biased. How would you deal with this? (PM) ’

As per SA 550 on, “Related Parties”, the auditor should review information provided by the management of the entity
identifying the names of all known related parties. Since it is the management, which is primarily responsible for
identification of related parties, SA 550 requires that to identify names of all known related parties, the auditor may
inspect records or documents that may provide information about related party relationships and transactions.

In this case, the auditor is finding a related party4ransaction which prima facie appears to be biased. So the auditor is
required to confirm the same. For identified significant related party transactions outside the entity’s normal course
of business, the auditor shall inspect the underlying contracts or agreements, if any, and evaluate whether: -

(i) The business rationale (or lack thereof) of the transactions suggests that they may have been entered into to engage
in fraudulent financial reporting or to conceal misappropriation of assets,

(ii) The terms of the transactions are consistent with management’s explanations; and

(i) The transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.

The auditor should also obtain audit evidence that the transactions have been appropriately authorised and approved.
)

SA 560: Subsequent Events

1. Amudhan & Co., are the Auditors of XYZ Company Ltd., for the year ended on 31/03/2018. The Audit Report for
that year was signed by the Auditors on 04/05/2018. The Annual General Meeting was decided to be held during
the month of August 2018. On 06/05/2018, the Company had received a communication from the Central
Government that an amount of £ 5800 crore kept pending on account of incentives pertaining to Financial Year
2017-18 had been approved and the amount would be paid to the Company before the end of Mav 2018. To a query
to Chief Financial officer of the Company by the Board, it was informed that this amount had not been recognised
in the Audited Financial Statements in view of the same not being released before the close of the Financial Year
and due to uncertainty of receipt. Now, having received the amount, the Board of Directors wished to include this
amount in the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31/03/2018. On 08/05/2018,
the Board amended the accounts, approved the same and requested the Auditor to consider this event and issue a
fresh Audit Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended on 31/03/2018. Analyse the issues involved and
give your views as to whether or not the Auditors could accede to the request of the Board of Directors. '
(Nov-18 New)

As per SA 560, “Subsequent Events”, the auditor has no obligation to perform any audit procedures regarding the -
financial statements after the date of the auditor’s report. However, when, after the date of the auditor’s report but
before the date the financial statements are issued, a fact becomes known to the auditor that, had it been known to
the auditor at the date of the auditor’s report, may have caused the auditor to amend the auditor’s report, the auditor
shall '

i. Discuss the matter with management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance.
ii. Determine whether the financial statements need amendment &, if so,
iii. Inquire how management intends to address the matter in the financial statements.

If management amends the financial statements, the auditor shall carry out the audit procedures necessary in the
circumstances on the amendment. Further, the auditor shall extend the audit procedures and provide a new auditor’s
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report on the amended financial statements. However, the new auditor’s report shall not be dated earlier than the
date of approval of the amended financial statements.

In the instant case, XYZ Company Ltd. received an amount of rupees 5800 crore on account of incentives pertaining
to year 2017-18 in the month of May 2018 i.e. after finalisation of financial statements and signing of audit report.
Board of Directors of XYZ Ltd. amended the accounts, approved the same and requested the Amudhan & Co. (auditor)
to consider this event and issue a fresh audit report on the financial statements for the year ended on 31.03.2018.

After applying the conditions given in SA 560, Amudhan & Co. can issue new audit report subject to date of audit
report which should not be earlier than the date of approval of the amended financial statements.

2. You are the auditor of PQR Ltd. which is in the business of supplying food products to various airline companies
operating aircrafts in domestic circle only. As per terms of agreement with airlines, the company needs to stock
various non- perishable food items for coming one month (average holding of inventory to the tune of INR 75
Crores). Also the payment terms have been settled and the company receives payment in 45 days after the supply
of goods. Everything was going-on well till the end of March 2020 when pandemic Covid hit the world and
everything came to a standstill. Aviation sector was hit hard and there were no flights from April 2020 onwards.
Consequently, the business of PQR Ltd. also got severely affected and the scheduled supplies of goods to airlines
also were not made. Also, the liquidity position of airline companies got hit and the scheduled payments were also
not received on due dates. As the auditor of PQR Ltd. what audit procedures would you perform to ensure that all
subsequent events are considered, so that financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 represent true and
fair view? (Nov 20 New)

As per SA 560 “Subsequent Events”, the auditor shall perform audit procedures designed to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence that all events occurring between the date of the financial statements and the date of the
auditor’s report that require adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements have been identified. The auditor
is not, however, expected to perform additional audit procedures on matters to which previously applied audit
procedures have provided satisfactory conclusions.

The auditor shall perform the procedures required in above paragraph so that they cover the period from the date of
the financial statements to the date of the auditor’s report, or as near as practicable thereto. '

Being the auditor of PQR Ltd, to ensure that all subsequent events are considered so that financial statements for the
year ending 31.03.2020 represent true and fair view, the auditor shall take into account the auditor’s risk assessment
in determining the nature and extent of such audit procedures, which shall include the following:

(a) Obtaining an understanding of any procedures management has established to ensure that subsequent events
are identified. :

(b) Inquiring of management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance as to whether any subsequent
events have occurred which might affect the financial statements. )

(c) Reading minutes, if any, of the meetings, of the entity’s owners, management and those charged with governance,
that have been held after the date of the financial statements and inquiring about matters discussed at any such
meetings for which minutes are not yet available.

(d) Reading the entity’s latest subsequent interim financial statements, if any.

When, as a result of the procedures performed as required above, the auditor identifies events that require
adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements, the auditor shall determine whether each such event is
appropriately reflected in those financial statements.
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3. M/s LMP Associates, Chartered Accountants, while conducting the audit of PQR Ltd want to conduct an inquiry

of management and those charged with governance as to whether any subsequent events have occurred which
might affect the financial statements. Guide M/s LMP Associates with the matters where specific enquiry may be
conducted to evaluate subsequent events. (May’19 Oid) .

’

As per SA 560, “Subsequent Events”, in inquiring of management and, where appropriate, those charged with
governance, as to whether any subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements, the
auditor may inquire as to the current status of items that were accounted for on the basis of preliminary or
inconclusive data and may make specific inquiries about the following matters:
) ¢
i. Whether new commitments, borrowings or guarantees have been entered into.
ii. Whether sales or acquisitions of assets have occurred or are planned.

iii. Whether there have been increases in capital or issuance of debt instruments, such as the issue of new shares or
debentures, or an agreement to merge or liquidate has been made or is planned.

iv.Whether any assets have been appropriated by government or destroyed, for example, by fire or flood.

v.Whether there have been any developments regarding contingencies.

vi.Whether any unusual accounting adjustments have been made or are contemplated.

vii. Whether any events have occurred or are likely to occur that will bring into question the appropriateness of
accounting policies used in the financial statements, as would be the case, for example, if such events call into
question the validity of the going concern assumption. '

viii. Whether any events have occurred that are relevant to the measurement of estimates or provisions made in the
financial statements. i

ix.Whether any events have occurred that are relevant to the recoverability of assets.

4. A Co. Ltd. has not included in the Balance Sheet as on 31-03-2017 a sum of X 1.50 crores being amount in the
* arrears of salaries and wages payable to the staff for the last 2 years as a_result of successful negotiations which
were going on during the last 18 months and concluded on 30-04-2017. The auditor wants to sign the said Balance
Sheet and give the audit report on 31-05-2017. The auditor came to know the result of the negotiafions on 15-05-
2017. Advise. (Mar-18 MTP) :

This case requires attention to SA 560 “Subsequent Events”, AS 4 “Contingencies and Events occurring aftef the
Balance Sheet Date” and AS 29 "Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets"”.

As per AS 4 “Contingencies and Events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date”, adjustments to assets and liabilities
are required for events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially affecting
the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date. Similarly as per AS 29
"Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets", future events that may affect the amount required to
settle an obligation should be reflected in the amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that
the will occur. ’

In the instant case, the amount of ¥1.50 crores is a material amount and it is the result of an event, which has occdrred
after the Balance Sheet date. The facts have become known to the auditor before the date of issue of the Audit Report
and Financial Statements. '

The auditor has to perform the procedure to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence covering the period from the
date of the financial statements i.e. 31-3-2017 to the date of Auditors Report i.e. 31-05-2017. It will be observed that
as a result of long pending negotiations a sum of X 1.50 cores representing arrears of salaries of the year 2015-16 and
2016-17 have not been included in the financial statements. It is quite clear that the obligation requires provision for
outstanding expenses as per AS 4 and AS 29. - -
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As per SA 560 “Subsequent Events”, the auditor should assure that all events occurring subsequent to the date of

the financial statements and for which the applicable financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure
have been adjusted or disclosed. '

So the auditor should request the management to adjust the sum of X 1.50 crores by making provision for expenses.
if the management does not accept the request the auditor should qualify the audit report.
[Author’s Note: If Question on Ind AS, then quote Ind AS 10 & 37]

5. The audit report of Kolsi (P) Ltd. for F.Y. 2020-21 was issued by Bishnoi & Co. on 25th July, 2021. However, a case
was filed against Kolsi (P) Ltd. on 4th August, 2021, with the Civil Court, with respect to an incident caused in its
factory on 17th January, 2021, the outcome of which may result in paying heavy penalty by Kolsi (P) Ltd.

L

Mr. Raj Bishnoi, the partner of Bishnoi & Co., discussed the said matter with the management and it was
determined to amend the financial statements for F.Y. 2020 -21.

Further, Mr. Raj inquired how the management intended to address the said matter in the financial statements to
which he was told that the said matter was going to be disclosed as a “Contingent Liability for a Court case” to the
foot note in the balance sheet with no additional disclosures.

The management told Mr. Raj that such disclosure was enough as he would further going a description of the said
court case and its outcome in the ‘Emphasis of Matter’ paragraph in his amended audit report. "

in the context of aforesaid case scenario, please answer the following questions:-

(a) Whether Mr. Raj on behalf of Bishnoi & Co., has properly adhered to his responsibilities in accordance with SA '
560, on becoming aware of the court case filed against Kolsi (P) Ltd.? '

(b) Whether the contention of management of Kolsi (P) Ltd. is valid with respect to the disclosure of the court case
in the financial statements? (RTP Nov’21)

As per SA 560, ‘Subsequent Events’, the auditor has no obligation to perform any audit procedures regarding the
financial statements after the date of the auditor’s report.

However, when, after the date of the auditor’s report but before the date the financial statements are issued, a fact.
becomes known to the auditor that, had it been known to the auditor at the date of the auditor’s report, may have
caused the auditor to amend the auditor’s report, the auditor shall:

1. Discuss the matter with management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance.

2. Determine whether the financial statements need amendment and, if so,

3. Inquire how management intends to address the matter in the financial statements.
In the given case, on becoming aware of the court case filed against Kolsi (P) Ltd.,Mr. Raj discussed the said matter
with the management and it was determined to amend the financial statements. Also, he inquired how the.
management intended to address the said matter in the financial statements.

However, If management does not take the necessary steps to ensure that anyone in receipt of the previously issued
financial statements is informed of the situation and does not amend the financial statements in‘circumstances where
Mr. Raj (hereinafter referred as ‘the auditor’) believes they need to be amended, the auditor shall notify management
and, those charged with governance (unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity),
that the auditor will seek to prevent future reliance on the auditor’s report.
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If despite such notification the management or those charged with governance do not take these necessary steps, the

auditor shall take appropriate action to seek to prevent geliance on the auditor’s report in accordance with SA 560.

(b) As per SA 706, ‘Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s
Report’, an

’

Emphasis of Matter paragraph is not a substitute for:

a) A modified opinion in accordance with SA 705 (Revised) when required by the circumstances of a specific audit
engagement; ¢

b) Disclosures in the financial statements that the applicable financial report?ng framework requires management
to make, or that are otherwise necessary to achieve fair presentation; or :

c) Reportingin accordance with SA 570 (Revised) when a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In the given case, the management of Kolsi (P) Ltd. has presumed that as the auditor was going to provide a description
of the said court case and its outcome in the ‘Emphasis of Matter’ paragraph in his-amended audit report, there was
no further need for it to provide additional disclosures about the court case in the financial statements.

The said contention of management of Kolsi (P) Ltd. is not valid as ‘Emphasis of Matter’ paragraph cannot be used
as a substitute for disclosures required to be made in the financial statements as per the applicable financial reporting
framework or that is otherwise necessary to achieve fair presentation, which is the responsibility of the management.

SA 570: Going Concern

1. Abhinandan Limited a chemical manufacturing company, having its factory located at Nanded Village, for the
year 2021-22 appointed Subahu & Co. as their statutory auditors. Duriiig the course of the audit, Subahu & Co.
identified that Abhinandan Limited received a show cause notice from National Green Tribunal based on the
investigation performed by the regional forest department for violating environmental laws. Upon gathering a
further understanding of the said matter, it was identified that Abhinandan Limited was dumping toxic solid waste,
without treating it, on the nearby grounds, and because of this, the nearby water bodies were getting poliuted.
Based on the preliminary investigation performed by the regional forest department under the directions of the
National Green Tribunal, it was identified that these practices were carried out since 2009 and a lot of damage has
been done to the environment by Abhinandan Limited. A show cause notice was already issued to Abhinandan
Limited by the National Green Tribunal for levying the penalty of an amount of X 500 crore. The unaudited profit
for the financial year 2021-22 of Abhinandan Limited was X 35 crore and the unaudited turnover was X 100 crore.
Upon inquiry it was identified that Abhinandan Limited has disclosed this matter in the financial statements by way
of footnote, the extract of which is provided below:

“The company has received a show cause notice from the National Green Tribunal for some potential violation of
environmental laws and the company’s legal department has assessed and found that the judgment would be in
favour of the company. Accordingly, no provision has been created for such notices.”

in the light of the above scenario kindly provide what should be the appropriate option for the statutory auditor of
the company to report this matter. [RTP Nov-22]

As per SA 250, “Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements”, the auditor is required
to obtain an understanding and need to evaluate the impact of other laws and regulations that do not have a dlrect
effect on the determination of the amounts-and disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with whlch
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may be fundamental to the operating aspects of the business, to an entity’s ability to continue its business, or to avoid

material penalties (for examplé, compliance with the terms of an operating license, compliance with regulatory
solvency requirements, or . compliance with environmental regulations); non-compliance with such laws and
regulations may therefore have a material effect on the financial statements. '
The auditor shall perform the following audit procedures to help identify instances of non - compliance with other
jaws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements:
(a) Inquiring of management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance, as to whether the entity is
in compliance with such laws and regulations; and
(b) Inspecting correspondence, if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory authorities

As per Section 143(3){j) read with Rule 11(a), the auditor is required to report whether the company has disclosed
the impact, if any, of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statement.

As per SA 570, “Going Concern”, if the auditor concludes that management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting is appropriate in'the circumstances but a material uncertainty exists, the auditor shall determine whether
the financial statements:
(i) Adequately disclose principal events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern and management’s plans to deal with these events or conditions; and
(ii) Disclose clearly that there is material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that it may be unable to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

If adequate disclosure about the material uncertainty is not made in the financial statements, the auditor shall

(a) Express a qualified opinion or adverse opinion, as appropriate, in accordance with SA 705; and

(b) In the Basis for Qualified (Adverse) Opinion section of the auditor’s report, state that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and that the financial statements
do not adequately disclose this matter.

In the current scenario, Abhinandan Limited has received a show cause notice from the National Green Tribunal of an
amount which is more than the net profit and the turnover of the company for the year. In the event of an
unfavourable order for Abhinandan Limited, there will be an impact on Abhinandan Limited’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

As a result, appropriate disclosure should be provided by management for such events which cast significant doubt
on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. As no appropriate disclosure has been provided by Abhinandan
Limited for such show cause notice, Subahu & Co. should report this matter in their audit report under “Going Concern
Para” as per SA 570 and under clause (j) of Section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. v

Also, the auditor is required to issue an adverse opinion as per SA 705, “Modifications to the Opinion in the
Independent Auditor’s Report”.

2. Star Ltd. is a power generating company which uses coal as raw material for its power generating plant. The
Company has been allotted coal blocks in the state of Jharkhand and Odisha. During the FY 2020-21, a scam
regarding aliotment of coal blocks was unveiled leading to a ban on the allotment of coal’ blocks to various
companies including Star Ltd. This happened in the month of December 2020 and as such entire power generation
process of Star Ltd, came to a halt in that month. As a result of such ban, and the resultant stoppage of the
production process, many key managerial personnel of the company left the Company. There were delays in the of
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payment of wages and salaries and the banks from whom the Company had taken funds for project financing also

decided not to extend further finance or to fund further working capital requirements of the Company.

Further, when discussed with management, the statutory auditor understood that the Company had no action.plan
to mitigate such circumstances. Further, all such circumstances were not reflected the financial statements of Star
Ltd. What course of action should the statutory auditor of the Company consider in such situation? (RTP May’21)
@ &

Joy Ltd. is an entertainment company which runs a circus and travels around the country to entertain the masses.
The circus began losing its popularity over the past few years and attendance has reportedly dropped by as much
as 75% in the current financial year. Animal rights activists continuously targeted the circus for its use of animal
creatures like elephants in the show. The CEO noted that the audience seemed to be abandoning the circus due to
their expanding entertainment options. The high cost of moving the show from city to city eventually made the
business model untenable. As a result, many key managerial personnel of the company left the company, there
were delays in the payment of wages and salaries, and the bank from whom the company had taken funds also
decided not to extend further finance or to fund further working capital requirements of the company.

When discussed with the management, the statutory auditor understood that the company had no action plan to
mitigate such circumstances (Use of going concern assumption is inappropriate) Further, all such circumstances
were not reflected in the financial Statements of Joy Ltd. What course of action should the statutory auditor of the
company take in the auditor’s report in such situation ? [May-23]

SA 570- “Going Concern” deals with the auditor’s responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to goiﬁg
concern and the implications for the auditor’s repaort.

The auditor’s responsibilities are to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, and conclude on, the
appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements, and to conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists about the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

»

When the use of going concern basis of accounting is inappropriate i.e., if the financial statements have been

‘prepared using the going concern basis of accounting but, in the auditor’s judgment, management’s use of the going

concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is inappropriate, the auditor shall express
an adverse opinion.

Also, when adequate disclosure of a material uncertainty is not made in the financial statements the auditor shall
express a qualified opinion or adverse opinion, as appropriate, in accordance with SA 705 (Revised); and in the Basis
for Qualified (Adverse) Opinion section of the auditor’s report, state that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and that the financial statements do not
adequately disclose this matter.

In the present case, the following circumstances indicate the inability of Star Ltd. To continue as a going concern:

« Ban on the allotment of coal blocks .

e Halt in power generation '

o Key Managerial Personnel leaving the Company.

o Banks decided not to extend further finance and not to fund the working capital requirements of the Company.
o Non availability of sound action plan to mitigate such circumstances. '

Therefore, con‘sidering the above factors it is clear that the going concern basis is inappropriate for the Company.
Further, such circumstances are not reflected in the financial statements of the Company. e
As such, the statutory auditor of Star Ltd. should:
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1. Express an adverse opinion in accordance with SA 705 {(Revised) and

2. In the Basis of Opinion paragraph of the auditor’s report, the statutory auditor should state that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to contmue as a going concern and that the
financial statements do not adequately disclose this matter.

3. MNO Limited is one of the prominent players in the chemicals industry. The company is a public company

domiciled in India and listed on BSE and NSE. The Company was facing extreme liquidity constraints and there were

multiple indicators that casted doubt over the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company was led into insolvency proceedings by consortium of banks led by PNB and the NCLT ordered the
commencement of corporate insolvency process against the Company on 31 August 2018. The company invited
prospective lenders, investors and others to submit their resolution plans to the Resolution Professional (RP) latest
by 1 January 2019. The RP reviewed the resolution plans and ensured conformity with Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code 2016. The compliant plans were presented to Committee on Creditors (CoC) on 2 February 2019 and the
resolution plan submitted by PQR Ltd. Was evaluated as highest evaluated Compliant Resolution Plan. CoC of MNO
Ltd. Approved the Resolution Plan submitted by PQR Ltd. On 2 March 2019.

The approval of NCLT was finally obtained on 4 May 2019. POR Ltd. Submitted detailed plans and commitments as
part of the resolution plan including clearance of all outstanding debts which were leading to negative cash flows.
Please suggest how would you deal with this situation as the auditors of MNO Ltd. {(RTP Nov-19)

As per SA 570 Going Concern, if events or conditions have been identified that may cast significant doubt on the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, the auditor shall obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
determine whether or not a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern (hereinafter referred to as “material uncertainty”) through
performing additional audit procedures, including consideration of mitigating factors.

These procedures shall include:

(i} Where management has not yet performed an assessment of the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern,
requesting management to make its assessment.
(ii) Evaluating management’s plans for future actions in relation to its going concern assessment, whether the
outcome of these plans is likely to improve the situation and whether management’s plans are feasible in the
circumstances.
(iii) Where the entity has prepared a cash flow forecast, and analysis of the forecast is a significant factor in
considering the future outcome of events or conditions in — :

{1) Evaluating the reliability of the underlying data .generated to prepare the forecast; and

(2) Determining whether there is adequate support for the assumptions underlying the forecast.
(iv) Considering whether any additional facts or information have become available since the date on which
management made its assessment.
(v) Requesting written representations from management and, where appropriate, those charged w1th governance,
regarding their plans for future actions and the feasibility of these plans.

The auditor shall evaluate whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained regarding, and shall
conclude on, the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements. g

If events or conditions have been identified that may cast significant doubt on-the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern but, based on the audit evidence obtained the auditor concludes that no material uncertainty exists,
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the auditor shall evaluate whether, in view of the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework, the

financial statements provide adequate disclosures about Ehese events or conditions.

in the instant case, the approval of the resolution plan is a significant mitigating factor to counter the going concern
issues of MNO Ltd. PQR Ltd. Has subrpitted a detailed plan and commitments that has been given as part of the
resolution plan which includes clearance of all outstanding debts which were leading to ncgative cash flows.

LY
Therefore, it can be said that the events and conditions are mitigated effectively and there is no material uncertainty
in relation to the ability of the company to continue as a going concern.

4. TBR Limited has plan of its business being closed due to huge loss incurred due to the recent outbreak of global
pandemic, within a short period from the close of the accounting year ended on 31 March, 2020. The Financial
statements for the said year have been prepared on the same basis as in earlier periods with an additional note
that the business of the Company shall cease in near future and the assets shall be disposed off in accordance with
a plan of disposal as decided by the Management. The Statutory Auditors of the Company indicated this aspect in '
Key Audit Matters only by a reference asto a possible cessation of business an:! making of adjustments, if any, to '
be made at the time of cessation only. Comment on the reporting by the Statuto'ry_vAuditor as above.

[Nov-20 Old + MTP Oct’20 + May’18 Newl]
As per SA 570 “Going Concern”, management intentions to liquidate the entity or to cease operations is one of the
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as going concern.

If events or conditions have been identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern but, based on the audit evidence obtained, the auditor concludes that no material uncertainty exists,
the auditor shall evaluate whether, in view of the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework, the
financial statements provide adequate disclosures about these events or conditions.

Further, as per SA 701 “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report”, when matters
relating to going concern may be determined to be key audit matters, and explains that a material uncertainty related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity"s ability to continue as a going concern is, by its
nature, a Key Audit Matter. SA 701 also puts emphasis on auditor’s responsibility to communicate Key Audit Matters
“in the auditor’s report.

As per the facts given in the case, intention of TBR Limited has a plan of its business being closed as huge loss is
incurred due to the recent outbreak of global pandemic, within short period from 31t March 2020. However, financial
statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 have been prepared on the same basis as it had been in earlier periods
with an additional note. v

Thus, management’s intention to liquidate the entity or to cease operations is one of the events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as going concern is-a Key Audit Matter. Therefore, the
auditor is required to Communicate the Key Audit Matters in accordance with SA 570 in the above stated manner.
Simple reference as to a possible cessation of business and making of adjustments, if any, he made at the time of
cessation only by the auditor in his report is not sufficient. '

5. M/s Airlift Ltd., carrying on the business of Passenger Transportation by air is running into continuous financial
losses as well as reduction in Sales due to stiff competition and frequent break down of its own aircrafts. The
Financial Statements for the Year-ended on 31/03/2018 are to be now finalized. The Management is quite uncertain
as to its ability to continue in near future and has informed the Auditors that having seized of this matter, it had
constituted a committee to study this aspect and to give suggestions for recovery, if any, from this bad situation.
Till the study is completed, according to the Management, the issue involves uncertainty as to its ability to continue
its business and it informs the Auditor that the fact of uncertainty clamping on the “Going Concern” would suitably
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be disclqsed in notes to accounts. State the reporting requirement if any, in the Independent Auditor’s Report in

respect of this matter. (Nov-18 New)

As per SA 570 “Going Concern”, if the auditor concludes that management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting is appropriate infhe circumstances but a material uncertainty exists, the auditor shall determine whether
the financial statements:

i. adequately disclose the principal events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern and management’s plans to deal with these events or conditions; and

ii. disclose clearly that there is a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that it may be unable to realize |ts
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

If adequate disclosure about the material uncertainty is made in the financial statements, the auditor shall express
an unmodified opinion and the auditor’s report shall include a separate section under the heading “Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” to:

l. Draw attention to the note in the financial statements that discloses the matters set out above; and

Il. State that these events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and that the auditor’s opinion is not modified in réspect of the
matter.

In the instant case, M/s Aircraft Ltd. Is running into continuous financial losses as well as reduction in sales due to stiff
competition and frequent break down of its own a;rcrafts and management of Aircraft Ltd. Is uncertain as of its ability
to continue in near future.

Therefore, a committee has been constituted to study this aspect and till the time study is completed management
accordingly decided to suitable disclose this aspect in notes to accounts. Therefore, the auditor should disclose about
the material uncertainty and express an unmodified opinion and in his audit report shall include a separate section
under the heading “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” to draw attention to the note in the financial
statements that discloses the matters set out above; and state that these events or conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and that the
auditor’s opinion is not modified in respect of the matter.

‘6. ABC Company files a law suit against Unlucky Company for X 5 crores. The Attorney of Unlucky Company feels
that the suit is without merit, so Unlucky Company merely discloses the existence of the law suit in the notes
accompanying its financial statements. As an auditor of Unlucky Company, how will you deal with the situation?
(PM) ’

As per AS 29 “Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets”, a contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise.

Further, future events that may affect the-amount required to settle an obligation should be reflected in the amount
of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that the event will occur.

As per SA 570 “Going Concern”, there are certain examples of events or conditions that, individually or collectively,
may cast sugmflcant doubt about the going concern assumption. Pending legal or regulatory proceedings against the
entity that may, if successful, result in claims that the entity is unlikely to be able to satisfy is one of the example of
such event.

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI 66




Ch-1 Standards on Auditing Learn with Fun

When the auditor concludes that the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the circumstances but a
material uncertainty exists, the auditor shall determine whether the financial statements adequately describe the
principal events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and
management’s plans to deal with these events or conditions; and disclose clearly that there is a material uncértai'nty
related to events or conditions that ﬁ'\ay cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern
and, therefore, that it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course qf business.

In the instant case, ABC Company has filed a law suit against Unlucky Company for X 5 crores. Though, the attorney
of Unlucky Company feels that the suit is withouf merit so the company merely discloses the existence of law suit in
the notes accompanying its financial statements. But the auditor may evaluafe the source data on which basis the
opinion is formed. If the auditor finds the uncertainty, he may request the management to adjust the sum of X5
crore by making provision for expenses as per AS 29. If the management does not accept the request the auditor
should qualify the audit report. 4

7. TUV Ltd. Is a company engaged in the business of manufacture of spare parts. Saroj & Associates are the statutofy
auditors of the company for the FY 2020-21. During the course of audit, CA Sarej noticed that the company had a
major customer, namely, Korean Mart from South -Korea. Owing to an outbreak of war and subsequent destruction
leading to government ban on import and export in South Korea, the demand from Korean Mart for the products
of TUV Ltd. Ended for an unforeseeable time period. When discussed with the management, CA Saroj was told that
the company is in the process of identifying new customers for their products. CA Saroj understands that theugh
the use of going concern assumption is appropriate but a material uncertainty exists with respect to the
identification of new customers. This fact is duiy reflected in the financial statements of TUV Ltd. For the FY 2020-
21. How should CA Saroj deal with this matter in the auditor’s report for the FY 2020-21? (SM)

As per SA 570, “Going Concern”, loss of a major market or a key customer is one of the operating indicators that
may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a goiné concern.

In the present case, TUV Ltd. Has a key customer in South Korea from which-the demand for its products has ended
on account of outbreak of war, subsequent destruction and government ban on import and export in South Korea.
Further, the company has not yet identified new customers and is in the process of doing the same. As such, the
identification of new customer is a material uncertainty that cast a significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

However, this matter is duly disclosed by the management of TUV Ltd. in the financial statements for the year ended
31.03.2021.

As such, considering that the going concern assumption is appropriate but a material uncertainty exists with respect |
to identification of new v
customer, CA Saroj should:
(1) Express an unmodified opinion and
(2) Include in his audit report, a separate section under the heading “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern”
to: ]
i. Draw attention to the note in the financial statements that discloses the matters and
ii. State that these events or conditions indicate thata material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and that the auditor’s opinion is not modified in respect
of the matter. '

Thus, CA Saroj should deal with this matter in his auditof‘s report in the above mentioned manner.
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8. Enumerate the Operating conditions of an entity that may cast sngnlflcant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue
as a “Going Concern”. (May-19 Oid)

Operating Conditions: As per SA 570 Going Concern, operating conditions of an entity that may cast significant doubt
on the entity’s ability to continlie as a going concern are:

* Management intentions to liquidate the entity or to cease operatlons

* Loss of key management without replacement.

* Loss of a major market, key customer(s), franchise, license, or principal supplier(s).

e Labour difficulties.

* Shortages of important supplies.

* Emergence of a highly successful competitor

9. CA.Kis appointed statutory auditor of SEEK INDIA LTD under Companies Act, 2013 for the first time. The company
is preparing its accounts keeping in view applicable requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il of Companies Act,
2013. On scrutiny of financial statements of company put up for audit, it was noticed that notes to accounts show
ageing of trade payables as per amended requirements of Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The ageing schedule forming part of notes is as under: - Outstanding for followmg periods from due date of payment
(X In crore)

Particulars <lyear | 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME , - - - - NIL
Others 2 4 3 1 10
Disputed dues- | - - - - -
MSME
Disputed dues- | - - - - -
others ‘
Besides above, current ratio, debt-equity ratio, trade payables turnover ratio and net profit ratio disclosed in notes
to accounts have slipped drastically as compared to last year and from standard norms.

Most of the key financial ratios are in red. There is no other relevant information concerning above in notes to
accounts.

Further, on reviewing bank statement of cash credit limit (against hypothecation of paid stocks), it was noticed that
there is no debit transaction in the month of March,2022. "

On inquiry, he came to know that stock audit of company was conducted in the month of January,2022 and stock
auditors have commented vide their report dated 25.2.2022 that company had negative drawing power due to high
creditors. Accordingly, the bankers have refused further debits in cash credit account from start of March,2022,
There is no information in this respect in financial statements and notes to accounts.

Discuss how CA K should deal with above for reporting in his audit report under the Companies Act, 2013,

[MTP Oct-22]

It is clear from the ageing schedule that company is not able to pay its creditors on time. Outstanding to creditors for
a period of 1 year or more account for 80% of total dues to the creditors of the company from due date of payment.
Most of key financial ratios are adverse.
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Further, bankers have refused further debits in cash credit account due to negative drawing power from March 2022.

Cash credit loans are repayable on demand. There is no other information or disclosure available how the company
plans to run its business without bank finance. ’
All the above factors are indicators thlat a material uncertainty exists that may cast a significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as going concern. There is no express disclosure of this fact in financial statements.
: &

Therefore, it is a situation where material uncertainty exists which has cast a significant doubt on company’s ability
to continue as going concern in accordance with SA 570, “Going Concern”.

¢
Keeping in view above the fact that although a material uncertainty exists casting-a significant doubt on the ability of
company to continue as going concern, adequate disclosure of material uncertainty is not made in financial
statements, CA K shall give qualified or adverse opinion in accordance with SA-705, “Madifications to the Opinion
in the Independent Auditor’s Report”.

SA 580: Written Representation

1. Mokshda & Co is the statutory auditor of Get My Trip Ltd. The company is in the business of tours and travels.
Annual turnover of the company is INR 2765 crore and profits are INR 285 crore. During the planning meeting of
the management and the auditors, it was discussed that the management needs to provide written representation
letter to the auditors for the preparation of the financial statements and for the completeness of the information
provided to the auditor. At the time of closure of the audit, there has been some confusion about the requirements
of the written representation letter. Management argued that representation need not be written, it can also be
verbal which has been provided to the audit team during ti:e course of their audit. Auditors have completed their

~ documentation and hence in a way, representation based on verbal discussions with the auditors has also got

documented. Auditors explained that this is mandatory to obtain written-representation in accordance with the
requirements of SA 580. Howevér, still some confusion remains regarding the date and period covered by the
written representation. You are required to advise about the date of and period covered by written representation
in view of SA 580. (MTP Mar’21)

As per SA 580, “Written Representations”, as written representations are necessary audit evidence, the auditor’s
opinion cannot be expressed, and the auditor’s report cannot be dated, before the date of the written
representations. Furthermore, because the auditor is concerned with events occurring up to the date of the auditor’s
report th:t may require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements, the written representations are dated
as near as practicable to, but not after, the date of the auditor’s report on the financial statements.

In some circumstances it may be appropriate for the auditor to obtain a written representation about a specific
assertion in the financial statements during the course of the audit. Where this is the case, it may be necessary to
request an updated written representation.

The written representations are for all periods referred to in the auditor’s report because management needs to
reaffirm that the written representations it previously made with respect to the prior periods remain appropriate. The
auditor and management may agree to a form of written representation that updates written representations
relating to the prior periods by addressing whether there are any changes to such written representations and, if 50,
what they are. ‘ '

Situations may arise where current management were not présent during all periods referred to in the auditor’s
report. Such persons may assert that they are not in a position to provide some or all of the written representations
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because they were not in place during the period. This fact, however, does not diminish such persons’ responsibilities
for the financial statements as a whole.

Accordingly, the requirement for the auditor to request from them written representations that cover the whole of
the relevant period(s) still apPlies.

2. State briefly the basic elements of Management Representation Letter. (PM)

As per SA 580 “Written Representations”, some of the basic elements of a Management Representation letter are-

(1) It is a written statement by management provided to the auditor to confirm certain matters or to support other
audit evidence. '
(2) It does not include financial statements, the assertions therein, or supporting books and records.

(3) The auditor shall request management to provide a written representation that it has fulfilled its responsibility
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
including where relevant their fair presentation, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement.

(4) The written representations shall be for all financial statements and period(s) referred to in the auditor’s report.

3. In the course of audit of ABC Ltd. its management refuses to provide written representations. As an auditor what
is your duty? (May-10) '

As per SA 580 “Written Representations”, if the management does not provide one or more of the requested written
representations, the auditor shall:

i. Discuss the matter with management,
ii. Re-evaluate the Integrity of the management and evaluate the effect that this may have on the reliability of
representations (oral or written) and audit evidence in general, and
iii. Take appropriate actions, including determining the possible effect on the opinion in the auditor’s report.

The auditor should disclaim an opinion on the financial statements if management does not provide written
representations in accordance with SA 705 “Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report”.

4. An auditor of Sagar Ltd. was not able to get the confirmation about the existence and value of certain
machineries. However, the management gave him a certificate to prove the existence and value of the machinery
as appearing in the books of account. The auditor accepted the same without any further procedure and signed the
audit report. Is he right in his approach? (PM) ’

The physical verification of fixed assets is the primary responsibility of the'management. The auditor, however, is
required to examine the verification programme adopted by the management. He must satisfy himself about the
existence, ownership and valuation of fixed assets. ’

In the case of Sagar Ltd., the auditor has not been able to verify the existence and value of some machinery despite
the verification procedure followed in routine audit. He accepted the certificate given.to him by the management °
without making any further enquiry.

As per SA'580 “Written Representations”, when representation relate to matters which are material to the financial
information, then the auditor should seek corroborative audit evidence from other sources inside or outside the
entity.

Focast i e B S
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He should evaluate whether such representations are reasonable and consistent with other evidences and should

consider whether individuals making such representatigns can be expected to be well informed on the matter.

“\Written Representations” cannot be a substitute for other audit evidence that the auditor could reasonably expect

to be available.

If the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that he believes would be available regardmg
a matter which has or may have a material effect on the financial information, this will constitute a limitation on the

scope of his examination even if he has obtained a representation from management on the matter. Therefore, the

approach adopted by the auditor is not right.

¢

~ SA 600: Using the Work of Another Auditor ' .

1. BETA Ltd is the Subsidiary company of ALPHA Ltd. PQR & Associates has been appointed as auditor of ALPHA Ltd.
for the Financial Year 2019-20 and MNO & Associates has been appointed as auditor of BETA Ltd for the year 2019-
20. Explain the role of PQR & Associates and MNO & Associates as auditors of the parent company and subsxdlary .
company respectively. (MTP Oct-20)

As per SA 600 “Using the Work of Another Auditor”, there should be sufficient liaison between the principal auditor

(hereinafter referred as auditor of Parent Company and the other auditor (hereinafter referred as auditor of Subsidiary

Company). - ’
»

Role of Principal Auditor (PQR & Associates- Auditor of Parent Company):

(i) It is necessary to issue written communication(s) as a principal auditor to the other auditor.

(i) The principal auditor should advise the other auditor of any matters that come to his attention that he thinks may

have an important bearing on the other auditor’s work.

(iii) When considered necessary by him, the principal auditor may requirg the other auditor to answer a detailed

questionnaire regarding matters ‘on which the principal auditor requires information for discharging‘his duties.

Role of Other Auditor (MNO & Associates- Auditor of Subsidiary Company):

~(i) The other auditor, knowing the context in which his work is to be used by the principal auditor, should co-ordinate
with the principal auditor. For example, by bringing to the principal auditor’s immediate attention to any significant
findings requiring to be dealt with at entity level, adhering to the time-table for audit of the component, etc.
(i) He should ensure compliance with the relevant statutory requirements.
(iii) The other auditor should respond to the questionnaire sent by Principal Auditor on a tlmely basis.

2. B is the Principal Auditor of ABC Co. Ltd., with 8 branches audited by 8 Branch Auditors. B wanted to ensure that
the works of Branch Auditors were adequate for the purpose of his audit. Hence he insisted on Branch Auditors to
get familiar with a check list he prepared for branches and, besides, required them to share the working papers
compiled by them for his review and return. Is Principal Auditor within his right in asking for such sharing of working
papers? (May-18 New)

When the accounts of the branch are audited by a person other than the company’s auditor, there is need for a clear
understanding of the role of such auditor.and the company’s auditor in relation to the audit of the accounts of the
branch and the audit of the company as a whole; also, there is great necessity for a proper rapport between these
two auditors for the purpose of an effective audit.

In recognition of these needs, the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India has dealt with these issues
in SA 600, “Using the Work of another Auditor”. N e
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It makes clear that in certain situations, the statute governing the entity may confer a right on the principal auditor

to visit a component and examine the books of account and other records of the said component, if he thinks it
necessary to do so. ’

Where another auditor has begn appointed for the component, the principal auditor would normally be entitled to
rely upon the work of such auditor uniess there are special circumstances to make it essential for him to visit the
component and/or to examine the books of account and othgr records of the said component.

Further, it requires that the principal auditor should perform procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence, that the work of the other auditor is adequate for the principal auditor's purposes, in the context of the
specific assignment.

When using the work of another auditor, the principal auditor should ordinarily perform the following procedures:
(1) advise the other auditor of the use of other auditor's work and report and make sufficient arrangements for co-
ordination of their efforts at the planning stage of the audit.
(2)The principal auditor would inform the other auditor of matters such as

> areas requiring special consideration,

> procedures for the identification of inter-component transactions that may require disclosure and

> the time-table for completion of audit; and ,
(2) advise other auditor of the significant accounting, auditing and reporting requirements and .obtain
representation as to compliance with them.

Principal auditor might discuss with other auditor audit procedures applied or review a written summary of the
other auditor’s procedures and findings which may be in the form of a completed questionnaire or check-list. The
principal auditor may also wish to visit the other auditor.

The nature, timing and extent of procedures will depend on circumstances of the engagement and the principal
auditor's knowledge of the professional competence of the other auditor. This knowledge may have been enhanced
from the review of the previous audit work of the other auditor.

Further, SA 230 issued by ICAI on Audit Documentation, and “Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, “Quality Control
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related
Services Engagements”, issued by the Institute, provides that, unless otherwise specified by law or regulation, audit
documentation is the property of the auditor. He may at his discretion, make portions df, or extracts from, audit
documentation available to clients, provided such disclosure does not undermine the validity of the work performed,
or, in the case of assurance engagements, the independence of the auditor or of his personnel.”

In the light of aforesaid, principal auditor was not within his right for asking for such sharing of working papers. It
depends upon the discretion of auditor.

3. PQ Limited, a listed entity, headquartered in Mumbai and is having 15 branches all over India. The Company is in
the business of buying paddy grown by farmers directly and processing to produce final products for selling in
domestic as well as international markets. PQ Limited appointed four firms of Chartered Accountants for audit of
its-head office and branches. Your firm is one of those firms. It was agreed that your firm will act as Principal auditor.
'What factors will be considered by you while accepting the position of Principal auditor ? (July-21 New)

SA 600 — Using the work of Another Auditor - While accepting the position of Principal Auditor, the auditor should
consider whether the auditor's own participation is sufficient to be able to act as the principal auditor.
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For this purpose, the auditor would consider:
(a) the materiality of the portion of the financial information which the pring:ipal auditor audits;
(b) the principal auditor's degree of knowledge regarding the business of the components;
(c) the risk of material misstatements in the financial information of the components audited by the other auditor;
and ;
(d) the performance of additional procedures as set out in this SA regarding the components audited by other auditor
resulting in the principal auditor having 5|gmf|cant participation in such audit.

' 'SA 610: Using the Work of Internal Auditor
7

1. CA. Amboj, a practicing CA has been appointed as internal auditor of Textile Ltd. He conducted physi_cal

verification of inventory at year-end and handed over report of verification to CA. Kishore, statutory: auditor of

Company, for his view and reporting. Can CA. Kishore rely on such report?

(MTP Oct-18 + ICAI SM)

As per SA 610 “Using the Work of Internal Auditors”, while determining whether work of internal auditors can be -

used for purpose of audit, the external auditor shall evaluate- :

(a) The extent to which internal audit function’s organizational status and relevant policies and procedures support

objectivity of internal auditors;
(b) The level of competence of internal audit function; and
(c) Whether A function applies a systematic and disciplined approach, including quality control.

Further, external auditor shall not use the work of Internal Audit function if external auditor determines that:

(a) The function’s organizational status and relevant policies and procedures do not adequately support objectivity
of internal auditors;

(b) The function lacks sufficient competence; or

(c) The function does not apply a systematic and disciplined approach, inclyding quality control.

in instant case, CA. Kishore should ascertain internal auditor’s scope ‘of verification, area of coverage and method of
verification. He should review report on physical verification taking into consideration these factors. If possible, he
“should also test check few items and he can also observe procedures performed by internal auditors.

If statutory auditor is satisfied about appropriateness of verification, he can rely on report but if he finds that
verification is not in order, he has to decide otherwise. The final responsibility to express opinion on financial
statement remains with the statutory auditor.

2. Moon Ltd. of which you are Statutory Auditor, have internal audit being conducted by outside agency. State
factors that weigh considerations in opting to make use of direct assistance of internal auditors for purpose of
statutory audit. (May 18 New)

As per SA 610 ‘Using the work of Internal Auditor’ in determining nature and extent of work that may be assigned to
internal auditors and the nature, timing and extent of direction, supervision and review that is appropriate in the
circumstances, external auditor shall consider:
(1) The amount of judgment involved in:

(i) Planning and performing relevant audit procedures; and

(i) Evaluating audit evidence gathered;
(2) The assessed risk of material misstatement; and
(3) The external auditor’s evaluation of existence and significance of threats to objectivity and level of competence
of internal auditors who will be providing such assistance. . o
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if using internal auditors to provide direct assistance is not prohibited by law or regulation, and external auditor plans

to use internal auditors to provide direct assistance on audit, external auditor shall evaluate existence and significance
of threats to objectivity and the ievel of competence of the internal auditors who will be providing such assistance.

The external auditor’s evaluatjon of existence and significance of threats to internal auditors’ objectivity shall include
inquiry of internal auditors regarding interests and relationships that may create a threat to their objectivity.

3. Mr. Sheetal is appointed as statutory auditor of Mahi Ltd. Mahi Ltd is required to appoint an internal auditor as
per statutory provisions given in Companies Act, 2013 and appointed Mr. Kunthu as its internal auditor. The
external auditor Mr. Sheetal asked internal auditor to provide direct assistance to him regarding evaluating the
sufficiency of tests performed and the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements and other matters
affecting the auditor’s report. Discuss whether Mr. Sheetal, statutory auditor, can ask direct assistance from Mr.
Kunthu, internal auditor as stated above in view of relevant Standard on Auditing. (MTP Apr'21)

As per SA 610 “Using the Work of Internal Auditor”, EA shall not use internal auditors to provide direct assistance to
perform procedures that Involve making significant judgments in the audit.

Since external auditor has sole responsibility for the audit opinion expressed external auditor needs to make the
significant )udgments in the audit engagement.

Significant judgments include the following:
* Assessing the risks of material misstatement;
* Evaluating the sufficiency of tests performed;
* Evaluating the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern assumption;
* Evaluating significant accounting estimates; and
* Evaluating adequacy of disclosures in F.S., and other matters affecting the auditor’s report.

in view of above, Mr. Sheetal cannot ask direct assistance from internal auditors regarding evaluating sufficiency of
tests performed and adequacy of disclosures in F.S. and other matters affecting auditor’s report.

4. OPQ Ltd is in software consultancy business. The company had large balance of accounts receivables in past years
which have been assessed as area of high risk. For ye'ar ended 31 March 2019, in respect of valuation of accounts
receivable, statutory auditor was assigned with checking of accuracy of aging of accounts receivables and provision
based on ageing, to internal auditor providing direct assistance to him. Comment. (MTP Oct-19 + Nov-22)

As per SA 610 Using the Work of Internal Auditor, external auditor (Statutory Auditor) shall not use internal auditors
to provide direct assistance to perform procedures that:

(i) involve making significant judgments in the audit;

(i) Relate to higher assessed risks of material misstatement where judgment required in performirig the relevant
audit procedures or evaluating the audit evidence gathered is more than limited;

(iii) Relate to work with which internal auditors have been involved and which has already been, or will be, reported
to management or TCWG by Internal Audit function; or

(iv) Relate to decisions external auditor makes in accordance with this SA regardmg the internal audit function and
use of its work or direct assistance.

in given case where valuation of accounts receivable is assessed as an area of higher risk, statutory auditor could
assign the checking of accuracy of the aging to internal auditor providing direct assistance.
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However, because evaluation of adequacy of provision based on the aging would involve more than limited
judgment, it would not be appropriate to assign that Jatter procedure to an internal auditor providing direct
assistance.

5. Mr. Anand is appointed as statutory, auditor of XYZ Ltd. XYZ Ltd is required to appoint internal auditor as per
statutory provisions given in the Companies Act, 2013 and appointed Mr. Bhola as its internal auditor. The external
auditor Mr. Anand asked internal auditor to provide direct assistance to him regarding evaluating sighificant
accounting estimates by the management and assessing the risk of material misstatements. ]

(a) Discuss whether Mr. Anand, statutory auditor, can ask direct assistance from Mr. Bhola, internal auditor as
stated above in view of Standards on Auditing. ¢ N

(b) Will your answer be different, if Mr. Anand ask direct assistance from Mr. Bhola, internal auditor with réspect
to external confirmation requests and evaluation of the results of external confirmation procedures? (RTP May-20)

Direct Assistance from Internal Auditor: As per SA 610 “Using the Work of Internal Auditor”, the external auditor
shall not use internal auditors to provide direct assistance to perform procedures that Involve making significant -
judgments in the audit. )

since the external auditor has sole responsibility for the audit opinion expressed, the external auditor needs to make
the significant judgments in the audit engagement.

significant judgments include the following:
e Assessing the risks of material misstatement;
e Evaluating the sufficiency of tests performed;
e Evaluating the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern assumption;
e Evaluating significant accounting estimates; and
e Evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements,and other matters affecting the auditor’s
report. R

In view of above, Mr. Anand cannot ask direct assistance from internal auditors regarding evaluating significant
accounting estimates and assessing the risk of material misstatements.

(b) Direct Assistance from Internal Auditor in case of External Confirmation Procedures: SA 610 “Using the Work of
Internal Auditor”, provide relevant guidance in determining the nature and extent of work that may be assigned to
internal auditors. In determining the nature of work that may be assigned to internal auditors, the external auditor is
careful to limit such work to those areas that would be appropriate to be assigned.

Further, in accordance with SA 505, “External Confirmation” the external auditor is required to maintain control over
external confirmation requests and evaluate the results of external confirmation procedures, it would not be
appropriate to assign these responsibilities to internal auditors. .
However, internal auditors may assist in assembling information necessary for the external auditor to resolve
exceptions in confirmation responses.

6. Smart Ltd is a manufacturing unit and you are External Auditor of the company. Internal auditors are also
appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. As an external auditor you want to use the internal
auditors to provide direct assistance for the purposes of audit. State the circumstances where the internal auditors
cannot be used to provide direct assistance. What would you include in the audit documentation? (July-21 Old) '

In the given case of Smart Ltd, a manufacturing unit, an external auditor shall not use internal auditors to pfoVide

direct assistance as per SA 610, Using the work of Internal Auditor, to perform procedures that:
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(i) Involve making significant judgments in the audit; :

(ii) Relate to higher assessed risks of material misstatement where the judgment required in performing the relevant
audit procedures or evaluating the audit evidence gathered is more than limited;

(iii} Relate to work with which the internal auditors have been involved and which has already been, or will be,
reported to management or those charged with governance by the internal audit function; or

(iv) Relate to decisions the external auditor makes in accordance with this SA regarding the internal audit function
and the use of its work or direct assistance. ]

Further, if the external auditor uses internal auditors to provide direct assistance on the audit, the external auditor
shall include in the audit documentation:

(1) The evaluation of the existence and significance of threats to the objectivity of the internal auditors, and the level
of competence of the internal auditors used to provide direct assistance;

(2) The basis for the decision regarding the nature and extent of the work performed by the internal auditors;

(3) Who reviewed the work performed and the date and extent of that review in accordance with SA 230, Audit
Documentation;

(4) The written agreements obtained from an authorized representative of the entity and the internal auditors; and
(5) The working papers prepared by the internal auditors who provided direct assistance on the audit engagement.

SA 620: Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert

1. Rajul Ltd had a net worth of INR 2500 crores because of which Ind AS became applicable to them. The company
had various derivative contracts — options, forward contracts, interest rate swaps etc. which were required to be
fair valued for which company got the fair valuation done through an external third party. The statutory auditors
of the company involved an auditor’s expert to audit valuation of derivatives. Auditor and auditor’s expert were
new to each other i.e., they were working for the first time together but developed a good bonding during the
course of the audit. The auditor did not enter into any formal agreement with the auditor’s expert. Please advise.
(MTP Mar 21 + RTP May-23)

As per SA 620, Using the work of an Auditor’s Expert, the nature, scope and objectives of the auditor’s expert’s work
may vary considerably with the circumstances, as may the respective roles and responsibilities of the auditor and the
auditor’s expert, and the nature, timing and extent of communication between the auditor and the auditor’s expert.
It is therefore required that these matters are agreed between the auditor and the auditor’s expert.

In certain situations, the need for a detailed agreement in writing is required like -

* The auditor’s expert will have access to sensitive or confidential entity information.

* The matter to which the auditor’s expert’s work relates is highly complex.

* The auditor has not previously used work performed by that expert. _

* The greater the extent of the auditor’s expert’s work, and its significance in the context of the audit.

In the given case, considering the complexity involved in the valuation and volume of derivatives and also due to the
fact that the auditor and auditor’s expert were new to each other, auditor should have signed a formal agreement/ :
engagement letter with the auditor’s expert in respect of the work assigned to him.

2. CA Dabu has been appointed as an auditor of M/s MAP Technocraft Ltd. to conduct statutory audit. While
conducting audit, he came across some difficulties which the management could not explain to him properly and,
therefore, he decided to take services of Mr. Jay, an engineering consultant. Mr. Jay performed his work and
submitted details to CA Dabu. State the specific procedure which CA Dabu should follow to evaluate the adequacy
of work performed by Mr. Jay. (May 19 New)
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As per SA 620 on “Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert”, specific procedures to evaluate the adequacy of the

auditor’s expert’s work for the auditor’s purposes may include:
i. Inquiries of the auditor’s expert. )
ii. Reviewing the auditor’s expert’s working papers and reports. .
jii.  Corroborative procedures, such as:
e Observing the auditor’s e;(pert’s work;

e Examining published data, such as statistical reports from reputable, authoritative sources; hs
e Confirming relevant matters with third parties;
e Performing detailed analytical procedures; and
e Re-performing calculations. ¢
iv. Discussion with another expert with relevant expertise when, for example the findings or conclusmns of the
auditor’s expert are not consistent with other audit evidence.
V. Discussing the auditor’s expert’s report with management.

Therefore, as per SA 620 on “Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert”, the auditor shall evaluate the adequacy of the
auditor’s expert’s work for the auditor’s purposes, including: )
i. The relevance and reasonableness of that expert’s findings or conclusions, and their consistency with other
audit evidence;
ii. If that expert’s work involves use of significant assumptions and methods, the relevance and reasonableness of
those assumptions and methods in the circumstances; and
iii. If that expert’s work involves the use of source data that is significant to that expert’s work, the relevance,
completeness, and accuracy of that source data.

If the auditor determines that the work of the auditor’s expert is not adequate for the auditor’s purposes, the
auditor shall:

i.Agree with that expert on the nature and extent of further work to be performed by that expert; or

ii. Perform further audit procedures appropriate to the circumstances.
3. HAM Ltd. is engaged in the business of manufacturing of medicines. The ‘manufacturing process requires raw
- materials such as hydrochloric acid, caustic soda and other chemicals for the manufacturing of various drugs. The
Company has maintained large . stock of raw materials of all types of chemicals being used. The nature of raw
material is such that its physical verification requires the involvement of an expert. Management hired their expert
for the stock taking and auditors also involved their expert for the same-purpose.
The auditor observed that the work of the auditor’s expert was not adequate for the auditor’s purposes and he
could not resolve the matter through additional audit procedures which included further work performed by both
the auditor’s expert and the auditor.
Based on above, the auditor knows that it would be right to express a modified opinion in the auditor’s report
because he has not obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence. But he was reluctant in doing so and issued a
clean audit report and included the name of the expert in his report to reduce his responsibility for the audit oplnlon
expressed. Comment with respect to relevant Standard of Auditing relating to the action of the auditor of issuing
clean audit report. [May-23] ‘

Reference to work of Auditor’s Expert: As per SA 620, Using the Work of Auditor’s Expert, Auditor shall not refer to
work of auditor’s expert in auditor’s report containing unmodified opinion unless required by law or regulation. If
such reference required by law or regulation, auditor shall indicate in report that reference doesn’t reduce auditor’s
responsibility for audit opinion.

In some cases, law or regulation may require reference to work of an auditor’s expert, for purposes of transparency

in public sector
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If auditor makes reference to work of auditor’s expert in auditor’s report because such reference is relevant to

understanding of modification to auditor’s opinion, indicate in auditor’s report that such reference doesn’t reduce
auditor’s responsibility for that opinion. '

In given case, auditor knows that it would be right to express a modified opinion in the auditor’s report because he
has not obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence. But he was reluctant in doing so and issued a clean audit report

and included the name of the expert in his report to reduce his responsibility for the audit opinion expressed.

Hence, Auditor’s action isn’t right.

SA 700: “Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements.

1. KPI Lid. Is a company on which International Standards on Auditing are applicable along with Standard on
Auditing issued by the ICAl. The company appointed new auditors for the audit of the financial statements year
ended 31 March 2019 after doing all appointment formalities. Therefore, the auditor’s report referred the
International Standard on Auditing in addition to the Standard on Auditing issued by the ICAL As an expert, you are
required to advise the auditor regarding auditor’s report for audits conducted in accordance with both the
Standards. (RTP Nov-19) '

As per SA 700, “Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements”, an auditor may be required to conduct
an audit in accordance with, in addition to the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI, the International Standards on
Auditing or auditing standards of any other jurisdiction. If this is the case, the auditor’s report may refer to Standards
on Auditing in addition to the International Standards on Auditing or auditing standards of such other jurisdiction, but
the auditor shall do so only if:

(a) There is no conflict between the requirements in the ISAs or such auditing standards of other jurisdiction and
those in SAs that would lead the auditor:
i.  to form a different opinion, or
ii. not to include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph or Other Matter paragraph that, in the particular
circumstances, is required by SAs; and

{b) The auditor’s report includes, at a minimum, each of the elements set out in Auditor’s Report Prescribed by Law
or Regulation discussed above when the auditor uses the layout or wording specified by the Standards on Auditing.

However, reference to “law or regulation” in above paragraph shall be read as reference to the Standards on Auditing.
The auditor’s report shall thereby identify such Standards on Auditing.

When the auditor’s report refers to both the ISAs or the auditing standards of a specific jurisdiction and the Standards
on Auditing issued by ICAI, the auditor’s report shall clearly identify the same including the jurisdiction of origin of the
other auditing standards. -

2. MN & Associates, Chartered Accountants have been appointed as statutory Auditors of Cotton Ltd. For the F.Y
2020-2021. The Company is into the business of yarn manufacturing. For this purpose, cotton ginning is also done
within the factory premises. Raw cotton is purchased from local market and processed in-house. The Company
received a notice from the State Government to deposit market development fee for the last 5 years to the tune of
% 10.00 crores. The Company and all other organizations in the same business have not depésited the market
development fee, taking shelter of an old circular issued by the Government. The trade association met with the
government officials to resolve the matter and agreed to deposit the same prospectively. However, the matter
relating to payment of development fee for the last 5 years is pending before the Government as at the end of the
financial year. The Company, however, disclosed the same in notes to accounts, as contingent liability, without
N S ST
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quantifying the effect and proper explanation. If the liability is provided in the books of accounts, entire reserves
will be wiped off. Auditor seeks your guidance as to how this disclosure affects them while forming an opinion on
financial statements. (July-21 New) ’

Forming an opinion and reporting on fmanmal statements — As per Ind AS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”, an entity should disclose for each class of contingent liability at the end of the reporting period a
brief description of the nature of the contingent liability and, where practicable . s

a) an estimate of its financial effect, measured in the standard;

b) an indication of the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflow; and

c) the possibility of any reimbursement. ’
SA — 700 — Forming an opinion and reporting on financial statements: The auditor shall evalu/ate whether in view of
the requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework
() The financial statements adequately disclose the significant accounting policies selected and applied;
(i) The accounting policies selected and applied are consistent with the applicable financial reporting framework .

and are appropriate;
(i) The accounting estimates made by the management are reasonable;
(iv) The information presented in the financial statements is relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable;
(v) The financial statements provide adequate disclosures to enable the intended users to understand the effect of

material transactions and events-on the information conveyed in the financial statements.
»

If financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of a fair presentation framework do not achieve
fair presentation, the auditor shall discuss the matter with management and, depending on the requirements of the
applicable financial reporting framework and how the matter is resolved, shall determine whether it is necessary to
modify the opinion in the auditor’s report in accordance with SA 705.

In the present case, auditor may consider modifying his opinion considering the financial effect of liability not disclosed
properly. v '

3. CA S has been appointed as Statutory Auditor of SRT Ltd. For the financial year 2020-2021. The Company while
preparing financial statements for the year under audit prepared one additional profit and loss account that
disclosed specific items of expenditure and included the same as an appendix to the financial statements. CA. S has
not been able to understand this as the additional profit and loss account is not covered under applicable financial
reporting framework. Guide him as to how he should deal with this issue while reporting on the financial statements
of SRT Ltd. (July-21 New + RTP May-23)

if supplementary information that is not required by the applicable financial reporting framework is presented with
the audited financial statements, the auditor shall evaluate whether, in the auditor’s professional judgment
supplementary information is nevertheless an integral part of the financial statements due to its nature or how itis
presented. When it is an integral part of the financial statements, the supplementary information shall be covered
by the auditor’s opinion. '

if supplementary information that is not required by the applicable financial reporting framework is not considered
an integral part of the audited financial statements, the auditor shall evaluate whether such supplementary
information is presented in a way that sufficiently and clearly differentiates it from the audited financial statements.
If this is not the case, then the auditor shall ask management to change how the unaudited supplementary
information is presented. '
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If management refuses to do so, the auditor shall identify the unaudited supplementary information and explain in

the auditor’s report that such supplementary information has not been audited.

When an additional profit and loss account that discloses specific items of expenditure is disclosed as a separate
schedule, included as an appendlx to the financial statements, the auditor may consider this to be supplementary
information that can be clearly differentiated from the financial statements.

Thus, additional profit and loss account is not considered an integral part of the audited financial statements and
the auditor shall evaluate that supplementary information is presented in a way that sufficiently and clearly
differentiates it from the audited financial statements.

SA 701: Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report

1. AKY Ltd. is a listed company engaged in the business of software and is one of the largest company operating in
this sector in India. The company’s annual turnover is Rs. 40,000 crores with profits of Rs. 5,000 crores. Due to the
nature of the business and the size of the company, the operations of the company are spread out in India as well
as outside India. The company’s contracts with its various customers are quite complicated and different. During
the course of the audit, the audit team spends significant time on audit of revenue — be it planning, execution or
conclusion. This matter was also discussed with management at various stages of audit. The efforts towards audit
of revenue also involve significant involvement of senior members of the audit team including the audit partner.
After completion of audit for the year ended 31 March 2019, the audit partner was discussing significant matters
with the management wherein they also communicated to the management that he plans to include revenue
recognition as key audit matter in his audit report. The management did not agree with revenue recognition to be
shown as key audit matter in the audit report. Comment. (MTP Oct-19)

SA 701, “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’'s Report”, deals with the auditor’s
responsibility to communicate key audit matters in the auditor’s report. It is intended to address both the auditor’s
judgment as to what to communicate in the auditor’s report and the form and content of such communication.

The auditor shall determine, from the matters communicated with those charged with governance, those matters
that required significant auditor attention in performing the audit.

In making this determination, the auditor shall take into account the following:
i.Areas of higher assessed risk of material misstatement, or significant risks identified in accordance with SA 315
Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement through Understanding the Entity and Its
Environment.
ii.Significant auditor judgments relating to areas in the financial statements that involved significant management
judgment, including accounting estimates that have been identified as having high estimation uncertainty.
iii. The effect on the audit of significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

Auditor shall determine which of the matters determined in accordance with above were of most significance in the
audit of financial statements of current period and therefore are key audit matters.

In the instant case, AKY Ltd., a listed company engaged in the business of software and its contracts with its various
customers are also quite complicated and different. Further, the audit team spends significant, time on audit of
revenue and efforts towards audit of revenue also involve significant involvement of senior members of the audit
team including audit partner during audit.
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This matter was also discussed with management at various stages. After completion of audit, the audit partner

communicated the management regarding inclusion of paragraph on revenue recognition as key audit matter in his
audit report.

2

In view of SA 701, the assessment of the auditor is valid as above matter qualifies to be a key audit matter in the

opinion of auditor. Hence, it should be reported accordingly by the auditor in his audit report.
. &

2. Mr. Hemant Ramsey was appointed as the engagement partner for conducting the audit of Kshetra Lap Ltd. for
E.Y. 2020-21, on behalf of Ramsey & Associates. Mr. Vishay Tyagi was appointed as the engagement quality control
reviewer by the firm for the said audit. During F.Y.”22020-21, there was an implementation of ERP system in a phased
manner, in Kshetra Lap Ltd. due to which some of its business processes got automated. As a result of the
implementation of such a system, there was a significant effect on the auditor’s overall audit strategy. Mr. Hemant

discussed the implementation of such a system with Mr. Vishay and also told him that such a matter may be a key

audit matter to be reported in the audit report. Mr. Vishay considered the significance of such matter but however

he was of the opinion that such a matter did not appear to link with the matters disclosed in the financial statements

and so there was no need to disclose such matter as a key audit matter. Whether the contention of Mr. Vishay is
proper with respect to the matters to be communicated as a key audit matter? (RTP Nov’21)

As per SA 701, ‘Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report’, the auditor shall determine,
from the matters communicated with those charged with governance, those matters that required significant auditor
attention in performing the audit. ’

In making this determination, the auditor shall take into account the following:

i Areas of higher assessed risk of material misstatement, or significant risks identified in accordance with SA
315.

ii. Significant auditor judgments relating to areas in the financial statements that involved significant
management judgment, including accounting estimates tha:c have been identified as having high estimation
uncertainty.

iii. The effect on the audit of significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

The auditor shall determine which of the aforesaid matters considered were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and therefore are the key audit matters.

These aforesaid considerations focus on the nature of matters communicated with those charged with governance.
Such matters are often linked to matters disclosed in the financial statements and are intended to reflect areas of
the audit of the financial statements that may be of particular interest to intended users. :

The fact that these considerations are required is not intended to imply that matters related to them are always key
audit matters; rather, matters related to such specific considerations are key audit matters only if they are determined
to be of most significance in the audit.

In addition to matters that relate to the specific required considerations, there may be other matters communicated
with those charged with governance that required significant auditor attention and that therefore may be
determined to be key audit matters. Such matters may include, for example, matters relevant to the audit that was
performed that may not be required to be disclosed in the financial statements. For example, the implementation
of a new IT system (or significant changes to an existing IT system) during the period may be an area of significant
auditor attention, in particular if such a change had a significant-effect on the auditor’s overall audit strategy or related
to a significant risk (e.g., changes to a system affecting revenue recognition). N
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In the given case, there was implementation of ERP system in the company due to which some of its business

processes got automated and which had a significant effect on the auditor’s overall audit strategy during the period.

Accordingly, such a matter can be considered as a key audit matter if according to Mr. Henﬁant, such a matter required
significant attention that had affected his overall audit strategy.

Thus, the contention of Mr. Vishay is not proper as matters that do not link with the matters disclosed in the
financial statements can also be considered as a key audit matter if it required significant attention of the auditor
which had an impact on its audit.

4. (a) You have been appointed as an auditor of Dharmnath & Sons for FY 2020-21, as entity other than a company
incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013, using a fair presentation framework. Appointment had been made
in the month of April, 2021. The financial statements have been prepared by the management in accordance with
the Accounting Standards. The management had introduced the new computerized accounts receivable system
from November 2020 and still in the implementation phase and thus management is in the process of rectifying
system deficiencies and correcting the errors. At the time of implementation of a new system, the earlier system
of accounting of receivables had been discarded. The auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the entity’s accounts receivable and inventories. The possible effects of the inability to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence are deemed to be both material and pervasive to the financial statements.
Write the opinion paragraph and basis of opinion paragraph to be included in the independent Auditor’s Report.

(b) What is the auditor’s responsibility to report a key audit matter for which there are no relevant disclosures in
the financial statements?

(c) Where should the placement of the key audit matters section be in the auditor’s report? [RTP May-22]
(a) Opinion Paragraph

Disclaimer of Opinion: We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Dharmnath & Sons (“the entity”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the statement of Profit and Loss, (the statement of changes in
equity) and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinioh on the accompanying financial statements of the entity.

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
financial statements. '

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion: We were not appointed as auditors of the Company until after March 31, 2021, and
thus did not observe the counting of physical inventories at the beginning and end of the year. We were unable to
satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning the inventory quantities held at March 31, 2020, and 2021, which
are stated in the Balance Sheets at X xxx and X xxx, respectively.

In addition, the introduction of a new computerized accounts receivable system in November 2020 resulted in
numerous errors in accounts receivable. As of the date of our report, management was still in the process of
rectifying the system deficiencies and correcting the errors. We were unable to confirm or verify by alternative
means accounts receivable included in the Balance Sheet at a total amount of X xxx as at March 31, 2021. As a result
of these matters, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been found necessary in respect
of recorded or unrecorded inventories and accounts receivable, and the elements making up the statement of Profit
and Loss (and statement of cash flows)
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(b) When communicating key audit matters, the fact that there are no disclosures in the financial statements reiaﬁed
to a matter determined to be a key audit matter does nqt relieve the auditor from the requirement to communicate
it. An auditor may determine a key audit matter related to the audit for which relevant disclosure requirements do
not exist in the applicable financial reporting framework. For example, the implementation of a new IT system (or
significant changes to an existing IT system) during the period may be an area of significant auditor attention, in
particular, if such a change had a significant effect on the auditor’s overall audit strategy or related to significant risk

(e.g., changes to a system affecting revenue recognition. bt

Also, if an auditor determines that it is necessary to include information about the entity in order to effectively
describe a key audit matter that has not been diselosed by management and management does not agree to disclose
that information, the auditor should reconsider the adequacy of the disclosures in accordance with applicable
financial reporting framework.

The auditor should communicate the matter as a key audit matter unless law or regulation precludes public.
disclosure about the matter or in extremely rare circumstances, the auditor determines that the matter should not.
be communicated in the auditor’s report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

(c) Generally,
» KAM section is required to' be placed after Basis for Opinion paragraph and before the Management’s
Responsibility paragraph. ,
> In case, ‘Material uncertainty relating to going concern’ section is required as per SA 570(Revised), then KAM
section is placed after that section. ’

Further, regarding placement of KAM section, SA 706 (Revised), “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter
Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report” provides as under:

-~

When a KAM section is presented in auditor’s report, Emphasis of Matter (EOM) paragraph ma§/ be presented either
directly before or after KAM section, based on the auditor’s judgment as to the-relative significance of the information
included in the Emphasis of Matter paragraph. The auditor may also add further context to the heading “Emphasis of
Matter”, such as “Emphasis of Matter — Subsequent Event”, to differentiate the Emphasis of Matter paragraph from
the individual matters described in the Key Audit Matters section. '

6. While auditing the complete set of consolidated financial statements of J Ltd., a listed company, using a fair
presentation framework, PQR & Co., a Chartered Accountant firm, discovered that the consolidated financial
statements are materially misstated due to the non-consolidation of one of the subsidiary. The material
misstatement is deemed to be pervasive to the consolidated financial statements. The effects of the misstatement
on the consolidated financial statements could not be determined because it was not practicable to do so. Thus,
PQR & Co. decided to provide an adverse opinion for the same and further determined that, there are no key audit
matters other than the matter to be described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section.

Comment whether PQR & Co. needs to report under SA 701 ‘Communicating Key Audit Matters in the independent
Auditor’s Report’? [Dec-21 Old + MTP Sep-22]

SA 700 establishes requirements and provides guidance on forming an opinion on the financial statements.
Communicating key audit matters is not a substitute for disclosures in the financial statements that the applicable
financial reporting framework requires management to make, or that are otherwise necessary to achieve fair

presentation.
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SA 705, “Maodifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report”, addresses circumstances in which the

auditor concludes that there is a material misstatement relating to the appropriateness or adequacy of disclosures in
the financial statements.

When the auditor expresses a gualified or adverse opinion in accordance with SA 705, presenting the description of
a matter giving rise to a modified opinion in the Basis for Qualified (Adverse) Opinion section helps to promote
intended users’ understanding and to identify such circumstances when they occur. Separating the communication
of this matter from other key audit matters described in the Key Audit Matters section, therefore, gives it the
appropriate prominence in the auditor’s report.

Further, when the auditor expresses a qualified or adverse opinion, communicating other key audit matters would
still be relevant to enhancing intended users’ understanding of the audit, and therefore the requirements to
determine key audit matters apply. However, as an adverse opinion is expressed in circumstances when the auditor
has concluded that misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are both material and pervasive to the financial
statements depending on the significance of the métter(s) giving rise to an adverse opinion, the auditor may
determine that no other matters are key audit matters.

In the given situation J Ltd., a listed company, has not consolidated one of its subsidiary.

Further, Consolidated Financial Statements of J Ltd. are materially misstated due to such non—consolidation.rTHe
material misstatement is also deemed to be material and pervasive and effect of the failure to consolidate have not
been determined. In the given situation it is appropriate to give Adverse Opinion by PQR & Co., a Chartered
Accountant Firm.

Since, in the given case, Adverse Opinion is being expressed thus PQR & Co. can communicate Key Audit Matter in
given below manner: Key Audit Matters: Except for the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section,
we have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communic ate in our report.

SA 705: Modifications to the Opinion in the lndepéndent Auditor’s Report

l

1. “When the auditor modifies the audit opinion, the auditor shall use the heading “Qualified Opinion,” “Adverse
Opinion,” or “Disclaimer of Opinion,” as appropriate, for the Opinion section.”

As an expert you are required to brief the special considerations required for expressing: (i) Qualified Opinion; (ii)
Adverse Opinion and (iii) Disclaimer of Opinion. (RTP Nov’19)

Special consideration required for expressing Qualified Opinion: When the auditor expresses a qualified opinion due
to a material misstatement in the financial statements, the auditor shall state that, in the auditor’s opinion, except
for the effects of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section:

(1) When reporting in accordance with a fair presentation framework, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects (or give a true and fair view of) [...] in accordance with [the applicable financial reporting
framework]; or

(2) When reporting in accordance with a compliance framework, the accompanying financial statements have been
prepared, in‘all material respects, in accordance with [the applicable financial reporting framework].

When the modification arises from an inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, the auditor shall use
the corresponding phrase “except for the possible effects of the matter(s) ...” for the modified opinion.

(ii} Special consideration needed for expressing Adverse Opinion:
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- ‘When the auditor expresses an adverse opinion, the auditor shall state that, in the auditor’s opinion, because of the

significance of the matter(s) described in Basis for Adverse-Opinion section:

(1) When reporting in accordance with a fair presentation framework, the accompanying financial statements do not .

present fairly (or give a true and fair view of) [...] in accordance with [the applicable financial reporting framework];

or N

(2) When reporting in accordance with a compliance framework, the accompanying financial statements have not

been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with [the applicable financial reporting framework]. -
¢

(iii) Special consideration is required for expressing Disclaimer of Opinion: )

When the auditor disclaims an opinion due to an inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, the auditor
shall:

(1) State that the auditor does not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements;

(2) State that, because of the significance of the matter(s) described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section,
the auditor has not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on the financial statements; and

(3) Amend the statement required in SA 700 (Revised), which indicates that the financial statements have been

audited, to state that the auditor was éngaged to audit the financial statements.
P

Unless required by law or regulation, when the auditor disclaims an opinion on the financial statements, the auditor’s
report shall not include a Key Audit Matters section in accordance with SA 701.

2. The auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate a:udiit evidence (also referred to as a limitation on the scope

" of the audit) may arise from: (i) Circumstances beyond the control of the egtity; (ii) Circumstances relating to the
nature or timing of the auditor’s work; or (iii) Limitations imposed by ménagement. Explain with the help of
examples. (RTP Nov 19) ! '

The auditor’s inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence (also referred to as a limitation on the scope of
the audit) may arise from: '
i. Circumstances beyond the control of the entity;
ii. Circumstances relating to the nature or timing of the auditor’s work; or
jii. Limitations imposed by management.

An inability to perform a specific procedure does not constitute a limitation on the scope of the audit if the auditor is
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence by performing alternative procedures. Limitations imposed by
management may have other implications for the audit, such as for the auditor’s assessment of fraud risks and
consideration of engagement continuance. ‘

Examples of circumstances beyond the control of the entity include when:

e The entity’s accounting records have been destroyed.
e The accounting records of a significant component have been seized indefinitely by governmental authorities.

Examples of circumstances relating to the nature or timing of the auditor’s work include when:

e The entity is required to use the equity method of accounting for an associated entity, and the auditor is unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the latter’s financial information to evaluate whether the
equity method has been appropriately applied
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¢ The timing of the audltor s appointment is such that the auditor is unable to observe the counting of the physical

inventories.
e The auditor determines that performlng substantive procedures alone is not sufﬂcuent but the entity’s controls
are not effective.

~

Examples of an inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence arising from a limitation on the scope of the
audit imposed by management include when:

* Management prevents the auditor from observing the counting of the physical inventory.
e Management prevents the auditor from requesting external confirmation of specific account balances.

3. ALM Associates has been appointed as auditor of M/s Hary Ltd. which acquired 55% shares-in M/s Sam Ltd. 0;1
15th October, 2018. During audit of Harry Ltd., the auditors found that the company has not prepared consolidated
financial statements because on the date of acquisition the fair value of certain assets & liabilities has not been
ascertained which is significant and are accounted for on estimated basis only. Help ALM Associates in framing
opinion paragraph of audit report. (May 19 New)

Opinion Paragraph of Audit Report: In the instant case, M/s Hary Ltd. acquired 55% shares in M/s Sam Ltd. and the
company did not prepare the consolidated financial statements because on the date of acquisition the fair value of
certain assets and liabilities has not been ascertained. Therefore, accounting is done on estimate basis only which is
not correct as the financial statements are materially misstated due to non-consolidation of subsidiary. The material
misstatement is deemed to be pervasive to the consolidated financial statements. Thus, the auditor shall express an
adverse opinion when the auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidences, concludes that
misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are both material and pervasive to the financial statements.

Adverse Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, because of the significance
of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our report, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements do not give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities, as at March
31, 2019, of its consolidated profit/loss, (consolidated position of changes in equity) and the consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion is given below:

As explained in Note X, the M/s Hary Ltd. has not consolidated subsidiary M/s Sam Ltd. that the M/s Hary Ltd acquired
during 2018 because it has not yet been able to determine the fair values of certain of the subsidiary’s material assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date. This investment is therefore accounted for on an estimate basis. Under the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, the Group should have consolidated this subsidiary and accounted
for the acquisition based on provisional amounts. Had M/s Sam Ltd. been consolidated, many elements in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements would have been materially affected. The effects on the
consolidated financial statements of the failure to consolidate have not been determined.

4. XYZ Ltd. is a company engaged in the manufacture of cranes. CA Sudhir is the statutory auditor of the company
for the FY 2020-21. The company has-taken long term funding for fixed capital requirements and short term funding
for its working capital requirements. During the course of audit, CA Sudhir found that the company’s financing
arrangements are about to expire and the company is unable to re- negotiate or obtain the replacement financing.
As such the company may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
Notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements discuss the magnitude of financing arrangements, the
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- expiration and the total financing arrangements; however the financial statements do not inciude discussion on the

impact or the availability of refinancing. Thus, the financial statements (and notes thereto) do not fully disclose this
fact. What kind of opinion should CA Sudhir issue in case of XYZ Ltd.? (SM)

In present case, XYZ Ltd. is unable to re- negotiate or obtain the replacement financing for its long term and short
term funding requirements. This situation indicates the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, XYZ Ltd. may be unable to realize its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. '

Further, the financial statements of XYZ Ltd. do not disclose this fact adequately. Thus, the financial statements of XYZ
Ltd. are materially misstated due to the inadequdte disclosure of the material uncertainty. CA Sudhir will express a
qualified opinion as the effects on the financial statements of this inadequate disclosure are material but not
pervasive to the financial statements. '

The relevant extract of Qualified Opinion Paragraph and Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph is as under:
Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanatlons given to us, except for the
incomplete disclosure of the information referred to in the Basis for Qualified Opmlon section of our report, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
XYZ Ltd. as at March 31, 2021, and pFoﬁt/Ioss, for the year ended on that date. R
Basis for Qualified Opinion .

As discussed in Note 6, the Company’s financing arrangements are about to expire and the Company has been
unable to conclude renegotiations or obtain replacement financing. This situation indicates that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
financial statements do not adequately disclose this matter. ~

5. ABC Ltd. is a company engaged in the manufacture of iron and steel bars. PP & Associates are the statutory
‘auditors of ABC Ltd. for the FY 2020- 21. During the course of audit, CA Prakash, the engagement partner, found that
' the Company’s financing arrangements have expired and the amount outstanding was payable on March 31, 2021.
The Company has been unable to re-negotiate or obtain replacement financing and is considering filing for
bankruptcy. These events indicate a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. The financial statements (and notes thereto) do not disclose this fact. What opinion
should CA Prakash express in case of ABC Ltd.? (SM) '

In the present case based on audit evidence obtained, CA Prakash has concluded that a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern,
and the entity is considering bankruptcy. The financial statements of ABC Ltd. omit the required disclosures relating
to the material uncertainty. In such circumstances, CA Prakash should express an adverse opinion because the effects
on the financial statements of such omission are material and pervasive.

The relevant extract of the Adverse Opinion Paragraph and Basis for Adverse Opinion paragraph is as under:

Adverse Opinion

In our opinion, because of the omission of the information mentioned in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of our
report, the accompanying financial statements do not present fairly, the financial position of the entity as at March
31, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Accounting
Standards issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Basis for Adverse Opinion ‘ v
The financing arrangemeﬁts of ABC Ltd. has expired and the amount outstanding was payable on March 31, 2021. The
entity has been unable to conclude re-negotiations or obtain replacement financing and is considering filing for
bankruptcy. This situation indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not adequately disclose this fact.
6. MNO Ltd. is a power generating company having its plants in the north eastern states of the country. For the FY
2020-21, M/s PRT & Associates are the statutory auditors of the company. During the course of audit, the audit
team was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about a single element of the consolidated
financial statements. That is, the auditor was also unable to obtain audit evidence about the financial information
of a joint venture investment (in XYZ Ltd.) that represents over 90% of the entity’s net assets. What kind of opinion
should the statutory auditors issue in such case?

(SM + Dec-21 Old)
M/s PRT & Associates are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the financial informiation of a
joint venture investment that represents over 90% of the entity’s net assets. The possible effects of this inability to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence are both material and pervasive to the consolidated financial
statements.
Therefore, the statutory auditor should issue a disclaimer of opinion.

The relevant extract of the Disclaimer of Opinion Paragraph and Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph is as under:

Disclaimer of Opinion

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of MNO Ltd. Because of the significance of
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The Group’s investment in its joint venture XYZ Company is carried at X 95 crores on the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet, which represents over 90% of the Group’s net assets as at March 31, 2021. We were not allowed access‘ to the
management and the auditors of XYZ Company, including XYZ Company’s auditors’ audit documentation. As a result,
we were unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary in respect of the Group’s proportional share
of XYZ Company’s assets that it controls jointly, its proportional share of XYZ Company’s liabilities for which it is jointly
responsible, its proportional share of XYZ's income and expenses for the year, (and the elements making up the
consolidated statement of changes in equity) and the consolidated cash flow statement.

7. While conducting audit of VED Ltd., you as an auditor are not only prevented in completing certain audit
procedures but also are not able to obtain audit evidence even by performing alternative procedures. How you will
deal with this situation? (Jan-21 Old) -

As per SA 705, “Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report”, if, after accepting the:

engagement, the auditor becomes aware that management has imposed a limitation on the scope of the audit that
the auditor considers likely to result in the need to express a qualified opinion or to disclaim an opinion on the financial
statements, the auditor shall request that management remove the limitation.

If management refuses to remove the limitation, the auditor shall communicate the matter to those charged with
governance, unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, and determine whether
it is possible to perform alternative procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.
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the auditor is unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, the auditor shall determine the lmphcat;ons

as follows:

i (1) If the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if any,
could be material but not pervasive, the auditor shall qualify the opinion; or .

: (2) If the auditor concludes that the possible effects on the financial statements of undetected misstatements, if any,
could be both material and pervasive so that a qualification of the opmlon would be inadequate to communicate the
gravity of the situation, the auditor shall: &

(i) Withdraw from the audit, where practicable and possible under applicable law or regulation; or

(ii) If withdrawal from the audit before issuing the auditor’s report is not practicable or possible, disclaim an opinion
on the financial statements. ’

If the auditor withdraws, before withdrawing, the auditor shall communicate to those charged with governance any
matters regarding misstatements identified during the audit that would have given rise to a modification of the

opinion.

8. What are the circumstances in which auditors are required to qualify their reports of companies for mattes
related to AS-1 ‘Disclosure of Accounting Policies’? (Jan-21 Old) ;

While discharging their attest function, the members of the Institute may keep the following in mind with regard to
mandatory Accounting Standards. As per AS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies, in the case of a company, members’
should qualify their audit reports in case: .

(i} accounting policies required to be disclosed under Schedule 11l or any other provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, have not been disclosed, or

(ii) accounts have not been prepared on accrual basis, or

(iii) the fundamental accounting assumption of going concern has not been followed and this fact has not been

disclosed in the financial statements, or
(iv) proper disclosures regarding changes in the accounting policies have not been made.

9. CA Madhu is the statutory auditor of Lakshmi Ltd. for the Financial year 2020-21. In respect of loans and advances
of Z 75 Lakh given to Srinian Pvt. Ltd., the Company has not furnished any agreement to CA Madhu and in absence
of the same, he is unable to verify the terms of repayment, chargeability of interest and other terms. Justify the
type of opinion which CA Madhu should give in such situation. Also, Draft an appropriate Opinion paragraph and
Basis of opinion paragraph. [Dec-21 New] ’ '

In the present case, with respect to loans and advances of X 75 Lacs given to Sriman Pvt. Limited, the Company has
not furnished any agreement to CA Madhu. In the absence of such an agreement, CA Madhu is unable to verify the
terms of repayment, chargeability of interest and other terms. For an auditor, while verifying any loans and advances,
one of the most important audit evidénce is the loan agreement. Therefore, the absence of such document in the
present case, tantamount to a material misstatement in the financial statements of the company. However, the
inability of CA Madhu to obtain such audit evidence is though material but not pervasive so as to require him to give
a disclaimer of opinion.

Thus, in the present case, CA Madhu should give a qualified opinion

The relevant extract of the Qualified Opinion Paragraph and Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph is as under:
Qualified Opinion :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects
of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the financial statements of Lakshri
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Limited give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state

of affairs of the Company as on 31.03.2021 and profit/ loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
The Company is unable to furmsh the loan agreement with respect to loans and advances of 2 75 Lacs given to Sriman
Pvt Limited. Consequently, in the absence of such an agreement, we are unable to verify the terms of repayment,
chargeability of interest and other terms.

10. CA. Uma is the Statutory Auditor of RJ Ltd. for the financial year 2021-22. The company is engaged in the
production of electronic products. During the course of audit, CA. Uma obtained certain audit evidence of incorrect
disclosure of related party transactions and structured finance deals which was not considered with the affirmationk.
leading to misstatement in the financial statements. Discuss how CA Uma should deal with the situation in the

auditor's report and the different options which can be considered? [Nov-22]

Auditor’s duties in case of inconsistency in Audit evidence: SA 705 “Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent
Auditor’s Report”, deals with auditor’s responsibility to issue an appropriate report in circumstances when, in forming
an opinion in accordance with SA 700 (Revised), the auditor concludes that a modification to the auditor’s opinion on
the financial statements is necessary. )

The decision regarding which type of modified opinion is appropriate depends upon:

(a) The nature of the matter giving rise to the modification, that is, whether the financial statements are materlally
misstated or, in the case of an inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence, may be materially misstated;
& ,
(b) The auditor’s judgement about the pervasiveness of the effects or possible effects of the matter on the financial y ‘
statements.

Further, the auditor shall modify the opinion in the auditor’s report when the auditor concludes that based on the
audit evidence obtained, that the financial statements as a whole are not free from material misstatement:

In the present case, during the course of the audit, CA Uma obtained certain audit evidence which was not consistent
with the affirmation made in financial statements. Therefo re CA Uma should modify his report in accordance with SA
705.

Conclusion:

Since CA Uma has obtained audit evidence which is inconsistent with the affirmations made in the financial
statements. CA Uma should modify his opinion as per the circumstances of the case.

* CA Uma shall express Qualified opinion when, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence, he concludes
that misstatements, individually or in the aggregate, are material, but not pervasive, to the financial statements.

e CA Uma shall express an Adverse opinion, where the auditor, having obtained sufficient appropriate evidence,
concludes that misstatements, individually, or in the aggregate, are both material and pervasive/ to the financial
statements.
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- SA706: “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and
- Other Matter Paragraphs in thedndependent Auditor’s Report”

“4. Enumerate certain important matters which can be included in '‘Emphasis of Matter paragraph' in an auditor’s
_ report. (Nov-19 Old) ’
gmphasis of Matter Paragraph in Audit Reports: SA 706 “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other~Matter
paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report”, deals with additional communication in the auditor’s report when
the auditor considers it necessary to draw user’s attention to a matter presented or disclosed in the financial
statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such importance that it is fundamental to user’s understanding of
the financial statements, the auditor shall include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report provided
the auditor has obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the matter is not mater/ially misstated in the
financial statements. Such a paragraph shall refer only to information presented or disclosed in the financial
statements.

Specific requirements for the auditor to include Emphasis of Matter paragraphs in the auditor’s report in certain
circumstances. These circumstances include: ;

« When a financial reporting framework prescribed by law or regulation would be unacceptable but for the fact that
it is prescribed by law or regulation.

o To alert users that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with a special purpose framework.

« When facts become known to the auditor after the date of the auditor’s report and the auditor provides a new 6r
amended auditor’s report (i.e., subsequent events);

Examples of circumstances where the auditor may consider it necessary to include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph
are:

« An uncertainty relating to the future outcome of exceptional litigation or Legulatory action.

« A significant subsequent event that occurs between the date of the financial statements and the date of the
auditor’s report. ! '
« Early application (where permitted) of a new accounting standard that has a material effect on the financial
‘statements.

A major catastrophe that has had, or continues to have, a significant effect on the entity’s financial position.
However, a widespread use of Emphasis of Matter paragraphs may diminish the effectiveness of the auditor’s

communication about such matters.

2. Difficult Books Limited is engaged in manufacturing of active pharmaceutical ingredients. Due to change in laws
and regulations, every company engaged in manufacturing in active pharmaceutical ingredients would now require
production capacity license which will restrict the production of companies. Management of the company assessed
the impact of the change in law over the financial position of company and appropriately disclosed the same in the
financial statement. Audit Team of the company evaluated management's disclosure and found it appropriate and
sufficient. However, considering the said matter as most important and fundamental to users understanding
regarding financial statement the audit team decided to disclose the same in Other Matter Paragraph.

You as an Engagement Partner are required to guide the Audit Team with respect to repdrting of the said matter in
Audit Report. {MTP Nov-22]

As per SA 706, “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report” if
the auditor considers it necessary to draw users’ attention to a matter presented or disclosed in the financial
statements that, in the auditor’s judgmeht, is of such importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of
financial statements, the auditor shall include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report provided: - -
(i) The auditor would not be required to modify the opinion in accordance with SA 705 as a resuit of the matter; and
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(ii) When SA 701 applies, the matter has not been determined to be a key audit matter to be communicated in the

auditor’s report.

In given case, since Difficult Books Ltd is engaged in manufacturing of active pharmaceutical ingredients, would now
require production capacity license which will restrict the production of companies, due to change in laws and
regulations. Management of the Difficult Books Limited assessed the impact of the change in law over the financial
position of company and appropriately disclosed the same in financial statement. Audit team evaluated
management's disclosure and found it appropriate and sufficient. However, considering said matter as most important
and fundamental to users understanding regarding financial statement the audit team decided to disclose the same.

The said matter is already disclosed and presented appropriately in financial statement and is of such importance that
is fundamental to the users understanding of the financial statement and hence, it required to be disclosed under
Emphasis of Matter paragraph.

Therefore, decision of audit team to disclose the same in Other Matter Paragraph is not in order, it should be disclosed
in Emphasis of Matter Paragraph.

~ SA 710: Comparative Information — .
Corresponding Figures and Comparative Financial Statements

1. It was observed from the modified audit report of the financial statements of ULFA Ltd. for the year ended 31st
March, 2019 that depreciation of X 4.25 crore for the year 2018-2019 had been charged off to the Statement of
Profit and Loss instead of including it in "carrying value of asset under construction". State in relation to the audit
for the year ended 31st March 2020, whether such modification in the previous year's audit report would have any ’
audit implication for the current year i.e. FY 2019-20 and if yes, how the auditor is required to deal with the same
in his audit report for the current year? (MTP Oct’20)

o | |

The audit report of P Ltd. for the year 2020-21 contained a qualification regarding non-provision of doubtful debts.
As the statutory auditor of the company for the year 2021-22, decide how would you report, if :

(i) The company does not make provision for doubtful debts in 2021-22?

(ii) The company makes adequate provision for doubtful debts in 2021-22? (MTP Mar’18)

Auditor’s responsibility in cases where audit report for an earlier year is qualified is given in SA 710 “Comparative
Information — Corresponding Figures and Comparative Financial Statements”.

As per SA 710, when the auditor’s report on the prior period, as previously issued, included a qualified opinion, a
disclaimer of opinion, or an adverse opinion and the matter which gave rise to the modified opinion is resolved and
properly accounted for or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework, the auditor’s opinion on the current period need not refer to the previous modification.

SA 710 further states that if the auditor’s report on the prior period, as previously issued, included a qualified opinion
and the matter which gave rise to the modification is unresolved, the auditor shall modify the auditor’s opinion on
the current period’s financial statements.

In the Basis for Modification paragraph in the auditor’s report, the auditor shall either:
¢ Refer to both the current period’s figures and the corresponding figures in the description of the matter giving rise
to the modification when the effects or possible effects of the matter on the current period’s figures are material ;
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o In other cases, explain that the audit opinion has been modified because of the effects or possible effects of the
unresolved matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures and the corresponding figures.

- In the instant case, if ULFA Ltd. does not correct the treatment of depreciation to the extent of rupees 4.25 crore for
previous year, the auditor will have to modify his report for both current and previous year’s figures as mentioned
above. If, however, the figures and provisions are corrected, the auditor need not consider to the earlier year’s

modification. he

2. You as a statutory auditor had audited the financial statements of A Ltd., a listed company, for F.Y. 2019-20. The
company has included the comparative financial information in the financial Statements prepared for the current
E.Y. 2020-21. You as an auditor want to obtain sufficient appropriate audit “evidence that comparative financial
information has been presented, in all material aspects, in accordance with the requirements in the applicable
financial reporting framework. List out audit procedures, as specified in relevant SA, which you are required to
follow for the purpose. [Dec-21 Old] @

What are the auditor’s responsibilities in respect of corresponding figures? (May-2010)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities in Respect of Corresponding Figures: As per SA 710 “Comparative Information—
Corresponding Figures and Comparative Financial Statements”, in respect of corresponding figures, the auditor shall
determine whether the financial statements include the comparative information required by the applicable financial -
reporting framework and whether such information is appropriately classified. ‘
.
(1) For this purpose, the auditor shall evaluate whether:
(i) The comparative information agrees with the amounts and other disclosures presented in the prior period; and
(i) The accounting policies reflected in the comparative information are consistent with those applied in the current
period or, if there have been changes in accounting policies, whether those changes have been properly accounted
for and adequately presented and disclosed. -
(2) If the auditor becomes aware of a possible material mlsstatement in the comparative information while
performing the current period audit, the auditor shall perform such additional audit procedures as are necessary in
the circumstances to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to determine whether a material misstatement
exists.

(3) If the auditor had audited the prior period’s financial statements, the auditor shall also follow the relevant
requirements of SA 560 “Subsequent Events”.

(4) As required by SA 580, “Written Representations”, the auditor shall request written representations for all periods
referred to in the auditor’s opinion. The auditor shall also obtain a specific written representation regarding any prior
period item that is separately disclosed in the current year’s statement of profit and loss.

SA 720: The Auditor’s Responsibility in Relation to Other Information

1. GS & Co., Chartered Accountants, have been appointed Statutory Auditors of MAP Ltd. for the F.Y 2019-20. The
audit team has completed the audit and is in the process of preparing audit report Management of the company
has also prepared draft annual report. Audit in-charge was going through the draft annual report and observed that
the company has included an item in its Annual Report indicating downward trend in market prices of key
commodities/raw material as compared to previous year. However, the actual profit margin of the company as
reported in financial statements has gone in the reverse direction. Audit Manager discussed this issue with partner
of the firm who in reply said that auditors are not covered with such disclosures made by the management in its
annual report, it being the responsibility of the management.
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Do you think that the partner is correct in his approach on this issue. Discuss with reference to relevant Standard
on Auditing the Auditor's duties with regard to reporting. (Nov’20 + RTP/MTP May-23)

Responding When the Auditor Concludes That a Material Misstatement of the Other Information Exists:

As per SA 720, “The Auditor’; Responsibility in Relation to Other Information”, Descriptions of trends in market
prices of key commodities or raw materials is an example of amounts or other Items that may be included in the other
information. The auditor’s discussion with management aﬁout a material inconsistency (or other information that
appears to be materially misstated) may include requesting management to provide support for the basis of
management’s statements in the other information. Based on management’s further information or explanations,
the auditor may be satisfied that the other information is not materially misstated. For example, management
explanations may indicate reasonable and sufficient grounds for valid differences of judgment.

Auditor’s duties with regard to reporting in the given case are given hereunder:

As per SA 720, “The Auditor’s Responsibility in Relation to Other Information”, if the auditor concludes that a material
misstatement of the other information exists, the auditor shall request management to correct the other
information.

If management:

(i) Agrees to make the correction, the auditor shall determine that the correction has been made; or

(ii) Refuses to make the correction, the auditor shall communicate the matter with those charged with governance
and request that the correction be made.

Contention of the partner of the firm that auditors are not concerned with such disclosures made by the management
in its annual report, is incorrect.

2. LMP Associates, Chartered Accountants, conducting the audit of PQR Ltd., a listed Company for the year ended
31st March 2019 is concerned with the auditor's responsibilities relating to other information, both financial and
non-financial, included in the Company’s annual report. While reading other information, LMP Associates considers
whether there is a material inconsistency between other information and the financial statements. As a basis for
the consideration the auditor shall evaluate their consistency, compare selected amounts or other items in the
other information with such amounts or other items in the financial statements. Guide LMP Associates with
examples of "Amounts” or "other items" that may be included in the "other information” with reference to SA 720.

{Nov-19 New)
Examples of Amounts or Other Items that May Be Included in the Other Information: As per SA 720 “The Auditor’s
Responsibility in Relation to Other Information”, the following are examples of amounts and other items that may
be included in other information: This list is not intended to be exhaustive.

Amounts

i) Items in a summary of key financial results, such as net income, earnings per share, dividends, sales and other
operating revenues, and purchasés and operating expenses.

ii) Selected operating data, such as income from continuing operations by major operating area, or sales by
geographical segment or product line.

iii) Special items, such as asset dispositions, Iltlgatlon pr0v15|ons assetlmpalrments tax adjustments, environmental
remediation provisions, and restructuring and reorganization expenses.

iv) Liquidity and capital resource information, such as cash, cash equivalents and marketable securltles leldends
and debt, capital lease and minority interest obligations. :

v) Capital expenditures by segment or division.

vi) Amounts involved in, and related financial effects of, off-balance sheet arrangements.

e e
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Amounts involved in guarantees, contractual obligations, legal or environmental claims, and other
contingencies. N

viii) Financial measures or ratios, such as gross margin, return on average capital employed, return on average

shareholders’ equity, current ratio, interest coverage ratio and debt ratio. Some of these may be directly.
reconcilable to the financial statements.

Other Items

i)
ii)

iii)

iv)
v)

vi)

vii)

Explanations of critical accounting estimates and related assumptions.

identification of related parties and descriptions of transactions with them.

Articulation of the entity’s policies or approach to manage commodity, foreign exchange or interest rate risks,
such as through the use of forward contracts, interestrate swaps, or other financial instruments.-

Descriptions of the nature of off-balance sheet arrangements.

Descriptions of guarantees, indemnifications, contractual obligations, litigation or environmental liability cases,
and other contingencies, including management’s qualitative assessments of the entity’s related exposures.
Descriptions of changes in legal or regulatory requirements, such as new tax or environmental regulations, that
have materially impacted the entity’s operations or fiscal position, or will have a material impact on the entity’s
future financial prospects.

Management’s qualitative assessments of the impacts of new financial reporting standards that have come
into effect during the period, or will come into effect in the following period, on the entity’s financial results,
financial position and cash flows. ~

2

viii) General descriptions of the business environment and outlook.

ix)

Overview of strategy. .
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1. The brofessional accountants need to observe certain fundamental principles, which are covered in the Code of
Ethics of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Briefly explain each of the five principles which needs to
be complied by the Chartered Accountants? [Nov-22]

Fundamental Principles: In order to achieve the objectives of the Accountancy profession, professional accountants
have to observe a number of prerequisites or fundamental principles. The fundamental principles as discussed in Code
of Ethics of ICAI, to be complied, are given below:

(i) Integrity — A professional accountant shall comply with the principle of integrity, which requires an accountant to
be straightforward and honest in all professional and business relationships. Integrity implies fair dealing an(!
truthfulness.

(ii) Objectivity — A professional accountant shall comply with the principle of objectivity, which requires an accountant
not to compromise professional or business judgment because of bias, conflict of interest or undue influence of

others.

(iii) Professional Competence and Due Care — A professional accountant shall comply with the principle of
professional competence and due care, which requires an accountant to: '

(a) Attain and maintain professional knowledge and skill at the level required to ensure that a client or.employing
organization receives competent professional service, based on current technical and professional standards and
relevant legislation; and

(b) act diligently in accordance with applicable technical and professional standards.

(iv) Confidentiality — A professional accountant shall comply with the principle of confidentiality, which requires an
accountant to respect the confidentiality of information acquired as a result of professional and employment
relationships.

(v) Professional Behaviour — A professional accountant shall comply with the principle of professional behaviour,
which requires an accountant to comply with relevant laws and regulations and avoid any conduct that accountant
knows or should know might discredit the profession.

Conduct that might discredit the profession includes conduct that a reasonable and informed third party would be
likely to conclude adversely affects the good reputation of the profession.

A professional accountant shall not knowingly engage in any employment, occupation or activity that impairs or might
impair the integrity, objectivity or good reputation of the profession, and as a result would be incompatible with the
fundamental principles.

2. A professional accountant in public practice is always subject to various threats in compliance with fundamental
principles of his profession and you, as a professional accountant, are worried about engagement specific threat in
your audit assignment of M/s Soft Ltd. and want to implement some measures to eliminate and reduce the same.
Enumerate some engagement specific safeguards which you may introduce in your work environment to ward off
such threats. (May-19 New)

Engagement-specific safeguards in the work environment may include: ,
s Assigning additional time and qualified personnel to required tasks when an engagement has been accepted
might address a self-interest threat.
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e Having an appropriate reviewer, who was not a member of the team, review the work performed or advise as

necessary might address a self-review threat. . )

» Using different partners and engagement teams with separate reporting lines for the provision of non-assurance
services to an assurance client might address self-review, advocacy or familiarity threats. . ,

« - Involving another firm to perform or re-perform part of the engagement might address self-interest, self-review,
advocacy, familiarity or intimidation threats.

« Separating teams when dealing with matters of a confidential nature might address a self-interest threat.

3. The audit team is preparing to conduct audit for ABC Company for the period ending 31.3.2020. However, the
audit team has not received its audit fees from ABC’Company for its audit concluded for the period ended 31.3.2019.
The audit team might be tempted to issue a favorable report so that ABC Company is able to secure a loan to settle
the fees outstanding for their 31.3.2019 audit. The audit team is not complying the fundamental principles of
auditing hence hindering the Auditor's independence. Explain the types of threats that may hinder Auditor's
independence while issuing Audit Report. (Jan-21 New)

In given case of ABC Company, audit team is preparing to conduct its audit for the F.Y ending on 31.03.2020. Audit
firm did not receive its fees for the F.Y ending on 31.03.2019. Audit team is tempteéf to issue a favourable report so
that auditee can secure a loan to settle auditor’s outstanding fees. The audit team did not comply with fundamental
principles of auditing and hence compromising Auditor’s Independence.

The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants prepared by the International Federation of Accountants (IFA.C)
identifies five types of threats. These are: .

1. self-interest threats, which occur when an auditing firm, its partner or associate could benefit from a financial
interest in an audit client. Examples include (i) direct financial interest or materially significant indirect financial
interest in a client, (i) loan or guarantee to or from the concerned client, @ii) undue dependence on a client’s fees
and, hence, concerns about Iosing the engagement, (iv) close business relationship with an audit client, (v) potential
employment with the client, and (vi) contingent fees for the audit engagement.

'2. self-review threats, which occur when during a review of any judgement or conclusion reached in a previous audit

or non-audit engagement (Non audit services include any professional services provided to an entity by an auditor,
other than audit or review of the financial statements. These include management services, internal audit, investment
advisory service, design and implementation of information technology systems etc.), or when a member of the audit
team was previously a director or senior employee of the client. Instances where such threats come into play are (i)
when an auditor is having recently been a director or senior officer of the company, and (i) when auditors perform
services that are themselves subject matters of audit.

3. Advocacy threats, which occur when the-auditor promotes, or is perceived to promote, a client’s opinion to a
point where people may believe that objectivity is getting compromised, and e.g. when an auditor deals with shares
or securities of the audited company, or becomes the client’s advocate in litigation and third party disputes.

4. Familiarity threats are self—evidenf, and occur when auditors form relationships with the client where they end up
being too sympathetic to the client’s interests. This can occur in many ways: (i) close relative of the audit team
working in a senior position in the client company, (ii) former partner of the audit firm being a director or senior
employee of ~he client, (iii) long association between specific auditors and their specific client counterparts, and (iv)
acceptance of significant gifts or hospitality from the client company, its directors or employees. '
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5. |nt|m|dat|on threats, which occur when auditors are deterred from acting objectively with an adequate degree of

profess;onal skepticism. Basically, these could happen because of threat of replacement over disagreements with the
application of accounting principles, or pressure to disproportionately reduce work in response to reduced audit fees,

4. P, a Chartered Accountans in practice provides management consultancy and other services to his clients. During
2020, looking to the growing needs of his clients to invest in the stock markets, he also advised them on Portfolio
Management Services whereby he managed portfolios of 'some of his clients. Is P guilty of professional misconduct? -

(sm)
Advising on Portfollo Management Services: The Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
pursuant to Section 2(2)(iv) of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 has passed a resolution permitting
“Management Consultancy and other Services” by a Chartered Accountant in practice. A clause of the aforesaid R
resolution allows Chartered Accountants in practice to act as advisor or consultant to an issue of securities including
such matters as drafting of prospectus, filing of documents with SEBI, preparation of publicity budgets, advice
regarding selection of brokers, etc. It is, however, specifically stated that Chartered Accountants in practice are not
permitted to undertake the activities of broking, underwriting and portfolio management services. Thus, a
chartered accountant in practice is not permitted to manage portfolios of his clients. In view of this, P would be guilty
of misconduct under the Chartered Accountant s Act, 1949.

5. Mr. G, a Chartered Accountant in practice as a sole proprietor has an office in Mumbai near Church Gate. Due to
increase in professional work, he opens another office in a suburb of Mumbai which is approximately 80 kilometers
away from the municipal limits of the city. For running the new office, he employs three retired Income-tax Officers.
Is Mr. G guilty of professional misconduct? (SM)

In terms of section 27 of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, if a chartered accountant in practice has more than
one office in India, each one of these offices should be in the separate charge of a member of the Institute. There is -
however an exemption for the above if the second office is located in the same premises, in which the first office is
located; or the second office is located in the same city, in which the first office is located; or the second office is
located within a distance of 50 kms from the municipal limits of a city, in which the first office is located. Since the
second office is situated beyond 50 kms of municipal limits of Mumbai city, he would be liable for commlttmg a
professional misconduct.

6. Mr. K, a practicing Chartered Accountant gave 50% of the audit fees received by him to a non-Chartered
Accountant, Mr. L, under the nomenclature of office allowance and such an arrangement continued for a number
of years. Discuss this in the light of Professional Ethics issued by ICAL (SM)

Sharing of Audit Fees with Non-Member: As per Clause (2) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants
Act, 1949 a member shall be held guilty if a Chartered Accountant in practice pays or allows or agrees to pay or allow,
direttly or indirectly, any share, commission or brokerage in the fees or profits of his professional business, to any
person other than a member of the Institute or a partner or a retired partner or the legal representative of a deceased
partner, or a member of any other professional body or with such other persons having such qualification as may be
prescribed, for the purpose of rendering such professional services from time to time in or outside India.

In the instant case, Mr. K, a practising Chartered Accountant gave 50% of the audit fees received by him to a non-
Chartered Accountant, Mr. L, under the nomenclature of office allowance and such an arrangement continued for a
number of years. In this case, it is not the nomenclature to a transaction that is material but it is the substance of the
transaction, which has to be looked into.

The Chartered Accountant had shared his profits and, therefore, Mr. K will be held guilty of professional misconduct
under the Clause (2) of Part I of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.
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7. Mr. X who passed his CA examination of ICAl on 18t July, 2020 and started his practice from August 15, 2020. On
16t August 2020, one female candidate approached him for articieship. in addition to monthly stipend, Mr. X also
offered her 1 % profits of his CA firm. She agreed to take both 1 % profits of the CA firm and stipend as per the ra;‘te
prescribed by the ICAI. The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India sent a letter to Mr. X objecting the payment
of 1 % profits. Mr. X replies to the ICAIl stating that he is paying 1 % profits of his firm over and above the stipend
to help the articled clerk as the financial position of the articled clerk is very weak. Is Mr. X liable to prbfessional
misconduct? (SM)

sharing Fees with an Articled Clerk: As per Clause (2) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act
1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of profes;ional misconduct if he pays or allows
or agrees to pay or allow, directly or indirectly, any share, commission or brokerage in the fees or profits of his
professional business, to any person other than a member of the Institute or a partner or a retired partner or the

legal representative of a deceased partner, or a member of any other professional body or with such other persons.

having such qualification as may be prescribed, for the purpose of rendering such professional services from time to
time in or outside India. .

in view of the above, the objections of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as given in the case, are correct
and reply of Mr. X, stating that he is paying 1 % profits of his firm over and above the stipend to help the articled clerk
as the position of the articled clerk is weak is not tenable.

Hence, Mr. X is guilty of professional misconduct in terms of Clause (2) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act 1949, g

8. M/s XYZ, a firm in practice, develops a website “xyz.com”. The colour chosen for the website was a very bright
green and the web-site was to run on a “push” technology where the names of the partners of the firm and the
major clients were to be displayed on the web-site without any disclosure obligation from any regulator. Is this
website in compliance with guidelines issued by ICAI in this regard? (SM),

Posting of Particulars on Website: The Council of the Institute had approved posting of particulérs on website by
Chartered Accountants in practice under Clause (6) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949
subject to the prescribed guidelines.
The relevant guidelines in the context of the website hosted by M/s XYZ are:

+ No restriction on the colours used in the website;

+ The websites are run on a “pull” technology and not a “push” technology;

+ Names of clients and fees charged not to be given.

However, disclosure of names of clients and/or fees charged, on the website is permissible only where it is required
by a regulator, whether or not constituted under a statute, in India or outside India, provided that such disclosure is
only to the extent of requirement of the regulator.

Where such disclosure of names of clients and/or fees charged is made on the website, member/ firm shall. ensure
that it is mentioned on the website [in italics], below such disclosure itself, that v
“This disclosure is in terms of the requirement of [name of the regulator] having jurisdiction in [name of the

country/area where such regulator has jurisdiction] vide [Rule/ Directive etc. under which the disclosure is required by

the Regulator].

In view of the above, M/s XYZ would have no restriction on the colours used in the website but failed to satisfy the
other two guidelines. Thus, the firm would be liable for professional misconduct since it would amount to soliciting
work by advertisement. . - o
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9. A partner of a firm of chartered accountants during a T.V. interview handed over a bio-data of his firm to the

chairpersbn. Such bio-data detailed the standing of the international firm with which the firm was associated. it
also detailed the achievements of the concerned partner and his recognition as an expert in the field of taxation in
the country. The chairperson read out the said bio-data during the interview. Discuss whether this action by the
Chartered Accountant would\amount to misconduct or not. (SM)

Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 prohibits solicitation of client or
professional work either directly or indirectly by circular, advertisement, personal communication or interview or by
any other means since it shall constitute professional misconduct.

Bio-data was handed over to the chairperson during the T.V. interview by the Chartered Accountant which included
details about the firm and the achievements of the partner as an expert in the field of taxation. The chairperson simply
read out the same in detail about association with the international firm as also the achievements of the partner and
his recognition as an expert in the field of taxation. Such an act would definitely lead to the promotion of the firms’
name and publicity thereof as well as of the partner and as such the handing over of bio-data cannot be approved.

The partner would be held guilty of professional miscount under Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. )

10. (a) An advertisement was published in a Newspaper containing the photograph of Mr. X, a member of the
institute wherein he was congratulated on the occasion of the opening ceremony of his office.

(b) Mr. X, a Chartered Accountant and the proprietor of X & Co., wrote several letters to the Assistant Registrar of
Co-operative Societies stating that though his firm was on the panel of auditors, no audit work was allotted to the
firm and further requested him to look into the matter. {sm)

(a) Publishing an Advertisement Containing Photograph: As per Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in.practice shall be deemed to be guilty of misconduct if he
solicits clients or professional work either directly or indirectly by a circular, advertisement, personal communication
or interview or by any other means. ‘

In the given case, Mr. X published an advertisement in a Newspaper containing his photograph on the occasion of the
opening ceremony of his office. On this context, it may be noted that the advertisement which had been put in by the
member is quite prominent. If soliciting of work is allowed, the independence and forthrightness of a Chartered
Accountant in the discharge of duties cannot be maintained.

The above therefore amounts to soliciting professional work by advertisement directly or indirectly. Mr. X would be
therefore held guilty under Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949,

\b) Soliciting Professional Work: As per Clause (6) of Part 1 of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act,
1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of misconduct if he solicits clients or
professional work either directly or indirectly by a circular, advertisement, personal communication or interview or
by any other means.

In given casé, Mr. X, a Chartered Account\ant and proprietor of M/s X and Co., wrote several letters to the Assistant
Registrar of Co-operative Societies, requesting for allotment of audit work. In similar cases, it was held that the
Chartered Accountant would be guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to
the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI ; 100




h-2 Professional Ethics Learn with Fun
consequently, Mr. X would therefore be held guilty under Clause {6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered

" accountants Act, 1949. )

- 11. A practising Chartered Accountant uses a visiting card in which he designates himself, besides as Chartered
Accountant, Cost Accountant. Is this a misconduct? (SM) '

: .
Cost Accountant: As stated in the lllustration given in clause 7 with reference to tax consultant, this would also
constitute misconduct under section 7 of the Act read with Clause (7) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949. A chartered accountant in practice cannot use any other designation than that of a chartered

"~ accountant. ! .

Nevertheless, a member in practice may use any other letters or descriptions indicating membership of accountancy
bodies which have been approved by the Council. Thus, it is improper for a chartered -accountant to state in his
documents that he is a “Cost Accountant”. However as per the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, the Council has
resolved that the members are permitted to use letters indicating membership of the Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants but not the designation “Cost Accountant”. '

12. Mr. Nigal, a Chartered Accountant in practice, delivered a speech in the national conference organized by the
Ministry of Textiles. While delivering. the speech, he told to the audience that he is a management expert and his
firm provides services of taxation and audit at reasonable rates. He also requested the audience to approach his
firm of chartered accountants for these services and at the request of audience he also distributed his busmess
cards and telephone number of his firm to those in the audience. Comment. (Apr-21 MTP + May-22)

Using Designation Other Than a CA and Providing Details of Services Offered: Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule
~ to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 states that a Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty
of misconduct if he solicits clients or professional work either directly or<indirectly by a circular, advertisement,
personal communication or interview or by any other means. Such a restraint has been put so that the members
maintain their independence of judgment and may be able to command respect from their prospective clients.

“Section 7 of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 read with Clause (7) of Part | of the First Schedule to the said Act
prohibits advertising of professional attainments or services of a member. !t also restrains a member from using any
designation or expression other than that of a chartered accountant in documents through which the professional
attainments of the member would come to the notice of the public. ’
Under the clause, use of any designation or expression other than chartered accountant for a chartered accountant
in practice, on professional documents, visiting cards, etc. amounts to a misconduct unless it be a degree of a
university or a title indicating membership of any other professional body recognised by the Central Government or
the Council.

Member may appear on television and films and agree to broadcast in the Radio or give lectures at forums and may
give their names and describe themselves as Chartered Accountants. Special qualifications or specialized knowledge
direétly relevant to the subject matter of the programme may also be given but no reference should be made, in the
case of practicing member to the name and address or services of his firm. What he may say or write must not be
promotional of his or his firm but must be an objective professional view of the topic under consideration.

Thus, it is improper to use designation “Management Expert” since neither it is a degree of a University established
by law in India or recognised by the Central Government nor itis a recognised professional membership by the Central
Government or the Council. Therefore, he is deemed to be gullty of professional misconduct under both Clause (6)
and Clause (7) as he has used the designation “Management Expert” in his speech and also he has made reference
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to the services provided by his firm of Chartered Accountants at reasonable rates. Distribution of cards to audience

is also a misconduct in terms of Clause (6).

13. Mr. A is a practicing Chartered-Accountant working as proprietor of M/s A & Co. He went abroad for 3 months,
He delegated the authority to Mr. Y a Chartered Accountant his employee for taking care of routine matters of his
office. During his absence Mr. Y has conducted the under mentioned jobs in the name of M/s A & Co.

(i) He issued the audit queries to client which were raised during the course of audit.

(ii) He issued production certificate to a client under the GST Act.

(iil) He attended the Income Tax proceedings for a client as authorized representative before Income Tax

Authorities.
Please comment on eligibility of Mr. Y for conducting such jobs in name of M/s A & Co. and liability of Mr. A under,
the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. (SM)

Delegation of Authority to the Employee: As per Clause (12) of Part | of the First Schedule of the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct “if he
allows a person not being a member of the Institute in practice or a member not being his partner to sign on his behalf
or on behalf of his firm, any balance sheet, profit and loss account, report or financial statements”.

In this case CA A proprietor of M/s A & Co., went to abroad and delegated the authority to another Chartered
Accountant Mr. Y, his employee, for taking care of routine matters of his office who is not a partner but a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants

Council has clarified that power to sign routine documents on which a professional opinion or authentication is not
required to be expressed may be delegated and such delegation will not attract provisions of this clause like issue of
audit queries during course of audit, asking for information or issue of questionnaire, attending to routing matters in-
tax practice, subject to Sec 288 of Income Tax Act etc.

(i) Inthe given case, Mr. Y, a chartered accountant being employee of M/s A & Co. has issued audit queries which
were raised during the course of audit. Here Y is right in issuing the query, since the same falls under routine
work which can be delegated by the auditor. Therefore, there is no misconduct in this case as per Clause (12) of
Part | of First schedule to the Act.

(i) Further, issuance of production certificate to client under GST Act by Mr. Y being an employee of M/s A & Co.
(an audit firm), is not routine work and is outside his authorities. Thus, CA A is guilty of professional misconduct
under Clause (12) of Part | of First Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. :

(iii) In this instance, Mr. Y, CA employee of audit firm M/s A & Co. has attended the Income tax proceedings for a
client as authorized representative before Income Tax Authorities. Since the council has allowed the delegation
of such work, chartered accountant employee can attend to routine matter in tax practice as decided by the
council, subject to provisions of Section 288 of the Income Tax Act. Therefore, there is no misconduct in this case
as per Clause (12) of Part | of First schedule to the Act.

14. XYZ Co. Ltd. has applied to a bank for loan facilities. The bank on studying the financial statements of the
company notices that you are the auditor and requests you to call at the bank for a discussion. In the course of
discussions, the bank asks for your opinion regarding the company and also asks for detailed information regarding
a few items in the financial statements. The information is available in your working paper file. What should be
your response and why? (SM) '

As per Clause (1) of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant
in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he discloses information acquired in the course of his

m
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,professional engagement to any person other than his client, without the consent of the client or otherwise than as

required by law for the time being in force. N

SA 200 on " Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with
standards on Auditing” also reiterates that, "the auditor should respect the confidentiality of information acquired
in the course of his work and should not disciose any such information to a third party without specific authority or

unless there is a legal or professional duty to disclose". he

In the instant case, the bank has asked the auditor for detailed information regarding few items in the financial
statements available in his working papers. Having regard to the position stated earlier, the auditor cannot disclose
the information in his possession without specific permission of the client. )

As far as working papers are concerned, working papers are the property of the auditor. The auditor may at his
discretion, make portions of or extracts from his working papers available to his client".

Thus, there is no requirement compelling the auditor to divulge information obtained in the course of audit and
included in the working papers to any outside agency except as and when required by any law.

15. Mr. A, a newly qualified Chartered Accountant, started his practice and sought clients through telephone calls
from his family and friends, almost all of them employed in one or other retail trade business. One of his friends
Mr. X gave him an idea to start online services and give stock certifications to traders with Cash Credit Limits in
Banks. Mr. A started a website with colourful catchy designs and shared the website address on his all social media
posts and stories and tagged 30 traders of his local community with caption “Easy Online Stock Certification
Services”. Besides, Mr. A entered in an agreement with a Digital Marketer to give 5% commission on each service
procured through him. Discuss if actions of Mr. A are valid in light of Professional Ethics and various
pronouncements and guidelines issued by ICAI. (SM) -

As per Clause (6) of Part | of the First schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in
practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he solicits clients or professional work either directly or
" indirectly by circular, advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means.

Mr. A is wrong in seeking clients through family and friends. Creating a website is not a non - compliance provided it
is in line with the guidelines issued by the Institute in this regard. One of the guidelines is that the website should not
be in push mode.

Further, mentioning of clients’ names is also prohibited as per the guidelines.

In the given situation, Mr. A shared the website address on his all social media posts and stories and tagged 30 traders
of his local community with the caption “Easy Online Stock Certification Services” mentioning his current clients as

well. This is in complete contravention of the guidelines on website issued by the ICAL

Thus, CA, A would be held guilty of professional misconduct under clause 6 of Part 1 of First Schedule of the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949.

Author’s note: ICAI has asked this Q. twice & ignored Clause(2), Part |, First Schedule, so kindly avoid that.

16. Mr. D, a p_racticing CA, is appointed as a Director Simplicitor in XYZ Pvt. Ltd. After one year of appointment, Mr.
D resigned as the Director and accepted the Statutory Auditor position of the company. Is Mr. D right in accepting
the auditor position? (SM + Dec-21 New) =
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As per Clause (4) of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant

in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he expresses his opinion on financial statements of
any business or enterprise in which he, his firm, or a partner in his firm has a substantial interest.

Section 141 of the Companieg Act, 2013 specifically prohibits a member from auditing the accounts of a company in
which he is an officer or employee. Although the provisions of the aforesaid section are not specifically applicable in
the context of audits performed under other statutes, e.g. tax audit, yet the underlying principle of independence of
mind is equally applicable in those situations also. Therefore, Council’s views are clarified in the following situations.

As per the clarifications issued by the Council, a member shall not accept the assignment of audit of a Company for
a period of two years from the date of completion of his tenure as Director, or resignation as Director of the said
Company.

In the instant case, Mr. D, a practicing CA, is appointed as a Director Simplicitor in XYZ Pvt. Ltd. After one year of
appointment, Mr. D resigned as the Director and accepted the Statutory Auditor position of the company. In view of
above provisions Mr. D cannot accept statutory audit of company until completion of two years after his resignation.

Thus, CA, D woul.d. be held guilty of professional misconduct under clause 4 of Part 1 of Second Schedule of tie
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949,

17. Mr. F, a Chartered Accountant, gave advisory services to PQR Pvt. Ltd. Further, he gave them GST consultancy
and helped in ERP set up. Later, the company turned out to be a part of a group of companies involved in money
laundering. Mr. F was asked to provide details of the companies. Mr. F refused on the grounds that he gave only
consultancy services to the company and wasn’t supposed to keep any information about the company. Is Mr. F
right as per the guidelines issued by the ICAI? (SM) ‘

The financial services industry globally is required to obtain information of their clients and comply with Know Your
Client Norms (KYC norms). Keeping in mind the highest standards of Chartered Accountancy profession in India, the
Council of ICAl issued such norms to be observed by the members of the profession who are in practice.

In the given situation, CA. F, gave GST consultancy and helped in ERP set up along with advisory services to PQR Pvt.
Ltd. Mr. F was asked to provide details of the companies as the company, turned out to be a part of a group of
companies, involved in money laundering. Contention of Mr. F that he gave only consultancy services to the company
and wasn’t supposed to keep any information about the company is not valid as Mr. F should have kept following
information in compliance with KYC Norms which are mandatory in nature and shall apply in all assignments pertaining
to attestation functions.
In the given case of PQR Pvt. Ltd., a Corporate Entity, Mr. F should have kept following information:
A General Information

v" Name and Address of the Entity

v' Business Description '

v" Name of the Parent Company in case of Subsidiary

v Copy of last Audited Financial Statement

B. Engagement Information Type of Engagement
C. Regulatory Information '
¥" Company PAN No.
Company ldentification No.
Directors’ Names & Addresses
Directokrk's' Identification No.

ANEANERN
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18. Mr. S, the auditor of ABC Pvt. Ltd. has delegated following works to his articles and staff:
‘i Issue of audit queries during the course of audit.
ji. 1ssue of memorandum of cash verification and other ;hysical verification.
i Letter forwarding draft observations/financial statements.
jv. Issuing acknowledgements for records produced.
v. Signing financial statements of the ’company.
Is this correct as per the Professional Ethics and ICAY's guidelines and pronouncements? {SM) %

As per Clause (12) of Part | of the First Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in
practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he allows a person not being a member of the institute
in practice or a member not being his partner to sign on his behalf or on behalf of his firm, any balance sheet, profit
and loss account, report or financial statements: ‘

The Council has clarified that the power to sign routine documents on which a professional opinion or authentication
is not required to be expressed may be delegated in the following instances and such delegation will not attract
provisions of this clause:

(i) Issue of audit queries during the course of audit.

(i) Asking for information or issue of questionnaire.

(ii) Letter forwarding draft observations/financial statements.

(iv) Initiating and stamping of vouchers and of schedules prepared for the purpose of audit.

(v) Acknowledging and carrying on routine correspondence with clients. »

(vi) Issue of memorandum of cash verification and other physical verification or recording the results thereof in

the books of the clients.

(vii) Issuing acknowledgements for records produced.

(viii) Raising of bills and issuing acknowledgements for money receipts.

(ix) Attending to routine matters in tax practice, subject to provisions oj Section 288 of Income Tax Act.

(x) Any other matter incidental to the office administration and routine work involved in practice of accountancy.

¥

In instant case, Mr. S, the auditor of ABC Pvt. Ltd. has delegated certain task to his articles and staff such as issue of
~audit queries during the course of audit, issue of memorandum of cash verification and other physical verification,
letter forwarding draft observations/financial statements, issuing acknowledgements for records produced and
signing financial statements of the company. ' '

Therefore, Mr. S is correct in allowing first four tasks i.e. issue of audit queries during the course of audit, issue of
memorandum of cash verification and other physical verification, letter forwarding draft observations/financial
statements, issuing acknowledgements for records produced to his staff and articles.

However, if the person signing the financial statements on his behalf is not a member of the institute in practice or a
member not being his partner to sign on his behaif or on behalf of his firm, Mr. S is wrong in delegating signing of
financial statements to his staff.

Conclusion: In view of this, S would be guilty of professional misconduct for allowing signing of financial statements
on his behalf to his articles and staff under Clause 12 of Part 1 of First Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act,
1949. '

19. Nam & Co., conducted Stock Audit of DEF Ltd. as per instructions issued by HEG Bank. However instead of visiting
the site where the stock was lying, the firm relied on the Management Information Systems report along with
inspections reports and photographs of Stock taken by the employees of DEF Ltd. The photographs were also
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carrying the date and time printed on them. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and

its schedules thereto. (Jan-21 New)

According to Clause (7) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant
in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he “does not exercise due diligence or is grossly
negligent in the conduct of his professional duties”.

It is a vital clause which usually gets attracted whenever it is necessary to judge whether the accountant has
honestly and reasonably discharged his duties. The expression negligence covers a wide field and extends from the
frontiers of fraud to collateral minor negligence.

In the instant case, CA. Nam &Co. did not exercise due diligence and is grossly negligent in the conduct of his
professional duties since it did not visit the site where the stock was lying and instead the firm relied on the MIS report
along with inspection reports and photographs of stock taken by the employees of DEF Ltd, which is incorrect.

To conduct stock audit, ascertainment of existence and physical condition of stocks, cross tallying the stock with Stock
statement submitted by bank borrower, correct classification of stocks for valuation purpose etc. is essential. Further
submitting stock audit report without physically verifying the stock amounts to gross negligence.

From the above, it can be concluded that Nam & Co. is guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (7) of Part Ivof
Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

20. CA N was appointed as an auditor of JAL Ltd. The company has branches all over the state of Haryana. CA N, in
consultation with management, decided to Visit 6 out of 10 branches. Management decided to pay him advance of
X 2.00 Lacs against‘the estimated expenses of X 2.50 Lacs on visits to be conducted as a part of services rendered.
As agreed, X 2.00 Lacs was transferred in his bank account from which he met all the expenses. Comment with
reference to Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 whether the action of CA N of receiving the advance money in his
saving accounts and not keeping it in separate bank account is valid. (Jan-21 New)

As per Clause (10) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountant Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in
practice will be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he fails to keep moneys of his client other than the
fees or remuneration or money meant to be expended in a separate banking account or to use such moneys for
purposes for which they are intended within a reasonable time.

In the course of his engagement as a professional accountant, a member may be entrusted with monéys belonging to
his client. If he should receive such funds, it would be his duty to deposit them in a separate banking account, and to
utilize such funds only in accordance with the instructions of the client or for the purposes intended by the client.

In this connection the Council has considered some practical difficulties of the members and the following suggestion,
among other suggestions, has been made to remove these difficulties: “An advance received by a Chartered
Accountant against services to be rendered does not fail under Clause (10) of Part | of the Second Schedule”

In the given case, CA N was given an advance of X 2 Lakhs against the estimated expenses of ¥ 2.50 Lakhs on visits to
be conducted as a part of services rendered.

Applying the above, it can be concluded that CA N is not guilty of professional misconduct under Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949. '
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" 21. CA AB, a practicing chartered accountant, is a promoter director of ABG Pvt. Ltd. and moreover he is also a

" sleeping partner in his family business of garments manufacturing firm. Is CA AB liable for professional misconduct
as per Chartered Accountant Act 1949? (Jan-21 New)

a

clause (11) of Part | of the First Schedu[e to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 debars a chartered accountant in

bractice from engaging in any business or occupation other than the profession of chartered accountancy unless
permitted by the Council of the Institute so to engage. ' he

promoter/Promoter Director - There is no bar for a member to be a promoter / signatory to the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of any company. There is also no bar for such a promoter / signatory to be a Director
simplicitor of that company irrespective of whether the object of the company include areas,which fall within the
scope of the profession of chartered accounts. Therefore, members are not required to obtain specific permission of
the Council in such cases.

Sleeping partner in the family business-

Prior Approval — Members of the Institute in practice may engage in the following category, among other points, of
business or occupations, after obtaining the specific and prior approval of the Councilin case of:
Interest in family business concerns (including such interest devolving on the members as a result of inheritance /

succession / partition of the family business) or concerns in which interest has been acquired as a result of

relationships and in the management of which no active part is taken.

,
In the given case, CA AB is a promoter director of ABG Pvt Ltd and also he is a sleeping partner in his family business
of garments manufacturing firm.
Applying the above to the given case, it can be concluded that-CA AB:
¢ As Promoter Director- Not guilty of professional misconduct under Chartered Accountants Act, 1949
e As Sleeping Partner- guilty of professional misconduct under Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 as he did not obtain
prior approval of the Council. ' . .
22. CA Natraj, in practice, accepted an assignment as advisor and consultant to the public issue of shares by his
¢client M/s Super Ltd. Besides helping the company as an advisor, he also underwrote the public issue of the
company to the extent of 25% at a commission of 1%. Remaining shares were underwritten by banks and other
financial institutions at the same rate of commission. He contends that above assignments are part of management

consultancy work permitted by the council of the Institute. Do you agree with the view of CA Natraj? Decide in the

light of applicable code of conduct. (May-19 New)

Assignment as Advisor and Consultant: The Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) pursuant
to Section 2(2)(iv) of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 has passed a resolution permitting “Management
Consultancy and other Services” by a Chartered Accountant in practice. A clause of the aforesaid resolution allows
Chartered Accountants in practice to actas advisor or consultant to an issue of securities including such matters as
drafting of prospectus, filing of documents with SEBI, preparation of publicity budgets, advice regarding selection of
brokers, etc. It is, however, specifically stated that Chartered Accountants in practice are not permitted to undertake
the activities of broking, underwriting and portfolio management services.

In the instant case, CA Natraj accepted an assignment as advisor and consultant to the public issue of shares by his
client M/s Super Ltd. In addition, he also underwrote the public issue of the company to the extent of 25% at a
commission of 1%. Contention of CA. Natraj that advisor, consultant and underwriting work is part of management
consultancy work and permitted by the council is not correct as Chartered Accountants in practice are not permitted
to undertake the activities of broking, underwriting and portfolio management services. o~

e
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Conclusion: In view of this, CA. Natraj would be guilty of misconduct under the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949,

23. CA Sant, a newly qualified professional with certificate of practice, approached CA Pant, the auditor of his
father's company M/s Max Ltd., to allow him to have some practical and professional knowledge and experience -
in his firm before he can set up his own professional practice. CA Pant allowed him to sit in his office for 6 month
and allotted a small chamber with other office infrastructure facility. In the course of his association with CA Pant'.
s office, he used to provide tax consultancy independently to the client of the firm and also filed few IT and GST
return and represented himself before various tax authorities on behalf of the firm although no documents were
signed by him. During his association in CA Pant's office, he did not get any salary or share of profit or commission
but only re-imbursement of usual expenses like conveyance, telephone etc. was made to him. After the end of the
agreed period, he was given a lump sum amount of X 3,00,000 by CA Pant for his association out of gratitude.
Examine the case in the light of code of professional misconduct. (May-19 New + MTP Apr-22/May-23)

Clause (1) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 states that a chartered accountant
in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he allows any person to practice in his name as
a chartered accountant unless such person is also a chartered accountant in practice and is in partnership with or
employed by him.

The above clause is intended to safeguard the public against unqualified accountant practicing under the cover of
qualified accountants. It ensures that the work of the accountant will be carried out by a Chartered Accountant who
may be his partner, or his employee and would work under his control and supervision.

In the instant case, CA Pant allowed CA Sant (who is a newly qualified CA professional with COP) to sit in his office for

6 months, and allowed him to provide tax consultancy independently to his firm’s clients, filing of some IT and GST . '
Returns. He also allowed him to appear before various tax authorities on behalf of his firm. CA Sant was only
reimbursed with his usual expenses and was not paid any salary or share of profit for the same. However, after the
end of agreed period he was given a lump-sums of rupees 3,00,000 for his.association out of gratitude. )

Thus, in the present case CA. Pant will be held guilty of professional misconduct as per Clause (1) of Part | of First
Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 as he allowed CA Sant to practice in his name as Chartered

accountant and CA Sant is neither in partnership nor in employment with CA. Pant.

Author’s Note: Clause (2) won’t be attracted as sharing fees with another member of ICAIl is allowed.

24. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto: A special notice has
been issued for a resolution at 3rd annual general meeting of LED Ltd., providing expressly that CA. Anoop shall not
be re-appointed as an auditor of the: company. Consequently, CA. Anoop submitted a representation in writing to
the company with a request to circulate to the members. In the detailed representation, CA. Anoop included the
contributions made by him in strengthening the control procedures of the company during his association with the
company and also indicated his willingness to continue as an auditor if reappointed by the shéreholders of the
company. (Nov-19 New)

Soliciting Clients: As per Clause (6) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered
Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he solicits clients or professional work
either directly or indirectly by circula\r, advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means
except applying or requesting for or inviting or securing profeséional work from another chartered accountant in
practice and responding to tenders. -
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Further, section 140(4)(iii) of the Companies Act, 2013, provides a right, to the retiring auditor, to make

representation in writing to the company. The retiring auditor has the right for his representation to be circulated
among the members of the company and to be read out at the meeting. However, the content of letter should be set
" out in a dignified manner how he has been acting independently and conscientiously through the term of his office
- and may, in addition, indicate, if he so chooses, his willingness to continue as auditor, if re- appointed by the
shareholders. _ N

The proposition of the auditor to highlight contributions made by him in strengthening the control procedures in the
representation should not be included in such representations because the representation letter should not be

prepared in a manner so as to seek publicity. ’ -

Thus, highlighting contributions made by him in strengthening the control procedures, while submitting
representation U/S 140(4){iii) of the Companies Act 2013, would amount to canvassing of soliciting for his continuance
as auditor. '

Therefore, CA. Anoop will be held guilty for professional misconduct under Clause (6) of Part | of First Schedule to
the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

25. Mr. 'K’, a practicing Chartered Accountant is the proprietor of M/s K & Co. since 1995. He went abroad in the
month of December 2018. He delegated the authority to Mr. ‘Y’ a Chartered Accountant, his employee for taking
care of the important matters of his office. During his absence Mr. 'Y' has conducted the undermentioned jobs in
the name of M/s K & Co. -

(i) He issued Net worth certificate to a client for furnishing to a Bank.

(ii) He attended the GST proceedings for a client as authorized representative before GST Authorities.
Please comment on eligibility of Mr. 'Y' for conducting such jobs in name of M/s K & Co. and liability of Mr. 'K’ under
the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. (Nov-19 New) ~-

-

Delegation of Authority to the Employee: As per Clause (12) of Part | of the First Schedule of the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct “if he
- allows a person not being a member of the Institute in practice or a member not being his partner to sign on his behalf
or on behalf of his firm, any balance sheet, profit and loss account, report or financial statements”. ‘

In this case CA. ‘K’ proprietor of M/s K & Co., went abroad and delegated the authority to another Chartered
Accountant Mr. Y, his employee, for taking care of the important matters of his office who is not a partner but a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Council has clarified that the power to sign routine documents on which a professional opinion or authentication

is not required to be expressed may be delegated and such delegation will not attract provisions of this clause like

issue of audit queries during the course of audit, asking for information or issue of guestionnaire, attending to rou.ting

matters in tax practice, subject to provisions of Section 288 of Income Tax Act etc.

(i) Inthe given case, Mr. ‘Y’, a chartered accountant being employee of M/s K & Co. has issued net worth certificate
for furnishing to a bank. Since the issuance of net worth certificate to a client by Mr. “Y” being an employee of
M/s K& Co. (an audit firm), is not a routine work and it is outside his authorities. Thus, CA. ‘K’ is guilty of
professional misconduct under Clause (12) of Part | of First Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

(ii) Further, Mr. “Y”, CA employee of the audit firm M/s K& Co. has attended the GST proceedings for a client as
authorized representative before GST Authorities. Since the council has allowed the delegation of such work,
the chartered accountant employée can attend to routine matter in tax practice as decided by the council.
Therefore, there is no misconduct in this case as per Clause (12) of Part | of First schedule to the Act. e
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26. Mr. 'C’, a Chartered Accountant employed as Senior executive in charge of Tax in a company, and not holding

certificate of practice recommends a particular lawyer to his employer in respect of a case. The lawyer, out of the
professional fee received from the employer of Mr. 'C’ paid a particular sum as referral fee to Mr. 'C'. Comment
with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto. (Nov-19 New & Old)

Referral Fee from Lawyer: Achrding to Clause (2) of Part Il of First Schedule of the Chartered Accountant Act, 1949,
a member of the Institute(other than a member in practice) shall be guilty of professional misconduct, if he being an
employee of any‘company, firm or person accepts or agrees to accept any part of fee, profits or gains from a lawyer,
a chartered accountant or broker engaged by such company, firm or person or agent or customer of such company,
firm or person by way of commission or gratification.

In the present case, Mr. C who is an employee and by referring a lawyer to the company in respect of a case, he
receives a particular sum as referral fee from the lawyer out of his professional fee.

Conclusion: Therefore, Mr. C is guilty of professional misconduct by virtue of Clause (2) of Part Il of First schedule.

27. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto: CA Dice had signed the
Balance sheet of QR Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2019 which failed to give disclosure of the charge created
for X 4.35 crores against the Corporate Guarantee given in favour of a Group Company. The Balance Sheet snze of
the company filed with the Registrar of Companies was X 26.12 crores. (Nov-19 New)

Failure to Disclose Material Facts: As per Clause (5) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act,
1949, a chartered Accountant in practice will be held liable for misconduct if he fails to disclose a material fact known
to him which is not disclosed in a financial statement, but disclosure of which is necessary in making such financial
statement not misleading where he is concerned with that financial statement in a professional capacity.

It may be observed that this clause refers to failure to disclose a material fact, which is known to him, in a financial
statement repdrted on by the auditor. It is obvious, that before a member could be held guilty of misconduct,
materiality has to be established. The determination of materiality has been provided in SA 320, “Materiality in
Planning and Performing an Audit”.

Financial reporting frameworks often discuss the concept of materiality in the context of the preparation and
presentation of financial statements. Although financial reporting frameworks may discuss materiality in different
terms, they generally explain, among other points, that Judgments about materiality are made in the light of
surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.

In this case, CA Dice has signed a Balance Sheet which failed to give disclosure of % 4.35 crores (considered material
fact applying above SA 320 principle) against the corporate guarantee given in favour of a Group Company. Size of
Balance Sheet of QR Ltd is X 26.12 crore.

This material fact has to be disclosed in the financial statements. Keeping in view the above, he is attracted by the
provisions of professional misconduct under Clause (5) of Part 1 of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants
Act, 1949. ' '

Author’s Note: In ICAlI SM, same example is given under Clause(6) of Part | of Second Schedule of Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949. So, it’s better you quote both if this question repeats in exam.

28. Mr. Kushal, a practicing Chartered Accountant has signed the GST Audit Reports, Tax Audit Reports u/s 44AB of
the Income tax Act, 1961 for the financial year 2019-20 that are filed online using Digital Signature and without
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generating UDIN on the ground that there is no field for mentioning UDIN on digitally signed online reports. Is the

contention of Mr. Kushal valid? Give your comments with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and
schedules thereto. (Nov-20 New)

Non Generation of UDIN: Whereas, to curb the malpractice of false/certification/attestation by the unauthorized
persons and to eradicate the practice of bogus certificates and to save various regulators, banks, stakeholders etc.
from being misled, the Council of the Institute decided to implement an innovative concept to generate Unique
pocument ldentification Number (UDIN) mandatorily for all kinds of the certificates/GST and tax audit reports and
other attest function in phased manner, for which members of ICAI were notified through various announcements

published on website of ICAl at the relevant times. * -

In exercise of the powers conferred on it under clause 1 of Part Il of the Second Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act,1949, Council of ICAI issued following guidelines for information of public and necessary compliance
by members of the Institute-

A member of the Institute in practice shall generate UDIN for all kinds of certification, GST and Tax Audit Reports and
other Audit, Assurance and Attestation functions undertaken/signed by him which are made mandatory from the
following dates through announcements published on the website of the ICAI- ‘

e For all Certificates w.e.f. 1st February,2019.

» For all GST and Tax Audit Reports w.e.f. 1st April, 2019.

e For all other Audit, Assurance and Attestation functions, w.e.f. 1st July, 2019. R

Conclusion: UDIN will be applicable to GST & Tax Audit Reports signed by Mr. Kushal for the financial year 2019-20
that are filed online using Digital Signature. In case where there is no field for mentioning UDOIN on digitally signed
online reports, UDION has to be generated and communicated to “Management” or “Those Charged with
~ Governance” for disseminating it to the stakeholders from their end.

-~

Hence he will be held guilty under Clause 1 of Part Il of the Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act,1949.

Alternative Answer

According to Clause (9) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant
in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he fails to invite attention to any material
departure from the generally accepted procedure of audit applicable to the circumstances.

This clause implies that audit should be performed in accordance with “generally accepted procedure of audit
applicable to the circumstances” and if for any reason the auditor has not been able to perform the audit in
accordance with such procedure, his report should draw attention to the material departures from such procedures.

What constitutes “generally accepted audit procedure” would depend upon the facts and circumstances of each case,
but guidance is available in general terms from the various pronouncements of the-Institute is issued by way of
statements and Guidance Notes and SAs to members. '

A member of the Institute in practice shall generate Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for all kinds of
the certification, GST and Tax Audit Reports and other Audit, Assurance and Attestation functions undertaken/signed
by him.

In given case, Mr. Kushal has signed GST Audit Reports, Tax Audit Reports under section 44AB of Income Tax Act, 1961
for the F.Y.2019-20 and also has filed online using Digital Signature without generating UDIN on the ground that there
is no field for mentioning UDIN on digitally signed online reports. Applying the above clause, UDIN provision etc. 1o
the given case, Mr. Kushal would be held guilty of professional misconduct. -
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29. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto: Mr. Vineet, a chartered
accountant in practice, éreated his own website in attractive format and highlighted the contents in purple colour,
The website also displayed the nature of assignments handled along with the names of clients without such
requirement from any of the regulator. He also circulated the information contained in the website through e-mail
to acknowledge public at large about his expertise. However, he did not intimate his website address to the
Institute. (Nov-20 New) .

Circulating Information Contained in Own Website: As per Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he
solicits clients or professional work either directly or indirectly by circular, advertisement, personal communication og
interview or by any other means.

1. However, guidelines approved by Council of ICAl permit creation of own website by a chartered accountant in his
or his firm name and no standard format or restriction on colours is there. Hence there is no misconduct as per
Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

2. The chartered accountant or firm, as per the guidelines, should-ensure that none of the information contained in
the website be circulated on their own or through E-mail or by any other mode except on a specific “Pull” request.
Mr. Vineet has circulated the information contained in the website through e-mail to public at large. Therefore, he is
guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the said Act.

3. Nature of assignments handled (to be displayable only on specific “pull” request). Names of clients and fee
charged cannot be given without such requirement from any of the regulator. Mr. Vineet has displayed the nature of -
assignments handled along with the name of clients without such requirement from the regulator. Therefore, he is

’

guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the said Act.

4. The website address of the member be obtained on annual basis in the annual form required to be filed by the
member while paying fee and the same be taken as entry on record.

Thus guilty of professional misconduct.

30. P, a CA availed a loan against his securities held as investments from a nationalized bank. He issued 2 cheques
towards repayment of the said loan. Both the cheques were returned unpaid by the bank with the remark “Refer
to Drawer”. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 as amended by the Chartered
Accountants (Amendment) Act, 2006 and Schedules thereto. (Jan-21 Old)

Bringing Disrepute to the Profession: A Chartered Accountant is expected to maintain the highest standard of
integrity even in his personal affairs and any deviation from these standards, even in his non-professional work would
expose him to disciplinary action.

A member is liable to disciplinary action under Section 21 of the Chartered Accountants Act, if he is found guilty of
any professional or “Other Misconduct”.

As per Clause (2) of Part IV of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a mé"mber of the Institute,
whether in practice or nof, shall be deemed to be guilty of other misconduct, if he in the opinion of the Council; brings
disrepute to the profession or the Institute as a result of his action whether or not related to his professional work.
The question whether a particular act or omission constitutes “other misconduct” should be based on fact and
circumstances of each case.
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Under Negotiable Instruments Act 1881, where any cheque drawn by a person for the discharge of any liability is
" returned by the bank unpaid, either for insufficiency of funds or the cheque amount exceeds the arrangements made
py the drawer of the cheque, the drawer of such cheque shall be deemed to have committed an offence.

in the given case the cheque was dishonoured with the remark “refer to drawer”. However, such dishonour need not
necessarily be only due to insufficiency of funds. : *

if it is proved that the cheques were dishonoured due to insufficiency of funds, the CA P would be held g'uilty of “other
misconduct”. ,

Author’s Note: Most students forget to guote reference of Negotiable Act and give wrong conclusion.

31. Mr. P, a practicing Chartered Accountant did not reply within a reasonable time and without any cause to the
letter received from the local Police Station, a public authority, soliciting his suggestions as regards some non-
professional work. Comment with reference to Chartered Accountant Act, 1949. (Jan 21- Old)

section 21 of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 provides that a member is liable for disciplinary action if he is
guilty of any professional or “Other Misconduct.” Though the term “Other Misconduct” has not been defined in the
said Act, this provision enables the Council to enquire into any misconduct of a member even if it does not arise out

of his professional work. »

This is considered necessary because a chartered accountant is expected to maintain the highest standards of integrity
even in his personal affairs and any deviation from these standards even in his non-professional work, would expose
him to disciplinary action. The Council has also laid down that among other things “non-replying within a reasonable
time and without a good cause to the letter of the public authorities.” wogld amount to “other misconduct”.

In the given scenario, CA. P did not reply within a reasonable time and without any cause to the letter received from
the local police station, a public authority regarding soliciting his suggestion as regards some non-professional work.

~Thus, in the instant case, CA. P would be liable for disciplinary action.

Author’s Note: Don’t confuse it with clause(3)/Part II/Second.ScheduIe its about false info to ICAI

32. A Chartered Accountant in practice, empanelled as an Insolvency Professional (IP) has mentioned the same on
his visiting cards, letter heads and other communications also. A person residing in his neighbourhood, has filed a
complaint for professional misconduct against the said member for such mention of IP. You are required to examine
the same with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. {May-19 Oid)

Using Designation of Insolvency Professional: As per Clause (7) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949, a CA in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he (i) advertises his
professional attainments or services or (ii) uses any designation or expressions other than ‘Chartered Accountant” on
professional documents, visiting cards, letter heads or sign boards unless it be a degree of a university established by
law in India or recognized by the Central Government or a title indicating membership of the ICAl or of any other
institution that has been recognized by the Central Government or may be recognized by the council.

Here, a Chartered Accountant empanelled as 1P (Insolvency Professional) can mention “Insolvency Professional” on
his visiting cards, letter heads and other communication, as this is a title recognised by the Central Government in
terms of Clause 7 of Part 1 of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. Thus, complaint of neighbour is
not enforceable/ valid. ’ ‘ ‘
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33. Mr. A, Chartered Accountant in practice as a sole proprietor at Mumbai has an office in the suburbs of Mumbai,
Due to increase in the income tax assessment work, he opens another office near the income tax office, which is -

within the city and at a distance of 30 kms from his office in the suburbs. For running the new office, he has
employed a retired Income Tax Commissioner who is not a Chartered Accountant. Examine the above with respect
to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. (May-19 Old)

Maintenance of Branch Office in the Same City: As per’section 27 of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 if 3
chartered accountant in practice has more than one office in India, each one of these offices should be in the separate
charge of a member of the Institute.

However, a member can be in charge of two offices if the second office is located in

v’ the same premises or

v"in the same city, in which the first office is located; or ,

v’ is located within a distance of 50 kms from municipal limits of a city, in which first office is located.

In given case, Mr. A, Chartered Accountant in practice as a sole proprietor at Mumbai has an office in suburbs of
Mumbai and due to increase in the work he opened another branch within the city near the income tax office. He also
employed a retired income tax commissioner to run the new office and the second office is situated within a distance
of 30 kilometers from his office in the suburb. - '

Conclusion: In view of above provisions, there will be no misconduct if Mr. A will be in-charge of both the offices.
However, he is bound to declare which of the two offices is the main office.

34. CA. P is a newly qualified Chartered Accountant in practice and in order to increase his professional practice and
client base, entered into an agreement with Mr. A, a qualified and experienced registered valuer, to share 20%
professional fees for all cases of valuation referred to him by CA. P. Based on this, CA. P received X 1,20,000 during
the year 2018-19 from Mr. A. Is CA. P guilty of misconduct under the Chartered Accountants' Act, 1949?

(Nov-19 Old)
Sharing Professional Fees with Registered Valuer: As per Clause (3) of Part I of the First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949, a chartered accountant will be guilty of professional misconduct if he accepts or agrees to
accept any part of the profits of the professional work of a person who is not a member of the Institute.

A member cannot share his fees with a non-member. Similarly he is also not permitted to receive and share the fees
of others except for sharing with Member of such professional body or other person having such qualification as may
be prescribed (Regulation 53A of the Chartered Accountants Regulations, 1988) by the Council. Under the Regulation
53-A of the Chartered Accountants Regulations, 1988, registered valuer is not included.

In the instant case Mr. P, who is a newly qualified Chartered Accountant in practice entered into an agreement with
~Mr. A, a qualified and experienced registered valuer, to share 20% professional fees for all case of valaation referred
to him by CA. P. CA. P also received rupees 1,20,000 for the same from Mr. A. Thus, CA P will be held guilty for
misconduct under clause (3) of Part I of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

35. A firm of Chartered Accountants was appointed by a company to evaluate the costs of the various products
manufactured by it for its information system. One of the partners of the firm was a Non-Executive Director of the
company. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and Schedules thereto. (Nov-20 Old)
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_gvaluation of Cost of Products: Clause (4) of Part | of the Second Schedule to Chartered Accountants Act, 1949,
' .. states that expressing an opinion on financial statements of any business or enterprise in which he, his firm or a
partner in his firm has a substantial interest would constitute misconduct.

Also, the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India has stated that in cases where a member of the
Institute is a director of a company, of the firm in which the said member is a partner, he should not express any
opinion on its financial statements. : N

As per facts of the case, the firm has been retained to evaluate the cost of products manufactured by it for its
information system. It is a part of management copsultancy service of the firm and, moreover, its partner was on the

Board.

.

Hence, the firm can perform this assignment and it will not constitute misconduct. However, the firm while accepting
the position as auditor in future would have to consider whether it would be possible to act in an independent manner
and express opinion on financial statements.

36. Comment on the following with reference to the Chartefed Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto:

(a) OPAQ & Associates, a firm of Chartered Accountants responded to a tender issued exclusively for Chartered
Accountants by an organisation in the area of tax audit. However no minimum fee was prescribed in the tender
document. (RTP May-20) -

Responding to Tenders: Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 lays down
guidelines for responding to tenders, etc. It states that a member may respond to tenders or enquiries issued by
various users of professional services or organizations from time to time and secure professional work as a
consequence.

However, a member of the Institute in practice shall not respond to any tender issued by an organization or user of

professional services in areas of services which are exclusively reserved for Chartered Accountants, such as audit and
attestation services.

Though, such restriction shall not be applicable where minimum fee of the assignment is prescribed in the tender
document itself or where areas are open to other professionals along with Chartered Accountants. '

In instant case, OPAQ. & Associates responded to a tender of tax audit which is exclusively reserved for Chartered
Accountants even though no minimum fee was prescribed in the tender document.

Therefore, OPAQ & Associates shall be held guilty of professional conduct for responding to such tender in view of
above-mentioned guideline.

(b) Agarwal Pvt Ltd. approached CA. Prem, a Chartered Accountant in practice, for debt recovery services. CA Prem
accepted the work and insisted for fees to be based on 2% of the debt recovered. '

Charging of Fees based on Percentage: Clause (10) of Part 1 to First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949
prohibits a Chartered Accountant in practice to charge, to offer, to accept or accept fees which are based on a
percentage of profits or which are contingent upon the findings or results of such work done by him. _

However, this restriction is not applicable where such payment is permitted by the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.
The Council of the Institute has framed Regulation 192 which exempts debt recovery services where fees may be
based on a percentage of the debt recovered.
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In the given case, CA. Prem has insisted for fees to be based on percentage of the debt recovered {which is exempted

under Regulation 192).
Hence, CA. Prem will not be held guilty for professional mis¢onduct.

(C) Mr. P and Mr. Q are running a firm of Chartered Accountants in the name of PQ & Co. On 23.05.2019, they
included the name of Mr. R, a practicing Chartered Accountant, without his knowledge, as a partner while
submitting an application for empanelment as auditor for branches of a public sector bank, to the Institute.
However, they added Mr. R as a partner to their firm offering a share of 25% of the profits, on 25.05.2019.

Submitting Wrong Information to the Institute: As per Clause (3) of Part Il of the Second Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949, a member of the institute, whether in practice or not, shall be deemed to be guilty of
professional misconduct if he includes in any information, statement, return or form to be submitted to the Institute,
Council or any of its committees, Director (Discipline), Board of Discipline, Disciplinary Committee, Quality Review
Board or the Appeliate Authority any particulars knowing them to be false.

In the instant case, Mr. P and Mr. Q, partners of PQ & Co., included the name of Mr. R, another Chartered Accountant,
as partner in their firm, without his knowledge, in their application for empanelment as auditor of branches of Public
Sector Banks submitted to the Institute. However, such a member was not a partner of the said firm as on the date of
application submitted. Here, Mr. P and Mr. Q have submitted wrong information to the Institute.

Therefore, Mr. P and Mr. Q, both, would be held guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (3) of Part Il of the
Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountant_s Act, 1949,

37. C.A. Ajitnath is Special Executive Magistrate. He also took over as the Executive Chairman of Software Company /"
on 1.4.2020. He is also a leading income tax practitioner and consultant for derivative products. He resides in ’ E
Chennai near to the ION commodity stock exchange and does trading in commodity derivatives. Every day, he
invests nearly 40% of his time to settle the commodity transactions. He has not taken any permission for becoming
Special Executive Magistrate. However, he has got special permission of Council of ICAI for becoming Executive
Chairman. Is C.A. Ajitnath liable for professional misconduct?

(RTP May-21)
Engaging into a Business: As per Clause (11) of Part | of First Schedule of Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a
Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he engages in any business or
occupation other than the profession of Chartered Accountant uniess permitted by the Council so to engage.

However, the Council has granted general permission to the members to engage in certain specific occupation. In
respect of all other occupations specific permission of the Institute is necessary.

In this case, C.A. Ajitnath is Special Executive Magistrate, engaged in the occupation of trading in commodity
derivatives and also took over as the Executive Chairman on 01.04.2020.
In this context, it may be noted that the Special Executive Magistrate which is generally permitted for Members of
the Institute in practice, further specific permission is required for holding the position of Executive Chairman and
getting engaged in the occupation of trading in commodity derivatives.

In the given situation, C.A. Ajitnath is acting as Special Executive Magistrate which is generally permitted for Members
of the Institute in practice. Further, He is engaged in the occupation of trading in commodity derivatives which is not
covered under the general permission. He also took over as the Executive Chairman for which specific permission is
required. CA. Ajitnath got the permission for the same from the Council of ICAI.
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-onclusion: Hence, CA. Ajitnath is not guilty for acting as Special Executive Magistrate as it is covered under the

- general permission. He is also not guilty for holding the position of Executive Chairman after getting specific
&

permission of the Institute.

However, he is guilty of professional misconduct under Clause {11) of Part | of First Schedule of Chartered Accountants
Act, 1949 for getting engaged in the occupation of trading in commodity derivatives which is not covered under the

general permission. &

38 (a) Loans were given out of the funds of an Employees Provident Fund to the employer company in contravention
of the applicable rules. As the auditor of the said Prpvident Fund, M discloses the contraventions to the Trustees of
the fund, but failed to do so to the members of the fund. Comment. (PM) '

Failed to Report Material Misstatement: As per Clause (5) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants
Act, 1949, if a member in practice fails to disclose a material fact known to him which is not disclosed in a financial
statement, but disclosure of which is necessary to make the financial statement not misleading, where he is
concerned with that financial statement in a professional capacity, he will be held guilty under Clause (5).

Further, as per Clause (6) of Part | of Second Schedule if he faiis to report a material misstatement known to him to
appear in a financial statement with which he is concerned in a professional capacity, he will be held guilty under

Clause (6).

L]

In given Case, CA M has contravened Clause (5) of Part | of Second Schedule as it is duty of a CA in practice to disclose
material facts known to him so that the financial ;tatement does not become misleading. Further the auditor CA
should disclose such facts to beneficiaries of a fund in applicable cases. Technically, appointment of an auditor could
be done by a company through its directors, but in substance the auditor in such cases addresses to the beneficiaries
" just like he gives his report to the shareholders of a company.

.~

Therefore, in the instant case Mr. M is found guilty of professional misconduct.

{b) M/s Amudhan & Co., a firm of Chartered Accountants, received X 2.8 lakhs in January, 2019 on behalf of one of
their clients, who has gone abroad and deposited the amount in their Bank account, so that they can return the
money to the client in July, 2019, when he is due to return to India.

Money ¢ " Clients to be Deposited in Separate Bank Account: Clause (10) of Part | of Second Schedule states that a
Chartered Accountant shall be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if “he fails to keep money of his clients
in separate banking account or to use such money for the purpose for which they are intended”.

In the given case, M/s Amudhan & Co. received the money in January, 2019 which is to be paid only in July 2019,
hence, it should be deposited in a separate bank account. Since in this case M/s Amudhan & Co. has failed to keep the
sum of % 2.8 lakhs received on behalf of their client in a separate Bank Account, it amounts to professional misconduct
under Clause (10) of Part | of Second Schedule. ‘

(c) CA Raman who is contesting Regional Council Elections of Institute, engages his Articled Assistant for his election
campaigning promising him that he will come in contact with influential people which will help to enhance his

career after completion of his training period.

Other Misconduct: CA Raman has engaged his Articled Assistant for his own election campaigning for the Regional

Council elections of ICAI.
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This aspect is covered under ‘Other Misconduct’ which has been defined in Part IV of the First Schedule and Part il ¢

the Second Schedule. These provisions empower the Council even if it does not arise out of his professional work. This
is considered necessary because a Chartered Accountant is expected to maintain the highest standards of integrity
even in his personal affairs and any deviation from these standards, even in his non-professional work, would expose
him to disciplinary action. ‘
Thus, when a Chartered Accountant uses the services of his Articled Assistant for purposes other than professional
practice, he is found guilty under ‘Other Misconduct’. Hence, CA Raman is guilty of 'Other Misconduct'.

(d) Mr. Anil, a practicing Chartered Accountant, did not complete his work relating to the audit of the accounts of
a company and had not submitted his audit report in due time to enable the company to comply with the statutory
requlrements. (Oct-20 MTP)

Not Exercising Due Diligence: According to Clause (7) of Part 1 of Second Schedule of Chartered Accountants Act,
1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he does not exercise
due diligence or is grossly negligent in the conduct of his professional duties.

It is a vital clause which unusually gets attracted whenever it is necessary to judge whether the accountant has
honestly and reasonably discharged his duties. The expression negligence covers a wide field and extends from the
frontiers of fraud to collateral minor negligence.

Where a Chartered Accountant had not completed his work relating to the audit of the accounts a company and had
not submitted his audit report in due time to enable the company to comply with the statutory requirement in this.
regard, he was guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (7). p '

Since, Mr. Anil has not completed his audit work in time and consequently could not submit audit report in due time
and consequently, company could not comply with the statutory requirements, the auditor is guilty of professional
misconduct under Clause (7) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

39. Comment on the foilowing with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto:

(RTP Nov-20)
(a) CA. srishti and CA. Mishti are two partners of the CA firm ‘Srishti Mishti & Associates’. Being very pious, CA.
Srishti organised a religious ceremony at her home for which she instructed her printing agent to add her
designation “Chartered Accountant” with her name in the invitation cards. Later on, the invitations were distributed
to all the relatives, close friends and clients of both the partners.

(a) Printing of Designation “Chartered Accountant” on Invitations for Religious Ceremony: As per Clause (6) of Part
| of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed
to be guilty of professional misconduct if he solicits clients or professional work either directly or |nd|rectly by circular,
advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means.

However, the Council of the ICAI is of the view that the designation “Chartered Accountant” as well as the name of
the firm may be used in greeting cards, invitations for marriages, religious ceremonies and any other specified
matters, provided that such greeting cards or invitations etc. are sent only to clients, relatlves and close friends of

N

the members concerned.

In the given case, CA. Srishti has instructed to write designation “Chartered Accountant” on invitation cards for a
religious ceremony and distributed the same to all the relatives, close friends and clients of both the partners.

L
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In this context, it may be noted that the Council has allowed using designation “Chartered Accountant” in invitations

" for religious ceremony, provided these are sent to chents relatives and close friends of the members concerned only.

. Therefore, CA. Srishti would be held guilty of professional misconduct under the said clause for sending such
invitations to the relatives, close friends and clients of CA. Mishti as well. ‘

(b) Ms. Preeto, a CA, had an account with a bank. The normal balance in this account remained at a levél below X
5,000. The bank inadvertently credited this account with a cheque of X 2,70,000 belonging to another account
holder. When CA. Preeto came to know about this she withdrew the amount of X 2,75,000 and closed the bank
account. After 1 year the bank noticed the mistake and claimed X 2,75,000 with interest. CA. Preeto contested this
claim. Can the bank approach the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for disciplinary action against CA.
Preeto?

Disrepute to the Profession: As per Clause 2 of Part IV of First Schedule of the Chartered Accountant Act, 1949, a
Chartered Accountant will be deemed to be guilty of other misconduct if he in the opinion of the Council brings
disrepute to the profession or the Institute as a result of his action whether or not related to his professional work.

In the instant case, CA. Preeto, a CA, had an account with a bank from which she withdrew the amount of X 2,75,000
and closed the account. This amount of  2,75,000 was pertaining to X 5,000 minimum balance and X 2,70,000
belonging to other account holder and inadvertently credited to his account by the bank. The said act of CA. Preeto
to withdraw the money which does not belongs to her will bring disrepute to the profession. Hence under this clduse
the bank can file a suitable complaint under Clause 2 of Part IV of First Schedule of the Chartered Accountant Act,
1949 with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(c) CA. Moni is practicing since 2009 in the field of company audit. Due to her good practical knowledge, she was
offered editorship of a ‘Company Audit’ Journal which she accepted. However, she did not take any permission
from the Council regarding such editorship. (+ Apr 21 MTP)

H

Permission from the Council: As per Clause (11) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a
- Chartered Accountant in practice will be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he engages in any business
or occupation other than the profession of Chartered Accountant unless permitted by the Council so to engage. - '

However, the Council has granted general permission to the members to engage in certain specific occupation. In
respect of all other occupations specific permission of the Institute is necessary.

In the instant case, CA. Moni accepted editorship of a journal for which she did not take any permission from the
Council. In this context, it may be noted that the editorship of professional journals is covered under the general
permission and specific permission is not required.

Therefore, CA. Moni shall not be held guilty of professional misconduct in terms of Clause (11) of Part | of First
Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 194S.

40. M/s SS limited is a partly owned subsidiary of M/s HH limited. For the upcoming financial year, M/s DD & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the statutory auditors of SS limited. The CEO of the holding company
was impressed with the knowledge and experience of Mr. D, one of the partners of the firm and hence, he offered
Mr. D to take up the position of Dlrector (not MD/ wholetime director) of HH limited. At the same time, Mr.: D’s

friend approaches him with an a55|gnment to act as a Recovery Consultant for a bank. Mr. D is now confused
whether to accept or reject the offers. He approaches you and seeks your advice on the same. Advise what Mr. D
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about what he can do with the offers with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and Schedules thereto.

(MTP Mar’21) .

As per Clause (11) of Part | of First Schedule of Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice
is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he engages in any business or occupation other than the
profession of Chartered Accountant unless permitted by the Council so to engage.

Provided nothing contained herein shall disentitle a chartered accountant from being a director of a company (not
being MD or whole-time director) unless he or his partners is interested in such company as auditor.

The Ethical Standards Board (ESB) noted that Public conscience is expected to be ahead of law. Members, therefore,
are expected to interpret the requirement as regards independence much more strictly than what the law requires
and should not place themselves in positions which would either compromise or jeopardise their independence. In
the view of the above, the Board, via a clarification, decided that the auditor of a Subsidiary company cannot be a
Director of its Holding company, as it will affect the independence of the auditor.

However, the Council has granted general permission to the members to engage in certain specific occupation. In
respect of all other occupations specific permission of the Institute is necessary. ‘acting as Recovery Consultant in the
banking sector’ is covered under general permission.

In the given situation, M/s SS limited is a partly owned subsidiary of M/s HH limited. For the upcoming financial year,
M/s DD & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the statutory auditors of SS limited. The CEO of the holding
company was impressed with the knowledge and experience of Mr. D, one of the partners of the firm and hence, he
offered Mr. D to take up the position of Director (not MD/ whole-time director) of HH limited. Further, Mr. D’s friend
approached him for an assignment for acting as a Recovery Consultant for a bank.

Therefore, in view of above in the given case, Mr. D should not accept the offer to be appointed as director of HH
Limited.

However, he can accept the assignment offered by his friend and can act as a recovery consultant for a bank.

41. A letter is sent by Mr. Raja, a Chartered Accountant in practice, to the Ministry of Finance inquiring whether a
panel of auditors is being maintained by the Ministry and if so to include his name in the panel. He also enclosed
his CV. Comment on the above with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and Schedules thereto.

(MTP Mar’21)
Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 states that a Chartered Accountant
in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of misconduct if he solicits clients or professional work either directly or
indirectly by a circular, advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means. Such a restraint
has been put so that the members maintain their independence of judgement and may be able to command respect
from their prospective clients.

In case of making an application for.the empanelment for the allotment of audit and other profes‘sibnal work, the
Council has opined that, “where the existence of such a panel is within the knowledge of the member, he is free to
write to the concerned organization with a request to place his name on the panel. However, it would not be proper
for the member to make roving inquiries by applying to any such organization for having his name included in any

such panel ”

\
/

Accordingly, Mr. Raja is guilty of misconduct in terms of the above provision as he has solicited professional work
from the Finance Ministry, by inquiring about the maintenance of the panel.
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42. Mr. Z, a newly qualified chartered accountant started his practice in February 2018 by setting up an office inthe

" hill station Kodaikanal. Initially, since he was getting very less assignments, he decided to set up a temporary office

_in the nearby city Marudai, situated at about 100 kms from the main office. As planned, he took an office space on

" rent for the months of April, May & June. During these months, his regular office was not closed and Mr. Z was in-
charge for both the offices. Mrs. A, another newly qualified chartered accountant who is also in practlce in Marudai
came to know about the new office of Mr. Z. Thinking that he could be a potential competitor, she informed the
institute stating that Mr. Z had violated the provisions of the Chartered Accountant Act. As a member of the Board
of Discipline of ICAI, you are requested to analyse this complaint. (MTP Mar’21)

As per section 27 of Chartered Accountants Act 949, if a Chartered Accountant in practice or a Firm of Chartered
Accountants has more than one office in India, each one of such offices should be in the separate charge of a member
of the Institute. Failure on the part of a member or a firm to have a member in charge of its branch and a separate
member in case of each of the branches, where there is more than one, would constitute professional misconduct.
This condition applies to any additional office situated at a place beyond 50 kms from the municipal limits in which
any office is situated. i

However, exemption has been given to members in practicing in hill areas subject to certain conditions such as:

- Such member/ firm be allowed to open temporary offices in a city in the plains for a limited period not exceeding 3
months in a year. .

- The regular office need not be closed during this period and all correspondence can continue to be made at the
regular office.

— The name board of the firm in temporary office should not be displayed at times other than the period such office
is permitted to function.

- The temporary office should not be mentioned in letter head, visiting card, any other documents as a place of
business of the member/ firm.

- Before commencement of every winter, it shall be obligatory on the member/firm to inform the Institute that he/it
is opening the temporary office from a particular date and after the office is closed at the expiry of the period of
permission, an intimation to that effect should also be sent to the office of the Institute by registered post.

" In the given case, Mr. Z has set up his regular office in the hill area of Kodaikanal , he decided to set up a temporary
office in the nearby city Marudai, situated-at about 100 kms from the main office. As planned, he took an office space
on rent for the months of April, May & June. During these months, his regular office was not closed. Further he was
in-charge for both the offices. In view of abovementioned criteria’s, he is eligible to avail the benefits of the above
exemptions. Also, it is given that the temporary office was open in Madurai for only 3 months and not beyond that.
The fact that Mr. Z is in-charge for both the offices, the temporary office being set-up in the plains which is 100 kms
away and the regular office kept open during the 3 months does not constitute any violation of the provisions of the
Chartered Accountant Act. Assuming Mr. Z has informed the Institute regarding such temporary office in the
prescribed manner.

Therefore, in the given case, no penal action needs to be taken on the basis of complaint registered by Mrs. A, as Mr.
Z is not guilty of professional misconduct.

43. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto: CA D, a practicing
Chartered Accountant, was appointed as a simplicitor Director in a Pvt. Ltd. company on 01-01-2020. After serving
18 months, Mr. D resigned as the Director. He accepted the appointment as the Statutory Auditor of the company

with effect from 01-10-2021. Is CA D right in accepting the audit? ,
(Dec-21 New)
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As per Clause (4) of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant

in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he expresses his opinion on financial statements of
any business or enterprise in which he, his firm, or a partner in his firm has a substantial interest.

Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 specifically prohibits a member from auditing the accounts of a company in
which he is an officer or employee. Aithough the provisions of the aforesaid section are not specifically applicable in
the context of audits performed under other statutes, e.g. tax audit, yet the underlying principle of independence of
mind is equally applicable in those situations also. Therefore, the Council’s views are clarified in the following
situations.

As per the clarifications issued by the Council, a member shall not accept the assignment of audit of a Company for a
period of two years from the date of completion of his tenure as Director, or resignation as Director of the said
Company. In the instant case, Mr. D, a practicing CA, is appointed as a Director Simplicitor in Pvt. Ltd. Company. Mr.
D resigned as the Director and after 18 months of resignation accepted the Statutory Auditor position of the Company.
In view of above provisions Mr. D cannot accept the Directorship of the company as tenure of two years after his
resignation is yet to be completed.

Thus, CA, D would be held guilty of professional misconduct under clause 4 of Part 1 of Second Schedule of the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

44. CA. Nikhil, in practice, started project consultancy work as a part of his practice and to advance the same, sent
mail to all the CAs in the country informing them of his services and for securing professional work. Comment with
reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and Schedules thereto. (MTP May’20)

As per Clause (6) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a chartered accountant in practice
is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct, if he solicit clients or professional work either directly or indirectly
by circular, advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means.

However, nothing herein contained shall be construed as preventing or prohibiting, any chartered accountant from
applying or requesting for or inviting or securing professional work from another chartered accountants in practice.

In the instant case, CA. Nikhil has written email to all the CA for securing professional work from them and has not
approached any other person or professional or communicated with any client,

Thus, as per exception to the Clause (6), CA. Nikhil is well within the regulation of the act and has not committed any
professional misconduct.

45. Mr. Vinod a practicing chartered accountant acting as liquidator of XYZ & Co. charg'ed his professional fees on
percentage of the realization of assets. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and
Schedules thereto. (MTP May’20)

Chartered Accountant in Practice Acting as Liquidator: According to Clause (10) of Part | of First Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional
misconduct if he charges or offers to charge, accepts or offers to accept in respect of any professmnal employment
fees which are based on a percentage of profits or which are contingent upon the findings, or results of such
employment, except as permitted under any regulations made under this Act.

However, CA Regulation allow the Chartered Accountant in practice to charge the fees in respect of any professional
work which are based on a percentage of profits, or which are contingent upon the findings or results of such work,
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in the case of a receiver or a liquidator, and the fees may be based on a percentage of the realization or disbursement

of the assets. »
in the given case, Mr. Vinod, a practicing Chartered Accountant, has acted as I|qu1dator of XYZ & Co. and charged his
‘ professmnal fees on percentage of the realisation of assets. .

’

" Therefore, Mr. Vinod shall not be held guilty of professional misconduct as he is allowed to charge fees on percentage
) &
of the realisation of assets being a liquidator.

46. Mr. Yuvi, a Chartered Accountant in practice, is the auditor of Prime Ltd. He advised the Managing Director of
the company to include ‘orders under negotiation’ In sales, to reflect higher profit and better financial position for
obtaining bank loans in future. Mr. Yuvi, thereafter, gave clean reports on the balance sheet prepared accordingly
without examining the accounts. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and Schedules
thereto. (MTP May’20)

Grossly Negligent and Bringing Disrepute to the Institute: Clause (7) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949 states that a Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professuonal
misconduct if he does not exercise due diligence, or is grossly negligent in the conduct of his professional duties.
Furthermore, Clause (2) of Part IV of the First Schedule to the said Act states that a member of the Institute, whether
in practice or not, shall be deemed to be guilty of other misconduct, if he, in the opinion of the Council, brings
disrepute to the profession or the Institute as a result of his action whether or not related to his professional work. R

In the given case, Mr. Yuvi, a Chartered Accountant in practice, is grossly negligence in conduct of his professional

duties by issuing clean reports on the balance sheet without examining the accounts. Further, he has also brought

disrepute to the profession by advising unethical practice to the managing director of the company. Therefore, Mr.
_Yuvi will be held guilty for professional and other misconduct under abovementioned Clauses to the Chartered

Accountants Act, 1949. ’ ~.

Author’s note: Most students here confuse Clause (2), its Other Misconduct as he knew he’s doing wrong. It isn’t
- clause (2) Part | of Second Schedule

47. Mr. Aniket, a Chartered Accountant was the auditor of ‘Alpha Limited’ for the year 2018-19 and 2019-20.-During
the financial year, the investment appeared in the Balance Sheet of the company amounting X 11 lac and was the
same amount as in the last year 2018-19. Later on, it was found that the company's investments were only for X
45,000, however, the value of investments was inflated for the purpose of obtaining higher amount of Bank loan.
Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and Schedules thereto. (MTP Oct-20)

Gross Negligence in Conduct of Duties: As per Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a
Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct, if he, certifies or submits
in his name or in the name of his firm, a report of an examination of financial statements unless the examination of
such statements and the related records has been made by him or by a partner or an employee in his firm or by
another chartered accountant in practice, under Clause (2); does not exercise due diligence, or is grossly negligent in
the conduct of his professional duties, under Clause (7); or fails to obtain sufficient information which is necessary for
expression of an opinion or its exceptions are sufficiently material to negate the expression of an opinion, under
Clause (8).

The primary duty of physical verification and valuation of investments is of the management. However, the auditor’ s
duty is also to verify the physical existence and valuation of investments placed, at least on the last day of the
accounting year. The auditor should verify the documentary evidence for the cost/value and physical existence of
the investments at the end of the year. He should not blindly rely upon the Management’s representation.
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In the mstant case, such non-verification happened for two years. It also appears that auditors failed to confirm the
value of investments from any proper source. In case auditor has simply relied on the management’s representation,
the auditor has failed to perform his duty.

Conclusion: Accordingly, Mr Aniket, will be held liable for professional misconduct under Clauses (2), (7) and (8) of
Part | of the Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, '

48. Mr. Chintamani, a Chartered Accountant in practice has been elected as the treasurer the Regional Council of
the ICAL The Regional Council had organized an international tour through a tour operator during the year for its
members. During the audit of the Regional Council, it was found that Mr. Chintamani had received a personal,
benefit of X 40,000 from the tour operator. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and
Schedules thereto. (MTP Oct-20)

Section 21 of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 provides that a member is liable for disciplinary action if he is
guilty of any professional or “Other Misconduct.” Other misconduct has been defined in part IV of the First Schedule
and part lll of the Second Schedule. These provisions empower the Council to inquire into any misconduct of a member
even it does not arise out of his professional work. This is considered necessary because a chartered accountant is
expected to maintain the highest standards of integrity even in his personal affairs and any deviation from these
standards, even in his non-professional work, would expose him to disciplinary action. The Council has also'laid down
that among other things “misappropriation by an office-bearer of a Regional Council of the Institute of a large amount
and utilization. thereof for his personal use” would amount to “other misconduct”.

In the instant case, receipt of personal benefit of 2 40,000 from the tour operator by Mr. Chintamani for organising
an international tour as treasurer of a Regional Council of the Institute would amount to other misconduct as per-
section 21. Therefore, Mr. Chintamani would be held guilty for other misconduct.

49. Mr. Mohan is a practising Chartered Accountant. He issued a certificate of consumption which did not reflect
the correct factual position of the consumption of raw material by the concerned entity. It is found that the
certificate is given on the basis of data appearing in the minutes of meeting of the Board of Directors. Comment on
above with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and Schedules thereto. (MTP Oct 18)

According to Ciause (2) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 a chartered accountant -
is held guilty of professional misconduct if he certifies or submits a report of an examination of financial statements
unless the examination of such statements and the related records has been made by him or by a partner or employee
in his firm or any other chartered accountant in practice.

Mr. Mohan has issued a certificate of consumption which does not reflect the correct factual position of the
consumption of raw material by the concerned entity. He has failed in his duty of examining the record He has relied
on the minutes of Board of director’s meeting which is not proper evidence to show the consumptlon of raw material.
The relevant record of production and stock register should have been scrutinized thoroughly and properly.

Clause (7) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 also applies to this case which states
that a Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional mlsconduct if he does not
exercise due diligence or is gross!y negligent in the conduct of his professional duties.

Mr. Mohan will be held guilty of Professional Misconduct under Clause (2) & (7) of Part | of Second Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWAN] : 124




h-2 Professional Ethics Learn with Fun
. CA. X, a practicing Chartered Accountant, failed to return the books of account and other documents of ABC Ltd.

"desplte many reminders from the company. The company had settled his entire fees dues also. Comment with
 reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. (MTP Oct 18)

“gringing Disrepute to the Profession: A member is liable to disciplinary action under section 21 of the Chartered
= Accountants Act, 1949, if he is found guuty of any professional or “Other Misconduct”. As per Clause (2) of Part IV of
the First Schedule to the said Act, a member of the Institute, whether'in practice or not, shall be deemed to'be guilty
of other misconduct, if he, in the opinion of the Council, brings disrepute to the profession or the Institute as a result
of his action whether or not related to his professional work.
¢

A member may be found guilty of “Other Misconduct” as per Clause {2) under the aforesaid provisions rehdering
himself unfit to be member if he retains the books of account and documents of the client and fails to return these to
the client on request without a reasonable cause.

In the given case, CA. X failed to return the books of accounts and other documents of his client WIthout any :
reasonable cause, therefore, he would be guilty of other misconduct under the aforesald provisions.

51. ENI Ltd; a company registered under the Companies Act, 2013 has created a separate Trust "ENI Employees
Gratuity Fund Trust". Both the Company and Trust are under the same management. Mr. A is the auditor of both
the entities. Mr. A has observed that some part of the expenditure was not applied towards the objects of the Trust.
He informed the matter to the Board of Trustees through a separate report but did not qualify the Audit Report ‘of
the Trust. (Nov-18 Oid) . '
Disclosure of Material Facts: A Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct
under Clause (5) of Part | of the Second Schedule if he “fails to disclose a material fact known to him which is not
disclosed in a financial statement but disclosure of which is necessary to make the financial statement not misleading”.

In this case, the Chartered Accountant was aware of some part of the expenses not applied towardé the object i.e.
contraventions and irregularities committed by the trust as these were referred to in the separate report given by the
-Chartered Accountant to the Board of Trustees of the company. However, he issued audit report without any
qualification which is not in order. .

Therefore, CA A is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct.

52. Mr. M, a Chartered Accountant in practice, has printed visiting cards which besides other details also carries a
Quick Response (QR) code. The visiting card as well the QR code contains his name, office and residential address,
contact details, e-mail id and name of the firm's website. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants
Act, 1949 and schedules thereto. (MTP Aug 18)

Printing of QR Code on Visiting Cards: As per Clause (7) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act,
1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he advertises his
professional attainments or services.

Ethical Standards Board has also clarified that a member in practice is allowed to print Quick Response Code (QR
Code) on the visiting Card, provided that the Code does not contain information that is not otherwise permissible to
be printed on a visiting Card. s

In the given case, Mr. M has printed visiting cards which carries Quick Response Code (QR Code) besides other details.
The visiting card as well as the QR Code contains his name, office and residential address, contact details, e-mail id
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and name of the firm’s website which are otherwise allowed to be printed on the visiting cards of a Chartered "

Accountént in practice.
Thus, Mr. M is not guilty under Clause (7) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

53. X, a practicing Chartered 7-\ccountant in an application for permission to study submitted by his Articled Assistant
to the council had confirmed that the normal working hours of his office were from 11 A.M. to 6 P.M. and the hours
during which the Articled Assistant was required to attend classes were 7.00 A.M. to 9.30 A.M. According to the
information from College, the Articled Assistant attended the College from 10 A.M. to 1.55 P.M. on all week days,
About the Articled Assistant attending the classes even during office hours, X pleaded ignorance. (PM)

Failure to Observe the Regulations: As per Clause (1) of Part Il of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants
Act, 1949 a member shall be held guilty of professional misconduct if he contravenes any of the provisions of the Act
or the regulations made thereunder or any guidelines issued by the Council.

The chartered accountant, as per Regulations also, is expected to impart proper practical training. There is a specific
circular issued which guides on timing for training for articleship. In the instant case, the articled clerk must have not
been attending office on a regular basis and the explanation of the Chartered Accountant cannot be accepted. It is
also quite likely that the articled clerk would be availing leave quite often and coming late to the office. Under the
circumstances, the Chartered Accountant is guilty of misconduct for making a misstatement to the institute in regard
to the discharge of his professional duties.

Note: Alternative Solution is possible as per Schedule lI, Part I, Clause (3), a member is deemed to be guilty of
professional misconduct if he includes in any information, statement, return or form to be submitted to the Institute, g
Council or any of its Committees, Director (Discipline), Board of Discipline, Disciplinary Committee, Quality Review | E
Board or the Appellate Authority any particulars knowing them to be false. In the instant case, X knew about the ‘
college timing of his articled assistant and he had given false information to the institute knowing them to be false
and hence he will be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct.

54. Z, a practicing Chartered Accountant issued a certificate of circulation of a periodical without going into the
most elementary details of how the circulation of a periodical was being maintained i.e. by not looking into the
financial records, bank statements or bank pass books, by not examining evidence of actual payment of printers
bills and by not caring to ascertain how many copies were sold and paid for. (PM)

Failure to Obtain Information: Clause (8) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 states
that if a Chartered Accountant in practice fails to obtain sufficient information to warrant the expression of an opinion
or his exceptions are sufficient material to negate the expression of an opinion, the chartered accountant shall be
deemed to be guilty of a professional misconduct. In the instant case Mr. Z, a practicing Chartered Accountant issued
a certificate of circulation of a periodical without going into the most elementary details of how the circulation of a
periodical was being maintained i.e, by not looking into the financial records, bank statements or bank pass books, by
not examining evidence of actual payment of printers bills and by not caring to ascertain how many copies were sold
and paid for. The chartered accountant shouid not express his opinion before obtaining the required data and ’
information. As an auditor, Mr. Z ought to have verified the basic records to ensure the correctness of circulation
figures.

]
/

Thus, in the present case Mr. Z will be held guilty of professional misconduct as per Clause (8) of Part | of Second
Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI 126




-2 Professional Ethics Learn with Fun
fternative Solution is possible on the basis of Clause (7) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants

| ct, 1949. .
55. Mr. B is a practising Chartered Accountant holding a valid certificate of practice. He accepted the appointment
as Director of the Green World Co. Ltd. Mr. C, a partner of Mr. B is statutory auditor of the said company. {PM)

~ Clause (11) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 prohibits a member to engage in any
business or occupation other than the profession of chartered accountants unless permitted by the Council so to
- engage. It does not prohibit a Chartered Accountant from being a director of a company, except managing director or
_awhole time director. But if any of the partners is interested in such company as an auditor then he cannot be director
“ of the said company. ' ’

in the present case Mr. B has accepted the directorship in a Company, where his partner Mr. Cis an auditor, without -
obtaining specific permission of the council. Hence, Mr. B will be held guilty for professional misconduct under
Clause (11) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

Further, the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India has categorically stated that in cases where a
member is a director of a company, the firm, in which the said member is a partner, should not express any opinion
on its financial statements. Clause (4) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1948 states
that expressing an opinion on financial statements of any business or enterprise in which he, his firm or a partner of

L3

his firm has a substantial interest would constitute misconduct.

Additionaily, Section 141(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 also disqualifies a person to be appointed as an auditor if
he is a partner of an officer of the company. Furthermore, section 141(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the
E appointed auditor to vacate his office if he incurs any of the disqualifications mentioned under sub-section (3).

Therefore, in cases, where a member of the Institute is a director of a company, or the firm, in which said member is
a partner, should not express any opinion on its financial statements. Hence Mr. C, a partner of Mr. B, should vacate
the office. ’

56. CA D, a Chartered Accountant prepared a project report for one of his clients to obtain bank finance (long-term)
of % 50 lakhs from a Commercial Bank. Consequent to the sanction of the loan by the bank CA D raised a bill for his
services @ 2% of the loan sanctioned.(Nov-08)

Charging of Fees based on Percentage: Clause (10) of Part | to First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act
prohibits a Chartered Accountant in practice to charge, to offer, to accept or accept fees which are based on a
percentage of profits or which are contingent upon the findings or results of such work done by him.

However, this restriction is not applicable where such payment is permitted by the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.
The Council of the Institute has framed regulation 192 which exempts certain professional services from the operation
of Clause (10). ‘

The services rendered by CA. D are not covered under the said exemption and hence CA. D is liable for professional
misconduct.

57. XYZ Ltd. appoints you as the auditor of the company. You observe that previous auditors A & Co., resigned. Also
Balance Sheet as at 31-03-2010 shows an audit fee payable of X 25,000. What precautions you will take before
commencing the audit work? (4 Marks, November, 2010)
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Precautions before Commencing the Audit Work: In the instant case, before accepting the appointment as well as

commenéing the audit work, the auditor should see.the following-

(i) Check whether a statement, in the prescribed form, has been filed by the resigning auditor within a period of 30
days from the date of resignation, to the company and the registrar (or the Comptroller and Auditor-General of lndia,
as the case may be), indicatiné the reasons and other facts as may be relevant with regard to the resignation, for the
~ compliance of Section 140(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (herein after referred as the Act).

(ii) Ascertain that the appointment of new Auditor is in compliance with Section 139(8) of the Act as mentioned above
i.e. the resolution appointing the new auditor has been approved by the company in the general meeting as in the
case of casual vacancy by resignation.

(iii) The auditor must obtain the NOC from previous auditor. He should also refer the resignation statement file by
the previous auditor and communicate with him (previous auditor) to ascertain the circumstances which led up him
to retire.

(iv) The auditor must ascertain whether there existed any circumstances on-account of which he should not accept
the appointment. :

(v) As per Section 139 of the Act, the auditor must ensure that before any appointment or reappointment of auditbrs
is made at an annual general meeting, a written certificate has been provided by him to the company that his
appointment is in accordance with the limits specified in Section 141(3)(g).

(vi) He'should also satisfy himself that the notice provided for under Sections 139 and 140 has been effectively served
on the outgoing auditor.

Further, Clause (8) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, provides that a member in
practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he atcepts a position as auditor previously held by
another chartered accountant without first communicating with him in writing.

Moreover, Clause (9) of Part | of the same Schedule, provides that a member in practice shall be deemed to be guilty
of professional misconduct if he accepts an appointment as auditor of a company without first ascertaining from it
whether the requirements of Sections 224 and 225 of the Companies Act, 1956 (now Section 139 and 140 of the
Companies Act, 2013), in respect of such appointment have been duly complied with.

58. M, a practicing Chartered Accountant sent a letter to another firm of Chartered Accountants, claiming himself
to be a pioneer in liasoning with Central Government Ministries and its allied Departments for getting various
Government clearances for which he had claimed to have expertise and had given a list of his existing clients and
details of his staff etc. (May’'12) .

Soliciting Work Directly or Indirectly: As per Clause (6) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act,
1949, a member shall be held guilty if a Chartered Accountant in practice solicits clients or professional work either
directly or indirectly by circular, advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means.

Further, as per Central Council Guidelines for Advertisement for the members in practice, write ,ﬁp of the members
should not claim superiority over any other Member(s)/Firm(s) and should also not include the names of the clients.

In the present case, Mr. M, a practicing Chartered Accountant sent the letter to another firm of Chartered
Accountants, claiming himself to be a pioneer in liasoning with Central Government Ministries and its allied
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~'pepartments for getting various Government clearances for which he had claimed to have expertise and had aiso

~given a list of his existing clients and details of his staff etc. which seems to be indirect methods to adventure their
. professuonal practice with a view to galn publicity and thereby solicit clients or professional work.

Hence, Mr. M was guilty of professional misconduct as per Clause {6) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered
" Accountants Act, 1949. .
59. M/s PQR & Co. is a partnership firm of 3 partners P, Q and R. All partners are exclusively associated with the
firm in practice and are not doing practice in individual capacity. For the year ended 31st March, 2019, the partners
have undertaken audits and signed audit reports under section 44AB / 44AD of the Income Tax Act 1961 as under :

Under section = 44AB a44AD B
P 10 15

Q 60 5

R 100 5

Discuss whether there is any professional misconduct by the partners of the firm in regard to the aforesaid audits.

Tax Audit assignments under Section 44 AB of the Income-tax Act, 1961 : As per the Council General Guidelines
2008, under Chapter Vi, a member of the Institute in practice shall not accept, in a financial year, more than the
“specified number of tax audit assignments” under Section 44AB of the Income-tax Act, 1961. .

For the above purpose, “the specified number of tax audit assignments” means (a) in the case of a Chartered
Accountant in practice or a proprietary firm of Chartered Accountant, 60 tax audit assignments, in a financial year,
whether in respect of corporate or non - corporate assesses. (b) in the case of firm of Chartered Accountants in
practice, 60 tax audit assignments per partner in the firm, in a financial year, whether in respect of corporate or non-

-~ .

corporate assesses.

In computing the “specified number of tax audit assignments”, the number of such assignments, which he or any
_partner of his firm has accepted whether singly or in combination with any other Chartered Accountant in practice or
firm of such Chartered Accountants, shall be taken into account.

Where any partner of the firm is also a partner of any other firm or firms of Chartered Accountants in practice, the
number of tax audit assignments which may be taken for all the firms together in relatioh to such partner shall not
exceed the “specified number of tax audit assignments” in the aggregate.

In addition, where any partner of a firm of Chartered Accountants in practice accepts one or more tax audit
assignments in his individual capacity, the total number of such assignments which may be accepted by him shall not
exceed the “specified number of tax audit assignments” in the aggregate.

It may be noted that the audits conducted under Section 44AD, 44AE and 44AF of the Income Tax Act, 1961 shall
not be taken into account for the purpose of reckoning the “specified number of tax audit assignments”.

in the instant case, M/s PQR & Co., is a partnership firm of Partner P, Q and R. All the partners are exclusively
associated with the firm and are not doing practice in individual capacity. Here, in the instant case, 60 tax audit
assignments per partner in the firm, in a financial year will be considered for “specified number of tax audit
assignments” i.e.180 tax audits = 3 Partners x 60 tax audits.

In the given situation, number of tax audit reports signed under section 44AB are 170 (i.e.10 reports signed by Mr. \P,
60 reports signed by Mr. Q and 100 reports were signed by Mr. R). and number of tax audit reports signed under
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section 44AD are 25 (i.e.15 reports signed by Mr. P, 5 reports signed by Mr. Q and 5 reports were signed by Mr. R). It
may be noted that the 25 audits conducted under Section 44AD, of the Income Tax Act, 1961 shall not be taken into
account for the purpose of.reckoning the “specified number of tax audit assignments”.

In view of above provisions, partner Mr. P, Mr. Q and Mr. R of PQR & Co. have undertaken 170 audits which is not
~ more than 180 tax audits i.e. “specified number of tax audit assignments” under Section 44AB of the Income-tax Act,
1961. Therefore, there is no professional misconduct in regard to the abovesaid audits.

60. MNC Pvt. Ltd. appointed CA. Moksh for some professional assignments like company’s ROC work, preparation
of minutes, statutory register etc. For this, CA. Moksh charged his fees depending on the complexity and the time
spent by him on each assignment. Later on, MNC Pvt. Ltd. filed a complaint against CA. Moksh to ICAI that he has
charged excessive fees for the assignments comparative to the scale of fees recommended by the Board as well as
duly considered by the Council of ICAL. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

(MTP Apr’18)
Charging Excess Fees: The prescribed scale of fees for the professional assignments done by the chartered
accountants is recommendatory in nature. Charging an excessive fee for a professional assignment does not constitute
any misconduct in the context of the provisions of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and regulation made
thereunder since the matter of fixation of actual fee charged in mdlvndual cases depends upon the mutual agreement
and understanding between the member and the client.

In the given case, CA. Moksh has charged excess fees compared to the scale of fees recommended by the Board as
well as duly considered by the Council of ICAL In this context, it may be noted that the scale of fees is the minimum
prescribed scale of fees.

From the above facts and provisions, it may be concluded that CA. Moksh is not liable for any misconduct under the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. Therefore, the contention of MINC Pvt. Ltd. is not tenable.

61. During the opening ceremony of a new branch office of CA. Young, his friend CA. Old introduced to CA. Young,
his friend and client Mr. Rich, the owner of an Export House whose accounts had been audited by CA. Old for more
than 15 Years. After few days, Mr. Rich approached CA. Young and offered a certification work which hitherto had
been done by CA. Old. CA. Young undertook the work for a fee which was not less than fee charged by CA. Old in
earlier period. Comment whether CA. Young had done any professional misconduct. (Nov-18 New)

Acceptance of original professional work by a member emanating from the client introduced to him by another
member: As per Clause (6) of Part 1 of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered
Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of misconduct if he solicits clients or professional work either
directly or indirectly by a circular, advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means.

Further, some forms of the soliciting work which the Council has prohibited include that a member should not accept
the original professional work emanating from a client introduced to him by another member. If any professional
work of such client comes to him directly, it should be his duty to ask the client that he should come through the other
member dealing generally with his original work.

In the given case, CA Old introduced his friend CA. Young to his friend and client Mr. Rich, the owner of an Export
House whose accounts has been audited by CA. Old for more than 15 years. After a few day Mr. Rich approached CA.
Young and offered a certification work which hitherto had been done by CA. Old. Fees charged by CA. Young is also
not less than fee charged by CA. Old.
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in view of above decision CA Young should ask the client to come through CA Old. However, CA Young undertook the

~ work without informing CA. Old. Thus, CA. Young is held guilty under Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule to the
chartered Accountants Act,1949. '

62. XYZ Associates, a Chartered Accoyntants Firm is having a relationship with a multinational accounting firm in
india. The ICAI required that all firms having networking relationship with any other entity need to furnish
information online within the stipulated time. XYZ Associates failed to respond. Comment on this with reference
to Professional misconduct, if any. (Nov-18 New)

Failed to Supply Information Called For: As pef Clause (2) of Part lll of the First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949, a member, whether in practice or not, will be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct
if he does not supply the information called for, or does not comply with the requirements asked for, by the Institute,
Council or any of its Committees, Director (Discipline), Board of Discipline, Disciplinary Committee, Quality Review
Board or the Appellate authority.

Thus, in the given case, Mr. XYZ Associates, a chartered accountant firm is failed to furnish the information of its
relationship with multi-national accounting firm in india. The ICAI required this information to be submitted online
within the stipulated time. XYZ Associates failed to respond and submit the required information. Therefore, XYZ
Associates is held guilty of professional misconduct as per Clause (2) of Part HI of the First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949. - ; - '

63. CA R, a Chartered Accountant in practice is specializing in the field of Information Systems Audit. He is
considered to be one of the experts of this field because of his command over the subject. HKC Limited, a Company
engaged in rendering management consultancy offered him to appoint as its managing director. CA R accepted the
position of managing director without obtaining prior permission from the Institute. One of his friends , CA S
informed him that now he cannot retain full time certificate of practice,.thus cannot do attest function and train
articled assistants. Comment with reference to the provisions of the Chartered Accountants Act,; 1949 and schedules
thereto. (July-21 New)

" As per Clause (11) of Part 1 of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in
practice will be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he engages in any business or occupation other than
the profession of Chartered Accountant unless permitted by the Council so to engage.

The Council decided to allow members in practice to hold the office of Managing Director, Whole-time Director or
Manager of a body corporate within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 provided that the body corporate is
engaged exclusively in rendering Management Consultancy and Other Services permitted by the Council in pursuant
to Section 2(2)(iv) of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and complies with the conditions(s) as specified by the
Council from time to time in this regard. The name of the Management Consultancy Company is required to be
approved by the Institute and such Company has to be registered with the Institute.

The members can retain full time Certificate of Practice besides being‘the Managing Director, Whole-time Director or
Manager of such Management Cohsultancy Company. There will be no.restriction on the quantum of the equity
holding of the members , either individually and/ or along with the relatives, in such Company. Such members shall
be regarded as being in full- time practice and therefore can continue to do attest function either in individual capacity
or in Proprietorship/Partnership firm in which capacity they practice and wherein they are also entitled to train
articled/audit assistants. '

Thus, the action of CA R is valid. . oo
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64. M/s. SR & Associates is one of the three firms shortlisted by ARG Cooperative Bank for assignment of Statutory

Audit for the F.Y 2020-2021. Bank mailed the list of branches to the audit firms along with the maximum fee per
branch and asked them to submit the quotations. SR & Associates responded to the bank and submitted their
quotation. Comment with reference to the provisions of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules
thereto. (July-21 New) .

As per Clause (6) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in
practice wili be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he Solicits clients or professional work either directly
or indirectly by circular, advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means.

Provided that nothing herein contained shall be construed as preventing or prohibiting —

(i) Any Chartered Accountant from applying or requesting for or inviting or securing professional work from another
chartered accountant in practice; or

(i) Amember from responding to tenders or enquiries issued by various users of professional services or organizations
from time to time and securing professional work as a consequence.

However, as p’er. the guideline issued by the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, a member of
the Institute in practice shall not réspond to any tender issued by an organization or user of professional services
in areas of services which are exclusively reserved for chartered accountants, such as audit and attestation services.

However, such restriction shall not be applicable where minimum fee of the assignment is prescribed in the tender
document itself or where the areas are open to other professionals along with the Chartered Accountants.

In the given case of ARG Cooperative Bank, Bank mailed the list of branches to the audit firms along with maximum
fees per branch, in response to which SR & Associates responded and submitted their quotation.

Keeping in view the facts, clause 6 and guideline issued by the council, it can be concluded that SR & Associates is
guilty of Professional misconduct.

65. CA B, is appointed to carry out internal audit of Stock brokers, AKA Finstock Ltd., listed with NSE. CA B started
his work and submitted his first monthly report. CA Z, a -partner of AZA & Co., statutory auditors of AKA Finstock
Ltd., during his first visit got to see the internal audit report of CA B. CA Z feels that since CA B did not inform about
his appointment as an internal auditor to AZA & Co., this is violation of professional ethics. Comment with reference
to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and Schedules thereto. (July-21 Old)

As per Clause (8) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a chartered accountant in practice
is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct, if he accepts a position as auditor previously held by another
chartered accountant or a certified auditor who has been Issued certificate under the Restricted Certificate Rules,
1932 without first communicating with him in writing.

This clause is applicable in situation of replacing of one auditor by another auditor. Internal auditor and statutory

audition are parallel positions and not replacement positions. The management generally appoints the internal :

auditor whereas the statutory auditor will be appointed by the shareholders in the AGM.

In this situation there is no need for communication by one to other. In the given situation CA. B, is appointed as
internal auditor of AKA Finstock Ltd., listed with NSE submitted his first month internal audit report. CA, Z, a partner
of AZA & Co., and statutory auditors of AKA Finstock Ltd. came to know about appointment of internal auditor and
raised an issue regarding violation of professional ethics as CA. B did not informed about his appointment to the
statutory auditors of AZA & Co.
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in view of above the contention of the statutory auditor is not correct and there is no question of communicating in

writing by CA.B. w

- 6. M/s. AWE & Co, Chartered Accountants were appointed as Auditors of WOW Ltd. for the F.Y. 2019-20. Since
they declined to accept the appointment, the Board of Directors appointed M/s GDC & Co., a CA firm as the auditor
in the place of M/s. AWE & Co. This was accepted by M/s GDC & Co. Discuss this with reference to Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949 and Companies Act, 2013. (July-21 Oid) ' ~

Compliance of Statutory Requirements Before Accepting Appointment: Clause (9) of Part | of the First Schedule to
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 provides that a’member in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional
misconduct if he accepts an appointment as auditor of a Company without first ascertaining from it whether the
requirements of Sections 139 and 140 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of such appcintment have been duly
complied with. v

Under this clause it is obligatory on the incoming auditor to ascertain from the Company that the appropriate -
procedure in the matter of his appointment has been duly complied with so that no shareholder or retiring auditor
may, at a later date, challenge the validity of such appointment. Where the auditor other than the retiring auditor is
proposed to be appointed, the incoming auditor should ascertain whether the provisions of Sections 139 and 140
have been complied with. .

In the given case, M/s. AWE & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as auditor of WOW Ltd., however, they
declined to accept the appointment. Therefore, Board of Directors appointed M/s. GDC & Co. as the auditor in place
of M/s. AWE & Co.

Under Sections 139(8)(i) and Section 139(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 Board can appoint the auditor in the case
of casual vacancy. The non-acceptance of appointment or decline to accept appointment by M/s. AWE Ltd does not
constitute a casual vacancy to be filled by the Board. In this case, it will be deemed that no auditor was appointed in
the AGM. ‘

"Further, as per Section 139(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 when at any annual general meeting, no auditor is
appointed or re-appointed, the existing auditor shall continue to be the auditor of the company. The appointment
of the auditor by the Board is defective in law. Hence M/s GDC & Co. is guilty of professional misconduct as per
Clause (9) of the First Schedule as M/s GDC & Co. being incoming auditor accepted- the appointment without
verificaticn of compliance of statutory requirements.

67. CA. Ritu is a leading Income Tax Practitioner in Delhi. She is very much fond of cooking. Due to this passion of
her, she also wrote a cookery book “Delight your tummy” during the year. But, she didn’t take any permission from
the Council of the Institute for engaging herself into authorship of such book. Comment. (MTP Apr-18)

Engaging into Business/Profession Other Than the Profession of CA: As per Clause (11) of Part | of First Schedule to
the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in Practice is deemed to be guilty of professional
misconduct if he engages in any business or occupation other than the profession of Chartered Accountant unless
permitted by the Council so to engage.

Further, the Chartered Accountants Regulation, 1988 provides that a Chartered Accountant in practice shall not
engage in any other business or occupation other than the profession of accountancy except with the permission
granted in accordance with a resolution of the Council. According to the same, general permission has been granted

for authorship of books and articles.
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In the given case, CA. Ritu has written a cookery book without obtaining specific or prior approval of the Council.

On this context, it may be noted that no specific permission is required to be obtained for authorship of books and
articles. Therefore, CA. Ritu would not be held guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (11) of Part | of the
First Schedule to the Charte._red Accountants Act, 1949.

68. As a Chartered Accountant in practice, you are asked to conduct a review of the "Profit Forecast" prepared by
a Company in connection with its application for a Term loans from a bank.

Certification of Financial Forecast: Under Clause (3) of Part | of Second Schedule to The Chartered Accountants Act,

1949, a CAin practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he permits his name or the name of his firm,
to be used in connection with an estimate of earnings contingent upon future transactions in a manner which may

lead to the belief that he vouches for the accuracy of the forecast.

Further, SAE 3400 “The Examination of Prospective Financial Information”, provides that the management is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of the prospective financial information, including the identification
and disclosure of the sources of information, the basis of forecasts and the underlying assumptions. The auditor may
be asked to examine and report on the prospective financial information to enhance its credibility, whether it is
intended for use by third parties or for internal purposes. '

Thus, while making report on projection, the auditor need to mention that his responsibility is to examine the evidence
supporting the assumptions and other information in the prospective financial information, his responsibility does not
include verification of the accuracy of the projections, therefore, he does not vouch for the accuracy of the same.

Hence, the offer can be accepted if the above requirements are complied with.

69. Comment on the following with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto: A
practicing Chartered Accountant was appointed to represent a company before the tax authorities. He submitted
on behalf of his clients certain information and explanations to the authorities, which were found to be false and
misleading. (PM) ‘

Submitting Information as Authorised Representative: As per Clause (5) of Part | of Second Schedule to the
Chartered Accountant Act, 1949, if a member in practice fails to disclose a material fact known to him which is not
disclosed in a financial statement, but disclosure of which is necessary to make the financial statement not misleading,
where he is concerned with that financial statement in a professional capacity, he will be held guilty under Clause (5).

As per Clause (6) of Part I of Second Schedule if he fails to report a material misstatement known to him to appear in

a financial statement with which he is concerned in a professional capacity, he will be held guilty under Clause (6). In

given case, the Chartered Accountant had submitted the statements before the taxation authorities. These statements

are based on the data provided by the management of the company. Although the statements prevpared were based

on incorrect facts and misleading, the Chartered Accountant had only submitted them acting on the instructions of :
his client as his authorized representative.

Hence the Chartered Accountant would not be held liable for professional misconduct.

70. Mr. SP, a Chartered Accountant, obtains registration as category IV Merchant Banker under the SEBI’s Rules and
Regulations and act as Advisor to a capital issue of MB Co. Ltd. He designates himself under the caption “Merchant
Banker” in client offer documents and ‘Advisor to issue’ in his own letterheads, visiting cards and professional
documents. (PM) '
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Use of Designation other than Chartered Accountant:~Clause (7) of Part | of First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949 restrains a Chartered Accountant in practice from advertising his professional attainments or
‘services. It also prohibits a member from using any designation or expressions other than the Chartered Accountant
on professional documents, visiting cards, letter heads or sign boards unless it be a degree of a University established
py law in India or recognized by the Central Government or a title indicating membership of the Institute of (ihartered
. Accountants or of any other institution that has been recognized by the Central Government or may be recogmzed by
the Council.

It may be noted that, in Client Companies’ offer documents and advertisements regarding capital issue, name and
address of the Chartered Accountant acting as Advisor or Consultant to the Issue could be indiecated under the caption
“pdvisor/ Consultant to the Issue”. Further, such members should not use the designation of either ‘Merchant
Banker’ or ‘Advisor/Consultant to Issue’ in their own letterheads, visiting cards, professional documents, etc.

In the given case, Mr. SP, a Chartered Accountant, has obtained registration as category IV Merchant banker and acted '
_as advisor to a capital issue of MB Co. Ltd. He has designated himself under the captlon “Merchant Banker” in client
offer documents and “advisor to issue’ in his own letterheads, visiting cards and professmnal documents.

Therefore, Mr. SP shall be held guilt_y of professional misconduct as per Clause (7) of Part | of First Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

»

71. A Chartered Accountant having CoP entered-into partnership with persons, who are not the members of the
institute, for the purpose of carrying on business. The share of the chartered account in the profit and losses was
25%. He was to take part in the business and was entitled to represent the firm before Govt. authorities etc. He
was operating the bank account of the firm, was receiving moneys from the customers and was also looking after
the affairs of the Partnership. ~.
Practicing CA Entering into Partnership and Carrying on Business: As per Clause (4) of Part | of First Schedule to the
~ Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional
misconduct if he enters into partnership, in or outside India, with any person other than Chartered Accountant in
practice or such other person who is a member of any other professional body having such qualifications as may be
prescribed, including a resident who but for his residence abroad would be entitled to be registered as a member
under clause (v) of sub-section (1) of section 4 or whose qualifications are recognized by the Central Government or
the Council for the purpose of permitting such partnerships. It may be noted that the Council has prescribed the list
of person qualified and the professional bodies for the purpose of entering into partnership under the Chartered
Accountants Regulations, 1988.

Further, according to Clause (11) of Part | of First Schedule to the said Act, a Chartered Accountant in practice shall
be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he engages in any business or occupation other than the
profession of chartered accountant unless permitted by the Council so to engage. It may also be noted that a member
in practice is required to apply for specific and prior approval of the Council for entering into any business. In the given
case, a chartered accountant in practice has entered into partnership with persons who were not the members of the
Institute, for the purpose of carrying on business. The question is silent about with whom the partnership has been
entered into and whether the prior permission for entering into such business has been obtained.

Conclusion: It is assumed that the persons with whom the partnership has been entered into has not been allowed
under the Regulations and the prior approval of the Council has not been obtained for entering into such business.
Hence, the Chartered Accountant shall be held guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (4) and Clause (11).
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72. Mr. Hopeful, an aspiring student of ICAI, approached Mr. Witty, a practicing Chartered Accountant, for the

purpose of articleship. Mr. Witty, the principal, offered him stipend at the rate of X 2,000 per month to be paig

every sixth month along with interest at the rate of 10% per annum compounded monthly to compensate such late
payment on plea that cycle of professional receipts from clients is six months. Mr. Hopeful agreed for such late
payment in the hope of getting extra stipend in the form of interest. Mr. Witty, however, used to disburse salary
to all of his employees on time.

Contravening Provisions of the Act: A member of the Institute, whether in practice or not, shall be deemed to be
guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (1) of Part Il of the Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants
Act, 1949, if he contravenes any of the provisions of this Act or the regulations made there under or any guidelines
issued by the Council.

In the given case, Mr. Witty has failed to make the payments of stipend to articled assistant every month in
accordance with Regulation 48. The fact that the articled assistant will be compensated with extra sum in the form
of interest on late payment is not relevant and the plea that cycle of professional receipts from clients is six months is
not acceptable as Mr. Witty has disbursed salary to all of his employees on time.

Therefore, Mr. Witty is guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (1) of Part Il of the Second Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 as he has contravened Regulation 48 by not making the payment every month..

73. Comment on the following with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto:

(a) Mr. Raj, a renowned practicing Chartered Accountant, decided to tie his knot with Ms. Anjani. While giving order
for marriage invitation cards, Mr. Raj instructed to add his designation “Chartered Accountant” with his name. Later
on, the cards were distributed to all his relatives, close friends and clients.

Printing of Designation “Chartered Accountant” on Marriage Invitations: As per Clause (6) of Part | of the First
Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty
of professional misconduct if he solicits clients or professional work either directly or indirectly by circular,
advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means.

However, the Council of the ICAl is of the view that the designation “Chartered Accountant” as well as the name of
the firm may be used in greeting cards, invitations for marriages and religious ceremonies and any other specified

matters, provided that such greeting cards or invitations etc. are sent only to clients, relatives and close friends of

the members concerned.

In the given case, Mr. Raj instructed to write designation “Chartered Accountant” on his marriage invitation cards and
distributed the same to all his relatives, close friends and clients. On this context, it may be noted that the Council has
allowed using designation “Chartered Accountant” in invitations for marriages, provided these are sent only to clients,
relatives and close friends of the members concerned. o

Therefore, Mr. Raj would not be held guilty of professionai misconduct under Clause (6) of Part | of the First Schedule :

to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

(b) CA Ram is practicing in the field of financial management planning for over 12 years. He has gained expertise in
this domain over others. Mr. Ratan, a student of Chartered Accountancy course, is very much "impressed with the
knowledge of CA. Ram. He approached CA. Ram to take guidance on some topics of financial management subject
related to his course. CA. Ram, on request, decided to spare some time and started providing private tutorship to
Mr. Ratan along with some other aspirants. However, he forgot to take specific permission for such private
tutorship from the Council.
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ermission for Providing Private Tutorship: As per Clause (11) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered
ccountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in practic; shall be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if
heengages in any business or occupation other than the profession of chartered accountant unless permitted by the

ouncil so to engage. '

> further, regulation 190A of the Chartered Accountants Regulation, 1988 provides that a Chartered Accountant in
. practice shall not engage in any other business or occupation other than the profession of accountancy except with
the permission granted in accordance with a resolution of the Council. According to the same there is no specific
_ permission from the council would be necessary in the case of private tutorship.

in the given case, CA. Ram has started providing private tutorship to Mr. Ratan along with Eome other aspirants,
without obtaining specific or prior approval of the Council. On this context, it may be noted that the Council has
provided general permission for providing such private tutorship.

Therefore, CA. Ram would not be held guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (11) of Part | of the First
schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. :

(c) The manager of ZedEx (P) Ltd. approached CA. Vineet in the need of a certificate in respect of a consumption
statement of raw material. Without: having certificate of practice (CoP), CA. Vineet issued the certificate to the
manager of the company, acting as a CA in practice and applied for the CoP to the Institute on very next dayto
avoid any dispute. .

Issuing Certificate without having Certificate of Practice: As per Clause (1) of Part Hl of Second Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a member of the Institute, whether in practice or not, shall be deemed to be guilty
of professional misconduct, if he contravenes any of the provisions of this Act or the regulations made thereunder or

any guidelines issued by the Council.

This clause requires every member of the Institute to act within the framework of the Chartered Accountants Act and
~the Regulations made thereunder. Any violation either of the Act or the Regulations by a member would amount to
misconduct. In the given case, CA. Vineet has issued a certificate in respect of a consumption statement of raw
material to the manager of ZedEx (P) Ltd., as a Chartered Accountant in practice when he had not even apAplied for
the CoP to the Institute, thereby contravening the provisions of section 6 of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

Therefore, CA. Vineet will be held guilty of professional misconduct in terms of Clause (1) of Part il of Second
Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 for contravention of provisions of this Act.

74. A is the auditor of Z Ltd., which has a turnover of X 200 crore. The audit fee for the year is fixed at X 50 lakhs.
During the year, the company offers A an assignment of management consultancy within the meaning of Section
2(2)(iv) of the CA Act, 1949 for a remuneration of X 1 crore. A seeks your advice on accepting the assignment. {SM)

As per Council General Guidelines 2008, under Chapter IX on appointment as statutory auditor a member of the
Institute in practice shall not accepts the appointment as a statutory auditor of a PSUs’/Govt company(ies)/Listed
company(ies) and other public company(ies) having a turnover of % 50 crores or more in a year and where he accepts
any other work(s) or assignment(s) or service(s) in regard to same undertaking(s) on a remuneration which in total
exceeds the fee payable for carrying out the statutory audit of the same undertaking. For this purpose, the other
work/services include Management Consultancy and all other professional services permitted by Council excluding
audit under any other statute, Certification work required to be done by the statutory auditor and any representation
before an authority. ’ ’
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Conclusion: In view of the above position it would be a mlsconduct on A’s part if he accepts the management
consuitancy assignment for a fee of £ 1 crore.

75. Mr. Shanti, a Chartered Accountant, employed as a paid Assistant with a Chartered Accountant firm, leaves the
services of the firm on 31st December, 2020. Despite many reminders from ICAI he fails to reply regarding the date
of leaving the services of the firm. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and Schedules
thereto. [MTP Mar-22]

Failed to Supply Information Called For: As per Clause (2) of Part Ill of the First Schedule to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949, a member, whether in practice or not, will be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct
if he does not supply the information called for, or does not comply with the requirements asked for, by the institute,
Council or any of its Committees, Director (Discipline), Board of Discipline, Disciplinary Committee, Quality Review
Board or the Appellate authority.

Thus, in the given case, Mr. Shanti has failed to reply to the letters of the Institute asking him to confirm the date of
leaving the service as a paid assistant. Therefore, he is held guilty of professional misconduct as per Clause (2) of Part
It of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

76. Sanyam, a chartered accountant in practice is owner of three agriculture lands. He lost his father due to Covid
Pandemic. After death of his father, he started carrying out agricultural activities. His neighbour Raja who is a
farmer, filed a complaint against him to ICAl that being a member he is carrying out agricultural activities, therefore,
he is liable for misconduct. You are required to examine the same with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act,
1949 and Schedules thereto. [MTP-Apr-22]

Engaging into Agricultural Activity: As per Clause (11) of Part | of First Schedule of Chartered Accountants Act, 1949,
a Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he engages in any business or

occupatlon other than the profession of Chartered Accountant unless permitted by the Council so to engage.

However, the Council has granted general permission to the members to engage in certain specific occupation. In
respect of all other occupations specific permission of the Institute is necessary.

In this case, CA. Sanyam is owner of 3 agriculture lands, and he is carrying out agrlcultural activities which is covered
under the general permission.

Therefore, CA Sanyam is not guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (11) of Part ! of First Schedule of Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949 and complain of neighbor to the Institute is not correct.

77. CA Ravi, a practising Chartered Accountant, was proprietor of M/s Ravi & Associates. CA Ravi died on 15th
September, 2020 due to cardiac arrest. Only family member left behind CA Ravi was his wife, Roohi. On 30th
September, 2021, Roohi sold the practice of her husband to CA Balwan for Z 25 Lacs along with right to use the firm
name i.e., M/s. Ravi & Associates and requested the Institute to consider the effect of such sale. Give ’
your comments on the following issues with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act,

1949 and Schedules thereto:

(i) Whether Roohi can sell the practice to CA Balwan? ,

(ii) Can CA Balwan continue to practice as proprietor in name of M/s Ravi & Associates? [May-22]

Sale of Goodwill: With reference to Clause (2) of Part | to the First Schedule to Chartered Accountants’ Act, 1949,
the Councrl of the lnstltute of Chartered Accountants of Indla con5|dered whether the goodwﬂl of a proprletary

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI v . 138




2 Professional Ethics Learn with Fun
concern of chartered accountant can be sold to another member who is otherwise eligible, after the death of the
proprietor. . '
1t is being resolved that the legal heir of the deceased member has to obtain the permission of the Council within a
;,ear of the death of the proprietodr concerned.

further lays down that the sale is perr:nitted subject to certain conditions like such a sale is completed/effected in
all respects and the Institute’s permission to practice in deceased’s proprietary firm name is sought within a year
; bf the death of such proprietor concerned. In respect of these cases, the name of the proprietary firm concerned
: 'Would be kept in abeyance (i.e. not removed on receipt of information about the death of the proprietor as is being
_ done at present) only upto a period of one year from the death of proprietor concerned as aforesaid.
In the given case, Mrs. Roohi, widow of Mr. Ravi, proprietor of M/s. Ravi & Associates, has sold the practice along with
right to use the firm name after one year of his death for * 25 lakhs. This sale is in effect the sale of goodwill.

From the discussion given above it can be conciuded that:

(i) Mrs. Roohi cannot sell the practice of CA. Balwan with right to use the firm name.

(ii) CA Balwan cannot continue to practice in the name of the firm M/s. Ravi & Associates as a proprietor because the
name of the firm M/s. Ravi & Associates would be kept in abeyance only up to a period of one year from the death of
the proprietor.

78. CA K qualified as Chartered Accountant and started practice as proprietor in the name of M/s K & Associates in
the year 2015-16. LST Limited, a listed entity, appointed M/s K & Associates as Statutory Auditor for the year ended
31st March, 2022. CAK signéd the balance sheet of LST Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2022 on 14th May,
2022. M/s K & Associates never subjected themselves to the Peer Review process of the Institute since its inception
of practice. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and Schedules thereto. [May-22]

Clause (9) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 states that a Chartered Accountant
in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of misconduct if he fails to invite attention to any material departure from the
generally accepted procedure of audit applicable to the circumstances.

This clause implies that the audit should be performed in accordance with “generally accepted procedure of audit
applicable to the circumstances” and if for any reason the auditor has not been able to perform the auditin accordance
with such procedure, his report should draw attention to the material departures from such procedures. What
constitutes “generally accepted audit procedure” would depend upon the facts and circumstances of each case, but
guidance is available in general terms from the various pronouncements of the Institute is issued by way of
Engagement and Quality Control Standards, Statements, General Clarifications, Guidance Notes Technical Guides,
Practice Manuals, Studies and Other Papers.

Audit of Listed Companies: Pursuant fo SEBI Notification, statutory audit of listed companies under the Companies
Act, 2013 shall be done by only those auditors who have subjected themselves to the Peer Review process of the
Institute, and hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the ICAL

In the given case of M/s. K & Associates, who is appointed auditor of a listed entity LST Limited for the year ended
31.03.2022, CA K, the proprietor signed the balance sheet on 14.05.2022 but never subjected the firm to the Peer
Review process of the Institute. CA K would be held guilty of professional misconduct under clause (9) of Part | of
Second Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. Also, CA K did not comply with the SEBI Notification which
was required to be complied with. '
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Alternative Solution

Clause (1) of Part Il of the Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 states that a chartered accountan
in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of misconduct if he contravenes any of the provisions of this Act or the
regulations made thereunder or any guidelines issued by the Council. It requires evéw member of the institute to ac
within the framework of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and the regulations and guidelines made by Council -
thereunder. N

The Statement on Peer Review shall be deemed to be a guideline of the Council under Clause (1) of Part ll of Second
Schedule to the Act and it is obligatory for the Practice Unit to comply with the provisions contained in this Statement; .
As per the Statement every Practice Unit including its branches who has conducted Statutory Audit of Enterprises
whose equity or debt securities are listed in India or abroad as defined under SEBI{LODR) regulations, 2015, wnll be
subject to Peer Review in accordance with this statement.

Audit of Listed Companies: Pursuant to SEBI Notification, Statutory Audit of Listed Companies under the Companies
Act, 2013 shall be done by only those auditors who have subjected themselves to the Peer Review process of the
Institute, and hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the ICAI.

In the given case of M/s K & Associates, who is appointed auditor-of a listed entity LST Limited for the year ended
31.03.2022, Mr K, the proprietor signed the Balance sheet on 14.05.2022 but never subjected the firm to the Peer
Review process of the Institute. Hence, CA K would be held guilty of professional misconduct under clause (1) of Part
Il of Second Schedule of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949. :

79. Mrr. Shreyansh, a Chartered Accountant in practice was invited to deliver a seminar on Amendments in Schedule
Il and CARO 2020 which was attended by professionals as well as by representatives of various Industries. One o
section of audience raised a particular issue unique to the industry to which it pertains. Mr. Shreyansh . :ﬁ
enthusiastically explained the issue and elaborated how he solved this, for his client facing the same issue with ;
worked out examples from the computer storage device using the actual data of one of his clients with full
identification of client details being displayed to the group for the sake giving clarity on a topic in a real-life
situation. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and Schedules thereto. [Nov-22]

Disclosure of Information to third Party: Clause (1) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants
Act, 1949 states that a chartered accountant in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he
discloses information acquired in the course of his professional engagement to any person other than his client,
without the consent of the client or otherwise than as required by law for the time being’in force.

SA 200 on " Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with
Standards on Auditing” also reiterates that, "the auditor should respect the confidentiality of information acquired
during his work and should not disclose any such information to a third party without specific authority or unless there
is a legal or professional duty to disclose". ,

In the instant case, Mr. Shreyansh is a Chartered Accountant in practice and he was invited to deliver a seminar on
Amendments in Schedule 11l and CARO 2020 which was attended by professional as well as by representatives of .
various industries. During his session, a query was raised on particular issue and Mr. Shreyansh used the actual data
of one of hIS clients with full identification of client details displayed to explain and elaborate such query. Applying
the above provision, the auditor cannot disclose the information in h|s possession without specific permission of the
client.

Thus, CA. Shreyansh will be liable for professmnal misconduct under clause 1 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949
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ém The Cashier of a company committed a fraud and absconded with the proceeds thereof. The Chief Accountant
of the company also did not know when the fraud had occurred. In the course of the audit, the auditor failed to
discover the fraud. After the audit was completed, however, the fraud was discovered by the Chief Accountant.
nvestigation made at that time indicates that the auditor did not exercise proper skill and care and performed his
~work in a desultory and haphazard manner. With this background, the Directors of the company intend to file
_ disciplinary proceedings against the auditor. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and
schedules thereto. [Nov-22]

- In the given case, in the course of audit, auditor failed to discover the fraud. It is clearly given that investigation
indicated that the auditor did not exercise reasonable skill and care and performed his work in a casual and
. unmethodical manner. :

According to Clause (7) of Part | of Second Schedule of Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in
practice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he “does not exercise due diligence or is grossly negligent
in the conduct of his professional duties”. '

As per SA 240, "The auditor's responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements”, it can be
concluded that the auditor did not plan and perform the audit with an attitude of professional skepticism.

Thus, having regard to this and a fraud has actually taken place during the year, committed by the absconding cashier, ‘
it is reasonable to think that prima facie there is a case against the auditor for gross negligence. ’
From the facts given in the case and by applying Clause (7) and SA 240, it is clear that the auditor is guilty of
professional misconduct and the directors can file disciplinary proceedings against the auditor.

§ 81. CA Mehta was appointed as the Auditor of CS Ltd. for the year 2020-21 in the place of retiring auditor CA Gupta.
CA Mehta accepted the appointment after obtaining a certificate from the management that the provisions of the
Sections 139 and 140 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. Comment with- reference to the
Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and schedules thereto. [Nov-22] '

ifi the given case, CA Mehta accepted the appointment in place of retiring auditor after obtaining a certificate from
the management that the provisions of the Sections 139 and 140 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied
with. '

Clause (9) of Part | of the First Schedule to Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 provides that a member in practice shall
be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he accepts an appointment as auditor of a Company without first
ascertaining from it whether the requirements of Sections 139 and 140 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of such
appointment have been duly complied with.

Under this clause it is obligatory on the incoming auditor to ascertain from the Company that the appropriaté
procedure in the matter of his appointment has been duly complied with so that no shareholder or retiring auditor
may, at a later date, challenge the validity of such appointment. ‘

Under Clause (9) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, the incoming auditor has to
ascertain whether the Company has complied with the provisions of the above sections. The word "ascertain” means
“to find out for certain”. This would mean that the incoming auditor should find out for certain as to whether the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 139 and, 140 of the Companies Act, 2013. In this respect, it
would not be sufficient for the incoming auditor to accept a certificate from the management of the Company that
the provisions of the above sections have been complied with. It is necessary for the incoming auditor to verify the
relevant records of the Company and ascertain as to whether the Company has, in fact, complied with the provisiohs
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of the above sections. If the Company is not willing to allow the incoming auditor to verify the relevant records i_nﬁ

order to enable him to ascertain as to whether the provisions of the above sections have been complied with, the:
incoming auditor should not accept the audit assighment. ’

Applying the above clause tg the given case, the Company is not willing to allow the incoming auditor to verify the -
relevant records in order to enable him to ascertain as to whether the provisions of the above sections have been
complied with, the incoming auditor, CA Mehta should not have accepted the audit assignment. But on the other -
hand, CA Mehta accepted the appointment in place of retiring auditor after obtaining a certificate from the
management which is not enough and hence CA Mehta is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct. ‘

82. Mr. Joe, a practicing chartered accountant, has accepted an appointment as auditor of cooperative society and ,
agreed to charge fees @ 7% of the profits of the society during the financial year 2020-21. Comment on action of
Mr. Joe with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and Schedules thereto. [Dec-21 Old]

According to Clause (10) of Part I of First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant
in practice shall be deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he Charges or offers to charge, accepts or offers
to accept in respect of any professional employment fees which are based on a percentage of profits or which are
contingent upoh the findings, or results of such employment, except as permitted under any regulations made under
this Act. ' ‘
However, this restriction is not applicable where such payment is permitted by the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.
The Council of the Institute has framed regulation 192 which exempts certain professional services from the operation
of Clause (10).-

CA Regulation allow the Chartered Accountant in practice to charge the fees in respect of any professional work which
are based on a percentage of profits, or which are contingent upon the findings or results of such work, in the case of -
an auditor of a co-operative society, the fees may be based on a percentage of the paid-up capital or the working
capital or the gross or net income or profits.

In the given case, Mr. Joe, a practicing Chartered Accountant, has acted an appointment as auditor of co- operatlve
society and agreed to charge his professional fees on percentage of the profits of the society.

Therefore, Mr. Joe shall not be held guilty of professional misconduct as he is allowed to charge fees on percentage
of the profits of the co-operative society.

83. AJ & Associates and PK & Co., chartered accountant firms have joined the Network firm A to Z & Affiliates
registered with Institute. AJ & Associates was statutory auditor of B Ltd. for last 10 years. Due to rotation of auditor
as per section 139 (2) of Companies Act, 2013, B Ltd. retires AJ & Associates and appoints PK & Co., as auditor for
the year 2020-21. Comment as per Chartered Accountant Act, 1949 - Guidelines for Networking.
[May—22 + MTP Sep-22]

As per Counml General Gu1delmes, 2008, Chapter XV, Guidelines for Networking, once the relationship of network
arises, it will be necessary for such a network to comply with all applicable ethical requirements prescribed by the’
Institute from time to time in general and the following requirements in particular in those cases where rotation of
firms is prescribed by any regulatory authority, no member firm of the network can accept appomtment as an auditor
in place of any member firm of the network which is retiring.
In the given situation, AJ & Associates was statutory auditor of B Ltd. For last 10 years and due' to rotation of auditor
as per section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 B L td., retires AJ & Associates and appoints PK & Co. as auditor for
the year 2020-21. )
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it may be considered that Al & Associates and PK & Co,, chartered accountant firms have joined the network firm
namely A to Z & Affiliates registered with Institute. In view of above Guidelines for Networking PK & Co., is disqualified
for appointment as an auditor of B Ltd. .

84. Comment on the following with reference to the with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and
Schedules thereto: [RTP Nov-22] ' ~

(a) CA Dev started practice in Punjab in the year 2019. CA Dev issued ‘Turnover Certificate’ for M/s. ASAUS Traders
to be forwarded to the Bank for the purpose of availing cash credit facility and machinery term loan. Brother of CA
Dev was proprietor of M/s. ASAUS Traders. .

As per Clause (4) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in
practice is deemed to be guilty if he expresses his opinion on financial statements of any business or enterprise in-
which he, his firm, or a partner in his firm has a substantial interest. -

Further, it is not permissible for a member to undertake the assignment of certifica:"tion, wherein the client is relative
of the member. The “relative” for this purpose would refer to the definition mentioned in Accounting Standard (AS) -
18. N

In the given situation, CA Dev started practice in Punjab in the year 2019. CA Dev issued Turnover certificate for l\./I/s.
ASAUS Traders to be forwarded to the Bank for the purpose of obtaining Loan. Brother of CA Dev is proprietor of M/s.
ASAUS Traders. Brother is very well covered in the definition of relative mentioned in Accounting Standard (AS)-18.

Hence, CA Dev is guilty of professional misconduct.

(b) Aagam Private Limited requested CA Sheetal, a practicing Cbartered Accountant, to digitally sign the form
related to resignation of Mr. Rohit, one of the Director of Aagam Private Limited, along with the copy of Resignation
Letter to be uploaded on the website of Registrar of Companies. The signatur'e of Mr. Rohit was simply copied and
pasted by another Director of Aagam Private Limited. CA Sheetal, without verifying the genuineness of the
resignation letter, digitally signed the form and the said form was uploaded on the website of Registrar of
Companies.

As per Clause (7) of Part | of Second Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, a Chartered Accountant in
practice is deemed to be guilty if he does not exercise due diligence or is grossly negligent in the conduct of this
professional duties.

In the given case, Aagam Private Limited requested CA Sheetal, a practicing chartered accountant, to digitally sign the
form related to resignation of Mr. Rohit, one of the Director of Aagam Private Limited, along with the copy of
Resignation Letter to be uploaded on the website of Registrar of Companies. The signature of Mr. Rohit was simply
copied and pasted by another Director of Aagam Private Limited. '

CA Sheetal, without verifying the genuineness of the Resignation Letter, digitally signed the Form and the said form
was uploaded on the website of Registrar of Companies.

Due to forged resignation letter, the resignation of Mr. Rohit from directorship of the Aagam Private Limited had been
occurred. It was noted that CA Sheetal had not taken any step to verify forged signature on resignation Ietter which

anyone would have taken in normal circumstances.
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Consequently, CA. Sheetal would be held liable for professional misconduct as per Clause (7) of Part | of Second

Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

85. CA Praful has recently qualified and has obtained certificate of practice. In the initial years, it is taking time to
set up his clientele base. He |s also conducting audit of few entities. Simultaneously, he plans to provide coaching
to CA students online taking advantage of his fresh reservoir of knowledge. Therefore, he advertises his classes on
various social media platforms. Comment with reference to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949, and Schedules
thereto. [MTP Nov-22] '

Regulation 190A of CA Regulations, 1988 provides that a CAIP shall not engage in any business or occupation other
than profession of accountancy except with permission of Council. Council has passed a resolution under Regulation
190A granting general permission for private tutorship and part time tutorship under coaching organization of the
Institute.

Such general permission is subject to condition that direct teaching hours devoted to such activities not exceed 25
hours a week in order to perform attest functions.

However, Clause 6 of Part | of First Schedule to CA Act, 1949 states that CAIiP shall be deemed to be guilty of
professional misconduct, if he solicits clients or professional work either directly or indirectly by circular,
advertisement, personal communication or interview or by any other means; Further, advertisement of online
coaching activities through social media platforms amounts to indirect solicitation as well as solicitation by another
means and violative of Clause 6/I/First.

Therefore, although a member in practice can engage in private tutorship subject to Council Guidelines but cannot
advertise coaching activities as it amounts to indirect solicitation of clients and professional work.

In given case, CA Praful is providing coaching to CA students online and also advertising his classes on various social
media platforms.

In view of above, CA. Praful is guilty of professional misconduct under Clause (6) of Part | of First Schedule to the
Chartered Accountants Act 1949 for advertising his classes on various social media platforms.

86. Mr. P, a Chartered Accountant did not maintain books of account for his professional work on the ground that
his income is assessed under Section 44ADA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Comment with reference to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949 and Schedules thereto. [Nov-22]

Maintenance of Books of Account: As per the Council General Guidelines 2008, under Chapter 5 on maintenance of
books of accounts, it is specified that if a chartered accountant in practice or the firm of Chartered Accountants of
which he is a partner fails to maintain and keep in respect of his/its professional practice, proper books of account
including the Cash Book and Ledger, he is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct.

Accordingly, it does not matter whether section 44AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 applies/or not.

Conclusion: Hence, Mr. P is guilty of professional misconduct.

87. Mrr. X is a practising Chartered Accountant. Mr. Y is a practising 'advo'cate representing matters in the court of
law. X and Y decided to help each other in matters involving their professional expertise. Accordingly, Mr. X
recommends Mr. Y in all litigation matters in the court of law and Y consults X in all matters relating to finance and
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_ other related matters, which come to him in arguing various cases consequently they started sharing profits of their

professional work. Is Mr. X liable for professional misconduct ? [Nov-22] .

sharing fees with Advocates: According to Clause (2) of Part | of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accouyntants
'kAct, 1949, a Chartered Accountant inlpractice is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he pays or allows
or agrees to pay or allow, directly or indirectly, any share, commission or brokerage in the fees or profits of his
‘ professional business, to any person other than a member of the Institute or a partner ora retired partner &r the legal
_representati ve of a deceased partner, or a member of any other professional body or with such other persons having
~ such qualifications as may be prescribed, for the purpose of rendering such professional services from time to time in
. or outside India. : ,

Furthermore, Clause (3) of Part | of the First Schedule to the said Act states that a Chartered Accountant in practice
is deemed to be guilty of professional misconduct if he accepts or agrees to accept any part of the profits of the
professional work of a person who is not a member of the Institute. ' ‘

However, a practicing member of the Institute can share fees or profits arising out of his professional business with
such members of other professional bodies or with such other persons having suc . gualifications as prescribed by the
Council under Regulation 53-A of the Chartered Accountants Regulations, 1988. Under the said regulation, the
member of “Bar Council of India” (Advocate) is included.

Therefore, Mr. Y, a practicing advocate, a member of Bar Council, is allowed to share part of profits of his professional
work with Mr. X. Hence, Mr. X, a practicing Chartered Accountant, will not be held guilty under any of the abpve-
mentioned clauses for paying and accepting part of profits to/from Mr. Y.

-

88. Mr. S is a practising chartered accountant based out of Chennai. During the weekends, he involved himself in
equity research and used to advise his friends, relatives and other known people who are not his clients. Apart from
this, he was also involved as a paper setter for Accountancy subject in the school in which he studied. He also owned
agricultural land and was doing agriculture during his free time. During the year 20X1, heavy losses were incurred
in agricultural activity due to natural calamities and misfortune, and he lost almost all of his wealth and became
undischarged insolvent. After a few court hearings, finally, in the'year 20X3, he was declared diséharged insolvent
and obtained a certificate from the court stating that his insolvency was caused by misfortune without any
" misconduct on his part. You are required to comment on the above situation with reference to the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949 and Schedules thereto, (especially from the point of section 8: Entry of name in Register of
Members). [RTP/MTP May-23]

Given situation can be visualised in following parts:

(A) Mr S used to involve himself in equity research and used to advise his friends, relatives and other known people:
As per the recent decisions taken by the Ethical standards Board of ICAI, a Chartered Accountant in practice may be
an equity research adviser, but he cannot publish a retail report, as it would amount to other business or
occupation.

In the given case, though Mr S is involved in doing equity research and in advising people, it is clear that he does not
publish any retail report of his research. Hence, this act of Mr S shall not make him guilty of professional misconduct.

(B) Mr S is involved in paper-setting for the Accountancy subject in the school where he studied. He also owns -
agricuitural land and does agriculture activities: As per Clause 11 of Part | of First Schedule of Chartered Accountants
Act and regulation 190A of Chartered Accountants Regulations, a Chartered Accountant in practice is deemed to be
guilty of professional misconduct if he engages in any business or occupation other than the profession of chartered
accountant unless permitted by the Council so to engage.
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Further, Regulation 190A mentions the 'Permissions granted Generally' to engage in a certain category of

occupations, for which no specific permission of Council is required. Those cases include:

- Valuation of papers, acting as paper-setter, head examiner or a rhoderator, for any examination.

- Owning agricultural land and carrying out avgricultural activities.

Therefore, in'the given case, the activities of Mr S as a paper-setter and involvement in agricultural activities do not
make him guilty of professional misconduct.

(C) Mr. S was discharged insolvent: Disabilities for the Purpose of Membership : Section 8 of the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949 enumerates the circumstances under which a person is debarred from having his name entered
in or borne on the Register of Members, If he, being a discharged insolvent, has not obtained from the court a
certificate stating that his insolvency was caused by misfortune without any misconduct on his part. Here it may be
noted that a person who has been removed from membership for a specified period shall not be entitled to have his
name entered in the Register until the expiry of such period.

In addition, failure on the part of a person to disclose the fact that he suffers from any one of the aforementioned
disabilities would constitute professional misconduct. The name of the person, who is found to have been subject at
any time to any of the disabilities discussed in section 8, can be removed from the Register of Members by the Council.

In the given case, it is clearly stated that Mr S was discharged insolvent, and he has also obtained from the court a
certificate stating that his insolvency was caused by misfortune without any misconduct on his part. Hence, Mr S
has not violated the provisions of Section 8, and he is not debarred from having his name entered in the Register of
Members.
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S i .Test your Understanding -
1.CA. Pradyuman is planning for audit of a listed company headquartered in NOIDA. While doing this exercise, he
_has made a list of various procedures intended to be performed by him during the course of audit. He has further

" made up his mind to decide about sample size at time of performing various planned procedures. Is above approach’
’ proper? ’

: b

~ 6A 300 states that audit plan shall include description about nature, timing and extent of audit procedures. The extent
~ of audit procedures also includes deciding about sample sizes to be tested for performing audit prbcedures.
Therefore, the said approach is not proper. Variqus procedures planned to be undertaken should also include
_considerations relating to sample sizes to be tested. -

2. CA. Nikita is conducting audit of a leading society engaged in promoting awareness regarding usefulness of
internet among the disadvantaged sections of society through easily understandable means and methods. The
society is also registered under FCRA, 2010 for receipt of foreign contributions. During the course of audit, she
embarked upon extensive procedures relating to verification of receipt of foreign contributions to rule out “round-
tripping” in comparison to procedures originally thought of. She is documenting various procedures performed by
her including relevant audit findings. However, she doesn’t not feel need for putting into writing about how she

planned the whole exercise. Does she require refreshening of her knowledge?

SA 300 requires auditor to document audit plan and significant changes made during the audit engagement to the
audit plan. It also requires auditor to document reasons for such changes.

The documentation of the audit plan is a record of the planned nature, timing and extent of risk assessment
procedures and further audit procedures at the assertion level in response to the assessed risks. It also serves as a
record of the proper planning of the audit procedures that can be reviewed and approved prior to their performance.

Further, changes to audit plan along with reasons thereof due to embarking upon extensive précedures related to
verification of foreign contributions in comparison to what was originally envisaged need to be documented.

Failure to document audit plan could entail risk of not conducting audit according to professional standards in.a

qualitative manner.

_'Q e L Past Exams/RTPs/MTPs/SM Questions e
1. Key phases in the audit execution stage are Execution Planning, Risk and Control Evaluation, Testing and
Reporting. Explain. (RTP Nov-18) '

Key phases in the audit execution stage are: Execution Planning, Risk and Control Evaluation, Testing and Reporting.

1. Execution Planning: Prior to commencement of an audit engagement, it is important to lay down the roadmap for
audit execution to ensure timely and quality audit results. The auditors need to plan their work in order to carry out
the audit in an effective, efficient and timely manner. A detailed audit program is prepared laying down the audit
objectives, scope and audit approach. The manpower requirement, audit team qualifications, and the time element,
etc. are some of the important considerations during execution planning. In order to plan effectively, the auditor may
need some more information about the audit area. A preliminary survey would help in gathering the required

information.

2. Risk and Control Evaluation: For each segment of audit, the auditors should conduct a detailed risk and. control
assessment i.e. list the risks that must be reviewed in that segment, capture for each risk the controls that exist or

for each control, the work steps required to test the

those that are needed to protect against the risk and show
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effectiveness of the controls. While making Risk & Control assessment it is necessary to borne in mind Materiali

levels as the same is linked with Audit Risks.

3. Testing: Once a comprehensive understanding is gained of the key risks and the controls to be evaluated in a given
audit area, the auditors should test the operating effectiveness of the controls to determine whether controls are :
operating as designed. Thére are multiple test methods which can be used to arrive at the conclusions on the
effectiveness of the controls

4. Reporting: SA 700, “Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements” establishes standards on the form
and content of the auditor’s report issued as a result of an audit performed by an auditor of the financial statements
of an entity. The auditor should review and assess the conclusions drawn from the audit evidence obtained as the, -
basis for the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. This review and assessment involves considering
whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with an acceptable financial reporting framework
applicable to the entity under audit. It is also necessary to consider whether the financial statements comply with the
relevant statutory requirements such as compliance of Provisions & Enactments of the Company Law, Accounting
Standards framed by ICAl, latest Guidelines etc.

The auditor’s report should contain a clear written expression of opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole,
A measure of uniformity in the form and content of the auditor’s report is desirable because it helps to promote the
reader’s understanding of the auditor’s report and to identify unusual circumstances when they occur. A statute
governing the entity or a regulator may require the auditorto include certain matters in the audit report or prescribe
the form in which the auditor should issue his report.

5. Other Important Considerations: In addition to above, there are certain other consideration which auditor is
required to take care while executing the audit such as using the work of other auditor, using the work of an auditor’s *
expert etc.

2. Cineplex, a‘movie theatre compley, is the foremost theatre located in Delhi. Along with the sale of tickets over
the counter and online booking, the major proportion of income is from the cafe, shops, pubs etc. located in the
complex. lts other income includes advertisements exhibited within/outside the premises such as hoafdings,
banners, slides, short films etc. The facility for parking of vehicles is also provided in the basement of the premises.
Cineplex appointed your firm as the auditor of the entity. Being the head of the audit team, you are, therefore,
required to draw an audit programme initially in respect of its revenue and expenditure considering the above
mentioned facts along with other relevant points relating to a complex. (Nov’19 New, MTP Apr’18)

Audit Programme of Movie Theatre Complex:
(i) Peruse the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the entity.
(ii) Ensure the object clause permits the entity to engage in this type of business.
(iii} In the case of income from sale of tickets: , )
(1) Verify the control system as to how it is ensured that the collections on sale of tickets of various shows are
properly accounted. ‘
(2) Verify the system of relating to online booking of various shows and the system of realization of money.
(3) Check that there is overall system of reconciliation of collections with the number of seats available for
different shows on a day. ’
(iv) Verify the internal control system and its effectiveness relating to the income from café, shops, pubs, game zone
etc., located within the multiplex. :
(v) Verify the system of control exercised relating to the income receivable from advertisements exhibited within
the premises and inside the hall such as hoarding, banners, slides, short films etc.
(vi) Verify the system of collection from the parking areas in respect of the vehicles parked by the customers.
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(vii) In the case of payment to the distributors verify the system of payment which may be either through out right

payment or percentage of collection or a combination ©f both. Ensure at the time of settlement any payment of
advance made to the distributor is also adjusted against the amount due.

(viii) Verify the system of payment of salaries and other benefits to the employees and ensure that statutory
requirements are complied with. .

“(ix) Verify the payments effected in respect of the maintenance of the building and ensure the same is in o‘:der.

(x) Verify the insurance premium paid and ensure it covers the entire assets.

3, As an auditor of garment manpfacturing company for the last five years, you have observed that new venture of
online shopping has been added by the company during current year. What factors would be considered by you in
. formulating the audit strategy of the company? (May’15 + SM) .

Formulation of Audit Strategy: While formulating the audit strategy for a company, following factors may be
" .considered —

General Factors: )

(i) Determination of Characteristics of Audit: Identify the characteristics of the engégement that define its scope.

(ii) Reporting Objectives: Ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement to plan the timing of the audit and
the nature of the communications required. .
(iii) Team’s Efforts: Consider the factors that, in the auditor’s professional judgment, are significant in directing th
engagement team’s efforts.

(iv) Preliminary Work: Consider the results of preliminary engagement activities and, where applicable, whether
knowledge gained on other engagements performed by the engagement partner for the entity is relevant.

(v) Nature, timing and Extent of Resources: Ascertain the nature, timing and extent of resources necessary to perform
the engagement.

-~ .

Specific Factors for Online Shopping: The auditor shall also obtgin an understanding of the’information system
including the related business processes due to new venture of online shopping in the following areas:
(i) The classes of transactions in the entity’s operations that are significant to the financial statements;

- (ii) The procedures, within both information technology (IT) and manual systems, by which those transactions are
initiated, recorded, processed, corrected as necessary, transferred to the general ledger and reported in the financial
statements;

(iii) The related accounting records, supporting information and specific accounts in the financial statements that are
used to i~itiate, record, process and report transactions; this includes the correction of incorrect information and how
information is transferred to the general ledger. The records may be in either manual or electronic form;’

(iv) How the information system captures events and conditions, other than transactions, that are significant to the
financial statements;

(v) Contrsls surrounding journal entries, including non-standard journal entries used to record non-recurring, unusual

transactions or adjustments.

5. BSA & Company, Chartered Accountants are duly appointed auditors of ASB LTD engaged in manufacturing of
various FMCG products and having its manufacturing facilities spread across India. Senior partner CA B has called
meeting of audit staff to plan the conduct of audit for the year 2019-20 and at the meeting he addresses as under:
“SA 200 “Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in accordance with Standards
on Auditing”, states that to achieve the overall objectives of the auditor, the auditor shall use the objectives stated
in relevant SAs in planning and performing the audit. Without a careful plan, the overall objective of an au_ditrn;\ay
not be achieved. The audit planning is necessary to conduct an effective audit in an efficient and timely manner”.
In view of above, you are required to analyse and explain the benefits of Planning in an Audit of Finandial
Statements. {May’09)
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SA 200 “Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in accordance with Standards
on Auditing” states that to achieve the overall objectives of the auditor, the auditor shall use the objectives stated in
relevant SAs in planning and performing the audit. Without a careful plan, the overall objective of an audit may not
be achieved. The audit plannigg is necessary to conduct an effective audit in an efficient and timely manner.

Benefits/Advantages of Planning in an Audit of Financial Statements: Planning an audit involves establishing the
overall audit strategy for the engagement and developing an audit plan. Adequate planning benefits the audit of
financial statements in several ways described hereunder-

(i) Attention to Important Areas - Planning would help the auditor to devote appropriate attention to important areas
of the audit.

(ii) Timely resolution of Potential Problems - It would also help the auditor identify and resolve potential problems
ona timely basis.

(iii) Proper Organisation and Management of Audit Engagement - Adequate planning would help the auditor in
properly organizing and managing the audit engagement so that it is performed in an effective and efficient manner.
(iv) Proper Selection of Engagement Team - Planning would assist the auditor in the selection of engagement team
members with appropriate levels of capabilities and competence to respond to anticipated risks, and the proper
assignment of work to them.

(v) Direction and Supervision of Engagement Team - It would further facilitate the direction and supervision of
engagement team members and the review of their work. ' ‘

(vi) Easy Coordination - Also, planning would be helpful to the auditor in coordination of work done by auditors of
components and experts.

6. “The auditor shall document (i) The overall audit strategy; (ii) The audit plan; and (iii) Any significant changes
made during the audit engagement to the overall audit strategy or the audit plan, and the reasons for such
changes.” Explain.

Documenting the Audit Plan

The auditor shall document-

(i} The overall audit strategy;

{ii) The audit plan; and

(iii) Any significant changes made during the audit engagement to the overall audit strategy or the audit plan, and
the reasons for such changes.

(a) Record of Key Decisions: The documentation of the overall audit strategy is a record of the key decisions
considered necessary to properly plan the audit and to communicate significant matters.to the engagement team. For
example, the auditor may summarize the overall audit strategy in the form of a memorandum that contains key
decisions regarding the overall scope, timing and conduct of the audit.

(b) Record of Nature: Timing and Extent of Risk Assessment Procedures: The documentation of the audit plan is a
record of the planned nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures and further audit procedures at the
assertion level in response to the assessed risks. It also serves as a record of the proper p!annihg of the audit
procedures that can be reviewed and approved prior to their performance. The auditor may use standard audit
programs and/or audit completion check\lists, tailored as needed to reflect the particular engagement circumstances.

(c) Record of reasons for Change in Audit Plans: A record of the significant changes to the overall audit strategy.and
the audit plan, and resulting changes to the planned nature, timing and extent of audit procedures; explains why the
sighificant changes were made, and the overall strategy and audit plan finally adopted for the audit. it also reflects
the appropriate response to the significant changes bccurring during the audit.
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_vygu have been appointed as auditor of Bahubali Ltd. for the first time. Enumerate the factors to be considered A
-while establishing an overall audit strategy and its benefits.

actors while establishing Overall Audit Strategy:

“overall audit strategy would involve-

(i) Determination of Characteristics of Audit: Identify the characteristics of the engagement that define its scobe.
{ii) Reporting Objectives: Ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement to plan the timing of the audit and
the nature of the communications required.

engagement team’s efforts. ,
: ,('i‘v) Preliminary Work: Consider the results of preliminary engagement activities and, where applicable, whether
'»knowledge gained on other engagements performed by the engagement partner for the entity is relevant.

(v) Nature, timing and Resources: Ascertain the nature, timing and extent of resources necessary to perform the

engagement.

Benefits of Overall Audit Strategy: The process of establishing the overall audit strategy assists the auditor to
determine such matters as- '

(i) Employment of Qualitative Resources: The resources to deploy for specific audit areas, such as the use of
.appropriately experienced team members for high risk areas or the involvement of experts on complex matters.

(ii) Allocation of Quantity of Resources: The amount of resources to allocate to specific audit areas, such as the‘
number of team members assigned to observe the inventory count at material locations, the extent of review of other
auditors’ work in the case of group audits, or the audit budget in hours to allocate to high risk areas.

4§ audit stage or at key cut-off dates.

(iv) Ménagement of Resources: How such resources are managed, directed .and supervised, such as when team
briefing and debriefing meetings are expected to be held, how engagement partner and manager reviews are
expected to take place (for example, on-site or off-site), and whether to complete engagement quality control reviews.

8. Write a short note on Contents of an audit plan. (RTP Nov’20)

Contents of an Audit Plan: The auditor shall develop an audit pian that shall include a description of-

“Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement through Understanding the Entity and lts
Environment”. v

ii. The nature, timing and extent of planned further audit procedures at the assertion level, as determined under
SA 330 “The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks”.

iii. Other planned audit procedu'res,that are required to be carried out so that the engagement complies with
SAs. The audit plan is more detailed than the overall audit strategy that includes the nature, timing and extent
of audit procedures to be performed by engagement team members. ’

Planning for these audit procedures takes place over the course of the audit as the audit plan for the engagement
develops. For example, planning of the auditor's risk assessment procedures occurs early in the audit process.
However, planning the nature, timing and extent of specific further audit procedures depends on the outcome of
those risk assessment procedures. In addition, the auditor may begin the execution of further audit procedures for
some classes of transactions, account balances and disclosures before planning all remaining further audit procedures,
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9. Discuss the relationship between overall audit strategy and audit pian. (Nov’16)

Relationship between the Overall Audit Strategy and the Audit Plan:
e The audit strategy provides the guidelines for developing the audit plan. It establishes the scope and conduct of
the audit procedures and thereby works as basis for developing a detailed audit plan. '
e Detailed audit plan would include the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence. .
e The audit strategy is prepared before the audit plan.
* The audit plan contains more details than the overall audit strategy. ® Audit strategy and audit plan are inter-
related because change in one would result into change in the other.
]
10. As an internal auditor for a large manufacturing concern, you are asked to verify whether there are adequate
records for identification and value of Plant and Machinery, tools and dies and whether any of these items have
become obsolescent and not in use. Draft a suitable audit programme for the above. (MTP Apr’18)

The Internal Audit Programme in connection with Plant and Machinery and Tools and dies may be on the foilowing
lines:

(i) Internal Control Aspects: The following may be incorporated in the audit programme to check the mternal control
aspects-

a. Maintaining separate register for hired assets, leased asset and jointly owned assets.

b. Maintaining register of fixed asset and reconciling to physical inspection of fixed asset and to nominal ledger.

c. All movements of assets are accurately recorded.

d. Authorisation be obtained for —

i. adeclaring a fixed asset scrapped.
ii. selling a fixed asset.
Check whether additions to fixed asset register are verified and checked by authorised person.
f.  Proper recording of all additions and disposal.
g. Examining procedure for the purchase of new fixed assets, including wrltten authority, work order, voucher
and other relevant evidence.

h. Regular review of adequate security arrangements.

i. Periodic inspection of assets is done or not.

J- Regular review of insurance cover requirements over fixed assets :
(if) Assets Register: To review the registers and records of plant, machinery, etc. showing clearly the date of purchase
of assets, cost price, location, depreciation charged, etc.
(iii) Cost Report and Journal Register: To review the cost relating to each plant and machinery and to verify items
which have been capitalised. '
(iv) Code Register: To see that each item of plant and machinery has been given a distinct code number to facilitate
identification and verify the maintenance of Code Register. -
(v) Physical Verification: To see physical verification has been conducted at frequent intervals.
(vi) Movement Register: To verify _

a. whether Movement Register for movable equipments and

b. log books in case of vehicles, etc. are being maintained properly.
(vii) Assets Disposal Register: To review whether assets have been disposed off after proper technical and financial
advice and sales/disposal_/retirement, etc. of these assets are governed by authorisation, sales memos or other
appropriate documents. ‘
(viii) Spare Parts Register: To examine the maintenance of a separate register of tools, spare parts for each plant and
machinery.
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Review of Maintenance: To scrutinise the programme for an actual periodical servicing and overhauling cf

machines and to examine the extent of utilisation of mamtenance department services.
(x) Review of Obsolescence: To scrutinise whether expert’s oplmon have beer obtained from time to time to ensure
purchase of technically most useful efficient and advanced machinery after a thorough study.
(xi) Review of R&D: To review R&D act|V|ty and ascertain the extent of its relevance to the operations of the
organisation, maintenance of machinery efflClency and prevention of early obsolescence.

LS
11. XY Ltd. is a manufacturing company, provided following details of wastages of raw materials in percentage, for
various months. You have been asked to enquire into causes of abnormal wastage of raw materials. Draw out an
audit plan. Wastage percentage are July 2017 2.5% Aug 2017 2.7% Sep 2017 2.4% Oct 2017 8.1%. (MTP Apr’18)

Audit Plan to locate the Abnormal Wastage of Raw Material: To locate the reasons for the abnormal wastage, the
auditor should first of all assess the general requirements as under:

i. Procure a list of raw materials, showing the names and detailed characteristics of each raw material.

ii. Obtain the standard consumption figures, and ascertain the basis according to which normal wastage figures
have been worked out. Examine the break-up of a normal wastage into that in.process, storage and handling
stages. Also obtain control reports, if any, in respect of manufacturing costs with reference to predetermined
standards.

iii. Examine the various records maintained for recording separately the various lots purchased and identification
of each lot with actual material consumption and for ascertaining actual wastage figures therein. s

iv. Obtain reports of Preventive Maintenance Programme of machinery to ensure that the quality -of goods
manufacture is not of sub-standard nature or leads to high scrappage work.

v. Assess whether personnel employed are properly trained and working efficiently.

vi. See whether quality control techniques have been consistent or have undergone any change.

- vii. Examine inventory plans and procedures in report of transportation storage efficiency, deterioration, pilferage

and whether the same are audited regularly. e

viii. Examine whether the basis adopted for calculating wastage for September is the same as was adopted for the

other three months.

ix. Obtain a statement showing break up of wastage figures in storage, handling and process for the four months

under reference and compare the results of the analysis for each of the four months.

12. Mr. S & Mr. J are a senior and junior articled assistant respectively, ina renowned audit firm. Both were assigned
statutory audit of a manufacturing company. Mr. S instructed his junior to draft an audit plan by taking reference '
from a similar client (a partnership firm) who was engaged in the same business. Mr. J was confused as to how that
reference could suit in this case, since the nature and extent of planning would vary for both clients. After few days,
the audit work commenced. During the course of the audit, certain events took place, which made Mr. J to rethink
about the audit plan initially designed. He approached Mr. S and enquired about when would an audit plan require
a change. Comment about both the situations face by Mr. J in the above situation. (MTP Oct-21)

SA 200 “Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in accordance with Standards
on Auditing” states that in order to achieve the overall objectives of the audit, the auditor shall use the objectives
stated in relevant SAs in planning and performing the audit. Without a careful plan, the overall objective of an audit
may not be achieved. The audit planning is necessary to conduct an effective audit, in an efficient and timely manner.
So far as the nature of planning is concerned, it would vary according to-

(i) Size and Complexity of the Auditee - If the size and complexity of organization of which audit is to be conducted is
large, then much more planning activities would be required as compared to an entity whose size and complexity is

small.
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{(ii) Past Experience & Expertise - The key engagement team members’ previous experience & expertise als

contributes towards variation in planning activities.
(iii} Change in Circumstances - Another factor contributing towards variation in planning activities is change in
circumstances.

Changes to Audit Plannir;g: The auditor should update and change the overall audit strategy and audit plan as.
necessary during the course of the audit. The auditor may need to modify the overall audit strategy and audit plan
due to the factors such as '

(i) result of unexpected events,

(ii) changes in conditions, or

(iii) the audit evidence obtained from the results of audit procedures. R
Further, the auditor would also have to modify the nature, timing & extent of further audit procedures, based on the
revised considerations of assessed risks. This may be the case when information coming to the auditor differs
significantly from the information when he pianned the audit process.

In addition to the above, there may be possibilities of change in law, notifications, government policies, which
warrants updation of overall audit strategy and audit plan.

13. CA. Raj is the auditor of a multiplex cinema house. He has observed during the course of the audit, that the
existing venue has undergone renovation. The auditorium was split into smaller ones and additional auditoriums
were constructed. CA. Raj, who finalised the audit plan and audit programme wanted to reconsider the same during
the course of the audit. Discuss a few circumstances where the audit programme would have to be suitably altered .
by the auditor. [Nov-22]

Given below are a few circumstances where in the audit programme would have to be suitably altered:

(1) If audit procedures were designed for a certain volume of turnover and subsequently the volume have
substantially increased. Also, when there have been significant changes in the accounting organisation, procedures
and personnel subsequent to the audit procedures. !

(2) Where during the course of an audit, it has been discovered that internal control procedures were not as effective
as assumed at the time the audit programme was framed.

(3) Where there has been an extraordinary increase in the amount of book debts or that in the value of stocks as
compared to that in the previous year.

(4) When a suspicion has aroused during the course of audit or information has been received that assets of the
company have been misappropriated.

It may be noted that the audit plan and related programme should be reconsidered as the audit progresses. Such re-
consideration is based on the auditor’s review of internal control, his preliminary evaluation thereof and the result of
his compliance and substantive procedures.
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: “Case Scenario : ' , G
1. CA. Anoothi has been offered appomtment as audltor of an NSE listed company. She has already ticked

checkboxes relating to her independence vis-a-vis company and integfity of promoters and key management

- personnel. Being satisfied on this count and after sending formal engagement letter to the company, she is in midst

of planning activities for company’s audlt. Owner of country’s one of topmost writing instrument brands, above
said company is in business of producmg ball pens, gel pens, markers, folders and such gen eral stationery products.
: 5
Business profile of the company including its brief history, detail of its key managerial persons and brief description
of company’s activities was obtained by her. She has also studied reports relating to growth of India’s stationery
market due to greater demand and impact of government driven schemes like Sarv Shiksha Abhiyaan (SSA). Besides,
she has also obtained risk management policy of the company which contained company’s strategy to contain
various risks.

On perusal of financial statements of company, it is noticed that the company’s inventories as at close of financial .
year stood at Rs. 200 crore which constitutes about 25% of its total assets. She is planning to identify significant
audit risks pertaining to valuation of inventories. '

She is also considering about materiality level for financial statements as a whole.

Keeping in view above, answer the"following questions: -
1 The compliance with independence requirements and verification of integrity of promoters and key management
personnel has been ensured by CA. Anoothi. In this regard, which of the following statements is likely to be a
complete statement?
(a) Such activities are required to performed strictly in terms of requirements and procedures outlined in code of
ethics issued by ICAI.
(b) Such activities are required to be performed in respect of an audit engagement in accordance with SA 220 and
these preliminary engagement activities are specifically identified in SA 210.
(c) Such activities are required to performed in respect of an audit engagement in accordance with SA 220 and these
preliminary engagement activities form part of planning an audit in accordance with SA 300.
(d) Such activities are required to be performed in terms of requirements and procedures outlined in code of ethics
issued by ICAI and are specifically identified in SA 210.

2. The auditor has obtained risk management policy of the company. Which of the following statements is most
appropriate in this regard? '
(a) The understanding of company’s risk management policy is required by auditor. It may help the auditor in
identifying risks of material misstatement that management failed to identify.
(b) The understanding of company’s risk management policy is not required by auditor. It deals with business risks
of company. Audit risk is not influenced by company’s business risks.
(c) The understanding of company’s risk management policy is required by auditor. However, it cannot help the
auditor in identifying risks of material misstatement that management failed to ldent|fy
(d) The understanding of company’s risk management policy is sufficient for an auditor to develop an audit plan.

3. Which of the following is not likely to be a procedure for auditor to understand the company?

(a) Performing an online search to identify press reports relating to the company

(b) Reviewing any new SEB! and stock exchange requirements

{(c) Reviewing whether fresh moneys were raised from public

(d) Seeking confirmation letters from bankers regarding outstanding balances L

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI ’ 155 -




Ch-3 Audit Planning Learn with Fun

4. Considering auditor’s intention to identify significant audit risks pertaining to inventory valuation, which of the
following-statements is likely to be true?

(a) Procedures planned to identify significant audit risks pertaining to inventory valuation forms part of overall audit ;

plan. _ :
(b) Procedures planned to identify significant audit risks pertaining to inventory valuation forms part of overall audit
strategy. ~

(c) Procedures planned to identify significant audit risks pertaining to inventory valuation forms part of tests of
controls. ’

(d) Procedures planned to identify significant audit risks pertaining to inventory valuation forms part of tests of details,

5. In relation to materiality levels for financial statements as a whole, which of the following statements is most
appropriate?

Materiality has to be decided by auditor after identification and assessment of risks of material misstatements.
Materiality has to be decided by auditor prior to identification and assessment of risks of material misstatements.
Materiality has to be decided by auditor after performing risk assessment procedures.

Materiality has to be decided by auditor at time of designing tests of controls and substantive procedures.

o 0 oo

1.(c) 2. (a) 3. (d) 4. (a) 5. (b)
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&

1. CA. R is conducting statutory audit of a Divisional office (DO) of a public sector insurance company. On going
through delegation of powers laid down by company’s head office, it is noticed that surveyors in claims.under
property insurance policies beyond ’estimated amounts of Z30 lac are to be appointed by Divisional Claims
.. .Committee (DCC). However, on going through surveyor appointment details of 10 such claims during the year, 5
instances have come to his notice where above delegation of powers has not been followed and app&intments
were made by Divisional manager in place of DCC.

In the beginning, the auditor had assessed risks of material misstatement to be low. Describe why above finding
would change auditor’s assessment in relation to above. )

Evaluation of internal controls influences auditor’s assessment of risks of material misstatement. Risks of material
misstatement also consists of control risk.

In the given situation of statutory audit of a Divisional office of a public sector insurance company, it is noticed that
procedure relating to delegation of powers has not been followed and surveyor appointments have been made in
violation of laid down procedures. It is a serious violation and shows that controls are not operating effectively as
laid down by company management.

»
Such deviations from established controls may lead auditor to conclude that control risk needs to be revised. Revision

of control risk assessment is likely to lead to revision in risks of material misstatement. It may also result in
modification of nature, timing and extent of planned substantive procedures.

2. You have recently been appointed as an auditor of NGO working in the field of “upholding democracy” for the

first time. The last year accounts of NGO were unaudited and its activities were limited at a small scale. However,

it is only in the current year that NGO has received substantial donations including foreign funds. The said NGO is

also crowdfunding its donations. The government has now Iegisl%tive power to cancel FCRA certificate of NGO.

Since it is working in field which encompasses political and social fields, accusations and counter-accusations are
~“flying thick and fast.

What factors you may consider for assessing audit risk?

For assessing audit risk, auditor shall consider all components of audit risk. The said NGO is working in a political-
cum-social field which can make its activities inherently risky. Crowdfunding donations may have to be seen in relation
to constitution of NGO which may make these risky. Since the NGO is in receipt of foreign funds, it may make
transactions inherently risky. The credibility and integrity of persons behind NGO is important. Shady NGOs can be
involved in money laundering activities and may be involved in mis-utilizing funds from donors. Since last year
accounts were unaudited, it also increases inherent risk due to probable effect of misstatements, if any, of last year.
Non-compliance with strict laws has the potential to make activities of NGO inherently risky.

Since NGO has received substantial donations in current year and its activities were on a relatively small scale during
last year, formal controls may not be in place. Lack of formal controls may lead to non-compliance with laws. Non-
compliance with FCRA can have serious consequences including cancelling such certificate of NGO. Therefore, control
risk could be high. :

Further, audit for NGO has been accepted for the first time. There may be a lack of understanding of activities of
NGO. It may lead to higher detection risk due to inappropriate sampling procedures or faulty application of audit
procedures.
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3. RK Living Limited is engaged in manufacturing and processing of textile fabrics. It purchases its raw material from
a company based in Silvassa taxable @ 12%. It takes about 3-4 days for raw materials to reach the company’s plant,
Recently, the company has revamped its internal control system for recording its transactions. You have also
assumed charge as head of internal audit department of the company few days before. It is noticed that information
system requires booking of putchases in purchase ledger and stock records from date of purchase invoice only. How
you would deal with above matter as internal auditor of the company?

Internal audit involves continuous and critical appraisal of functioning of an entity with a view to suggest
improvements thereto and add value to and strengthen the overall governance mechanism of the entity including its
strategic risk management and internal control system. internal audit also involves evaluation of internal control to
provide assurance to management regarding design, implementation and operating effectiveness of control.

In the given situation, information system requires booking of purchases in purchase ledger and stock records from
date of invoice. Such a control system is likely to present a.distorted picture of stocks of the company. It would show
stocks of raw material as received whereas these goods could be in transit. Therefore, design of the control itself is
faulty which allows booking' from date of purchase invoice only. Further, such a system can have implications with
respect to GST laws..

3
The internal auditor should report above matter asking management for corrective action.

4. A company as part of its internal control set up has a system under which quarterly budgeted targets in respect

of sales are anaiyﬁed with respect to actual performance achieved. It also involves fixing responsibilities of different
product departmental heads and taking timely correction. In case of product departmental heads not achieving
quarterly budgeted targets, they have to give a detailed justification for the same and also lay down how shortfalls ‘
woulid be compensated in ensuing quarters. ,

Identify and explain component of internal control alluded to in above scenario.

i

The above referred component of internal control is “Control activities”. Control activities that may be relevant to an
audit include policies and procedures that pertain to “performance reviews”. ~

Such control activities include reviews and analyses of actual performance versus budgets, forecasts, and prior period
performance; relating different sets of data — operating or financial — to one another, together with analyses of the
relationships and investigative and corrective actions; comparing internal data with external sources of information;
and review of functional or activity performance.

The control activities pertaining to analysis of budgeted target of sales with respect to actual performance, fixing of
responsibilities and taking timely corrective action falls in nature of performance reviews. Such performance reviews
are part of control activities which is a component of internal control.

5. CA. S is statutory auditor of a listed company. On reviewing internal controls of the company, he is of the view
that there can be possible situations where insurance premiums for keeping insurance policies current in respect
of various assets of company may have become due and payable but internal control systems established by the
company may not be able to capture it. Elaborate how he should proceed to deal with the above matter.

/

/

A deficiency in internal control exists when: -
(i) A control is designed, implemented or. operated in such a way that it is unable to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements in the financial statements on a timely basis or
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A control necessary to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements in the financial statements on a timely bas;s

s  missing.

14

_In above situation, there is a possibility that internal control systems established by the company may not be able to
capture insurance premiums which may have become due and payable. It is a significant deficiency as failure to keep
nsurance policies current would render ‘assets of the company uninsured. It may lead to losses for the company in

case of any eventuality. N

Further, in accordance with SA 265, the significance of a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in ’internal control
depends not only on whether a misstatement has agtually occurred, but also on the likelihood that a m|sstatement
could occur and the potential magnitude of the misstatement. Significant deficiencies may, therefore, exist even
" though the auditor has not identified misstatements during the audit. The susceptibility to loss of an asset is a factor
in determining whether a deficiency constitutes significant deficiency in internal control.

The auditor shall communicate in writing significant deficiency in internal control to those charged with governance
and include in the written communication of significant deficiencies in internal control: - )
(a) A description of the deficiencies and an explanation of their potential effects and =

(b) Sufficient information to enable those charged with governance and management to understand the context of
the communication.

.

- Past Exams/RTP/MTPs/SM Questions

1. During the course of his audit, the auditor notiéed material weaknesses in the internal control system and he
wishes to communicate the same to the management. You are required to elucidate the important points the
auditor should keep in the mind while drafting the letter of weaknesses in internal control system. (SM)

Important Points to be kept in Mind While Drafting Letter of Weakness: As per SA 265, ”Communlcatmg Deficiencies
in Internal Control to Those who Charged with Governance and Management” the auditor shall include in the
written communication of significant deficiencies in internal control -

(i) A description of the deficiencies and an explanation of their potential effects; and

(i) Sufficient information to enable those charged with governance and management to understand the context of
the communication.

in other words, the auditor should communicate material weaknesses to the management or the audit committee, if
any, on a timely basis. This communication should be, preferably, in writing through a letter of weakness or
management letter.

Important points with regard to such a letter are as follows-

(1) The letter lists down the area of weaknesses in the system and offers suggestions for improvement.

(2) 1t should clearly indicate that it discusses only weaknesses which have come to the attention of the auditor as a
result of his audit and that his examination has not been designed to determine the adequacy of internal control for

management.

(3) This letter serves as a valuable reference document for management for the purpose of revising the system and
insisting on its strict implementation.

(4) The letter may also serve to minimize legal liability in the event of a major defalcation or other loss resulting from
a weakness in internal control. ' :

2. As auditor of Z Ltd., you would like to limit your examination of account balance tests. What are the contrpL
objectives you would like the accounting control system to achieve to suit your purpose? (SM)

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI ' 159




Ch-4 RAIC Learn with Fun

Basic Accounting Control Objectives: The basic accounting control objectives which are sought to be achieved by any
accounting control system are — ’
(i) Whether all transactions are recorded; -
(ii) Whether recorded transactions are real;
(iii) Whether all recorded transactions are properly valued;
(iv}) Whether all transactions are recorded timely;
(v) Whether all transactions are properly posted;
(vi) Whether all transactions are properly classified and disclosed;
(vii) Whether all transactions are properly summarized.

3. New Life Hospital is a multi-speciality hospital which has been facing a lot of pilferage and troubles regarding
their inventory maintenance and control. On investigation into the matter it was found that the person in charge
of inventory inflow and outflow from the store house is also responsible for purchases and maintaining inventory
records. According to you, which basis system of control has been violated? Also list down the other general
conditions pertaining to such system which needs to be maintained and checked by the management. (Nov-15)

Internal Checks and internal Audit are important constituents of Accounting Controls. Internal check system implies
organization of the overall system of book-keeping and arrangement of Staff duties in such a way that no one person
can carry through a transaction and record every aspect thereof.

In the given case of New Life Hospital, the person-in-charge of inventory inflow and outflow from the store house is
also responsible for purchases and maintaining inventory records.

Thus, one of the basic system of control i.e. internal check which includes segregation of duties or maker and checker
has been violated where transaction processing are allocated to different persons in such a manner that no one person
can carry through the completion of a transaction from start to finish or the work of one person is made
complimentary to the work of another person.

The general condition pertaining to the internal check system may be summarized as under -
i) No single person should have complete control over any important aspect of the business operation. Every
employee’s action should come under the review of another person.
ii) Staff duties should be rotated from time to time so that members do not perform the same function for a
considerable length of time.
iii) Every member of the staff should be encouraged to go on leave at least once a year. _
iv) Persons having physical custody of assets must not be permitted to have access to the books of accounts.
v} There should exist an accounting control in respect of each class of assets, in addition, there should be periodical
inspection so as to establish their physical condition.
vi) Mechanical devices should be used, where ever practicable to prevent loss or misappropriation of cash.
vii) Budgetary control shouid be exercised and wide deviations observed should be reconciled. i
viii) For inventory taking, at the close of the year, trading activities should, if possible be suspended, and it should be
done by staff belonging to several sections of the organization.

4. Compute the overall Audit Risk if looking to the nature of business there are chances that 40% bills of services
provided would be defalcated, inquirin\g on the same matter management has assured that internal control can
prevent such defalcation to 75%.At his part the Auditor assesses that the procedure he could apply in the remaining
time to complete Audit gives him satisfaction level of detection of frauds & error to an extent of 60%. Anah}se the
Risk of Material Misstatement and find out the overall Audit Risk. (MTP Oct-20)
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" According to SA-200, “Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance

with Standards on Auditing”, the Audit Risk is a risk that Ayditor will issue an inappropriate opinion while Financial
statements are materially misstated. ’

»

Audit Risk, has two components: Risk of material Misstatement and Detection Risk. The relationship can be defined
as follows.

Audit Risk = Risk of material Misstatement X Detection Risk e

Risk of Material Misstatement is anticipated risk that a material Misstatement may exist in Financial Statement before
start of the Audit. It has two components Inherent risk and Control risk. The relationship can be defined as: Risk of
material Misstatement = Inherent risk X control risk '

v

inherent risk: it is a susceptibility of an assertion about account balance; class of transaction, disciosure towards
misstatements which may be either individually or collectively with other
Misstatement becomes material before considering any related internal control which is 40% in the given case.

Control risk: it is a risk that there may be chances of material Misstatement even if there is a control applied by the
management and it has prevented defalcation to 75%.
Hence, control risk is 25% (100%-75%) _

Risk of material Misstatement: Inherent risk X control risk i.e. 40% X 25 % = 10%

Chances of material Misstatement are reduced to 10% by the internal control applied by management.

Detection risk: It is a risk that a material Misstatement remained undetected even if all Audit procedures applied,
Detection Risk is 100-60=40%

In the given case, overall Audit Risk can be reduced up to 4% as follows: .
Audit Risk: Risk of Material Misstatement X Detection Risk = 10X 40% = 4% .

5. PADHAM Ltd is engaged in the business of manufacturing of carpets. The company is planning to expand and
diversify its operations. The management has increased the focus on internal controls to ensure better governance.
The management discussed with the statutory auditors to ensure the steps required to be taken so that the
statutory audit is risk based and focused on areas of greatest risk to the achievement of the company’s objectives.
(a) Name the key steps and phases involved in Risk Based Audit.

(b) Also, discuss the steps to be taken for the risk assessment phase of the audit. [RTP May -22]

(a) The auditor’s objective in a risk-based audit is to obtain reasonable assurance that no material misstatements
whether caused by fraud or errors exist in the financial statements.

This involves the following three key steps:
e Assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements
e Designing and performing further audit procedures that respond to assessed risks and reduce the risks of material
misstatements in the financial statements to an acceptably low level; and
e Issuing an appropriate audit report based on the audit findings.

The risk-based audit process is presented in three distinct phases:
e Risk assessment.
e Risk response; and
e Reporting.
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(b) The risk assessment phase of the audit involves the following steps:

e Performing client acceptance or continuance procedures
e Planning the overall engagement;
e Performing risk assessment procedures to understand the business and identify inherent and control risks;

e Identifying relevant internal contro! procedures and assessing their design and implementation (those controls that ;

would prevent material misstatements from occurring or detect and correct misstatements after they have occurred);

¢ Assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements;

e Identifying the significant risks that require special audit consideration and those risks for which substantive
procedures alone are not sufficient;

* Communicating any material weaknesses in the design and implementation of internal control to management and
those charged with governance; and

* Making an informed assessment of the risks of material misstatement at the financial statement level and at the
assertion level.

6. BSF Limited is engaged in the business of trading leather goods. You are the internal auditor of the company for
the year 2019-20. In order to review internal controls of the Sales Department of the company, you visited the
Department and noticed the work division as follows: :

(1) An officer was handling the sales ledger and cash receipts.

(2) Another official was handling dispatch of goods and issuance of Delivery challans.

{3) One more officer was there to handie customer/ debtor accounts and issue of receipts. -

As an internal auditor, you are required to briefly discuss the general condition pertaining to the internal check
prevalent in internal control system. Do you think that there was proper division of work in BSF Limited? If not,
why? (RTP Nov 19)

Points of general condition as discussed in Q3 +

in the\given scenario, Company has not done proper division of work as:
{i) the receipts of cash should not be handied by the official handling sales ledger and
(i) delivery challans should be verified by an authorised official other than the officer handling despatch of goods.

7. In the use of standardized Internal Control Questionnaire (ICQ), certain basic assumptions about elements of a
good internal control system are taken into account. List down few such assumptions. (Nov 18 New)

In the use of standardized internal control questionnaire, certain basic assumptions about elements of good control
are taken into account.

These are -

(i) Certain procedures in general used by most business concerns are essential in achieving reliable internal control.

This is a time-tested assumption. Deposit into bank of the entire receipts of a day or daily balancing of the cash book
and ledgers or periodic reconciliation with the control accounts are examples of widely used practices which are
considered good internal control practices. Besides, basic operations giving rise to these practnces exist in all
businesses irrespective of their nature.

(ii) Organisations are such that permit an extensive division of duties and responsibilities. The larger the organisation,

the greater is the scope of such division.

(iii) Employees concerned with accountmg function are not assigned any custodial function.

(iv) No single person is thrust with the respon5|b|I|ty of completing a transaction all by himself.

{v) There should always be evidence to identify the person who has done the work whether involving authorisation,

implementation or checking.
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8. A newly qualified professional has received his first appointment as auditor of a large company and is very much

concerned about the effectiveness of internal control ar:d wants to assess and evaluate the control environment
as- part of his audit program. Towards achieving his objective, he seeks your help in knowing the Standard
Operating Procedures (SOPs) of assessment and evaluation of control. (May’19 + Nov-21 + RTP May-23)

standard Operating Procedures (SOPs): A well-defined set of SOPs helps define role, responsibilities, process &
controls & thus helps clearly communicate the operating controls to-all touch points of a process. The controls are
likely to be clearly understood & consistently applied even during employee turnover.

(i) Enterprise Risk Management: An organization,which has robust process to identify & mitigate risks across the
enterprise & its periodical review will assist in early identification of gaps & taking effective control measures. In such
organizations, surprises of failures in controls is likely to be few.

(i) Segregation of Job Responsibilities: A key element of control is that multiple activities in a transaction/decision
should not be concentrated with one individual. Segregation of duties is an important element of control such that no
two commercial activities should be conducted by the same person.

(i) Job Rotation in Sensitive Areas: Any job carried out by the same person over a long period of time is likely to lead
to complacency & possible misuse in sensitive areas. It is therefore important that in key commercial functions, the
job rotation is regularly followed to-avoid degeneration of controls. For example, if the same buyer continues to
conduct purchase function for long period, it is likely that he gets into comfort zone with existing vendors & herice
does not exercise adequate controls in terms of vgndor development, competitive quotes etc.

(iv) Delegation of Financial Powers Document: As the organization grows, it needs to delegate the financial & other
powers to their employees. A clearly defined document on delegation of powers allows controls to be clearly operated
without being dependent on individuals. -
(v) Information Technology based Controls: With the advent of computers & enterprise resource planning (ERP)
systems, it is much easier to embed controls through the system instead of being human dependent. The failure rate
“for IT embedded controls is likely to be low, is likely to have better audit trail & is thus easier to monitor. For example,
at the stage of customer invoicing, application of correct rates in invoices or credit control can all be exercised directly
through IT system improving control environment. A

9. Explain the concept of Integrated framework issued by Committee of the Sponsbring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO Framework) duly mentioning its four out of five components and discuss the three
category of objectives that can be achieved as per COSO framework. (Jan’21 New)

COSO’s Internal Control — Integrated Framework was introduced in 1992 as guidance on how to establish better
controls so companies can achieve their objectives. COSO categorizes entity-level objectives into operations, financial
reporting, and compliance. The framework includes more than 20 basic principles representing the fundamehtal
cohcepts associated with its five components: control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication, and monitoring. Some of the principles include key elements for compliance, such as integrity
and ethical values, authorities and responsibilities, policies and procedures, and reporting deficiencies.

Five Components of COSO are as follows:

(i) Control Environment '

(ii) Risk Assessment

(iii} Control Activities / ) N
(iv) Information and Communication ‘
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(v) Monitoring

The COSO Framework is designed to be used by organizations to assess the effectiveness of the system of internal
control to achieve objectives as determined.by management. The Framework lists three categories of objectives as:
below:

1 Operations Objectives — related to the effectiveness and efficiency of the entity’s operations, including operational
and financial performance goals, and safeguarding assets against loss.

2 Reporting Objectives — related to intérnal and external financial and non-financial reporting to stakeholders, which
would encompass reliability, timeliness};transparency, or other terms as established by regulators, standard setters,
or the entity’s policies. . '

3 Compliance objectives — In the;’Fra'{ ework, the compliance objective was described as “relating to the entity’s
compliance with applicable laws and r gulations.” The Framework considers the increased demands and complexities
in laws, regulations, and accounting sf andards.

10. During process of extracting exception reports, auditor noted numerous purchase entries without valid
purchase orders. In terms of percentage, about 40% of purchases were made without valid POs and also few POs
were validated after actual purchase. Also there was no reconciliation between goods received and goods ordered.
You are required to hriefly explain audit procedures to address validity of account balance level. {MTP Apr-21)

In the given scenario, the auditors noted numerous purchase entries without valid purchase orders during the p.roce,svs
of extracting the exception reports. Further, in terms of percentage, about 40% of purchases were made without valid
purchase orders and also few purchase orders were validated after the actual purchase. Also there was no
reconciliation between the goods received and the goods ordered.

Audit Procedures: The following procedures may address the validity of the account baiance:

® Make a selection of the purchases, review correspondence with the vendors, purchase requisitions (internal
document) and reconciliations of their accounts.

o Review Vendor listing along with the ageing details. Follow up the material amounts paid before the normal
credit period and analyse the reasons for exceptions.

* Meet with the company's Purchase officer and obtain responses to our inquiries regarding the purchases made
without purchase orders.

e Discuss the summary of such issues with the client.

11. Your engagement team is seeking advice from you as engagement partner regarding steps for risk identification.
Elaborate. [SM]

Steps for Risk Identification
> Assess the significance of the assessed risk, impact of its occurrence and also revise the materiality accordingly
for the specific account balance.
> Determine the likelihood for assessed risk to occur and its impact on our auditing procedures.
Document the assertions that are effected.
> Consider the impact of the risk on each of the assertions (completeness, existence, accuracy, validity, valuation
and presentation) relevant to the account balance, tlass of transactions, or disclosure.

\4

> Identify the degree of Significant risks that would require separate attention and response by the auditor.
Planned audit procedures should directly address these risks.
> Enquire and document the management’s response. o
> Consider the nature of theinternal control system in place and its possible effectiveness in mitigating the risks
involved. Ensure the controls :
% Routine in nature (occur daily) or periodic such as monthly.
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& Designed to prevent or detect and correct errors.
& Manual or automated. .
» Consider any unique characteristics of the risk.
» Consider the existence of any particular characteristics (inherent risks) in the class of transactions, account .
balance or disclosure that need to be addressed in designing further audit procedures.
Examples could include high value inventory, complex contractual agreements, absence of a paper trail on Eertain
transaction streams or a large percentage of sales coming from a single customer.

: . Case Study ; S J’
Following is extract of information taken from draft fifhancial statements of Find me Limited engaged in manufacturing
of bicycles put up before you for audit for year 2022-23: - (X In lacs) .
farss e o » " 202223 202122
. Revenué ﬁ;om opérati'bﬁs k’ ’ 35VO’OO 25000 —
~ |Cost of sales 26950 20000
Gross Profit 8050 | 5000
Operating expenses 3825 | 3825
Finance costs . 225 275
Depreciation and amortization expense-é 1200 1360 »
Profit before tax 2800 (400)
Tax expense — current tax ) 750 0
Deferred tax (50) (385)
{Total tax expense 700 (385)
Profit after tax . - 2100 15
Trade receivables 6000 3000
Inventories 10000 6000

Company has not made any substantial additions in its plant capacity during year 2022-23. It has reduced its dealer
network and is approaching customers directly using its online platform. Encouraging response has been received -
from cus’ "mers and sales have gathered momentum through online platform.

You are planning to use analytical procedures as risk assessment procedures. Keeping in view above, answer the

following questions: -

1. The revenue from operations of company has increased by 40% in year 2022-23 as compared to last year. There
_ are no additions in plant capacity. Which of the following statements is most appropriate in this regard?

(a) There is audit risk that revenue from operations is overstated. '

(b) There is audit risk that revenue from operations is not overstated.

{(c) There is audit risk that fresh customers of company do not make payments.

(d) There is audit risk that company is overutilizing its plant capacity leading to rapid plant obsolescence.

2. The operating expenses of financial year 2021-22 and 2022-23 are same. Which of the following statements is
most appropriaté in overall context of case study? ' »

(a) Operating expenses figures of two years can be same. There is no audit risk involved.

(b) It is an anomaly. However, there is no audit risk involved.
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{c) There is audit risk that previous year figures need to be revised under Companies Act.

(d) There is audit risk that previous year figures have been presented in place of current year figures in draft fi Fnanc|a|
statements.

3. Trade receivables turnover ratio has increased from 1.44 months in year 2021-22 to more than 2 months in vear

2022-23. identify the most appropriate statement.

(a) Indirect distribution through online platform, trade (eceivables turnover ratio is estimated to be high. Therefore,.
there is no audit risk involved.

(b) In direct distribution through online platform, trade receivables turnover ratio should have fallen. Therefore,
there is no audit risk involved.

(c) In direct distribution through online platform, trade receivables turnover ratio should have fallen. It is possible
that some of the dealers may not be meeting their commitments of past contracts. Therefore, there is audit risk:

that trade receivables could be undervalued.

(d) In direct distribution through online platform, trade receivables turnover ratio should have fallen. It is possible
that some of the dealers may not be meeting their commitments of past contracts. Therefore, there is audit risk
that trade receivables could be overvalued.

4. The gross profit ratio of company has increased by 3% during year 2022 23 in comparison to last year. Which of
the following statements is most appropriate?

{(a) There is audit risk that there is overstatement of cost of sales.

(b) There is audit risk that margins with customers may have increased.

(c) There is audit risk that closing inventories may be undervalued.

(d) There is audit risk that cost of sales may not be completely recorded.

5. Inventory turnover ratio has increased from 2.88 months in year 2021-22 to about 3.42 months in year 2022-23.-
Which of the following statements is likely to be in accordance with overall context of case study?

(a) Revenue jump in current year may have led to need for raising inventory holding levels. Therefore, there is audit
risk pertaining to misstatement of inventories.

(b) Raising of inventory levels may raise locked up funds in inventories. There is audit risk that it can lead to rise in
costs. ‘

(c) Revenue jump in current year may have led to need for raising inventory holding levels. However, there is also a
risk that some of inventories with dealers could have become obsolete. It leads to audit risk that inventories may
be overvalued.

(d) There is audit risk on account of both the factors stated at [b] & [cl.

1. (a) 2. (d) 3. (d) 4. (d) 5. (c)
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- Test Your Understanding

1. CA. Kajal Gupta is nearing completion of audit of consolidated financial statements of Rubic Paints and Chemicals
Limited. She requires written representations from the parent’s management on matters material to the
consolidated financial statements. What specific matters such written representations can include?
. &
The auditor of the consolidated financial statements should obtain written representations from parent’s
" management on matters material to the consolidated financial statements.
' ¢
Examples of such representations include: .,
a. Completeness of components included in the consolidated financial statements;
b. ldentification of reportable segments for segment reporting
c. ldentification of related parties and related party transactions for reporting
d. Appropriateness and completeness of permanent and current period consolidation adjustments, including the
elimination of intra-group transactions. '

2. CA.MV Chitale is auditor of consolidated financial statements of “D and D Limited” for year 2022 23. The
consolidated financial statements consist of financial statements and financial information of 8 subsidiaries audited
by other auditors. Such financial statements, financial information and auditor’s reports of subsidiaries have been
furnished by management of the “D and D Limited” to him.

Following further information is also available in respect of these 8 subsidiaries for year 2022 -23: -

Total assets X 1500 crore

Total revenues X 1000 crore

Net cash outflows X 10 crore -

Two of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financiall statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other
“auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries.

Where and how such information should be included in independent auditor’s report on consolidated financial
statements of company? Also draft a suitable para by making necessary assumptions.

In a case where the parent’s auditor is not the auditor of all the components included in the consolidated financial
statements, then as prescribed in SA 706, if the auditor considers it necessary to make reference to the audit of the
other auditors, the auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements should disclose clearly the magnitude of
the portion of the financial statements audited by the other auditors. This may be done by stating aggregate rupee
amounts or percentages of total assets, revenues and cash flows of components included in the consolidated financial
statements not audited by the parent’s auditor.

it should be included in Other Matter paragraph of independent auditor’s report. The draft “Other Matter Paragraph”
is as under: -

Other Matter Paragraph

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respeci of eight (8) subsidiaries, whose
financial statements include total assets of Rs.1500 crores as at March 31, 2023, and total revenues of Rs.1,000
crores and net cash outflow of Rs. 10 crores for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other
financial information have been audited by other auditors and such financial statements, other financial information
and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management of the Holdmg Company
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Our opinibn on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries and joint ventures, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Two of these subsidiaries are]ocated‘outside India whose financial statements and other financial information have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which
have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective
countries. The Holding Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in
india.

We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion in so far
as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements is not modified in
respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and
the financial statements and other financial information certified by the Management.

) i - Past Exams, MTPs, RTPs & Sm: Questlons . .
1 CA Vimal is the audltor of Excellent Ltd., a parent company which presents Consolldated Financial Statements
- The management of Excellent Ltd. has provided the list of the components included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. As an auditor of Consolidated Financial Statements, CA Vimal has to verify that all the components
have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and review the information provided by the
management in |dent|fymg the components. State the procedures to be followed by CA. Vimal in respect of
completeness of this information. (Nov 20 + RTP May-23)

A parent which presents consolidated financial statements is required to consolidate all its components in the
consolidated financial statements other than those for which exceptions have been provided in the relevant
accounting standards under the applicable financial reporting framework.

The auditor should obtain a listing of all the components included in the consolidated financial statements and review
the information provided by the management of the parent identifying the components. The auditor should verify
that all the components have been included in the consolidated financial statements unless these components meet
criterion for exclusion.

In the given case, Excellent Ltd has provided the list of components included in the consolidated financial statements
(CFSs). CA Vimal shall verify that all the components have been included in the CFS.

Further, in respect of completeness of this information, CA Vimal should perform the following procedures:

i. review his working papers for the prior years for the known components;

ii. review the parent’s procedures for identification of various components; ,

ili. make inquiries of the management to identify any new components or any component which goes out of
consolidated financial statements; \ /

iv. review the investments of parent as well as its components to determine the shareholding in other entities;

v. review the joint ventures and joint arrangements as applicable; .

vi. review the other arrangements entered into by the parent that have not been included in the consolidated financial
statements of the group;
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vii. review the statutory records maintained by the parent, for example registers under section 186, 190 of the

Companies Act, 2013;

_viii. Identify the changes in the shareholding that might have taken place during the reporting period.

2. H Limited is an Investment Company preparing its Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS. The Company
obtains funds from various investors and commits its performance for fair return and capital appreciation to: its
investors. During the year under audit: it had been observed that the Company had invested 25% in S1 Ltd., 50% in
s2 Ltd. and 60% in S3 Ltd. of the respective share capitals of the Investee Companies. When checking the investment
~ schedule of the Company, an issue cropped as to whether there would arise any need to consolidate accounts of
any such investee companies with those of H Limited in accordance with section 129(3) of the Corhpanies Act, 2013
which contains no exclusion from consolidation. Analyse the issues involved and r’ve your views. (Nov 18 New)
According to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, where a company has one or moré subsidiaries, including
associate company and joint venture, it shall, in addition to its own financial statements prepare a consolidated
financial statement of the company and of all the subsidiaries in the same form and manner as that of its own.

Further, as per Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the consolidation of financial statements of the company shall be
“made in accordance with the provisions of Schedule Il to the Act and the applicable-accounting standards. However,
a company which is no required to prepare consolidated financial statements under the Accounting Standards, it shall
be sufficient if the company complies with provisions on consolidated financial statements provided in Schedule lil of
the Act. :

+

P

However, an investment entity need not present consolidated financial statements if it is required, in accordance
with Ind AS 110‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, to measure all of its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss.

A parent shall determine whether it is an investment entity.

(An investment entity is an entity that(a) obtains funds from one or more mvestors for the purpose of providing those
investor(s) with investment management services; (b) commits to its investor(s) that its business pu rpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income, or both; and (c) measures and evaluates the
--performance of substantiaily all of its investments on a fair value basis.)

In the given case, H Limited is an investment company preparing its financial statements in accordance with Ind AS
and the company had invested 25% in Sl Ltd., 50% in S2 Ltd. and 60% in S3 Ltd. of the respective share capitals of the
investee companies. In view of provisions discussed in ind AS 110, the Company is not required to prepare
consolidated financial statements however, for the compliance of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, it shall be
sufficient if the company complies with provisions on consolidated financial statements provided in Schedule I} of the
Act.

Thus, it can be concluded that ultlmate authority on consolidation is AS / Ind AS as prescribed by law and if they give
some exemption it should be followed. If out of exemption some subsidiaries are not consolidated then list should
be-disclosed in notes to accounts with reason. '

3. H Co. Ltd., is a holding company with two subsidiaries R Co. Ltd., and S Co. Ltd. The H Co. Ltd., adopts straight
line method of depreciation for its assets whereas S Co. Ltd., follows written down value or diminishing value
method. Though R Co. Ltd., follows straight line method of depreciation, it does not give effect to component
accounting of depreciation in respect of high value assets. While consolidating the financials of the R Co. Ltd., and
S Co. Ltd., with those of H Co. Ltd., determine the possible issues that you have to ensure for compliance in the light
of above facts. (May-18) » ‘ T

TION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI ) 169




Ch-5 Group Audit Learn with Fun
When the Component(s) Auditor Reports on Financial Statements under an Accounting Framework is Different than

that of the Parent: A component may alternatively prepare financial statements on the basis of the parent’s
accounting policies, as outlined in the group accounting manual, to facilitate the preparation of the group’s
consolidated financial statements. The group accounting manual would normally contain all accounting policies,
including relevant disclosure requirements, which are consistent with.the requirements of the financial reporting
framework under which the group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared.

Thus, using group accounting policies as the financial accounting framework for components to report under, the
principal/parent auditors should perform procedures necessary to determine compliance of the group accounting
policies with the GAAP applicable to the parent’s financial statements.

It may be noted that change in the selection of the method of depreciation is an accounting estimate and not an
accounting policy as per Ind-AS 8. Accordingly, the entity should select the method that most closely reflects the
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. That method should be
applied consistently from period to period unless there is a change in the expected pattern of consumption of those
future economic benefits in separate financial statements as well as consolidated financial statements.

Therefore, there can be different methods for calculation of depreciation for its assets, if their expected pattern of
consumption is different. The method once selected in the standalone financial statements of the subsidiary should
not be changed while preparing the consolidated financial statements.

In the given case, assets of R Co. Ltd. (subsidiary company) is depreciated using straight line method, assets of S Co.
Ltd. (subsidiary company) are depreciated using written down value method and assets of parent company (H Co.
Ltd.) are depreciated using straight line method, is in order. However, each part of an item of Property Plant and
Equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item should be depreciated separately
under Component Method of Depreciation as per AS 10 on Property, Plant and Equipment.

Thus, R Co. Ltd., though adopting straight line method but does not giving effect to component accounting of
depreaatlon in respect of high value assets , is not in compliance with ind AS 16/ Accounting Standard 10 Property
Plant and Equipment.

4. Before commencing an audit of consolidated financial statements, the auditor should plan his work to enable
him to conduct an effective audit in an efficient and timely manner. What are the important aspects that an auditor
should consider in audit plan? (Jan’21 New)

Before commencing an audit of consolidated financial statements, the auditor should plan his work to enable him to
conduct an effective audit in an efficient and timely manner. The auditor should make plans, among other things, for
the following:

i) Understanding of the group structure and group-wide controls including assessment of Information Technology
(IT) system and related general.and applications IT related controls (manual and automated) for consolidation
process;

ii) Understanding of accounting policies of the parent and its components as well as of the consolidation process
including the process of translation of financial statements of foreign components;

iii) Determining and programming the nature, timing, and extent of the audit procedures to be performed based
on the assessment of the risk of material misstatement in the consolidation process; /

iv) Determining the extent of use of other auditor’s work in the audit; and

v) Coordinating the work to be performed.
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A parent which presents consolidated financial statements is required to consolidate all its components in the

_ consolidated financial statements other than those for Wthh exceptions have been provided in the relevant
"accounting standards under the applicable financial reportmg framework.

The auditor should obtain a listing of all the components included in the consolidated financial statements and review
- the information provided by the manaéement of the parent identifying the components. The auditor should verify
that all the components have been included in the consolidated financial statements unless these componerits meet
criterion for exclusion.

5, R Ltd. owns 51% voting power in S Ltd. It howeyer, holds and discloses all the shares as "Stock-in-trade" in its
- financial statements since the shares are held exclusively with a view to their subsequent disposal in the near
future. R Ltd. represents that while preparing Consolidated Financial Statements, S Ltd. can i:e excluded from the
.consolidation. As the Statutory Auditor of R Ltd, how would you deal when the consolidated financial statements
are to be drawn up in compliance with Ind AS? (May 19 Old)

As per Ind AS 110, there is no exemption for temporary control where the shares are held as stock in trade, even
though there is an exemption under AS 21. Hence consolidation is mandatory for Ind AS compliant financial statement
in this case.

Therefore, R Ltd. is required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements including S Ltd. as & subsidiary company in’
accordance with Ind AS 110. The auditor is required to ensure the compliance of the same. In case the managemefit
does not agreed for the same the auditor may modify the report accordingly.

6. M Ltd. acquired 51 % shares of S Ltd. on 01-04-2018 and sold 25% of these shares during the financial year 2018-
19. M Ltd. did not prepare Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year 2018-19 on the plea that the
" control was only temporary. Do you agree with the view of M Ltd.? Deciq‘e, assuming, that M Ltd. is required to
prepare its financial statements under Ind AS. (Nov-19) '
As per Ind AS 110, there is no such exemption for ‘temporary control’, or “for operating under severe long-term
funds transfer restrictions” and consolidation is mandatory for ind AS compliant financial statement in this case. Ind
AS 110 states that “Consolidation of an investee shall begin from the date the investor obtains control of the investee
and cease when the investor loses control of the investee”. In the given case, M Ltd acquired 51% shares of S Ltd on
01.04.2018 and sold 25% shares during the year ended 2018-19. M Ltd did not consolidate the financial statements
of S Ltd for the year ended 31.03.2019 on the plea that control was only temporary. The intention of M Ltd. is quite
clear that the control in S Ltd. is temporary as the former company disposed off the acquired shares in the same year
of its purchase.

However, even though the intention of M Ltd. is for temporary holding of shares in S Ltd. as per Ind AS, M Ltd is
required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with Ind AS 110 as exemption for ‘temporary
control’ is not available under Ind AS 110. However, “Consolidation of an investee shail begin from the date the
investor obtains control of the investee and cease when the investor loses control of the investee”. Here, due to sale
of investment in S Ltd. up to 25%, M Ltd. loses control of S Ltd. '

Accordingly, M Ltd., is required to prepare consolidated statement till the date of disposal of the 25% shares to
comply with the same.

7. Atishaya Ltd. holds the ownership of 10% of voting power and control over the composition of Board of Directors

of Neenu Ltd. While planning the statutory audit of Atishaya Ltd., what factors would be considered by you as the

statutory auditors of Atishaya Ltd for the audit of its consolidated financial statements prepared under ind AS?
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{MTP Apr-23
10% Voting Power and Control over the composition of Board of Directors:
> Inthis case, Atishaya Ltd holds only 10 percent of the voting power but has control over the composition of Boarg
of Directors of Neenu Ltd. In such a case, Atishaya Ltd shall be considered as parent of Neenu Ltd and, therefore,
it would consolidate Neenu Ltd in its consolidated financial statements as a subsidiary.

» The auditor should verify Atishaya Ltd’s management’s assessment of having control in Neenu Ltd despite..
having only 10% voting power as per the requirements of Ind AS 110. Auditor would need to verify as to how

Atishaya Ltd controls composition of Board of Directors or corresponding governing body of Neenu Ltd.
> There can be various means by which such kind of control can be established. in this regard, the auditor may
verify the minutes of Board meetings, shareholder agreement entered into by the parent, agreements with

Neenu Ltd to which the parent might have provided any technology or know how, enforcement of statute, etc.
> Further, the auditor should verify that the adjustments warranted by Ind AS 110 have been made wherever'

‘required and have been properly authorised by the management of the parent. The preparation of consolidated
financial statements gives rise to permanent consolidation adjustments and current period consolidation
adjustments. The auditor should make plan, among other things, for the understanding of accounting policies
of the Atishaya Ltd and Neenu Ltd and determining and programming the nature, timing, and extent of audit
procedures to be pérformed etc.

> Further, the duties of an auditor with regard to reporting of transactions with any other related parties are
given in SA 550 on Related Parties. As per SA 550 on, “Related Parties”, the auditor should review information
provided by the management of the entity identifying the names of all known related parties. A person or other
entity that has control or significant influence, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, over the
reporting entity are considered as Related Party.

» In forming an opinion on the financial statements, the auditor shall evaluate whether the identified related party
relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with Ind AS

110 and Schedule 1ll and whether the effects of the related party relationships and transactions prevent the.

financial statements from achieving true and fair presentation (for fair presentation frameworks) or cause the
financial statements to be misleading (for compliance frameworks).

8. Responsibility of holding company for preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements. (RTP Nov 21)
Responsibility of holding company for preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements: The responsibility for the
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements, among other things, is that of the management of
the parent.
This includes:

a. identifying components, and including the financial information of the components to be included in the
consolidated financial statements;
where appropriate, identifying reportable segments for segmental reporting;

identifying related parties and related party transactions for reporting;
obtaining accurate and complete financial information from components;

making.appropriate consolidation adjustments;

harmonization of accounting policies and accounting framework; and
GAAP conversion, where applicable.

Wm0 a0

Apart from the above, parent ordinarily issues instructions to management of component specifying requirements
relating to financial information of components to be included in consolidated financial statements. Instructions
ordinarily' cover accounting policies to be applied, statutory and other disclosure requirements applicable to the
parent, including the identification of and reporting on reportable segments, and related parties and related party
transactions, and a reporting timetable. ‘

9. Auditor's objectives in an audit of consolidated financial statements. (RTP Nov-19)
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The auditor's objectives in an audit of consolidated financial statements are:

i)

i)

iiii)

iv)

to satisfy himself that the consolidated financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with fhe
requirements of applicable financial reporting framework;

to enable himself to express an opinion on the true and fair view presented by the consolidated financial
statements;

to enquire into the matters as specified in section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 2013; and.

to report on the matters given in the clauses (a) to (i) of section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, Yor other
matters under section 143(3)(j) read with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014..

The auditor should also validate the requirement of preparation of CFS for the company as per applicable
financial reporting framework. ¢

s

10. The adjustments required for preparation of consolidated financial statements are made in memorandum

records kept for the purpose, by the Parent. The auditor should review the memorandum records to verify the

adjustment entries made in the preparation of consolidated financial statements. Elucidate the other points, apart -
from reviewing the memorandum records, the auditor should verify while consolidation of adjustments for current -
period. (July-21 Old) )

The adjustments required for preparation of consolidated financial statements are made in memorandum records
kept for the purpose by the parent. The auditor should review the memorandum records to verify the adjustment
entries made in the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

»

Apart from reviewing the memorandum records, the auditor should inter alia:

ii)

i)

vii}

verify that the intra group transactions and account balances have been eliminated;

verify that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances; -

verify that adequate disclosures have been made in accordance w1th AS 21 in the consohdated financial
statements of application of different accounting policies in case, it was impracticable to harm‘omze them.
Applying a requirement is impracticable when the entity cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to
do so but while preparing CFS under Ind AS, auditors should ensure that appropriate adjustments are made to
that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the group’s accounting policies in accordance with Ind AS 110;

verify the adjustments made to harmonise the different accounting policies including adjustments made by
management to convert a component’s financial statements prepared under the component’s GAAP to the GAAP
under which the consolidated financial statements are prepared;

verify the calculation of minorities/non-controlling interest;

verify adjustments relating to deferred tax on account of temporary differences arising out of elimination of
profit and losses resulting from intergroup transactions (where the parent’s accounts are maintained in Ind AS);
verify that income and expenses of the subsidiary are included in consolidated financial statements from the

_ date it gains control until the date when the entity ceases to control the subsidiary and further such income and
* expenses are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in consolidated financial statements

at the acquisition date (where the consolidated financial statements are prepared under indian Accounting
Standards.)

The auditor should gain an understanding of the procedures adopted by the management of the enterprise to make
the abovementioned adjustments. This helps the auditor in reducing the audit risk to an acceptably low level.
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11. You are appointed as an auditor of Azad Limited, a listed company which is a main supplier to the USA building

and construction market. With a turnover of Rs.1.6 bllllon, the company operates through 9 business units and hag
nearly 135 branches across the countries. As an auditor, how will you draft the report in case

(i) When the Parent’s Auditor is also the Auditor of all its Components? and

(i) When the Parent’s Auditor is not the Auditor of all its Components? (MTP Nov-20)

(i) When the Parent’s Auditor is also the Auditor of all its Components: While drafting the audit report, the auditor
should report whether principles and procedures for’ preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements as laid down in the relevant accounting standards have been followed. In case of any departure or
deviation, the auditor should make adequate disclosure in the audit report so that users of the consolidated financial.
statements are aware of such deviation. Auditor should issue an audit report expressing opinion whether the'
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as on balance sheet
date and as to whether consolidated profit and loss statement gives true and fair view of the results of consolidated
profit or losses of the Group for the period under audit. Where the consolidated financial statements also include a
cash flow statement, the auditor should also give his opinion on the true and fair view of the cash flows presented by
the consolidated cash flow statements.

(ii)) When the Parent’s Auditor is not the Auditor of all its Components: In a case where the parent’s auditor is not
the auditor of all the components included in the consolidated financial statements, the auditor of the consolidated
financial statements should also consider the requirement of SA 600 “Using the Work of Another Auditor”.

As prescribed in SA 706 “Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s
Report”, if the auditor considers it necessary to make reference to the audit of the other auditors, the auditor’s report
on the consolidated financial statements should disclose clearly the magnitude of the portion of the financial
statements audited by the other auditor(s). This may be done by stating aggregate rupee amounts or percentages ‘
of total assets, revenues and cash flows of components included in the consolidated financial statements not audited -
by the parent’s auditor. Total assets, revenues and cash flows not audited by the parent’s auditor should be presented
before giving effect to permanent and current period consolidation adjustments. Reference in the report of the
auditor on the consolidated financial statements to the fact that part of the audit of the group was made by other
auditor(s) is not to be construed as a qualification of the opinion but rather as an indication of the divided

l

responsibility between the auditors of the parent and its subsidiaries.

12. M & B Investments Ltd. is a company having paid up share capital of 1 Crore. It has a subsidiary, Investors Fund
Management Ltd. Major business of M & B Investments Ltd. is to pool money from investors on a collective basis .
and invest this money in various funds. This company pooled = 10 Crore from a number of clients, which represent
the Company’s shareholders. While auditing books of accounts of M & B Investments Ltd. CA. X observed that whole
amount of 10 crore pooled has been invested in shares and debentures of various companies and profit earned due
to appreciation of the prices of these shares has been distributed to various shareholders of the company.
Performance of all of its investments is measured on fair value basis. Now; CA X raised an issue while auditing
financial statements of M & B Investments Ltd. whether the consolidated financial statements are required as per
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 ? Analyse the above issue and give your opinion.

[Dec-21 New + RTP Nov-22]
According to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, where a company has one or more subsidiaries, including
associate company and joint venture, it shall, in addition to its own financial statements prepare a consolidated
financial statement of the company and of all the subsidiaries in the same form and manner as that of its own.

. N /

As per sub-section 6 of the section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Central Government may, on its own or on an
application by a class or classes of companies, by notification, exempt any class or classes of companies from
complying with any of the requirements of section 129 or the rules made thereunder.
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n investment entity is an entity that:

obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of prowdmg those investor(s) with investment
management services;
commits to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; andl
measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.
: %

~ Aninvestment entity need not present consolidated financial statements if it is required, in accordance with paragraph
31 of Ind AS 110, to measure all of its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.

¢
A parent shall determine whether it is an investment entity. However, as per par-agraph 33 of jnd AS 110, parent of an
investment entity shall consolidate all entities that it controls, including those controlled through an investment entity
subsidiary, unless the parent itself is an investment entity. :

Applying the above to the given case of M&B Investment Ltd, which fulfils all the conditions stated above, it is an
investment entity. By applying Para 31 and 33 of Ind AS 110, it can be concluded that M&B Investment Ltd is not
required to consolidate as per Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

13. CAH was appointed as a Statutory Auditor of MNL Limited, a listed 5 company, which has three subsidiaries
namely M Ltd., N Ltd., L Ltd. and alsé 15 branches across India. Auditors are duly appomted for the subsidiaries and
branches as well. With regard to the determination of materiality during the audit of consolidated financial
statements what should be the considerations of CAH ?

How he should deal in his report if there are observations (for instance modification and/or emphasis of matter in
accordance with SA 705/706) made by component auditors ? [May-22] '

With regard to determination of materiality during the audit of consolidated financial statements (CFS), the auditor

should consider the following: > ’

» The auditor is required to compute the materiality for the group as a whale. This materiality should be used to
~assess the appropriateness of the consolidation adjustments (i.e. permanent consolidation adjustments and current

period consolidation adjustments) that are made by the management in the preparation of CFS. ’

e The parent auditor can also use the materiality computed on the group level to determine whether the

component's financial statements are material to the group to determine whether they should scope in addmonal

components, and consider using the work of other auditors as applicable.

o The principal auditor also computes materiality for each component and communicates to the component auditor,

if he believes is required for true and fair view on CFS. '

e The principal auditor also obtains certain confirmations from component auditor like independence, code of ethics,

certain information required for consolidation and disclosure requirements etc.

However, while considering the observations (for instance modification and /or emphasis of matter in accordance
with SA 705/706) of the component auditor in his report on the standalone financial statements, the principles of SA
600 needs to be considered. ICAl issued an announcement dated May 25, 2017 which amended paragraph 17 of
Guidance Note and states that while considering the observations (for instance modification and /or emphasis of
matter/other matter in accordance with SA 705/706) of the component auditor in his report on the standalone
financial statements, the parent auditor should comply with the requirements of SA 600, “Using the Work of Another
Auditor”.

14. ABC Limited holds 51% equity of BBB Limited, 63% equity of TTT Limited. There are different information qnd
explanations which are disclosed by the respective companies in the notes to their financial statements. At time of
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consolidation, management of ABC Limited has consolidated all the information and explanations disclosed in the

notes as well. The principal auditor is of the view that only those information and explanations should form part of
the notes to the consolidated financial statements which are relevant at group level. Please mention any five.
aspects which are given in the notes to the separate financial statements of the parent and the subsidiaries, need
not be included in the consolidated financial statements. [Nov-22]

N
In case of companies, information such as following given in notes to the separate financial statements of the parent -
and/or the subsidiary, need not be included in the consolidated financial statements.

i) Source from which bonus shares are issued, e.g., capitalisation of profits or reserves or from securities premium -
account.

i) Disclosure of all unutilised monies out of the issue indicating the form in which such unutilised funds have been
invested.

iii) Disclosure required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

iv) A statement of investments (whether shown under “financial assets or non-financial assets as stock-in-trade)
separately classifying trade investments and other investments, showing the names of the bodies corporate
(indicating separately the names of the bodies corporate under the same management) in whose shares or
debentures, investments have been made (including all investments, whether existing or not, made subsequent
to the date as at which the previous balance sheet was made out) and the nature and extent of the investment
so made in each such body corporate.

v) Value of imports calculated on C.L.F. basis by the company during the financial year in respect of:

a. raw materials;
b. components and spare parts;
c. capital goods.

vi) Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account of royalty, know-how, professional and :
consultation fees, interest, and other matters. .

vii) Value of all imported raw materials, spare parts and components consumed during the financial year and the
value of all indigenous raw materials, spare parts and components similarly consumed and the percentage of

. each to the total consumption.

viii) The amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies on account of dividends, with a specific mention of
the number of non-resident shareholders, the number of shares held by them on which the dividends were due
and the year to which the dividends related.

ix) Earnings in foreign exchange classified under the following heads, namely:

(a) export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis;

(b) royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees;
(c) interest and dividend;

{d) other income, indicating the nature thereof.

However, notwithstanding the above, the auditor needs to ensure compliance with disclosure requirements of
applicable accounting standards and other applicable laws for consolidated financial statements. B

Case Scenario : ‘ .
While auditing consolidated financial statements of YK Industries Limited for the year 2022 23, a manufacturmg
company whose financial statements are required to be prepared in accordance with Division Il of Schedule 1li of
Compames Act, 2013, CA. Palash Shah notlces as under: -

(A) The notes to accounts in respect of consolidated financial statements disclose additional information pertaining
to the holding company and its subsidiaries. It provides disclosure regarding percentages of consolidated net assets,
of consolldated profit and loss and of total comprehensnve income along with their respectlve amounts pertaining to
holdmg company and its subsidiaries.

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI : : 176




h-5 Group Audit Learn with Fun

(B)Itis noticed by him that financial statements of one forejgn subsidiary inclqded in consolidated financial statements
‘are drawn up to 31St December, 2022 in accordance with legal requirements in US. He feels it to be weird and is of
;the view that consolidated financial statements of group could present a distorted picture. The management, inturn,
informs him that it is not practicable to draw the financial statements of foreign subsidiary to 31st March, 2023.

_(C) During the year 2022-23, goodwill of Rs.50 crore had arisen on account of the acquisition of a subsidiat"y during
the year and there is no impairment loss as on the balance sheet date. Besides, adjustments have been made in
consolidated financial statements with respect to intra-group indebtedness and those related to harmonizing different
accounting policies being adopted by parent and its subsidiaries. .
(D) It is noticed by him that one subsidiary was acquired on 15.6.22. He is in a dilemma as regards to the correctness
of consolidation of its financial statements in group financial statements. Besides, he is also in the process of finalising
audit report including. matters to be reported under CARO, 2020 in respect of consolidated financial statements.
However, he is in a fix in respect of manner of reporting under CARO,2020 relating to consolidated financial

statements.

Based upon above information and description, answer the following questions:-
1. Considering disclosure of additional information in consolidated financial statements as siated in para (A) of casé
study, which of the following statements is correct? ’

(a) The said disclosure is not proper as percentage of consolidated revenue from operations along with respective
amount pertaining to holding company and its subsidiaries is also required.

(b) The said disclosure is not proper as percentage of other comprehensive income along with respective amount
pertaining to holding company and its subsidiaries is also required.

{c) The said disclosure is not proper as percentages of consolidated revenue from operations as well as other
comprehensive income along with their respective amounts per:caining to holding company and its subsidiaries
are also required.

(d) The said disclosure is proper.

2. What should be auditor’s proper course of action pursuant to situation highlighted in para [B] relating to financ‘iél
statements of a foreign subsidiary?

a. The auditor should insist for drawing up of financial statements of foreign subsidiary to 315t March,2023. The
reason for impracticality is a mere excuse. In case of failure to redraw, he can modify his opinion in accordance
with SA 705.

b. The auditor can accept management’s version.

The auditor can accept management’s version. However, it is his duty to verify adjustments made for effects of
significant transactions or events occurring between 1st January 2023 and 31st March,2023.

d. The auditor should modify his opinion by quantifying the financial effects of such an inconsistency.

3 Which of the following statements is correct in respect of goodWilI and other matters described in the case
scenario?

a. Goodwill represents current period consolidation adjustments. Adjustments relating to intra-group
indebtedness and those relating to harmonizing different accounting policies being adopted by the parent and
its subsidiaries represent permanent consolidation adjustments. )

b. Adjustments relating to goodwill, intra-group indebtedness and those relating to harmonizing different
accounting policies being adopted by parent and its subsidiaries represent current period consolidation
adjustments.
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C.

Goodwill represents permanent consolidation adjustments. Adjustments relating to intra-group indebtedness B

and those relating to harmonizing different accounting policies being adopted by the parent and its subsidiaries
represent current-period consolidation adjustments. '

Goodwill and adjustments relating to harmonizing different accounting policies being adopted by the parent -
and its subsidiaries represent permanent consolidation adjustments. Adjustments relating to intra-group
indebtedness represent current period consolidation adjustments.

4. Which of the following statements is most appropriéte regarding consolidation of financial statements of g
subsidiary acquired on 15.6.22?

a.

The auditor should verify that income and expenses of subsidiary are included in consolidated financial
statements from the date it gains control of subsidiary and further such income and expenses are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.
The auditor should verify that income and expenses of subsidiary are included in consolidated financial
statements for the complete financial year and further such income and expenses are based on the amounts of
the assets and liabilities recognized in consolidated financial statements at the preceding reporting date.

The auditor should verify that income and expenses of subsidiary are included in consolidated financial
statements from the date it gains control of subsidiary and further such income and expenses are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in consolidated financial statements at the preceding reporting
date. '

The auditor should verify that income and expenses of subsidiary are included in consolidated financial -
statements for the complete financial year and further such income and expenses are based on the amounts of
the assets and liabilities recognized in consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

5. As regards reporting under reporting CARO,2020 in respect of consolidated financial statements, which of the
following is in accordance with requirements of law?

a.

A separate report providing Clause by Clause reporting under CARO,2020 is required in respect of specified
matters pertaining to parent and all subsidiaries incorporated in india.

It would be sufficient if report under CARO,2020 in respect of standalone financial statements is supplemented
with additional information in respect of all subsidiaries incorporated in India.

A separate report under CARO, 2020 in respect of all subsidiaries incorporated in India together is required. It
should be annexed with report under CARO, 2020 in respect of standalone financial statements.

Reporting of details of subsidiaries together with paragraph numbers of reports under CARO, 2020 of auditors of
such companies incorporated in India containing qualifications or adverse remarks would serve the purpose.

1. (b) 2. (c) 3. (c) 4. (a) 5. (d)
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....5 Test Your'Understanding:

1. CA. Harshit is conducting statutory audit of branch ofua public sector bank. On examining 20 large advances of
the branch, he finds thatin 5 examined cases, loan applications have been filled up scantily with important details
Jeft out. In these cases, it is also noticed that cash credit limits to the borrowers were enhanced during the year but
‘there are no records pertaining to assessment of enhanced working capital requirements in respective borrower
files. The branch is unable to show such assessments/workings in system either. &

However, all the five accounts are operating satisfactorily. These accounts have been classified as standard assets
by branch. Would above information prompt auditor to suggest change in asset classification of above accounts?
What does depicted situation reflect? ) '
An account becomes NPA when it ceases to generate income for bank. In given situation, all examined five accounts
are operating satisfactorily. There is no reason for suggesting changes in their classification.

The matter of scantily filling up loan applications and lack for record for assessment of enhanced working capital
requirements shows that internal control over advances in branch is not proper: The above said situation shows
deficiencies in “credit appraisal” at branch level. Such deficiencies need to be highlighted by auditor in LFAR.

2. You are conducting concurrent a'[idit of branch of a public sector bank. It is a large branch having advances of
about % 500 crores including export advances of X 300 crores. Some borrowers also get LCs issued from branch for
importing raw diamonds from diamond hubs of Belgium. You want to be sure that there is no revenue leakage in
branch. For the time being, you are focusing upon advances. Discuss any five areas pertaining to advances of the
branch which you would verify to ensure no revenue leakage.

The areas of advances which need to be verified are as under: - -

i) Interestrates fedin the system need to be verified with respect to corresponding sanction letters. it would help
ensure that correct rate of interest is fed into the system and interest is applied properly at stipulated intervals
on advances. ’

i) Processing fees in respect of freshly sanctioned advances and renewed limits need to be levied in accordance
with bank guidelines and these need to be verified. Any revision in processing fees from time to time has to be
given effect to in accordance with circulars/manual of bank. '

iii) Sanction of cash credit limits is generally accompanied with stipulation to submit stock statements. Non-
submission of stock statements can involve levying of penal interest. Verification of this aspect is required.

iv) Verification of overdue interest on export bills purchased and packing credit facilities for overdue period.

v) Verification of charges/commission in respect of letters of credit issued in accordance with Bank’s

circulars/manual.

3. CA. Seema is appointed as stock auditor of Bhawani Rice Mills Pvt. Ltd. availing credit facilities from R.K. Puram
Branch, Near Tamil Educational Society, New Delhi. ‘

The borrower is enjoying cash credit limit of X 12 crore from branch against security of paid stocks and debtors up
to 90 days against margin of 25%. She proceeds to visit premises of Bhawani Rice Mills Pvt. Ltd. located on outskirts
of Delhi. She verifies books of accounts and stock records of the company and also test checks quantity of paddy
and rice of 20000 quintals and 8000 bags lying in premises of the company. Drawing power of X 12.05 crore is
computed in stock audit report and report stands submitted to bank.
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After about a week, regular internal inspector appointed by Inspection department of bank also happened to visit

premises of the borrower and found that rice contained in about 5000 bags included in stocks having approx. value
of X 1.50 crore was fungus ridden. The company was holdlng this stock for last 15 months.

How do you view the above situation? Discuss.

The above situation reflects that professional work of stock audit was not performed diligently by stock auditor. it
-is one of the important responsibilities of stock auditor to verify condition of stocks. The auditor’s role is not limited
to verify physical quantities only.

In given case, she should have got opened rice bags on test check basis. In the process, she could have come to know
about fungus ridden condition of rice. Value of such rice should have been excluded while arriving at value of stocks
for purpose of computation of drawing power. it shows that she has failed to perform her work diligently and drawing
power calculated in the report submitted to bank is not proper.

Past Exam/RTP/MTPs/SM Questions : G CE
1. CA K have been domg audlt of branch of LUD Bank Ltd. The principal business of the branch is Iendlng advances
to large corporates. Since last one year, many large accounts havé become Non- -Performing Asset (NPA) as per
guidelines. The Management of the Bank decided to sell one of the NPA account and consequently one NPA namely
DEF Ltd. amounting to X 10.00 Crores was sold to Asset Reconstruction Company. What audit points CA K-should
keep in mind while doing audit of this transaction? (Jan 21 New + MTP Sep-22)

CAK conducting audlt of branch of LUD Bank Ltd. whose principal business is lending money to large corporates. Many
large accounts of this branch have turned NPA category and Management sold DEF Ltd.’s NPA account amounting to
X 10 Crores to Asset Reconstruction Company.

CA K shouid proceed as under: In case of Sale of NPA by Bank, the auditor should examine

i) the policy laid down by the Board of Directors in this regard relating to procedures, valuation and delegation of
powers.

ii) only such NPA has been sold which has remained NPA in the books of the bank for at least 2 years.

iii) the assets have been sold “without recourse’ only.

iv) subsequent to the sale of the NPA, the bank does not assume any legal, operational or any other type of risk
relating to the sold NPAs.

v) the NPA has been sold at cash basis only.

vi) on the sale of the NPA, the same has been removed from the books of the account.

vii) the short fall in the net book value has been charged to the profit and loss account.

viii) where sale is for a value higher than the NBV, no profit is recognised and the excess provision has not been
reversed but retained to meet the shortfall/ loss because sale of other non-performing financial assets.

2. In the course of statutory Branch audit of KS Bank Ltd, you observe that some borrower accounts have been
regularised before Balance sheet date by payment of overdue amount. Narrate the audit procedures to be carried
out with special focus on the Classification of advances and Provisioning for Non- Performmg assets of the Branch.

~ {Nov 20 New)
The Audit procedures that need to be carrled out with special focus on classification of advances and provisioning for
NPAs of KS Bank Ltd, in which the auditor has observed that some borrower accounts have been regularized before
balance sheet date by payment of overdue amount shall be carried out as under :

i) As perthe Reserve Bank guidelines, if an account has been regularised before the balance sheet date by payment
of overdue amount through genuine sources, the account need not be treated as NPA.
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if) Where subsequent to repayment by the borrower (which makes the account regular), the branch has prowdeei

further funds to the borrower (including by way of sybscription to its debentures or in other accounts of the

borrower), the auditor should carefully assess whether the repayment was out of genuine sources or not.

" jii) Where account indicates inherent weakness based in the data available, the account shall be deemed as a NPA.

‘ Classification and Provision ,

a. Examine whether the classification made by the branch is appropriate. Particularly, examine the classification
of advances where there are threats to recovery. ' hd

b. Examine whether the secured and the unsecured portions of advances have been segregated correctly and
provisions have been calculated properly.

c. Itis to be ensured that the classification is made as per the position as on date and hence classification of all
standard accounts be reviewed as on balance sheet date. ) /

. The date of NPA is significant to determine the classification and hence specific care be taken in this regard.
e. NPA should be recognized only based on concept of Past Due/ Overdue concept, and not based on the Balance

Sheet date.

3. You have been appointed as an auditor of LCO Bank, a nationalized bank. LCO Bank also deals in providing credit
card facilities to its account holder. The bank is aware of the fact that there should be strict control over storage
and issue of credit cards. How will you evaluate the Internal Control System in the area of Credit Card operations
of a Bank? (Nov-19/22)

+

Evaluation of the Internal Control System in the area of Credit Card Operations of a bank:

i} There should be effective screening of applications with reasonably good credit assessments.

i) There should be strict control over storage and issue of cards.

iiiy There should be a system whereby a merchant confirms the status of unutilised limit of a credit-card holder
from the bank before accepting the settlement in case the amount to be settled exceeds a specified percentage
of the total limit of the card holder. -.

iv) There should be a system of prompt reporting by the merchants of all settlements accepted by them through
credit cards. ’

v) Reimbursement to merchants should be made only after verification of the validity of merchant’s acceptance of
cards.

vi} All the reimbursement (gross of commission) shouid be immediately charged to the customer’s account.

vii) There should be a system to ensure that statements are sent regularly and promptly to the customer.

viii) There should be a system to monitor and follow-up customers’ payments.

ix) Iters overdue beyond a reasonable period should be identified and attended to carefully Credit should be
stopped by informing the merchants through periodic bulletins, as early as possible, to avoid increased losses. v

x) There should be a system of periodic review of credit card holders’ accounts. On this basis, the limits of
customers may be revised, if necessary. The review should also include determination of doubtful amounts and

the provisioning in respect thereof.

4. Banks, because of certain characteristics, are distinguished from other commercial enterprises and hence it needs
special audit consideration. As an auditor of a bank, specify the various peculiarities which may necessitate special
audit consideration to be taken care by you. (May 19 New)

Special audit considerations arise in the audit of banks because of:
i) the particular nature of risks assoc:ated with the transactions undertaken;
ii) the scale of banking operations and the resultant significant exposures which can arise within short perlod of
time; :
iii} the extensive dependence on IT to process transactions; -
iv) the effect of the statutory and regulatory requirements;
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v) the contmumg development of new products and services and banking practices which may not be matched by

the concurrent development of accounting principles and auditing practices;
vi) Evolution of technology and providing services through Net Banking and Mobiles has exposed banks to huge
operational and financial risk. :

The auditor should consider the effect of the above factors in designing his audit approach.

5. You are the Concurrent Auditor of a Branch of National‘ized Bank which deals in foreign exchange transactions.
Give focus areas of your checking in this respect. (Nov 18 New + Nov-21 New)

Focus Areas in case of Foreign Exchange Transactions:

e Check foreign bills negotiated under letters of credit.

® Check FCNR and other non-resident accounts whether the debits and credits are permissible under rules.

* Check whether inward/outward remittance have been properly accounted for.

* Examine extension and cancellation of forward contracts for purchase and sale of foreign currency. Ensure
that they are duly authorised and necessary charges have been recovered.

° Ensure that balances in Nostro accounts in different foreign currencies are within the limit as prescribed by the
bank. N .

* Ensure that the overbought/oversold position maintained in different currencies is reasonable considering the
foreign exchange operations. : '

° Ensure adherence to the guidelines issued by RBI/HO of the bank about dealing room operations.

* Ensure verification/reconciliation of Nostro and Vostro account transactions/ balances.

6. INDO Bank appointed your firm of Chartered Accountants as a branch auditor for the financial year 2018-19.
Being head-in-charge of the assignment, while planning, you distributed the work among your team members and
assigned Mr. Pary for verification of bills payable. However, Mr. Pary, being fresh to the bank audits, needs your
guidance. Kindly guide. (MTP Oct 19)

Bills Payable: Evaluate the existence, effectiveness and continuity of internal controls over bills payable.

Such controls should usually include the following-

© Drafts, mail transfers, traveller’s cheques, etc. should be made out in standard printed forms.

* Unused forms relating to drafts, traveller’s cheques, etc. should be kept under the custody of a responsible officer.

e The bank should have a reliable private code known only to the responsible officers of its branches, coding and
decoding of the telegrams should be done only by such officers.

© The signatures on a demand draft should be checked by an officer with the specimen signature book.

e All the telegraphic transfers and demand drafts issued by a branch should be immediately confirmed by advices
to the branches concerned. On payment of these instruments, the paying branch should send a debit advice to the
originating branch. v

Examine an appropriate sample of outstanding items comprised in bills payable accounts with the rélevant registers.

Reasons for old outstanding debits in respect of drafts or other similar instruments pald without advnce should be

ascertained.

Correspondence with other branches after the year-end (e.g., responding advices received from other branches,
advices received from other branches in respect of drafts issued by the branch and paid by the other branches without
advice) should be examined specially in so far as large value items outstanding on the balance sheet date are
concerned.

AUDIT QUESTION BANK BY CA SHUBHAM KESWANI : 182




Queries

1. Interest on State Government Guardnteed advance has been taken to income even though such advance has
remained overdue for more than 90 days.
2. There is an account for which an ad hoc limit has not been reviewed for 180 days from the date of such ad hoc
sanction and such account has been treated as a performing asset in the books. o

3. One of the NPAs was sold for a value higher than the net book value. Profit was not recognized but the excess
provision in respect of the same has been reversed
4. In case of one of the accounts, an additional temporary limit has been sanctioned for 25% of the existing limit
and for 120 days tenure.
You are required to provide the reasons due to which such queries would have been raised by Mr. Kaival and

“Cch-6 Bank Audit
7. Gupta & Co. has been appointed as a statutory auditor of TCB Bank Ltd., a private sector bank, registered with

RBI. Mr. Kaival Gupta, the engagement partner, while peyforming the audit as per the checklist, noted down the
following points, which would be part of the audit queries, as tabulated below:
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i

describe the actions that may be taken by the person responsible on behalf of TCB Bank Ltd. for solving such queries.

(RTP Nov.21)

S No. | Reason for query Action that may be taken in response to query

1 A State Government Guaranteed advance has to be | Interest income recognized on such advance would
treated as NPA even if it remains overdue for more | be reversed and would be taken to income only
than 90 days and in case of NPA, for the purpose of | when itis realized. :
income recognition, interest on such advance should »
not be taken to income unless interest is realized.

2 Accounts for which an ad hoc limit has not been | It’s treatment in the books would be changed from
reviewed for 180 days from the date of such ad hoc | performing asset to a non-performing asset from
sanction, should be considered as NPA. the date when such change in the treatment was

required.

3 In case of sale of NPA, where the sale is for a value | The entry for reversal of the excess provision would
higher than the NBV, the auditor is required to ensure be cancelled in the books and such excess provision
that no profit is recognized, and the excess provision | would be retained to meet the shortfall/ loss that
has not been reversed but retained to meet the | may arise because of the sale of other non-
shortfall/ loss that may arise because of the sale of | performing financial assets. '
other nonperforming financial assets.

4 Additional temporary limit may be sanctioned, for a | The terms of additional temporary limit in case of
maximum of 20% of the existing limit and 90 days | such account would be revised to 20% of the
maximum tenure. existing limit and for 90 days maximum tenure.

8. You are auditing a small bank branch with staff strength of the manager, cashier and three other staff Peter,
Prem and Pran. Among allocation of work for other areas, Peter who is a peon also opens all the mail and forwards
it to the concerned person. He does not have a signature book so as to check the signatures on lmportant
communications. Prem has possession of all bank forms (e.g. Cheque books, demand draft/pay order books,
travellers’ cheques, foreign currency “cards etc. ). He maintains a record meticulously which you have test checked
also. However, no one among staff regularly checks that. You are informed that being a small branch with shortage

of manpower, it is not possible to always check the work and records. Give your comments. (RTP May-21 + SM)

Banks are required to implement and maintain a system of internal controls for mitigating risks, maintain good

governance and to meet the regulatory requirements.

Given below are examples of internal controls that are violated in the given situation: -
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In the instant case, Peter who is a peon opens all the mail and forwards it to the concerned person. Further, he does

not have a signature book so’ as to check the signatures on important communications is not in accordance with
implementation and maintenance of general internal control. As the mail should be opened by a responsible officer.
Signatures on all the letters and advices received from other branches of the bank or its correspondence should be
checked by an officer with th\e signature book.

Al bank forms (e.g. Cheque books, demand draft/pay order books, travelers’ cheques, foreign currency cards etc.)
should be kept in the possession of an officer, and another responsible officer should verify the issuance and stock
of such stationery. In the given case, Prem has possession of all bank forms (e.g. cheque books, demand draft/pay
order books, travelers’ cheques, foreign currency cards etc. ). He maintains a record meticulously which were also
verified on test check basis.

Further, contention of bank that being a small branch with shortage of manpower they are not able to check the work
and records on regular basis, is not tenable as such lapses in internal control pose risk of fraud.

The auditor should report the same in his report accordingly.

9. While auditing FAIR Bank, you observed that a lump sum amount has been disclosed as contingent liability
collectively. You are, therefore, requested by the management to gmde them about the disclosure requirement of
Contingent Liabilities for Banks. {RTP Nov 19)

Contingent Liabilities for Banks: The Third Schedule to the Banking Regulatioh Act, 1949, requires the disclosure of
the following as a footnote to the balance sheet-
(A) Contingent liabilities
i. Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts.
ii. -~ Liability for partly paid investments.
iii. Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts.
iv. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents-
1. InIndia. '
2. Outside India.
A Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations.
vi. Other items for which the bank is contingently liable.
(B) Bills for collection.

10. Your firm has been appointed as Central Statutory Auditors of a Nationalised Bank. The Bank follows financial
year as accounting year. Your Audit Manager informed that the bank has recognised on accrual basis income from
dividends. on securities and Units of Mutual Funds held by it as at the end of financial year. The dividends on
securities and Units of Mutual Funds were declared after the end of financial year. Comment. (SM)

Banks may book income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies on accrual basis, provided dividend on the
shares has been declared by the corporate body in its annual general meeting and the owner's right to receive
payment